SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT
BOARD AND TRAINING ROOM
27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD
SANTA CLARITA, CA 91350

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2020 AT 6:30 PM
6:00 PM DISCOVERY ROOM OPEN TO PUBLIC
Dinner for Directors and staff in the Discovery Room
there will be no discussion of Agency business taking place prior to the
Call to Order at 6:30 PM.
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 PM
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS — Members of the public may comment as to items not on the
Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in
this Agenda may do so now or prior to each item as they arise. Please complete and
return a comment request form to the Agency Board Secretary. (Comments may, at
the discretion of the Board’s presiding officer, be limited to three minutes for each
speaker.) Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in Closed
Session before they are considered by the Board must request to make comment at
the commencement of the meeting at 6:30 PM.

4, APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. SPECIAL PROCEDURES

5.1. Discussion and Approval of Term of Office for President and Vice
President(s) and Discussion and Approval of One or Two Vice
President(s)

5.2. Election of President and Vice President(s)
5.3. Director Seating Selections at the Board Table
6. CONSENT CALENDAR PAGE

6.1. * Approve Minutes of the January 21, 2020 Santa Clarita
Valley Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 5

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD « SANTA CLARITA, CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 - 661 2971600 - FAX 661 297-1611
website address: www.yourscvwater.com



February 4, 2020

Page 2 of 4
6. CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT.) PAGE
6.2. * | Approve (1) a Resolution for a Construction Contract with
Cedro Construction, Inc., (2) a Work Authorization to Woodard
& Curran for Engineering Services During Construction and (3)
a Work Authorization to Michael Baker International for
Construction Management and Inspection Services for the
West Ranch Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D)
Project 13
6.3. * Approve a Resolution for a Construction Contract with Ferreira
Construction Co., Inc., and a Work Authorization to Cannon
Corporation for Construction Management and Inspection
Services for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension
(Phase 2B) Project 19
6.4. * Approve a Customer Service Policy and Revised Fees for
Reconnection of Service 25
6.5. * Approve a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy 131
6.6. * Approve a Resolution Adopting a Ticket Distribution Policy 143
7. ACTION ITEMS FOR APPROVAL PAGE
7.1. * | Approve a Resolution Authorizing (1) the Issuance of One or
More Series of Revenue Bonds by the Upper Santa Clara
Valley Joint Powers Authority; (2) the Execution of Certain
Documents; and (3) Certain Other Actions 161
7.2. " Approve a Community Facility District Policy 285
7.3. * | Approve Entering Into a Contract with Fieldman Rolapp &
Associates for Financial Advisor Services 291
8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS
9. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY PAGE
9.1. * January 9, 2020 Special Engineering and Operations
Committee Meeting Report 387
9.2. * January 13, 2020 Special Finance and Administration
Committee Meeting Report 391
9.3. * | January 16, 2020 Public Outreach and Legislation Committee
Meeting Report 395
10. WRITTEN REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY PAGE
10.1.” Engineering Services Section Report 399
10.2.* Finance, Administration and Information Technology Section
Report 405
10.3.* Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section
Report 409
10.4.” Water Resources and Outreach Section Report 419




February 4, 2020
Page 3 of 4

10. WRITTEN REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY (CONT.) PAGE

[ 10.5.* | Committee Planning Calendars | 425 |

11. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

12. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS PAGE

1217 January 22, 2020 Southern California Water Dialogue —
Director Plambeck 439
12.2. January 22, 2020 CCWUC Locals Only: Implementation of the
SGMA in Ventura County — Director Atkins

12.3. January 24, 2020 SCV Chamber of Commerce Awards and
Installation Gala — President Cooper, Vice President Martin
and Directors Atkins, E. Colley and Kelly

12.4. January 28, 2020 VIA Monthly Luncheon — Vice President
Martin and Director Atkins

12.5. AB 1234 Reports

13. DIRECTOR REPORTS

13.1. January 30, 2020 Compensation and Reimbursement Policy Ad Hoc
Committee Meeting — Director DiPrimio

14. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR APPROVAL FOR EVENT ATTENDANCE

14.1 Director Kelly Requests to be Able to Attend the May 5-8, 2020 ACWA Spring
Conference

15. REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

16. ADJOURNMENT

*

Indicates Attachment
6 Indicates Handout

Note: The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above
agenda items.

NOTICES

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs,
Secretary to the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must
specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone
number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss
appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested
accommodation.



February 4, 2020
Page 4 of 4

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72)
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during regular
business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.

Posted on January 29, 2020.

_/-\ f\“ﬂrl'. ¢ /‘?


ajacobs
Matt


DRAFT ITEM NO.
6.1

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency — January 21, 2020

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held
at the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa
Clarita, CA 91350 at 6:30 PM on Tuesday, January 21, 2020. A copy of the Agenda is inserted
in the Minute Book of the Agency preceding these minutes.

DIRECTORS PRESENT: B. J. Atkins, Tom Campbell, Ed Colley, William Cooper, Robert
DiPrimio, Jeff Ford, Maria Gutzeit, R. J. Kelly, Gary Martin, Dan
Mortensen and Lynne Plambeck.

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Kathy Colley and Jerry Gladbach.

Also present: Matthew Stone, General Manager; Joe Byrne, General Counsel; April Jacobs,

Board Secretary; Steve Cole, Assistant General Manager; Eric Campbell, Chief Financial and

Administrative Officer; Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer; Rochelle Patterson, Director

of Finance and Administration; Kathie Martin, Public Information Officer; Jeff Herbert, Senior IT

Technician; Kyle Arnold, Accounting Technician I; Terri Bell, Administrative Assistant; Ichiko

Kido, RDN Consulting; and members of the public.

President Cooper called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. A quorum was present.

Upon motion of Director Atkins, seconded by Director DiPrimio and carried, the Agenda was
approved by the following electronic votes (ltem 4):

Director Atkins Yes Director Campbell Yes
Director E. Colley Yes Director K. Colley Absent
President Cooper Yes Director DiPrimio Yes
Director Ford Yes Director Gladbach Absent
Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Kelly Yes
Vice President Martin Yes Director Mortensen Yes
Director Plambeck Yes

Upon motion of Director Mortensen, seconded by Director Atkins and carried, the Board

approved the Consent Calendar by the following electronic votes (ltem 5):

Director Atkins Yes Director Campbell Yes
Director E. Colley Yes Director K. Colley Absent
President Cooper Yes Director DiPrimio Yes
Director Ford Yes Director Gladbach Absent
Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Kelly Yes
Vice President Martin Yes Director Mortensen Yes
Director Plambeck Yes

The Board reviewed and discussed the revised Facility Capacity Fees and recommended that
staff bring this item back to the Board for consideration with the proper reports and the
administrative record being fully documented and presented (ltem 6.1).


ajacobs
DRAFT

ajacobs
Item 6.1


Minutes of January 21, 2020
Page 2 of 5

General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (ltem 7).

General Manager Stone updated the Board on the January 8, 2020 All Employee Staff meeting.
Topics presented to staff were the top five things going on in the organization which were
presented by five different managers. This gave staff an opportunity to hear from different
managers and get updates on what is happening in the Agency. He also mentioned the
recognition for staff anniversaries, explaining that those who receive awards have been with the
Agency for 5, 10, 15, 20, etc. years. One notable award was given out to an employee who had
been with the prior entity and the Agency for 35 years.

General Manager Stone continued his update on the upcoming Strategic Planning Session
scheduled for February 11, 2020. The session will include a review of the six key goals
identified by staff and the Board last year and will cover a refresh/update on those goals. It won'’t
be a full scale review just a tune-up. Ed Means will be facilitating.

He mentioned that our Chief Engineer Brian Folsom would be retiring at the end of February
2020 and that they are currently working on a recruitment plan. He informed the Board that the
Assistant General Manager Steve Cole and Chief Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie will be
covering the Engineering Department once Brian has retired.

General Manager Stone continued with an update on the State Water Contractors recent
meeting. He mentioned three areas of discussions.

e Regulatory issues pertaining to permits to operate the State Water project.

e Contracts in which each of the State Water Contractors have a contract with the
Department of Water Resources and they are periodically amended and adjusted as the
situation dictates.

e Status of current amendments:

o Contract Extension Amendment — Most Agencies have approved and they are
currently waiting for approvals from many of the remaining Agencies. The
importance of this, is that the current contract sunsets in 2035 and the extension
will change the horizon for financing new capital.

o Water Management Tools Amendment — Entails an effort to clarify what some
believe is already in the discretion of the department and Director of the
department in the existing contract to permit longer term transfers between
contractors rather than one or two year transfers. The Administration wanted to
do a formal amendment and get CEQA approval and implement it. An
agreement in principle has been reached and the attorneys are writing the
language for the Amendment. They are hopeful it will come back for a vote by
each of the organizations including SCV Water sometime this year. The
importance of this is that it may help facilitate the orderly function of the contract
over time as more agriculture entities are under more pressure financially and
may wish to contract with the longer term transfers among urban entities or
themselves.



Minutes of January 21, 2020
Page 3 of 5

o Delta Conveyance Facility Amendment — This amendment is not quite as far
along, however it would put in place the means in which the Contractors will
commit to paying a share of that project and outline some of the operating
principles for the project once the Delta Conveyance Facility is online.

General Manager Stone also reported that consistent with the authority granted to the General
Manager in Section 5.2 of the SCV Water Purchasing Policy and under State law, he informed
the Board that he determined, based on the reasons and detail described in the attached memo
(Attachment 1), that there was an emergency that required immediate action and that it was
necessary to dispense with public bidding requirements. He stated that on January 16, 2020,
there was an emergency repair of a 14” mainline that ruptured on Dickason Drive by Valencia
High School. The repair of the mainline was completed by SCV Water staff and an outside
contractor was used to make paving repairs. A report was sent to the SCV Water Board
President and Vice Presidents on January 21, 2020 and is included as an attachment to these
minutes.

President’s Report (Item 8).

President Cooper reminded the Board of upcoming special Board meetings which include Ethics
Training on February 3, 2020 and the Strategic Planning Session on February 11, 2020. He
also reminded the Board of upcoming events.

AB 1234 Reports (ltem 9).

Director Ford reported that he attended a lunch meeting with General Manager Stone on
January 21, 2020.

Director Plambeck reported that she attended a lunch meeting with General Manager Stone on
January 10, 2020.

Director Reports (Item 10).

There were no Director reports.

Upon motion of Director E. Colley, seconded by Director Mortensen and carried, the Board went
into Closed Session at 8:23 PM to discuss the item listed on the Agenda by the following
electronic votes (ltem 11):

Director Atkins Yes Director Campbell Yes
Director E. Colley Yes Director K. Colley Absent
President Cooper Yes Director DiPrimio Yes
Director Ford Yes Director Gladbach Absent

Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Kelly Yes



Minutes of January 21, 2020

Page 4 of 5
Vice President Martin Yes Director Mortensen Yes
Director Plambeck Yes

Upon motion of Director Campbell, seconded by Director Kelly and carried, the Board voted to
come out of Closed Session at 8:26 PM by the following electronic votes:

Director Atkins Yes Director Campbell Yes
Director E. Colley Yes Director K. Colley Absent
President Cooper Yes Director DiPrimio Yes
Director Ford Yes Director Gladbach Absent
Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Kelly Yes
Vice President Martin Yes Director Mortensen Yes
Director Plambeck Yes

President Cooper reconvened the Open Session at 8:26 PM.

Joe Byrne, Esq., reported that pertaining to Item No 11.1 — Conference with Legal Counsel —
Anticipated Litigation — Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of
Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9, Claim of Monica Shive against Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency, claim for personal injury and property damage, date of claim October 16, 2019, the
Board voted to reject the claim by motion of Director Mortensen, seconded by Director Atkins
and carried, by the following voice votes:

Director Atkins Yes Director Campbell Yes
Director E. Colley Yes Director K. Colley Absent
President Cooper Yes Director DiPrimio Yes
Director Ford Yes Director Gladbach Absent
Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Kelly Yes
Vice President Martin Yes Director Mortensen Yes
Director Plambeck Yes

There were no other actions taken in Closed Session that were reportable under the Ralph M.
Brown Act (Iltem 12).

Director Requests For Approval For Event Attendance (Item 13).

There were no Director requests for event attendance.

Request For Future Agenda Items (ltem 14).

Director Atkins requested that staff give a presentation on the Dickason Drive mainline break or
any of the recent breaks explaining the sequence of events and how staff and the community
acted. He mentioned maybe a Maintenance Moment from the Director of Operations and
Maintenance Mike Alvord. Vice President Gutzeit wanted to add that they include in this
presentation, what we can do to prevent this in the future and do we have upcoming



Minutes of January 21, 2020
Page 5 of 5

replacements planned. Director Plambeck also wanted to see a presentation on this as well.
There were no other requests for Future Agenda Items (ltem 14).

Upon motion of Director E. Colley, seconded by President Cooper and carried, the meeting was
adjourned at 8:29 PM by the following electronic votes (Item 15):

Director Atkins Yes Director Campbell Yes
Director E. Colley Yes Director K. Colley Absent
President Cooper Yes Director DiPrimio Yes
Director Ford Yes Director Gladbach Absent
Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Kelly Yes
Vice President Martin Yes Director Mortensen Yes
Director Plambeck Yes

April Jacobs, Board Secretary

ATTEST:

President of the Board



10

[This page intentionally left blank.]



ATTACHMENT 1

SCV

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 21, 2020
TO: William Cooper
President
FROM: Matthew G. Stone M@%

General Manager

SUBJECT: Emergency Repairs — Dickason Drive Mainline Break — January 16, 2020

Consistent with the authority granted to the General Manager in Section 5.2 of the Purchasing
Policy, the General Manager hereby determines that, based on the reasons and detail
described below, there was an emergency that required immediate action and it was necessary
to dispense with public bidding requirements;

On Thursday, January 18, 2020 at approximately 6:40 p.m., a 14" PVC mainline ruptured in the
south bound lanes of Dickason Drive just north of Smyth Drive. All south bound lanes (2 lanes)
of Dickason Drive from Decoro Drive to approximately 200 feet south of Smyth Drive were
immediately closed by the City of Santa Clarita. Traffic was also closed along Smyth Drive to
the east (2 lanes). On-Call staff had the line isolated by 7:15 p.m. and operations crews began
to mobilize for the repairs. The only customer out of water was Valencia High School. Due to
the importance of this roadway for traffic circulation in the Santa Clarita Valley and in providing
access to the High School, it was imperative that repairs be made immediately, and the
roadway opened to traffic as soon as possible. Significant damage to a large section of
roadway was done by the break and subsequent flooding. Mobilized SCV Water crews
immediately began the process of repair of the pipeline and restoration of the roadway. The
local paving contractor (RC Becker) was contacted and arrived on scene to aid in assessment
of damages and required paving repairs. By 7:00 a.m. on Friday, January 17, 2020 the leak
had been repaired and water service restored to Valencia High School. Crews had closely
coordinated with the High School Administration who scheduled school for a late start to
accommodate return of water service and access. The intersection of Dickason Drive and
Smyth Drive reopened around 8:00 p.m. on Friday, January 17, 2020 and the remainder of
Dickason Drive was reopened around 12:00 p.m., Saturday, January 18, 2020.

1


ajacobs
Attachment 1


12

[This page intentionally left blank.]



Sﬂl ITE:END.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 10, 2020

TO: SCVWA Board of Directors

FROM: Brian J. Folsom, P.E. 7.
Chief Engineer ﬁjr

SUBJECT: Approve (1) a Resolution for a Construction Contract with Cedro Construction, Inc.,
(2) a Work Authorization to Woodard & Curran for Engineering Services During
Construction and (3) a Work Authorization to Michael Baker International for
Construction Management and Inspection Services for the West Ranch Recycled
Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project

SUMMARY

The West Ranch Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project has been advertised for
construction bids. Bids have been received and staff is recommending award of a construction
contract to Cedro Construction, Inc. Staff is also recommending approval of work authorizations
to Woodard & Curran (W&C) for engineering services during construction and to Michael Baker
International (MBI) for construction management and inspection services.

DISCUSSION

The Agency’s Capital Improvement Program includes the development and construction of a
recycled water system. The West Ranch Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project
(Project) includes construction of approximately 5,000 linear feet of new 12-inch diameter
pipeline, an enclosed pump station and a hydropneumatic tank that would convey recycled
water from the Agency’s existing Recycled Water Reservoir No. 1 to customers including West
Ranch High School, Rancho Pico Junior High School, Oak Hills Elementary School and several
Homeowner’s Association and street irrigation customers along the pipeline route.

The Project has been advertised in accordance with Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV
Water)’s Purchasing Policy, with notices in The Signal on three different dates and on the
Agency’s website. On December 9, 2019, five bids were received and opened. A summary of
the bids is presented below:

Bidder Bidder Location Total Bid Price
Cedro Construction, Inc. Santa Paula, CA $3,112,332
Colich & Sons L.P. Gardena, CA $3,127,564
MNR Construction Inc. La Verne, CA $3,237,700
Ferreira Construction Co. Inc. Rancho Cucamonga, CA $3,482,440
Blois Construction, Inc. Oxnard, CA $5,473,822



ajacobs
Item 6.2

ajacobs
Brian


14

The apparent lowest responsive bid is from Cedro Construction, Inc. for a total of $3,112,332.
The engineer’s estimate for the project is $2,709,000. Cedro Construction, Inc. is a licensed
Class A General Engineering Contractor in California and is registered with the Department of
Industrial Relations.

Staff has requested the engineering design consultant, Woodard & Curran (W&C), to provide a
proposal for professional engineering services during construction. W&C'’s services include
responding to contractor’s requests for information, reviewing contractor submittals for
conformance to the project’s technical aspects, updating the construction drawings to reflect
changes made during construction, and attending various construction meetings.

Staff has also requested Michael Baker International (MBI) to provide a proposal for
construction management and inspection services to include managing and coordinating
construction meetings and documentation, monitoring construction activities, performing
inspections, reviewing progress pay estimates and construction performance and coordinating
project start-up activities.

CEQA Determination

The staff recommendation is to award contracts for construction, construction management, and
engineering services for the Project. The Project was previously evaluated by the lead agency,
Castaic Lake Water Agency (CLWA). The CLWA Board of Directors certified the Mitigated
Negative Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) on July
26, 2017. CLWA filed the Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County Clerk’s Office
and the State Clearinghouse on August 1, 2017. SCV Water is the successor agency to CLWA.
There are no substantial changes to the project and no further CEQA documentation is
necessary for the SCV Water Board to act with regards to the proposed actions.

On January 9, 2020, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve (1) a resolution for a construction contract with Cedro Construction,
Inc., (2) a work authorization to Woodard & Curran for engineering services during construction
and (3) a work authorization to Michael Baker International for construction management and
inspection services for the West Ranch Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Project is included in the Agency’s FY 2019/20 Capital Improvement Budget for the West
Ranch Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project. The Project’s total estimated cost,
including planning, design, construction management, construction, inspection and
miscellaneous costs, is $4,700,000. This Project is expected to receive $1,806,900 in grant
funding from Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Round 1
Implementation Program Grant funds from the State of California Natural Resources Agency,
Department of Water Resources. As of November 30, 2019, the Project’s total expenses are
$561,000.

RECOMMENDATION

The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors (1)
approve the attached resolution for a construction contract with Cedro Construction, Inc. in an
amount not to exceed $3,112,332, (2) authorize the General Manager to execute a work
authorization with Woodard & Curran for an amount not to exceed $160,000 for engineering
services during construction and (3) authorize the General Manager to execute a work
authorization with Michael Baker International for an amount not to exceed $426,000 for



construction management and inspection services for the West Ranch Recycled Water Main
Extension (Phase 2D) Project.

SB

Attachment

s



16

[This page intentionally left blank.]



RESOLUTION NO. SCV-XXX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO
CEDRO CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE
WEST RANCH RECYCLED WATER MAIN EXTENSION (PHASE 2D) PROJECT

WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) determined that recycled water
is an important component of future water supplies; and

WHEREAS, the West Ranch Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project is a
component of the Recycled Water Master Plan; and

WHEREAS, the previous Castaic Lake Water Agency, as a CEQA Responsible Agency,
filed the Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County Clerk’s Office and the State
Clearinghouse on August 1, 2017 and there are no substantial changes to the project, and
no further CEQA documentation is necessary for the Board to act with regards to the
proposed actions; and

WHEREAS, all bid proposals submitted to the Agency pursuant to the Agency’s
specifications (Project No. 200456) for the construction of the West Ranch Recycled Water
Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project, as amended by Addenda, were publicly opened and
read at the Agency’s offices on Monday, December 9, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., in full accordance
with the law and the Agency’s customary procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds, after considering the opinion of staff, that the
total bid of Cedro Construction, Inc. in the amount of $3,112,332 is the lowest
responsible bid of five bids submitted, and that said bid substantially meets the
requirements of said construction contract documents as amended by Addenda; and

WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of
the Agency, authorize its General Manager to accept the $3,112,332 bid.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Agency’s Board of Directors does
authorize its General Manager to accept said low bid and does therefore authorize the
Agency’s General Manager or its Chief Engineer to issue a Notice of Award to Cedro
Construction, Inc., hereby found to be the “lowest responsible bidder” for the West
Ranch Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) for the total sum of $3,112,332

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or its President and
Secretary are thereupon authorized, upon receipt of appropriate payment and
performance bonds, appropriate certificates of insurance and an executed Contract
Agreement from Cedro Construction, Inc., all of which must be approved by General
Counsel, to execute the said Contract Agreement on behalf of the Agency

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or Chief Engineer are
thereafter authorized to execute and forward to Cedro Construction, Inc. an appropriate
Notice to Proceed.



18

[This page intentionally left blank.]



SCV ITEg.lg,NQ

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 10, 2020
TO: SCVWA Board of Directors
FROM: Brian J. Folsom, P.E.

Chief Engineer ﬁjv

SUBJECT: Approve a Resolution for a Construction Contract with Ferreira Construction
Co., Inc., and a Work Authorization to Cannon Corporation for Construction
Management and Inspection Services for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water
Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project

SUMMARY

The Vista Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project has two construction
phases: 1) construction of pipelines for delivery of recycled water, and 2) construction of tanks
for operational storage. The pipelines portion of the project has been advertised for construction
bids. Bids have been received and staff is recommending award of a construction contract to
Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. Staff is also recommending approval of a work authorization to
Cannon Corporation (Cannon) for construction management and inspection services.

DISCUSSION

The Vista Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project (Project) will provide
recycled water in the eastern portion of the Santa Clarita Valley. The Project will use surplus
recycled water from an onsite water reclamation plant (Water Factory) to serve existing irrigation
customers in the nearby Fair Oaks Community. A pump station located at the Water Factory will
pump recycled water to the Agency’s Phase 2B system, which includes about 11,000 feet of
pipelines, and approximately 1.0 million gallons of storage. The first phase of construction will
be the Phase 2B pipelines. It is anticipated that construction of the tanks will start in second
quarter of 2020, pending completion of geotechnical investigations and design.

The Project was advertised for bids on November 6, 2019 in accordance with SCV Water’s
Purchasing Policy, with notices in The Signal on November 7 and 9, 2019 and on the Agency’s
website. On December 4, 2019, five bids were received and opened. A summary of the bids is
presented below:

Bidder Bidder Location Total Bid Price
Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. | Rancho Cucamonga, CA $ 2,752,982
Cedro Construction, Inc. Santa Paula, CA $ 2,786,995
MNR Construction, Inc. La Verne, CA $ 2,873,700
Colich & Sons L.P. Gardena, CA $ 3,699,570
Blois Construction, Inc. Oxnard, CA $ 4,499,840



ajacobs
Brian Folsom

ajacobs
Item 6.3


20

Staff reviewed the bids for completeness and compliance with the bid and contract
requirements, and recommends award of the construction contract to Ferreira Construction Co.,
Inc. as the apparent lowest responsible bidder, for a total of $2,752,982. The engineer’s
estimate for the project is $2,704,000. Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. is licensed as a Class A
General Engineering Contractor in California and is registered with the Department of Industrial
Relations.

Staff has requested the engineering design consultant, Woodard & Curran (W&C), to provide a
proposal for professional engineering services during construction. W&C’s services include
responding to contractor’s requests for information, reviewing contractor submittals for
conformance to the project’s technical aspects, updating the construction drawings to reflect
changes made during construction, and attending various construction meetings. W&C'’s
proposal for an amount not to exceed $60,000 is within the General Manager’s authority.

Staff has also requested Cannon Corporation (Cannon) to provide a proposal for construction
management and inspection services to include managing and coordinating construction
meetings and documentation, monitoring construction activities, performing inspections,
reviewing progress pay estimates and construction performance and coordinating project start-
up activities.

CEQA Determination

The proposed action was previously evaluated by the Castaic Lake Water Agency’s (CLWA)
Board of Directors. The CLWA Board or Directors adopted the Mitigated Negative Declaration
(MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), by Resolution 3211, on
November 20, 2017. CLWA filed the Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County
Clerk’s Office and the State Clearinghouse on February 12, 2018. There are no substantial
changes to the project and no further CEQA documentation is necessary for the Board to act
with regards to the proposed actions.

On January 9, 2020, the Engineering and Operations Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve a resolution for a construction contract with Ferreira Construction
Co., Inc., and a work authorization to Cannon Corporation for construction management and
inspection services for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Project is included in the Agency’s FY 2019/20 Capital Improvement Budget. The Project’s
total estimated cost is $8,672,000 for the planning, design and construction of pipelines and
tanks. The budget includes $3,000,000 for construction of Phase 2B pipelines and $540,000 for
construction management. The Project is expected to receive $2,710,300 in grant funding from
Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Round 1 Implementation
Program Grant funds from the State of California Natural Resources Agency, Department of
Water Resources. As of November 30, 2019, the Project’s total expenses are $602,000.

RECOMMENDATION

The Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
the attached resolution for a construction contract with Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. in an
amount of $2,752,982, and authorize the General Manager to execute a work authorization with
Cannon Corporation for an amount not to exceed $400,000 for construction management and
inspection services for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project.



BP

Attachment

Ao

21


ajacobs
Matt


22

[This page intentionally left blank.]



RESOLUTION NO. SCV-XXX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO
FERREIRA CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. FOR THE
VISTA CANYON RECYCLED WATER MAIN EXTENSION (PHASE 2B) PROJECT

WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) determined that recycled water
is an important component of future water supplies; and

WHEREAS, the Vista Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project is a
component of the Recycled Water Master Plan; and

WHEREAS, the previous Castaic Lake Water Agency, as a CEQA Responsible Agency,
filed the Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County Clerk’s Office and the State
Clearinghouse on February 12, 2018 and there are no substantial changes to the project,
and no further CEQA documentation is necessary for the Board to act with regards to the
proposed actions; and

WHEREAS, all bid proposals submitted to the Agency pursuant to the Agency’s
specifications (Project No. S16-702) for the construction of the Vista Canyon Recycled
Water Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project, as amended by Addenda, were publicly opened
and read at the Agency’s offices on Wednesday, December 4, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., in full
accordance with the law and the Agency’s customary procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds, after considering the opinion of staff, that the
total bid of Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $2,752,982 is the lowest
responsible bid of five bids submitted, and that said bid substantially meets the
requirements of said construction contract documents as amended by Addenda; and

WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of
the Agency, authorize its General Manager to accept the $2,752,982 bid.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Agency’s Board of Directors does
authorize its General Manager to accept said low bid and does therefore authorize the
Agency’s General Manager or its Chief Engineer to issue a Notice of Award to Ferreira
Construction Co, Inc., hereby found to be the “lowest responsible bidder” for the Vista
Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2B) for the total sum of $2,752,982

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or its President and
Secretary are thereupon authorized, upon receipt of appropriate payment and
performance bonds, appropriate certificates of insurance and an executed Contract
Agreement from Ferreira Construction Co., Inc., all of which must be approved by
General Counsel, to execute the said Contract Agreement on behalf of the Agency

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Agency’s General Manager or Chief Engineer are

thereafter authorized to execute and forward to Ferreira Construction Co. Inc. an
appropriate Notice to Proceed.

23



24

[This page intentionally left blank.]



Sﬂl ITEgTD.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 14, 2020
TO: Board of Directors s
FROM: Rochelle Patterson < Z/%

Director of Finance and Administration

SUBJECT:  Approve a Customer Service Policy and Revised Fees for Reconnection of
Service

SUMMARY

Since the merger on January 2018, the retail divisions (Newhall Water Division, Santa Clarita
Water Division and Valencia Water Division) were operating under their legacy rules and
regulations pertaining to retail customers. Over the past couple of years, the Agency has been
able to align customer service practices and processes across all three divisions and has
developed a new Customer Service Policy for all retail customers of the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency which includes the new provisions of Senate Bill 998 regarding discontinuation of
domestic water service for non-payment. The residential disconnection policy required by SB
998 is Appendix A-13, and this is a uniform policy, which has already been translated into the
required languages.

DISCUSSION

Senate Bill 998 was signed into law at the end of last year’s legislative session and the Agency
will be required to comply with the Act by February 1, 2020. The purpose of the Act is to provide
additional procedural protections to residential water customers before the discontinuation of
water service. Under Senate Bill 998, the Agency must adopt a written policy on discontinuation
of water service for nonpayment and make it available on the Agency’s website. The policy on
discontinuation of residential water service for non-payment must be available in English,
Spanish, Chinese, Tagalog, Vietnamese, and Korean, and must contain the following
information:

A plan for deferred or reduced payments;

Alternative payment schedules;

A formal mechanism for a customer to contest or appeal a bill; and

A telephone number for a customer to contact to discuss options for averting
discontinuation of residential service for nonpayment.

el ol

The attached Customer Service Policy has been reviewed by legal counsel and determined to
be compliant with current laws and Senate Bill 998.

In addition to requiring the Agency to adopt a policy on the discontinuation of water service for
nonpayment, the Act defines specific procedural requirements that must be undertaken by the
Agency before a customer may have service terminated for nonpayment. Many of the Agency’s
current procedures and practices are in compliance.

25


edill
Rochelle signature

ajacobs
Item 6.4


Key procedural requirements necessitating revisions to the Regulations Governing Domestic
Water Service are:

¢ Sixty (60) Days Required Before Discontinuation of Service

Current practice would permit the Agency to terminate service for nonpayment about forty-
five (45) days after the bill was rendered. This procedural requirement will extend the
termination day about fifteen (15) days, to sixty (60) days after the bill's Due Date. The
proposed amendments to the Regulations Governing Domestic Water Service state that bills
are due three (3) days after the bill is generated, as signified by the date of the bill, and
define delinquent as beginning the fourth (4th) day after the date the bill is generated.

e Agency Unable to Contact Customer or Adult at the Residence

If the Agency is unable to make contact with the customer, the Agency must make a good
faith effort to visit the residence and leave, or make arrangements for placement in a
conspicuous place, (a) a notice of imminent discontinuation of service for nonpayment and
(b) a copy of the water system’s policy on discontinuation for nonpayment. The Agency will
provide this notice prior to termination of service.

e Limit on Reconnection Fees for Low-Income Customers

If a customer demonstrates that he or she has a household income below 200% of the
federal poverty level, the Agency must limit the customer’s reconnection fees to no more
than $50 during regular business hours, and $150 during non-regular hours. The revised
fees are reflected in Appendix A-8. Customers that claim to meet the 200% standard will be
able to enter into an alternative payment arrangement.

e Annual Reporting

The Agency will be required to annually report to the State Water Resources Control Board
the number of times service is discontinued due to inability to pay. This information must
also be posted on the Agency’s website. The Agency does not assess income levels and is
unable to determine the circumstances that lead to disconnection due to inability to pay, but
staff will report all disconnections.

Timeline for Termination of Service

Day | Action Notes

1 Bill is generated Becomes payable

4 Bill is Delinquent

28 - | Second Bill Mailed with Past Due Balance

35
45 Overdue Notice Generated Late Fee $25
64 Termination of Service Disconnection Fee $30

Customer will be charged a Restoration Fee of $30 - $90 (Appendix A-8) to restore service after
termination.



On January 13, 2020, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve the attached Customer Service Policy and revised fees for
reconnection of service.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Staff expects a minimal loss of revenue due to customers 200% or below the federal poverty
line but will expect some revenue delays due to the extension of the discontinuation
requirements.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
the attached Customer Service Policy and revised fees for reconnection of service.

RP

Attachment

A fJ \ LL7 2

27


ajacobs
Matt


28

[This page intentionally left blank.]



-

) SC

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #18986

The attached “POLICY ON DISCONTINUATION OF RESIDENTIAL WATER SERVICE FOR NON-
PAYMENT” in Appendix 13 is provided in English. If you require the attached Policy in a different
language, please contact our office at (661) 294-0828 and we will provide you with a translated Policy in
that language.

Se proporciona la “POLITICA SOBRE INTERRUPCION DE SERVICIO RESIDENCIAL DE AGUA POR
FALTA DE PAGO” adjunta en inglés. Aviso adjunto en inglés. Si usted requiere la Politica adjunta en
espanol, favor de comunicarse con nuestra oficina al (661) 294-0828; www.yourscvwater.com y le
proporcionaremos una politica traducida al espafol.

BEFTEY /= IE AR TR A TIREEEHKRBBR BLUE IR, MREFEPXRMBER, FRIT
(661) 294-0828 www.yourscvwater.com BEBRE MMM AE, EMSATRYB—DEIIRPXHIBUER,

Kém theo day 1a ban tiéng Anh “DIEU KHOAN VE VIEC NGUNG CAP NUOC TRONG NHA KHI
KHONG TRA TIEN”. Néu ban can Bidu Khoan kém theo trong tiéng Viét, xin lién lac van phong ching toi
tai (661) 294-0828 www.yourscvwater.com va ching téi s& cung cap cho ban ban Diéu Khoan dwoc dich
sang tiéng Viét.

“Ogo 2 FHE == S5 L0 st M HE EME= YO|2 M SELICH BEE Y EME
SHR 0|2 O A2, X 5| AL A0 (661) 294-0828 www.yourscvwater.com S 2 HEHSIA| D X 5|7t
S0l 2 HAE HM EME K3SHE LT

Ang nakalakip na “PATAKARAN SA PAGTIGIL SA RESIDENSYAL NA SERBISYO NG TUBIG DAHIL SA
HINDI PAGBABAYAD” ay ibinibigay sa Ingles. Kung kailangan mo ang nakalakip na Patakaran sa
Tagalog, makipag-ugnay sa aming tanggapan sa numerong (661) 294-0828 www.yourscvwater.com at
bibigyan ka namin ng Paunawang isinalin sa wikang Tagalog.

29



30

[This page intentionally left blank.]



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

e

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Table of Conten

PART 1 — DEFINITION OF TERMS PAGE

1.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS ...t e e e e e 10
PART 2 - AUTHORITY

2.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e s 15

P20 T B = o - o PP PUPPUTURPRR 15

2.1.2  GeNEral MANAQJEN .......oooiuiiiiiiiit ettt 15

2.2 1N ] g =l O O T SRR 15

2.2.1 ENtry t0 PremiSes...coooo it 15

P O = To [T | (=1 =P 15

2.3 FEES, CHARGES AND SERVICES .......ooii e 15

2.4  POLICY EXCEPTIONS AND EXEMPTIONS .......oooiiiiiieee e 15

PART 3 — SERVICE CONNECTION

3.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS ...t ettt et e e e e e e e e e eeaaneeeeees 16
TR I B I o L OO O OO PP UPPPPTPPPPPPR 16
G T 2 1 ] =1 | =1 £ o I 16
3.1.3  ReSPONSIDIILY ..o 16
3.2 PERMANENT SERVICE CONNECTION ....ccouuiiiiiiiee e ee s 16
K2 B € 1= a1 = I o o 1Y/ ] o] 16
3.2.2 LoCAtioN @Nd SiZE.....cuuuniiiiieiiee e 17
3.2.3 Request for Changes in Meter Size, Removal and Land Use........................ 20
3.3 TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTIONS . ... 21
3.3.1  GeNeral ProViSIONS. ......ouiiiii e e e 21

PART 4 — APPLICATION FOR SERVICE
41 TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTION ....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 24

4.2  APPLICATION FOR SERVE........ooiiiiiiiiii ettt 24

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 1 0f 99



@

4.3

4.4

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

4.2.1 Property Damage Waiver Agreement ..........cooooiiiiiieiiiiiiieeee e 24
4.2.2 Establishment of Credit...........ooeiiiiiii s 24
4.2.3 Deposit Based Upon Poor Payment HiStory...........ccuueeeeeiiiiis 25
4.2.4 WaiVer Of DEPOSIE .. ..ttt 25
4.25 Return of DEPOSIL ...ccoeiiiiiiiiie e 25
4.2.6  BanKIUPICY.......ueiiiiii et 25
4.2.7 Refusalto SErve ... 26
4.2.8 Notification to Applicant ....... ... 26
4.2.9 Property Owner Responsibility ............coooiiiiii 26
4.2.10 Description of Property .........ccooiu i 27
4.2.11 Description of Water USe ..o 27
SPECIAL PROVISION ... 27
PRIOR SERVICE ...t e 27

PART 5 — RULES APPLICABLE TO EXISTING CUSTOMERS

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

QUANTITIES. ... it ittt e e e e e st r e e e e e et ee e e e e e s e saeeeeaeeeansaeeeaeeennnrees 29
L 1 7 29
RESPONSIBILITY FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE ......cccoviiiiiiiiieieeieeeeee e 29
CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ..o 29
B4 NOUCES .. et e et a e e e e e e aeeaaaan 29
5.4.2 Ownership of Facilities on Customer's Premises ..........cccccceeeeeeeeieeieiiiiiiennnn, 31
5.4.3 Agency Access to CuStomeEr's Premises..........cccccuvvviiiiiieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeseseeneenens 31
B5.4.4  SErViCe CallS ....coceiiii ettt a e e e 31
5.4.5 Agency’s Responsibilities for Damage or Loss to Customer ..................... 31
5.4.6 Customer’s Responsibility for Agency Property ..o 32
5.4.7 Control Valve on the Customer Property ............c.coooiiiiiiiiiiiii, 32
548 Resale Of Water .......oooiiiiiii 32

PART 6 — RATES AND CHARGES

6.1

6.2

GENERAL PROVISION — DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE...........ccoooviiiiiiieeeien 33
MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE ... ..o 33
6.2.1  General ProViSIONS. .......cociiii e 33
6.2.2 Miscellaneous Charges ...........c.oviiiuiiiii e 34
B.2.3 Late Fee. . 34
6.2.4 Restoration FEe ..o 34
6.2.5 Returned Payment Charge............cooiiiiiiiii e 34

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 20f99



S

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

6.2.6  OVErduE NOLICE ..o e e e 35
6.2.7 Meter Test/Charge/Deposit .........ooiiuiiiiiii e 35
6.2.8 Pulled Meter Charge .........coouiuiiiii i 35
6.2.9 Unauthorized Connection and/or Water Use ...........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiioiinni o 35
6.2.10 Charge for Turn off at Main ... 36
6.2.11 Property Damage ........oooeiiiiii e 36
6.2.12 Temporary Construction Meter Water Service ................ccooiiiiiiiiiinn. 36
6.3 PASS-THROUGH OF INCREASED/DECREASED COST OF WHOLESALE
PURCHASED WATER. ...ttt et e e et e e e e e e e e e 36
PART 7 - CREDIT
7.1 ESTABLISHING CREDIT ......ouiiiieiiiiiiee e e e et e et e e e e s snnaeeeaeeanns 37
7.2 AMOUNT OF DEPOSIT ...ttt ettt e e e e s s e e e e e eenneeeeeens 37
7.3 REFUND OF DEPOSIT ettt et et e e e e e aenas 37
7.4  JOINT SERVICE ... e 38
7.5 RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT ...ttt 38
7.6 BANKRUPTCY OF CUSTOMER .....cuiiiiiiii e 38
7.7 DELINQUENT ACCOUNT ..ottt et eeas 39
PART 8 — BILLING
8.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS .. ...ttt ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e 40
8.2 RENDERING OF PAYMENT OF BILLS ... 40
8.3 DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE INFORMATION ONBILL .....cccoviiiiiiiiiieeene 40
8.4 PERSON TO BE BILLED .......ouiiiiiiieiee e 40
8.5 P AY MENT Lo 41
8.6  ADJUSTMENT TO BILL ..viiniiiiiii e e e e eeans 41
8.6.1 Estimated Meter Reading .........ocuueiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 41
8.6.2  Water Meter ACCUIACY ........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiia ettt e 41
8.6.3 Adjustment of Bills for Excessive ConsuUMpPtion...........cooecveeereeriiiiieeeeeeeneee. 41
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 3 0of 99

33



S

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

8.7 ESTIMATED METER READING ..ottt 41
8.8  OPENING BILLS ... e 41
8.9 CLOSING BILLS .. oeiiie e e e 41
8.10 SEPARATE BILLINGS FOREACH METER .....c.iiiiiiiiii e 42
811 LATE FEE .. e e 42
8.12 ALTERNATIVE PAYMENT PLANS ... 42
8.12.1Amortization Payment Plan .........ccccueeviiiiiiiii e 42
8.12.2Certification by PhySICIaN .......ccooiiiiiiiiiii e 43
8.12.3Compliance With Plan .......... o e, 43

8.13  DISPUTED BILLS ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e s e e e e e enneeeeeens 43
8.14 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR EXCESSIVE CONSUMPTION.........cccvviereeeiiieenen. 43
8.14.1Verified AdJUSIMENES ..ooiiiiiei i 43

8.15 AGENCY INITIATED BILLING ADJUSTMENT ....c.ciiiiiitiiiiae e 44
8.16 ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FORMETERERROR ..........ccciiiiiiiiieiiceeeee, 44
BB TFaSt Meters ... e 45
8.16.28I0W MELEIS ...t 45
8.16.3NoNn-Registering MEters...... ... i 45

o R L 7= g T = | PSR 45

8.17  DELINQUENT BILLS ...ttt e e e e e 45
8.17.1Small BalanCe ACCOUNTS.......cciieiiiiiiieiaeeeeiiie e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 45
8.17.20Verdug NOLICE ... ..eiiiiiieiiiie et e e e e e e e e e e e e 45
8.17.3Notice to Residential Tenants/Occupants Individually Metered ....................... 46
8.17.4Notice to Tenants/Occupants Multiunit Residential ...........cevvvveeeiiiiiiiiiiiiinnns 46
8.17.5Turn-Off DEANINE........eeiiieeie e e 46
8.17.6Waiver of Overdue Notices to Public AGENCIES .........coveiiiiiiiieiieiiiiieee e 46

8.18 NOTIFICATION OF RETURNED PAYMENT DISPOSITION......cooeiiiiiiieeeeeeiieenen. 46
8.19 RETURNED CHECKS FOR PREVIOUSLY DISCONNECTED SERVICE................ 47
8.20 RETURNED CHECKS REQUIRING CASH OR CERTIFIED FUNDS............ccccuuee.. 47
8.21 PRE-PAYMENT UPON RECEIPT OF A NON-NEGOTIABLE CHECK............c......... 47
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 4 of 99

34



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

e

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

8.22  CREATE A LIEN ... ittt ettt e et e e e e et e e e e e e e nnnbae e e e e e snnnnaneeens 47
PART 9 — TERMINIATION OF DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE
9.1 AGENCY INITIATED ...ttt e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennnrees 48
9.2  TERMINATION PROCEDURES ...t 48
9.2.1 Notice of Termination of Domestic Water Service ...........ccccceveeriiciereeeeennee. 48
9.2.2  CUSIOMEr APPEAL. ... ettt 49
9.2.3 Domestic Water Service through a Residential Master Meter....................... 49
9.2.4 NO NOUCE REQUIIE ...ttt 49
9.3 TERMINATION OF DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE INITIATE BY AGENCY ............ 49
9.3.1 Termination of Domestic Water SErviCe ..........couucuuiireeiiiciiienie e 49
9.4 MEDICAL PROVISION ... .ot e e e e st e e e e e eea e e 50
9.4.1 Residential Termination for Nonpayment EXclUSIiOns..........cccccouiiiiiieiinnnee. 50
9.4.2 Residential Termination may be Discontinued.............ccccceeeiiiiiiiiiene e, 50
9.5 AT CUSTOMERS REQUEST ....coitiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e eneeeee s 51
9.6 PERMANENT TERMINATION OF SERVICE.........ccoooiiiiiiiie e 51
PART 10 - RESTORATION OF DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE
10.1  GENERAL PROVISIONS ...t et a e e e e e eneeeee s 52
10.2  UNAUTHORIZED RESTORATION........otiiiiiiiiiiee ettt 52
PART 11 —- TURN ON AND OFF PROCEDURES AND CHARGES
11.1  PERMANENTLY DISCONTINUE WATER SERVICE ......ccooiiiiiiiee, 53
11.2 TEMPORARY TURN-OFF OF WATER SERVICE “EMERGENCY"........c..cceeivieee... 53
11.3  TURN-OFF BY THE AGENCY ....ooiii ittt e e e ennnaeee s 53
11.3.1 Non-Payment of Bills.........coo e 53
11.3.2 Non-Compliance with RUIES ...........eeiiiiiie e 53
11.3.3 Water Waste ....vvveeie e e e e e eeanans 54
11.3.4 Unsafe or Hazardous ConditionS..........ccceeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiccceeee e, 54
11.3.5 Fraudulent Use of SErViCe........coouviiiiiiiiiiiiiei e, 54
11.3.6 EMEIGENCY ..o e 54
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 50f99

35



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

“‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

PART 12 - WATER EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

GENERAL PROVISIONS ...ttt e e e e e e e 56
WASTEFUL PRACTICES ...ttt et et e e e e e s e e e e e 56
12.2.1 Wasteful PractiCes ........oooo it 56
12.2.2 Enforcement Actions and Penalty Fees........cooiiiiiiiiieee e 56
12.2.3 INOTICES -ttt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e et e e e e e e aaaaaaaaaaas 57
12.2.4 HEANNG ettt e e 57
12.2.5 Reservation of Rights .......c.eeiiiiiiii e 57
USE OF WATER SAVING DEVICES AND PRACTICES .......ccccoiiieee e 57
USE OF RECYCLED WATER ...ttt e e e e e 57
RULES AND REGULATIONS . ...ttt et e e e st e e e e eea e e 57
CROSS CONNECGTIONS.....cceiiiieiee e eeieiee e st e e e et e e e e e e e e e e eenneeeeaeeennneees 58
UNLAWEFUL ACTS ittt ettt ettt e e e et et e e e e et e e e e e e ameaneeeeeeannneeeaaeanns 58
12.7.1 CA Penal Code Section 498........ccueiiiiiiiie e 58
12.7.2 CA Penal Code SECHON B24..........uuuiiiieeiiiieeeeeeee e e e e e 58
12.7.3 CA Penal Code SECHON B25.......uuuumiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e r e e e e e e e 58
12.7.4 CA Health and Safety Code Sections 4450 10 4457 ........cccccooeviiiiiieeecinnnne. 58
FIRE HYDRANT DAMAGE ......coo oottt e e e e e e e 58
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE ......cooiiiiiiiiiie et 59
USE AND TESTING ....coiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e emeeee e e e e e snnaeeeaaeenns 59
12.10.1 No Connection to Other SyStem .........cccoviiiiiiiiiiee e 59
12.10.2 RaAlES ittt 59
12.10.3 Water for Fire Storage Tanks ........cooooiiiiiriiieiiee e 59
WATER LEAK ADJUSTMENT POLICY ....ooiiiiiiiiiee et 59
IDENTIFY THEFT PREVENTION POLICY ..coiiiiiee e 60

PART 13 — CONDITIONS OF DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE

13.1

GENERAL PROVISION. ...ttt e e aaees 61
13.1.1  Maintenance of Domestic Water ServiCe..........cooovvuveeiiiiieeeiieiiiieee e, 61
13.1.2  Suspension of Domestic Water ServiCe............coooviecciiiriiiiiiieieeeee e, 61
L TG T o (Y=Y [ Y 61

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 6 of 99



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

13.1.4  ReSPONSIDIIY ... 62
13,15 LIl e 62
13.1.6 Damage to Meter by Hot Water.........coiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e, 62
13.1.7  Transfer of Meters ... 63
13.2 CHANGE INWATER USAGE .....coii ittt 63
13.3  COMMUNICATION. ..ttt e et e e e e s et e e e e e sntee e e e e e eanneeeeaeesannnneeens 63
13.3.1  TO CUSIOMET ...t e e e e e aee e e e e e nnnees 63
L T2 B o 1 AV =T oo SR 64
13.4 CONFLICT WITH AGENCY DOMESTIC WATER INFRASTRUCTURE .................. 64
13.5 RESALE OF WATER. ....oeciii ittt e e e e et e e e e e e nnneeee s 64
13.6  UNAUTHORIZED USE OF DOMESTIC WATER OR THE WATER SYSTEM ......... 65
13.7 GROUND WIRE ATTACHMENT ...ttt e e e nneeeee s 66
13.8  UNUSED SERVICE CONNECTION ......uiiiiiiiiiiiee e 66
13.9  QUICK CLOSING VALVE ... ctieiiei ettt e e e e s sennae e e e e e nnneeeeens 67
13.9.1  Operating ConditioNS......ccccccciiiiiiie e e e e e e 67
13.9.2  Notice of COrreCtioN.......cooiiii e e e 67
13.10 RESPONSIBILTIY FOR EQUIPMENT .....coiiiiiiiiiee et 67
1311 DAMAGE ... ettt e e e s et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aarraeaans 67
PART 14 - PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE CONNECTION AND RESIDENTIAL
FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM
14.1  GENERAL PROVISIONS ... .ottt e e 68
14.2  SPECIAL PROVISIONS ...ttt e e e e e e eae e e e e e nnneeea s 68
1 2 B o ] R 68
14.2.2  PFPSC Charges.....cooooiiiiiiieee ettt 68
14.3  AUTHORIZED PURPOSE ..ottt ettt e e e eaae e e e e s nnnaaee s 68
14.4  INSPECTION AND TESTS ... ..ttt et e e e enaae e e e e nnnaeee s 68
14.5  OPTION TO BILL. .ottt e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e eenneeeeeens 68
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 7 of 99

37



38

=

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

14.6  TERMINATION OF SERVICE......coiii ittt s nnaeee s 69
14.6.1 PFPSC-Larger than Two-inch (2-iNCh)..........cooiiiiiiii e 69
14.6.2 PFPSC-Two-inch (2-iNCh) OF LSS ..eeeiiiiiiiiiie e 69
14.7 RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM.......ooiiiiiiiiiiee e 69
14.7.1  GeNeral ProViSiONS..........cooiiiiiiiiiicee et e e e e e e eeeeans 69
14.7.2  Special ProviSIONS ......ooiueiiiieei e e 70
14.7.3  Termination Of SEIVICE ......oeiiiiiiiiiiii e e 70

PART 15 — CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL PLAN
15.1  GENERAL PROVISIONS ... .o 71

PART 16 —- ENFORCEMENT AND APPEALS

16.1  GENERAL PROVISIONS.......oiiiiiiii ittt ettt 72
16.2  CORRECTIVE ACTION .. ettt ettt e st e et e eneeenneeenneeens 72
1B8.3  APPEALS . ...ttt bbb 72
16.3.1 Hearing and Administrative Procedures ..., 72
16.4  ENFORCEMENT .. ..ottt ettt e et e e e et e e et e e e anaeens 73
PART 17 — VALIDITY
L5 Y2 V1 5 S 74
APPENDIX
APPENDIX A-1 CHARGES ...ttt 75

APPENDIX A-2 PERMANENT SERVICE CONNECTION MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE 76
APPENDIX A-3 SPECIAL FIRE MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE............ccoiiiiiiee 77

APPENDIX A-4 TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTION MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE 78

APPENDIX A-5 PERMANENT SERVICE CONNECTION CONSUMPTION CHARGE........ 79
APPENDIX A-6 TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTION CONSUMPTION CHARGE ....... 80
APPENDIX A-7 TEMPROARY SERVICE CONNECTION INSTALLATION CHARGE......... 81
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 8 of 99



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

S

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

APPENDIX A-8 RESTORATION OF SERVICE CHARGE...........coooiiiiiiiiiieee e 82

APPENDIX A-9 FIRE FLOW TEST CHARGE .......coiiiieiii e 83

APPENDIX A-10 PENALTIES FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE AGENCY’S
DOMESTIC WATER SYSTEM

APPENDIX A-11 DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE APPLICATION FEE AND DEPOSIT....... 85
APPENDIX A-12 DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE MISCELLANEOUS FEES...................... 86

APPENDIX A-13 POLICY ON DISCONTINUATION OF RESIDENTIAL WATER SERVICE
FOR NON-PAYMENT ...ttt ettt asn b e s e e e s e e e e e e e e enneeea 87

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 9 of 99



40

[This page intentionally left blank.]



S0

PART 1 — DEFINITION OF TERMS

1.1

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

AGENCY DEFINITIONS

Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the meaning of words or terms used
in these Regulations shall be as follows:

AGENCY - The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, organized and operated pursuant to
the provisions of Senate Bill 634.

APPLICANT (PROPOSED CUSTOMER) — Any person, firm, corporation, association or
agency who desires to obtain Domestic Water Service from the Agency.

APPURTENANCES - Meter stop, check valve, back flow prevention device, shut-off
valve and any other devices.

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER — A number assigned by tax assessor in order to
identify a particular Property.

BILLING — Monthly statement sent to account holder(s) which includes bill detail, bill
summary, account information, water use history and water efficiency target.

BOARD - The Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency.
BUILDING UNIT — Any unit of nonresidential development.
CLASS OF SERVICE - Based on intended usage of meter.

CONSUMPTION CHARGE - A monthly quantitative charge for the amount of water
delivered to a Property, either metered or estimated. Consumption charge shall be billed
as a price per 100 cubic feet of water delivered in accordance with the rate structure.

CROSS CONNECTION — Any unprotected actual or potential connection between any
part of a potable water system used or intended to supply water for drinking purposes
and any source or system containing water or a substance that is not or cannot be
approved as safe, wholesome and potable for human consumption. Bypass
arrangements, jumper connections, or other devices through which backflow could occur
shall be considered cross connections.

CUSTOMER - Any Person, Property Owner, Tenant, firm, corporation, association or
agency who uses or desires to obtain Domestic Water Service from the Agency.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 10 of 99

41



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

“ Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

CUSTOMER SERVICE LINE — The Customer’s facilities including pipe, fittings and
appurtenances extending from the outlet of the shut-off valve downstream of the
Agency’s meter, check valve or backflow prevention device.

DELINQUENT - The bill for Domestic Water Service is due on the Due Date and
Domestic Water Service is subject to termination if the bill is not paid within sixty (60)
days from the Due Date.

DEPOSIT — Monies required to be deposited with the Agency for the purpose of
guaranteeing payment of monthly bills rendered for water service.

DISCONNECTION/RESTORATION FEE — A disconnection or restoration fee will be
charged to turn off or on Domestic Water Service that is shut off or turned on due to
involuntary termination.

DIVISION - Identifies legacy retail divisions: Newhall Water Division (NWD), Santa
Clarita Water Division (SCWD), Valencia Water Division (VWD).

DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE — Domestic Water Service shall include the delivery of
domestic water for any purpose to a residential Customer, nonresidential Customer,
commercial or industrial Customer, governmental Customer or institutional Customer,
and the delivery of domestic water for public and private fire protection service.

DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE INFRASTRUCTURE (WATER SYSTEM) — The water
pipelines, booster stations, wells, treatment facilities, reservoirs, and appurtenances,
constructed by or for the Agency, whether acquired by the Agency, for the purpose of
providing Domestic Water Service.

DUE DATE - The date on which payment for Domestic Water Service is due, which is
on the third (3rd) day after the bill is generated, as signified by the date of the bill.

DWELLING — Any building that contains one or two dwelling units, intended or designed
to be built, used, rented, leased, let, hired out to be occupied or that is occupied for living
purposes.

DWELLING UNIT — A single unit requiring Domestic Water Service and intended to be a
complete independent living facility for one or more persons, including permanent
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation, including but not limited to,
family residence, each unit of a duplex, each unit of an apartment, condominium, each
recreational vehicle and each trailer park space.

GENERAL MANAGER - The General Manager of the Agency or his/her appointed
representative.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 11 of 99



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

LIEN — The process of levying property to recapture unpaid charges for water and other
services.

MASTER METER LOCATION — (master account/master location) a collection of
subaccounts whose meters are all of the same class of service, sharing an aggregated
water target, for which the customer receives one bill.

METER INSTALLATION CHARGE - The Agency’s charge for installing only the meter.

MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE - The monthly charge levied to a Property for the
benefit of having Domestic Water Service available to the Customer. This does not
include the consumption charge for water.

OFF-SITE FACILITIES - Facilities under the ultimate control of the Agency including but
not limited to water pipelines, reservoirs, pumping stations, fire hydrants, valves,
connections, supply interties, treatment facilities, and other appurtenances and Property
up to the point of connection with the On-site Facilities.

ON-SITE FACILITIES - Facilities under the ultimate control of the Agency including but
not limited to water pipelines, reservoirs, pumping stations, fire hydrants, valves,
connections, supply interties, treatment facilities, and other appurtenances and Property
located within a Subdivision or Tract.

PARCEL - Generally refers to a piece of land that cannot be designated by a lot
number.

PERMANENT SERVICE CONNECTION — A Service Connection that is intended to
provide continuous Domestic Water Service.

PERSON - Any individual, firm, company, corporation, association, political subdivision,
city, county, Agency, the State of California, or the United States of America or any
department or agency of any thereof. The singular in each case shall include the plural.

POTABLE WATER — Water furnished to the Customer which meets applicable local,
state and federal standards for drinking water.

PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE CONNECTION — The Agency’s facilities
including pipe, fittings and appurtenances, extending from the Domestic Water System
to the private fire protection system.

PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM — The Customer’s facilities including pipe,
fittings and appurtenances extending from the outlet of the gate valve downstream of the
Agency’s meter, check valve or backflow prevention device used exclusively for fire
protection and/or suppression.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 12 of 99

43



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

PROPERTY — Any Property, including any lot, parcel, premises, dwelling unit or building
unit or portion thereof that is the subject of a request for service or to which service is
being rendered.

PROPERTY OWNER or OWNER — Any person, agent, firm or corporation having legal
or equitable interest in the Property.

REGULATIONS or POLICY — The current edition of, and any amendments or revisions
to, the Agency’s Regulations or Policy Governing Domestic Water Service.

RENDERED - Presented for payment or consideration. A bill is considered rendered
when it is delivered to the U.S. Post Office, sent electronically or by other means is
presented for payment.

RESIDENTIAL DISCONTINUATION POLICY — The Agency’s Policy on Discontinuation
of Residential Water Service for Non-Payment, in the form attached as Appendix A-13
and related translations into Spanish, Chinese, Korean, Viethamese and Tagalog.

RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM - A fire sprinkler system required by
California Residential Code, Title 24, Part 2.5 which is incorporated as part of the
Customer Service Line.

RESTORE — To reestablish water delivery to a Property or parcel when water has been
terminated.

SERVICE AREA - The area within the current Agency Domestic Water Service
Boundary as approved by the Los Angeles County Local Agency Formation Commission
(LAFCO).

SERVICE CONNECTION — The Agency’s facilities including pipe, fittings, meter, meter
box and check valve or backflow prevention device and shut-off valve, extending from
the Agency’s domestic water main to the outlet of the shut-off valve downstream of the
meter, check valve or backflow prevention device.

SUPPLIER - Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTION — A Service Connection that is intended to
provide Domestic Water Service during construction or other use of a limited duration.

TENANT — A person who rents or leases a unit which he/she does not own.
WATER AVAILABILITY — Domestic Water Service is considered to be available to

Property or to premises if the Water System has been constructed and is available for
Service as provided for in these Regulations.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 13 of 99



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

&

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

WATER AVAILABILITY CHARGE - The annual charge levied against lands to which
Domestic Water Service is available whether the Service is used or not.

WATER TARGET - Amount of water designated to a specific property based on water
use efficiency.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 14 of 99

45



46

S

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

PART 2 - AUTHORITY

2.1 General Provisions
2.1.1 Board
The Board may change these regulations as it deems necessary.
2.1.2 General Manager
The General Manager may prescribe and enforce additional regulations not in
conflict with these Regulations to implement the application, administration,
interpretation and enforcement of these Regulations.
2.2 Inspectors
2.2.1 Entry to Premises
The General Manager and other duly authorized employees of the Agency
bearing proper credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter upon all
Property for any purpose properly connected with the Agency’s operation.
2.2.2 Credentials
No Person who is not an authorized officer or employee of the Agency shall
have, wear, or exhibit any badge or credentials of the Agency. Authorized
Agency staff, officers and employees shall have, wear or exhibit badge and/or
Agency credentials.
2.3 Fees, Charges and Services
Fees, charges and services are nonrefundable and nontransferable; however, under
special circumstances, the General Manager or designee may grant a refund of fees or
charges at his/her discretion.
24 Policy Exceptions and Exemptions
Exceptions or exemptions from these Regulations shall be approved by the Board of
Directors. This provision does not apply to the waiver of one-time charges or fees.
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 15 of 99



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

“ Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

PART 3 — SERVICE CONNECTION

3.1 General Provisions
3.1.1 Types

The Agency will install two types of Service Connections, a Permanent Service
Connection or a Temporary Service Connection.

1. Class of Service

A Class of Service will be assigned to each meter at the time of application.
This Class of Service will be assigned based upon the intended usage of this
meter. Change of intended usage must be reported to the Agency by the
Customer within five (5) business days. Change in intended usage must be
approved by the Agency and may be subject to additional fees and/or
charges.

3.1.2 Installation

Only authorized employees or agents of the Agency shall install a Service
Connection to active water mains. In special circumstances, Contractors are
permitted to install Service Connections to water mains when prior approval is
given by the Agency.

3.1.3 Responsibility

The Agency owns, operates, and maintains the Service Connection. The
Property Owner is responsible for the Customer Service Line.

3.2 Permanent Service Connection
3.2.1 General Provisions

1. Water Service for New, Single and Multiunit Residential and Mixed-Use
Structures:

The Agency policy requires all individually owned residential properties to be
metered individually through an Agency meter. Master meters are not allowed
for individually owned residential properties. Multiunit Residential or Mixed-
use Structures that are sublet may be eligible for master meter(s) at the sole
discretion of the Agency. In the event the Agency allows for the installation of
a master meter, it is the Developer’s responsibility to comply with all laws and
regulations governing the approval of submeters for new Multiunit Residential

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 16 of 99

47



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

and Mix-used Structures where the Agency is providing master meter(s),
including, but not limited to, the California Plumbing Code, California Water
Code and Senate Bill-7 (SB-7).

Before the Agency will provide water service to the Development (or a portion
or phase thereof), the Developer shall provide the Agency with a written plan
for compliance with SB-7. The written plan must describe the provisions for
the installation of submeters for each unit in compliance with all laws and
regulations governing the approval of submeters, including the maintenance,
reading, billing, and testing requirements. The Agency policy also requires
separate meters for irrigated landscapes in accordance with California Code
of Regulations Section 492.7 and California Water Code Section 535.

Refer to the Agency’s Master Service Agreement, General Provisions,
Section 5.6 for additional information.

All restaurants require a single Service Connection, regardless of whether the
restaurant is located within a commercial/industrial building already being
supplied water service through a single Service Connection.

Responsibility
The Customer and/or Property Owner is responsible for loss or damage to a

meter and any Agency owned appurtenances associated with the Service
Connection from the time it is installed until the time it is removed.

3.2.2 Location and Size

1.

Location

Service Connections in conventional lot Subdivisions shall be installed within
five (5) feet of the side Property line except when such placement conflicts
with other utilities. In addition, Service Connections shall be installed
perpendicular to the water main unless prior approval is obtained by the
Agency.

New Service Connections shall not be installed in driveways without prior
approval by the Agency. If such approval is granted, then the following
conditions shall be met prior to installation:

a. Property Owner executes a recordable hold harmless agreement for
liability and agreeing that the Agency is not responsible for the repair
of driveways and other improvements should the repair of the Service
Connection be necessary.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 17 of 99



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

=

b. Installation of a larger traffic-grade meter box with a metal traffic
cover.

c. Property Owner shall be responsible for payment of an additional
charge for the installation of the larger traffic-grade meter box and
metal traffic cover.

The above conditions are applicable to all existing service connections
without meters installed.

Service connections shall be installed outside decorative paving areas
whenever possible. The Property Owner will be required to execute a
recordable hold harmless agreement for liability and agree that the Agency is
not responsible for the repair of decorative paving and other improvements
should the repair of the Service Connection be necessary.

Where the Property does not directly abut on a public thoroughfare, the
Agency, at its option, may provide a Service Connection of conventional
length, not exceeding 100 feet, and terminating at some practicable location
in public right-of-way and the Applicant shall obtain any required easements
and provide its connection thereto.

Under no circumstance shall Service Connections be installed in medians
and/or islands in any public thoroughfare.

2. Looped Metered Connections

Service provided to a location that has its own distribution system that is
looped and connected to Agency facilities by two (2) or more meters shall be
provided with an approved type backflow prevention device immediately
downstream of each metered connection as specified in Appendix E.

3. Size
The size (diameter in inches) of a Service Connection shall be based upon
required flow and intended use for the Property. Service Connections to a
Dwelling Unit shall be a minimum of 1 inch in diameter unless otherwise

approved by the Agency. The Agency reserves the right to determine the type
of any backflow preventer or other appurtenances required for the installation.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 18 of 99

49



@

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

. Appurtenances

Meter Stop, Check Valve, Backflow Prevention Device and Shut-off Valve:

All Service Connections will have a meter stop on the inlet side of the meter,
for exclusive use by the Agency, and a shut-off valve downstream of the
meter, check valve or backflow prevention device. If the meter stop, check
valve, backflow prevention device or shut-off valve is damaged, the Property
Owner will be responsible for the costs to replace the damaged
component(s).

Meter

Each Service Connection shall be metered. Customarily, the meter will be
installed in public Property adjacent to the curb or Property line, but, at the
option of the Agency, it may be installed on the Property in an appropriate
meter box. No rent or other charge will be paid by the Agency for a meter

located on the Property.

If a meter is damaged or tampered with, the Agency will charge the Property
Owner for the replacement or repair of the meter.

Meter Box

If the meter box is damaged by the Customer, the Agency may charge the
Property Owner for the replacement or repair of the meter box.

The meter box shall be accessible to the Agency at all times. The Agency will
not be responsible for damage to improvements (i.e. landscaping, decorative

paving) installed by the Property Owner or Customer within public Property or
an easement around the meter box.

. Additional Appurtenances

In some locations within the Service Area, additional appurtenances,
including but not limited to pressure reducing valves, may be required. The
additional appurtenances are always installed on the Customer Service Line;
therefore, the Property Owner is responsible for operation and maintenance
of the appurtenance once installed.

. Charge

The charge for installation of a Permanent Service Connection is the
responsibility of the Customer.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 19 of 99



@

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

9. Relocation or Extension

The charge for relocation or extension of a Permanent Service Connection
will be the responsibility of the Customer.

3.2.3 Request for Changes in Meter Size, Removal, Land Use or Inclusion of

Additional Land Area

A request for changes in meter size, removal, land use or inclusion of additional
land must be made in writing by the Customer of record in such format as
defined by the Agency. The Customer shall be solely responsible for all costs
associated with changes in meter size, removal, land use or inclusion of
additional land area. The Agency may approve requests to remove, increase or
reduce meter sizes, in its reasonable discretion, and may impose conditions
including, but not limited to, the following: 1) submission of minimum fire flow
requirements for the subject Property and compliance with said requirements;
and 2) submission of landscape plans in accordance with the Agency’s
landscape and irrigation practices.

1. Meter Size Increase or Reduction

There is a fee to install a new meter to achieve the requested meter size
change. Customer shall pay for the actual costs incurred by the Agency.

2. Meter Location Change

If the Customer desires a change in location of the meter, such change may
be affected with the mutual agreement of the Agency and the property owner,
and the owner/Customer shall pay for the actual costs incurred by the
Agency.

3. Meter Removal

Customer must sever their connection from the water meter and
appurtenances prior to the Agency removing the meter. The Agency will not
perform any plumbing work on the Customer Service Line. The Customer will
be required to perform any and all plumbing work necessary to prepare for
the meter and appurtenance removal, including securing/capping off the
Customer Service Line. Customer shall pay for the actual costs incurred by
the Agency.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 20 0f 99

51



S0

3.3

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

4. Change in Land Use

The Customer/property owner shall notify the Agency of any change in the
character or use of the property or buildings from that for which the service
connection was originally obtained. If a residential property is to be
reclassified or used as commercial or industrial or vice versa, the property
owner shall pay any additional charges that may be applicable by reason of
the reclassification. In all cases the Agency’s determination of the property’s
zoning classification or use will be final, subject to an appeal to the Board.

5. Inclusion of Additional Land Area

The Customer/property owner shall notify the Agency of any additional land
area or adjacent lots not served at the time of original commencement of
service that are to be served from the existing service connection. The
Agency reserves the right to designate the type of meter, limit the number of
buildings, separate houses, living or business quarters, and the area of land
under one ownership to be supplied by one service connection.

Temporary Service Connection

General Provisions
1. Purpose

Provided no undue hardship is caused to customers, the Agency will furnish
temporary service for construction purposes when the applicant has
requested service on this basis, or the Agency reasonably expects the
service to be temporary and the applicant has paid advances and established
credit. The Agency contemplates temporary service will be provided for a
term of six (6) months or less, and requires the applicant to comply with the
following:

2. Advances

The applicant must advance to the Agency the estimated net cost of installing
and removing the facilities necessary to furnish the service.

3. Deposits/Establishment of Credit
The applicant must deposit a sum of money equal to the cost of the meter

and the estimated bill as established by the Board. If the duration of service is
to exceed one month, then the applicant must establish credit in the same

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 21 0f 99



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

manner as is prescribed for permanent service.

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

=

4. Rates, Charges and Conditions of Service (Construction Meter)

The rates, charges and conditions for temporary service will be the same as
those prescribed for permanent service, plus additional costs as set forth in
Appendix A-7. The monthly service charge will be prorated and charged on a
daily basis.

5. Connections to Fire Hydrants

Fire hydrants connected to Agency mains are for use by the Agency and by
organized fire protection agencies. Other parties desiring to use water from
fire hydrants for any purpose must obtain written permission from the Agency
and from the appropriate fire protection agency prior to use and shall operate
the hydrant according to the instructions issued by the Agency. Unauthorized
Water Use will be subject to penalty as prescribed in Section 6.2.10 and will
be prosecuted according to law. Notwithstanding all other penalties, charges
for unauthorized use of water through fire hydrants will be subject to the
appropriate penalty specified in Appendix A-10 along with any applicable
charges.

6. Water for Construction Needs

All requests for construction water shall be made on an approved application
form available in the Agency office and accompanied by the appropriate
deposit amounts as stated in that form. Any costs involved in supplying such
connections will be prepaid by the applicant.

7. Tank Trucks — Back Flow Devices
Service to tank trucks will be provided only where an approved backflow
prevention device is used, in accordance with the Agency’s Cross-
Connection Control Program.

8. Duration
A Temporary Service Connection will be disconnected and terminated within
six (6) months after installation unless the Customer applies for and receives
a written extension of time from the Agency. The Agency has the right to

terminate a Temporary Service Connection at any time without notice to the
Customer.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 22 of 99

53



54

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

&

9. Responsibility

The Customer is responsible for loss or damage to a meter and any Agency
owned appurtenances associated with the Temporary Service Connection
from the time it is installed until it is removed, or until 48 hours after notice in
writing has been received by the Agency that the Customer wants the
Temporary Service Connection disconnected.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 23 of 99



S0

PART 4 — APPLICATION FOR SERVICE

4.1

4.2

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

General Provisions

A person who takes possession of premises and uses water without applying for water
service is liable for all water delivered from the date of the last recorded meter reading; if
the meter is found inoperative, the quantity of water delivered will be estimated. If
proper application for service is not made within 48 hours after initial notification that
failure to do so will result in termination of water service to said location, or if
accumulated bills are not paid upon presentation, water service shall be discontinued as
provided in the notice.

Application for Service:

A request for service must be made by each Applicant for Domestic Water Service in
such format as defined by the Agency. The Agency may establish reasonable means to
verify Applicant’s identity. Upon verification of Applicant’s identity, the Agency may
provide for written applications to be completed and accepted electronically, by mail, in
person or other appropriate means of delivery. An Applicant may be required to establish
credit worthiness as provided in Section 4.2.2. There is a fee to establish or transfer an
account if the Agency approves the application for service. The fee is listed in Appendix
A-11. Upon Agency’s acceptance of application, Domestic Water Service will be
established within two business days. The Agency may discontinue service if an
application is erroneous, not complete, and the errors are not cured by the Property
Owner after notice deemed adequate by the Agency. All Applicants will be advised of
this provision when the Agency is contacted for service.

Each time there is a change of Customer (either Property Owner or Tenant) on any
commercial or industrial Property, the new or previous Property Owner or Customer
shall notify the Agency immediately.

4.2.1 Property Damage Waiver Agreement

Applicants will be required to execute the Application Agreement, by which the
customer acknowledges receipt of certain information regarding the chemical
analysis of Agency water and waives any claim for damages to their pipes and
plumbing fixtures as a result of their use of Agency water.

4.2.2 Establishment of Credit
The Agency requires Applicants to provide the Agency with information sufficient

to determine the credit worthiness of the Applicant. Upon determining the
Applicant's credit worthiness, the Agency may require the Applicant to deposit

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 24 of 99

55



56

@

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

4.2.3

424

425

4.2.6

with the Agency such sums of money as determined by the Board from time to
time.

1. Upon receipt of completed Application for Service form and connection for
water service has been established, said Applicant is considered a Customer.

2. Deposits will be refunded to a Customer at the termination of water service,
provided all water charges have been paid. No interest will be paid on
Customer deposits.

3. A new Application for Service for any Customer will be granted only if all
assessments, fees, charges, delinquent water bills, and penalties due and
charged to or against said Customer, have been fully paid.

Deposit Based Upon Poor Payment History

The Customer shall be required to deposit with the Agency such sums as

specified in Appendix A-11 in the event: (i) the Customer's service is

disconnected for non-payment, as provided in Section 9; or (ii) upon the

Customer having been assessed a Late Fee for an Overdue Notice, as provided

in Section 6.2.3, twice in a 12-month period.

Waiver of Deposit

Public Agencies will not be subject to the deposit requirements stated above.

Return of Deposit

Where the Customer has maintained their payment history in good standing for
one year, the deposit will be credited against their bill.

Bankruptcy

The following rules apply upon receipt of a Customer’s bankruptcy notice
identifying the Agency as a creditor:

1. The Agency will notify the Customer that their existing account will be closed
effective the first available date after receipt of the bankruptcy notice.

2. A new account will be opened for this Customer and is subject to the rules
applied to all new individual Applicants for service as stated in Section 7.6
herein.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 25 0f 99



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

427

428

429

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

3. Any existing Customer’s deposit on file with the Agency will be applied to any
outstanding balance on the original account.

Refusal to Serve

The Agency may refuse to serve an applicant for service under the following
conditions:

1. If the applicant fails to comply with any of the rules and regulations contained
herein.

2. If the intended use of the service is of such a nature that it will be detrimental
or injurious to existing Customers.

3. If, in the judgment of the Agency, the applicant's installation for utilizing the
service is unsafe or hazardous, or of such nature that satisfactory service
cannot be rendered or exceeds the normal capacity of the meter service.

4. Where service has been discontinued for fraudulent use, the Agency will not
serve an applicant until it has determined that all conditions of fraudulent use
or practice have been corrected.

Notification to Applicant

When an applicant is refused service under the provisions of this rule, the
Agency will notify the applicant promptly of the reason for the refusal to serve
and of the right of applicant to appeal that decision to the Board.

Property Owner Responsibility

Domestic Water Service, and the payment thereof, in all cases, shall be the
responsibility of the Property Owner. The Property Owner may authorize, in
writing, that a second party, such as a Tenant may establish service in their
name and a Tenant or Tenants may establish service as provided in the
Residential Discontinuation Policy. The Property Owner shall be held responsible
for payment of all amounts due for Domestic Water Service, including all bills,
costs, loss, damage, penalties, charges, or fees regardless of user or use. If the
Property Owner has authorized a second party, such as a tenant to establish
service and receive billing for service, a completed application form shall be
required from the second party.

The Agency, as a courtesy, may allow the Property Owner to authorize a Tenant
to be billed for service. This courtesy is at the discretion of the Agency and as
such, the Agency may transfer service from a Tenant back to the Property Owner

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 26 of 99

57



58

S0

4.3

4.4

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

4.2.10

4.2.11

and refuse to allow future service to be billed to a Tenant. In such circumstances
the Property Owner will receive all billing statements.

Description of Property

The Applicant shall describe the Property to be served and only the Property
described will receive domestic water through such Service Connection. The
description shall include street address, city, Assessor’s Parcel Number and
other information, including plumbing and building plans, to enable the Agency to
determine the level of Cross Connection protection required. The Agency may
refuse Domestic Water Service to any Property where apparatus, appliances or
equipment using water are dangerous, unsafe or not in conformity with pertinent
laws, ordinances, or regulations. The Agency will not assume responsibility for
inspecting the Property.

Any alterations to existing facilities on the Property that may affect the level of
Cross Connection protection required must be reported immediately to the
Agency.

Description of Water Usage

The Applicant shall describe the domestic water demand for the Property to be
served, including the required maximum flow (in gallons per minute) and
minimum pressure (in pounds per square inch) required at the meter. For
Dwelling Units required to install a Residential Fire Sprinkler System, the
Applicant shall also provide the type of Residential Fire Sprinkler System
(multipurpose or stand-alone), the maximum flow (in gallons per minute) and
minimum pressure (in pounds per square inch) required for the Residential Fire
Sprinkler System.

Special Provision

Properties, other than residential, with landscaped areas will be served with a separate
service for irrigation purposes.

Prior Service

An Applicant for service may be subject to the provisions of Section 7.7 if a delinquency
has occurred at the Property or another Property owned by the Property Owner. This
provision shall apply to all Domestic Water Services including business and landscape.

The Applicant will not be held liable for any unpaid charges from a prior Customer or
Property Owner except those unpaid charges which have been filed as a lien against the
Property by the Agency under the provisions of California Water Code Section 31701.5.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 27 of 99



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S

A new Property Owner assuming existing liens on Property shall be required to pay all
unpaid charges that remain as liens against the Property purchased, prior to new
Domestic Water Service being established.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 28 of 99



60

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

“ Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

PART 5 - RULES APPLICABLE TO EXISTING CUSTOMERS
5.1 Quantities

The Agency will endeavor to supply water dependably and safely in adequate quantities
and pressures to meet the reasonable needs and requirements of Customers.

52  Quality

The Agency will endeavor to supply water for domestic use or human consumption that is
potable, not harmful to human health, free from objectionable taste, odor or color, and
within health standards.

5.3 Responsibility for Loss or Damage

Customers shall accept such conditions of pressure and service as are provided by the
Agency system and hold the Agency harmless for any loss or damage to Customers
resulting from the Agency's failure to meet the service goals stated within this section, or
due to any interruptions in service. Customers shall at all times be in compliance with
current California Plumbing Code.

5.4 Conditions of Service
5.4.1 Notices
1. Notice to Customers
Notice to a Customer will normally be by telephone or in writing and may
be delivered electronically or mailed to the customer's last known address.
In emergencies or when circumstances warrant, the Agency, where
feasible, will endeavor to promptly notify the customer affected and may
make such notification orally, either in person or by telephone, or by
leaving a written notice on the door.

2. Notice from Customers

Customer may make notification in person, by telephone or by letter to the
Agency at its office.

Change in Customer's Equipment, Operations or Land Use
a. A Customer making any material change in the size, character, or

extent of the equipment, operations, or nature of land use shall
immediately give the Agency written notice of the nature and extent

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 29 of 99



@

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

&5

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

of the change, and if necessary, amend their application for water
service. Any and all modifications to the service must be approved
by the Agency.

3. Continuity of Service

The Agency expressly reserves the right to restrict, curtail, allocate or
apportion Agency water supplies as necessary, in the sole discretion of
the Agency.

a. Emergency Interruptions

The Agency will make all reasonable efforts to prevent interruptions to
service and, when such interruptions occur, will endeavor to re-
establish service with minimal delay consistent with the safety of the
Agency's customers and the general public.

Where an emergency interruption of service affects the service to any
public fire protection device, the Agency will promptly endeavor to
notify the Fire Chief, or other public official responsible for fire
protection, of such interruption and of subsequent restoration of normal
service.

. Scheduled Interruptions

Whenever the Agency finds it necessary to schedule an interruption to
its service, it will, where feasible, notify all Customers to be affected by
the interruption, stating the approximate time and anticipated duration
of the interruption. Scheduled interruptions will be made at such hours
as will be least inconvenient to the Customers consistent with
reasonable utility operations.

Where public fire protection is provided by the mains affected by the
interruptions, the Agency will promptly endeavor to notify the Fire
Chief, or other officials responsible for fire protection, of the
interruption. In addition, the Fire Chief or other official responsible for
fire protection will be notified upon restoration of service.

Apportionment of Supply during Water Shortages
During times of impending or actual water shortage, the Agency will
apportion its available water supply among its Customers as directed

by the appropriate state and local authorities. In the absence of
direction from such authorities, it will apportion the supply in the

February 2020 30 of 99

61



62

S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

54.2

5.4.3

544

5.4.5

manner that appears most equitable under the circumstances, with
due regard to public health and safety.

Ownership of Facilities on Customer's Premises

The service lateral, meter, and meter box or other facilities furnished at the
Customer's expense, whether located wholly or partially upon a Customer's
premises, are the property of the Agency. No rent or other charge will be paid by
the Agency where the Agency-owned service facilities are located on a
Customer's premises.

Agency Access to Customer’s Premises

The Agency shall at all reasonable hours have access to meters, service
connections and other equipment or facilities owned by it which may be located
on Customer's premises for purposes of installation, maintenance, operation or
removal of the equipment at the time service is to be terminated. The property
owner or customer shall maintain the meter box area free and clear of any
obstruction preventing clear access to Agency facilities.

The Customer's system shall be open for inspection at all reasonable times to
authorized representatives of the Agency. Any inspection work or
recommendations made by the Agency or its agents in connection with plumbing
or appliances, cross-connections or any use of water on the Customer's premises,
either as a result of a complaint or otherwise, may result in a charge to the
Customer.

Service Calls

Where the Agency requires access to the Customer's premises for maintenance,
service, or otherwise, and the Customer's presence is required for such service
call, the Agency shall give the Customer a four-(4) hour period during which the
service call shall be made.

Agency's Responsibilities for Damage or Loss to Customer

The Agency will not be responsible for any loss or damage caused by any
negligence or wrongful act of a Customer or of a Customer's authorized
representatives in installing, maintaining, operating or using any or all appliances,
facilities or equipment that is supplied.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 31 0f 99



S

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

5.4.6

5.4.7

54.8

Customer's Responsibility for Agency Property

The Customer may be charged for damage to Agency's meters and other property
resulting from the use or operation of appliances and facilities on Customer's
premises, including but not limited to damage caused by steam, hot water or
chemicals, or the breaking or destruction of locks on or near a meter. The Agency
at the customer’s expense shall repair all such damage. Costs for repairs may be
added to the customer’s water bill.

Control Valve on the Customer Property

The Customer shall provide a valve on their side of the service installation, as
close to the meter location as practicable to control the flow of water to the piping
on their premises. The Customer shall not use the service curb stop to turn water
on and off for their convenience.

Resale of Water
Except by special agreement with the Agency, no Customer shall resell water

received from the Agency, nor shall such water be delivered to a property other
than that specified in the application for service

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 32 of 99

63



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

PART 6 — RATES AND CHARGES

6.1

6.2

General Provisions

For all metered Service Connections located within or outside the boundaries of the
Agency, the monthly charge for service will consist of a Monthly Service Charge based
on the size of the meter and a Consumption Charge (quantitative charge). Property
owners with an installed meter, whether the water service is on or off, are held
responsible for and required to pay the Monthly Service Charge. In addition to these
charges a Cross Connection protection charge will be applicable to all meters with such
devices installed.

Monthly Service Charge
6.2.1 General Provisions

Rates and charges for water service and other miscellaneous charges are set by
the Board of Directors. When Service is started or terminated during the month,
the Monthly Service Charge will be prorated by day based on a 30-day billing
period. Current rates and charges are set forth in Appendix A-2.

1. Water Availability Charge

The availability charge is a "base" monthly charge, and depends on the size
of a Customer's meter, and is fixed regardless of the quantity of water
consumed. Current rates are set forth in Appendix A-2.

2. Quantity Rates

The quantity rate is applied to the Customer's water consumption. Current
applicable rates are set forth in Appendix A-5.

3. Water Revenue Adjustment Surcharge/credit

Any increase/decrease in the water revenues which recovers any shortage
of commodity revenue due to inflation attributed to fluctuations in real
demand through application of the revenue adjustment formula may, at the
discretion of the Board, be passed through directly to Agency customers as a
rate adjustment per Government Code Section 53756, on the basis of volume
of water consumed.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 33 0f 99



@

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

4. Out of Agency Service

Customers located outside of the Agency may be charged rates for water
service that are different than those charged to customers within the Agency,
based upon the reasonable cost to the Agency of providing service to
property outside its service area, as determined by the Board from time to
time. Rates are set forth in Appendix A-12.

5. Tank Truck Service Rates

Any person desiring service for tank trucks may, upon application and
payment of a deposit equal to the cost of the meter plus a non-reimbursable
charge for meter installation and removal may obtain water from such places
as the Agency shall from time to time designate, and shall pay monthly in
accordance with the rates set forth in Section 6.2.13 and Appendix A-7.

In the event said construction meter is damaged, lost or stolen, or not
returned, the deposit shall be forfeited.

Miscellaneous Fees and Charges

In order to recover the cost associated with late payments, disconnections and
other damages sustained by the Agency, the specified items listed below are
charged to Customers; the dollar amounts associated with each item are
determined by the Board and set forth in Appendix A-12.

Late Fee

A Late Fee shall be assessed and applied to the Customer’s bill at the time the
Overdue Notice is generated as set forth in Section 8.11.

Restoration Fee

If a Customer requests resumption or continuance of service after such service
has been disconnected, then the Customer shall pay a restoration fee in addition
to any past due user charges, advance payments, or meeting any other
conditions set forth by the Agency.

Returned Payment Charge
When a Customer's payment of water service and other charges is returned as

non-negotiable for any reason, the Agency shall proceed as set forth in Section
[1(B)(5) of the Residential Discontinuation Policy.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 34 of 99

65



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

6.2.6

6.2.7

6.2.8

6.2.9

Overdue Notice

Where the Agency has been compelled to provide notification of an impending
disconnection of water service provided in Section 1I(B) of the Residential
Discontinuation Policy, the Customer shall pay a Late Fee when an Overdue
Notice has been generated, in addition to any other applicable charges provided
hereunder.

Meter Test Charge/Deposit

The Agency shall endeavor to keep the meters in good condition and registering
accurately. Any Customer may request that his meter be examined and tested to
see if it is correctly recording water delivered through it. Said request shall be
made in writing and shall be accompanied by a deposit, set forth in Appendix A-
12.

Upon receipt of such demand and deposit, it shall be the duty of the Manager to
cause the meter to be examined and tested. If upon such examination and test
the meter shall be found to register over two percent more water than actually
passes through it, the meter shall be properly adjusted or another meter
substituted therefore, and the deposit shall be returned to the person making the
demand and the water bill shall be adjusted proportionately.

If the meter is found to register not more than two percent more water or less
water than actually passes through it, said deposit shall be retained by the
Agency to partially defray the expense of making the test. All other tests and
examinations of meters shall be at the Agency's expense.

Pulled Meter Charge

If a Customer's service has been disconnected and the meter has been "pulled”
or removed from the premises, then the Customer shall pay at the Agency office
a pulled meter charge equal to the actual expense to the Agency of pulling the
meter, and any other applicable charges, before the service and meter can be
reconnected.

Unauthorized Connection and/or Water Use

Any person or entity found connecting and/or taking water from or through any of
the Agency's facilities without Agency authorization will be assessed a fine
payable to the Agency, as set forth in Appendix A-12, in addition to applicable
Agency charges for the quantity of water taken. Written notice of the assessment
of such fine shall be given by personal service or by registered or certified mail.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 35 0f 99



@

6.3

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

6.2.10

6.2.11

6.2.12

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Charge for Turn off at Main

If the water to a property is turned on more than once without Agency
authorization, the service may be shut off at the main, and the Customer shall be
required to pay, in addition to any other applicable charges, a charge equal to the
actual expense to the Agency of restoration prior to the re-establishment of
service.

Property Damage

If a Customer, new applicant or developer is found to be responsible for any
damage done to Agency property; such damages shall be reimbursed to the
Agency at cost plus administrative overhead. If responsibility for damage is not
known, charges will be made to the current Customer or property owner.

Temporary Construction Meter Water Service

A Customer, new applicant or developer shall supply a photograph of the
construction meter number, numerical read and register to the Agency each
month and comply with all terms and conditions as stated on the service
application.

Failure to comply with this requirement will result in a monthly Unread Meter
Charge as set forth in Appendix A-12.

Pass-through of Increased/Decreased Cost of Wholesale Purchased Water

Any increase/decrease in the cost of purchased water shall be passed through directly to
Agency customers as a rate adjustment per Government Code Section 53756. Such
pass through shall be automatically passed through to customers pro rata on the basis
of volume of water consumed in accordance with the adopted rates of each division.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 36 of 99

67



S0

PART 7 — CREDIT

71

7.2

7.3

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Establishing

As provided in Section 4.2, the payment of Domestic Water Service, including all bills,
costs, loss, damage, penalties, charges, or fees regardless of user or use, in all cases
shall be the responsibility of the Property Owner. Each Applicant for Domestic Water
Service may be required to establish credit worthiness to the satisfaction of the Agency
before service will be rendered. Applicant may establish credit worthiness with no
deposit required if the Applicant can show that most recent prior service was not
terminated for nonpayment for twelve (12) consecutive months from his/her previous
Domestic Water Service provider, even if that provider was not the Agency. Prior service
must have been in the Applicant’s name in order to be used for the credit worthiness
test.

Amount of Deposit

Where credit worthiness cannot be established to the satisfaction of the Agency
pursuant to Section 4.2, a deposit may be required as provided in Appendix A-11 or an
amount equal to, or projected to be, three (3) times the average monthly bill for the
preceding twelve-month (12-month) period.

Refund of Deposit

Residential deposits will be held by the Agency for a period of one (1) year from the date
Domestic Water Service is provided to the subject Property. All other deposits will be
held until the completion of the project or service is terminated. If Domestic Water
Service is terminated during that one-year (1-year) period for nonpayment, the Agency
shall retain the deposit until Domestic Water Service is ordered terminated by the
Customer. If Domestic Water Service is not terminated during the first year, the Agency
shall apply the deposit to the water billing or billings until the amount of the deposit is
used in full. In the event the Customer requests termination, the Agency shall refund the
remaining balance of any deposit, without interest, and less any accrued but unpaid
water billing, within a reasonable time after termination of service. The remaining
balance in excess of $5.00 will be mailed in the form of a check to the customer’s last
known address. In the event the Agency discovers damage, theft and/or unauthorized
use of Agency facilities, services will be immediately discontinued, and billing of services
terminated. All applicable charges and penalties will be deducted from the Customer’s
deposit as provided under Conditions of Domestic Water Service, Part 13. Applicable
charges and penalties are provided in Appendix’'s A-10 and A-12. Any unclaimed deposit
shall be held or retained by Agency pursuant to Section 50650, et seq., of the California
Government Code or any successor statutes thereto.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 37 of 99



=

7.4

7.5

7.6

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Joint Service

No joint service is allowed. An individual party will be solely liable for payment of bills. In
those instances where more than one party applies for service, each party shall be
severally liable for payment of bills.

Re-establishment of Credit

Subject to the provisions of the Residential Discontinuation Policy, a Customer whose
service has been discontinued for nonpayment of bills will be required to pay any unpaid
balance due the Agency for the premises for which service is to be restored and may be
required to pay a restoration fee as prescribed in Sections 6.2.4 and 6.2.5 under "Late or
Restoration Fee" before service is restored by Agency personnel. In addition, the
Customer will be required to deposit with the Agency such sums of money as
determined by the Board from time to time, as specified in Appendix’s A-11 and A-12.
Deposits collected by the Agency are deposited into an account which does not accrue
interest.

Bankruptcy of Customer

Pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code (Title 11, U.S.C., as amended from time to time), the
Agency shall not alter, refuse or discontinue service to, or discriminate against, a
Customer, or a trustee of a Customer, solely on the basis that a debt owed by the
Customer to the Agency for service rendered before the order for relief was not paid
when due. It shall be the responsibility of the Customer to supply the Agency with a copy
of any applicable order for relief.

The Agency shall discontinue service if neither the Customer or the trustee, within 20
days after the date of the order for relief, furnishes adequate assurance of payment in
the form of an advance payment for service after such date. As used herein, "adequate
assurance of payment" shall mean an advance payment in an amount equal to the
highest of the last 6 billings rendered to the Customer, or for the Customer's property if
Customer has not occupied the property for that period of time, prior to the order for
relief.

As used herein, "order for relief" shall have the same meaning as given to it in the
Bankruptcy Code. The commencement of a voluntary case under the Bankruptcy Code
shall constitute an order for relief. Service may be discontinued in accordance with the
rules of the Agency upon non-payment for service rendered after the order for relief.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 38 of 99

69



S0

7.7

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Delinquent Account

The bill for Domestic Water Service is due on the Due Date (three (3) days after the bill
is generated, as signified by the date of the bill) and Domestic Water Service is subject
to termination if the bill is not paid within sixty (60) days from the Due Date.

Services terminated for delinquency shall not be restored until all outstanding charges
are paid in full, including a fee for restoration of service as provided for in Section 6.2.4
and a late fee as provided for in Section 6.2.3. An updated application may be required.

If the manner of payment of the delinquent amount is not accepted by the paying bank
for any reason, and the Agency had properly notified the customer of a pending
termination of service per these Rules and Regulations prior to receipt of the rejected
payment, Domestic Water Service may be terminated immediately without further notice.
Domestic Water Service will not be restored until all outstanding charges are paid in full,
including a returned payment charge, as applicable and provided in Section 6.2.5.

A Customer having a delinquent account on one Property may not receive Domestic
Water Service on another Property until the delinquent account has been paid, including
penalties, if any. A Customer whose Domestic Water Service has been terminated for
nonpayment of a delinquent account or whose deposit has been applied in whole or in
part to the payment of any delinquent account, will be required to make a cash deposit in
accordance with Section 8.21. Additionally, when Domestic Water Service has been
terminated for nonpayment, all charges may be transferred to another account held in
the sole name of the same Owner and the Owner shall be given written notice of that
transfer. This account shall become delinquent if payment is not made within sixty (60)
days from the date of delinquent transfer and will be subject to Part 9, Termination of
Domestic Water Service. The Agency may file liens against the Property, or any
properties owned by the delinquent Customer within the state of California to enforce
collection of delinquent accounts as provided in Water Code Section 31701.5.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 39 of 99



S0

PART 8 — BILLING

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

General Provisions

The Property Owner is liable for payment of bills, costs, loss, damage, penalties,
charges, or fees regardless of user or use for water or other services provided to the
Property for all Domestic Water Service from the acquisition date of the property until
such time as the property is transferred to new ownership. The Property Owner is
responsible to provide the Agency with a notice to stop Domestic Water Service in a
form and manner determined by the Agency in accordance with Section 4.2.9.

Rendering and Payment of Bills

Bills for service will be rendered on a monthly basis, at the option of the Agency. Bills for
service are due on the third (3rd) day after generation, as signified by the date of the bill,
and Domestic Water Service is subject to termination if the bill is not paid within sixty
(60) days from the Due Date. In the event the payment is not received by the forty-fifth
(45'") day after generation, the Customer will be assessed a late charge as specified in
Appendix A-12.

Payment may be made at the office of the Agency or to any representative of the
Agency authorized to make collections. However, it is the Customer's responsibility to
assure that payments are received at the Agency's office in a timely manner.

Domestic Water Service Information on Bill

The bill may show one or more of the following charges: Consumption Charge, Service
Charge, or Special Charge and Total Amount Due. In addition, the bill will show the
Customer’s account number, the date of billing, the service location, and the address to
which the bill was mailed.

The following information may also be included on the bill: Customer’s water target for
the period, Customer’s actual water usage for the period, Customer’s water efficiency
rating and the Customer’s water usage history.

Information shown on the Customer’s bill may change at the General Manager’s
discretion.

Person to be Billed
Charges will be the responsibility of the Property Owner. The Property Owner may

authorize, in writing, that a second party, such as a Tenant may establish service in their
name as provided for in Section 4.2.9, or a Tenant or Tenants may establish service as

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 40 of 99

71



72

=

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

provided in the Residential Discontinuation Policy. To the extent permitted by law, the
Property Owner shall be held responsible for payment of all amounts due for Domestic
Water Service, including all bills, costs, loss, damage, penalties, charges, or fees
regardless of user or use. The Property Owner may request for a copy of the bill to be
sent to the Owner's mailing address as well. The Property Owner shall notify the Agency
of any change in the ownership or occupancy of the Property at least two days prior to
such change in a manner deemed acceptable by the Agency.

Payment

The bill for Domestic Water Service is due and payable on the third (3rd) calendar day
after the bill is generated. A bill will become subject to a late charge if it is not paid within
forty-five (45) days from the date the bill is generated. Domestic Water Service is subject
to termination if a bill is not paid within sixty (60) days from the Due Date.

Adjustment of Bill

The Customer may request, in a manner deemed acceptable by the Agency and as
specified in Section IV of the Residential Discontinuation Policy, an adjustment to the
Domestic Water Service charges billed for one of the following reasons:

8.6.1 Estimated meter reading

8.6.2 Water meter accuracy

8.6.3 Adjustment of bills for excessive consumption

Estimated Meter Reading

A bill based upon an estimated meter reading, as provided in Section 8.6, may be
adjusted at the Customer’s request and as approved by the Agency. Billing adjustments
related to an estimated meter reading will be limited to the period for which the meter
reading was estimated.

Opening Bills

Opening Bills for less than the normal billing period shall be prorated both as to minimum
charges and water consumption.

Closing Bills

Closing bills for less than the normal billing period shall be prorated both, as to minimum
charges and water consumption.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 41 of 99



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S0

8.10 Separate Billings for Each Meter

Each meter on a Customer's premises will be considered separately and the readings of
two or more meters will not be combined except where the Agency's operating
convenience or necessity may require the use of more than one meter or a battery of
meters. In the latter case, the meter readings will be combined for billing purposes.

8.11 Late Fee

A late fee of twenty-five ($25) dollars will be charged when an account has not been paid
before the Overdue Notice is generated.

A Late Fee will be charged as a domestic water account becomes delinquent provided
that: (a) the account has a delinquent balance exceeding twenty dollars ($20); and (b)
are not paid within forty-five (45) days from the date the bill is generated. Customers with
timely payment histories during the previous 12-month period prior to being charged a
Late Fee may have the Late Fee waived upon request. The amount of the Late Fee is
set forth in Appendix A-12, as said amount may be revised from time to time.

8.12 Alternative Payment Plans

As set forth in Section 1l of the Residential Discontinuation Policy, any Customer, who is
unable to pay for water service within the normal payment period, may request
amortization of the unpaid balance over a period not to exceed twelve months in order to
avoid disconnection of domestic service for nonpayment, or may request another type of
alternative payment arrangement described in that section. The Agency will consider all
circumstances surrounding the request and make a determination as to whether
amortization or any other specified alternative payment arrangement is warranted.

8.12.1 Amortization Payment Plan

Upon request from the Customer, an amortization plan or other alternative
payment arrangement will be entered into between the Agency and the
Customer. The amortization plan will amortize the unpaid balance over a period
determined by the Agency, not to exceed twelve (12) months, with payments
added to the Customer's regular bill. Any other alternative payment arrangement
selected by the Agency shall ensure repayment of unpaid amounts within twelve
(12) months, subject to further extension at the Agency’s discretion.

The Customer will be charged an administrative fee representing the cost to the
Agency of initiating and administering the plan. The plan shall include a charge
for interest of ten percent (10%) per annum or the maximum legal rate,
whichever is lower, on the unpaid balance, subject to waiver as specified in the
Residential Discontinuation Policy.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 42 of 99

73



S0

8.13

8.14

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

8.12.2 Certification by Physician

See Section II(C) of the Residential Discontinuation Policy with respect to the
potential to defer termination of Domestic Water Service.

8.12.3 Compliance with Plan

The Customer must comply with the amortization plan, or other alternative
payment arrangement, and remain current as charges accrue in each
subsequent billing period. The Customer may not request further amortization of
any subsequent unpaid charges while paying delinquent charges pursuant to an
amortization plan. Failure to comply with the terms of an amortization plan for at
least sixty (60) days will result in termination of Domestic Water Service as
specified in Section Il of the Residential Discontinuation Policy and further
requests for amortization will not be granted for a period of at least twelve (12)
months.

Disputed Bills

See Section IV of the Residential Discontinuation Policy for the required appeals
procedures.

Adjustment of Bills for Excessive Consumption

It is the Customer’s responsibility to properly maintain the property’s private plumbing
water system, including irrigation systems and water features. A leak in the Customer’s
water system is the sole responsibility of the Customer and the Agency charges for all
water that records and passes through the water meter. In addition to the appeals
process set forth in Section IV of the Residential Discontinuation Policy, if a Customer
requests the Agency to review a bill for water service due to excessive consumption, the
Agency may grant an adjustment subject to the conditions below.

8.14.1 Verified Adjustments
Verified adjustments for high consumption may be granted to Customers when
there is explained high consumption such as a water leak on the Customer’s
property. The Agency, after investigation, shall find all of the following:

1. The meter must be re-read, may be field tested, and verified as accurate.

2. The Customer made the request for billing review within 60 days of the first
bill date reflecting excessive consumption.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 43 of 99



S0

8.15

8.16

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

3. Upon notification of excessive water consumption, the Customer took prompt
action to locate the leak and complete repairs within 30 days. Notification to
the Customer may take the form of a billing statement, written communication
to the Customer, a courtesy phone call or a notice left at the property.

4. Proof of repair, including copies of repair bills or photographs, is required.

5. The Customer did not have a verified adjustment in the previous 12-month
period prior to the bill with excessive consumption.

6. No adjustment shall be made for any period longer than two consecutive
billing periods or for water delivered 30 days after the Agency notifies the
Customer of the excessive use.

7. Consumption must have returned to historical use.

8. No more than one verified adjustment shall be made for excessive
consumption within a rolling 60-month period.

Agency Initiated Billing Adjustment

If the Agency discovers that a billing error has been made related to meter reading
against a Customer’s account, the Agency will immediately take all reasonable steps to
correct the billing. If the Customer has been under-billed, the Agency reserves the right
to go back six (6) months to recalculate the amount due and payable and the General
Manager, or designee may provide for reasonable payment arrangements for the
balance due to be paid. If the Agency has over-billed the Customer, the Agency shall go
back no longer than six (6) months to recalculate the amount of over-billing refund due to
the Customer.

Adjustment of Bills for Meter Error

In addition to the appeals process set forth in Section IV of the Residential
Discontinuation Policy, the Customer may request an adjustment of the bill because of
meter error. Such a request must be made in writing and the rules set forth in Section
6.2.6, Meter Test Charge, will apply. The Agency will proceed, within one week, to test
the Customer's meter; the meter will be tested in an "as found" condition, in order to
determine the average meter error. If the average meter error is found to exceed 2
percent, that is if quantities of water recorded by the meter are outside of a range
between 98 percent and 102 percent of the actual quantities of water passed through the
meter during the test, the following billing adjustments will be made.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 44 of 99

75



@

8.17

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

8.16.1 Fast Meters

8.16.2

8.16.3

8.16.4

The Agency will refund to the Customer the amount of the overcharge based on
corrected meter readings of the period the meter was in use and determined to
be incorrect, but not to exceed a period of six months.

Slow Meters

The Agency may bill the Customer, at its option, for the amount of the
undercharge based upon corrected meter readings for the period the meter was
in service and determined to be incorrect, but not to exceed a period of six
months.

Non-Registering Meters

The Agency may bill the Customer according to an estimate of water consumed
while the meter was not registering, but not exceeding a period of six months.
This estimate will be based on the Customer's prior use during the same season
of the previous year if conditions were unchanged during the year, or on a
reasonable comparison of consumption of other similar Customers during the
same period.

General

If the meter error is caused by some event, the date of which can be determined,
then the billing adjustment will be made for the period of time since the date of
such event; such a period may exceed the six-month limitation for fast meters
and the six-month limitation for slow or non-registering meters, as stated in 1
through 3 above.

Delinquent Bills

The following rules apply to Customers whose bills remain not paid after forty-five (45)
days from the date the bill is generated.

8.17.1

8.17.2

Small Balance Accounts

In any billing, if less than a minimum bill remains unpaid, it may be carried over,
and added to, the next billing period.

Overdue Notice

If payment for a billing period is not received by the forty-fifth (45™") day after the
bill is generated, an Overdue Notice will be mailed to the water service Customer

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 45 of 99



S0

8.18

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

at least seven (7) business days prior to actual disconnection. The Notice will
include a late fee. Upon receipt of an Overdue Notice and up to the date set for
disconnection, the Customer may request an amortization payment plan or other
alternative payment arrangement, as the Agency may select, pursuant to Section
8.13.

8.17.3 Notice to Residential Tenants/Occupants in an Individually Metered Residence
See Section II(F) of the Residential Discontinuation Policy.

8.17.4 Notice to Tenants/Occupants in a Multiunit Residential Structure with Service
through a Master Meter

See Section lI(F) of the Residential Discontinuation Policy.
8.17.5 Disconnection Deadline

Water service charges and late fees must be paid on or prior to 4:30 p.m. on the
day specified in the Overdue Notice.

8.17.6 Waiver of Overdue Notices to Public Agencies

Public agencies, because of usual sound financial base and variations in warrant
payment procedures, will not be sent delinquent notices for delinquent payment
of current accounts.

Notification of Returned Payment Disposition

Upon receipt of a returned payment taken as remittance of water service or other
charges, the Agency will consider the account not paid and may terminate Domestic
Water Service as specified in Section 1I(B)(6) of the Residential Discontinuation Policy.

If an Overdue Notice has already been provided to the customer, the Agency may
proceed with termination of Domestic Water Service in accordance with that notice if
payment is not subsequently made. If an Overdue Notice has not already been provided
to the customer and the bill is not yet delinquent, the Agency will promptly notify the
customer of the returned payment and all applicable charges. If the bill remains unpaid
as of the forty-fifth (45™") day after the bill is generated, then the Agency will issue an
Overdue Notice to the customer.

Water service will be disconnected if the amount of the returned payment and returned
payment charge are not paid on or before the date specified in the Notice of
Termination. All amounts paid to redeem a returned payment and to pay the returned
payment charge must be cash or certified funds.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 46 of 99

77



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

“ Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

8.19 Returned Checks for Previously Disconnected Service

In the event the Customer tenders a non-negotiable check as payment to restore water
service previously disconnected for non-payment, and as a result, the Agency restores
service, the Agency may disconnect service notice upon at least three (3) days’ written
notice.

8.20 Returned Checks Requiring Cash or Certified Funds

Any Customer issuing a non-negotiable check for payment to restore service turned off
for non-payment, may be required to pay, for one year, cash or certified funds to have
service restored if turned off again within this time period for non-payment.

8.21  Pre-Payment upon Receipt of a Non-Negotiable Check

Any customer issuing a non-negotiable check as payment for water charges may be
required to deposit with the Agency such sums as the Agency may establish for re-
establishment of credit, as provided in Sections 7.5.

8.22 Create a Lien

If the Customer’s bill remains unpaid for sixty (60) days after the Due Date, after notice
to the Customer or the property owner, the Agency may file a Certificate in the Office of
the County Recorder specifying the amount of the charges and the name and address of
the person liable therefore, which Certificate shall create a lien.

A lien created pursuant to this procedure shall, in the sole discretion of the Agency,

attach either to the property to which service was provided, or to any property in the
County owned by the individual responsible for payment.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 47 of 99



S0

PART 9 —- TERMINATION OF DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE

9.1

9.2

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 48 of 99

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Agency Initiated

The Agency has the right to terminate Domestic Water Service if the Customer fails to
comply with these Regulations, including the Residential Discontinuation Policy. In
addition, if the Customer receives and fails to pay for Agency services or fees, the
Agency has the right to terminate Domestic Water Service.

Termination Procedures

When delinquency occurs, the Agency will provide to the Customer notice of the
delinquency and impending termination of Domestic Water Service in accordance with
the Residential Discontinuation Policy at least seven (7) business days prior to the
proposed termination by telephone, or a notice mailed, postage prepaid, to the
Customer’s service and billing address. The Agency shall notify the Property Owner or
authorized agent of impending termination if Property Owner has authorized a second
party to receive billing statements.

If the Agency is unable to make contact with the customer by telephone, and written
notice is returned through the mail as undeliverable, the Agency shall make a

reasonably good faith effort to visit the residence and leave or make other arrangements

for placement in a conspicuous place, a notice of imminent termination of domestic
service for nonpayment.

9.2.1 As set forth in Section II(B)(1) of the Residential Discontinuation Policy, the

Overdue Notice shall constitute notice of the impending termination of Domestic

Water Service and shall include:
1. The Customer’s name and address.

2. The amount of the delinquency.

3. The date by which payment or arrangement for payment is required in order

to avoid discontinuation of residential service.

4. A description of the process to apply for an extension of time to pay the
delinquent charges.

5. A description of the procedure to petition for bill review and appeal.

6. A description of the procedure by which the customer may request a

deferred, reduced, or alternative payment schedule, including an amortization

of the delinquent residential service charges, consistent with the Agency’s

79



S0

9.3

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

9.2.2

9.2.3

9.2.4

policy to avoid discontinuation of domestic service for nonpayment.
Customer Appeal

If the Customer appeals their bill and submits a request for account review in
accordance with Section IV of the Residential Discontinuation Policy, Domestic
Water Service shall not be discontinued while an appeal is pending. The Agency
will thereafter determine if Domestic Water Service shall be continued or
terminated.

Domestic Water Service through a Residential Master Meter

Before terminating Domestic Water Service to residential Customers served
through a master meter or individually metered Domestic Water Service
connection in a multiunit residential structure, mobile home park or farm labor
camp where the owner, manager or farm labor employer is listed by the Agency
as the Customer of record for the Domestic Water Service, the Agency shall
provide notice as specified in Section II(F) of the Residential Discontinuation
Policy.

No Notice Required

Prior to termination of Domestic Water Service, notice is not required when the
illegal noncompliance (i.e., tampering), violation or infraction of these Regulations
by the Customer results, or is likely to result, in dangerous or unsanitary
conditions on the Property or in the water system or elsewhere. In such cases,
the Agency may order immediate termination of Domestic Water Service.

Termination of Domestic Water Service initiated by the Agency

9.3.1

Termination of Domestic Water Service may also be initiated by the Agency
under the following circumstances:

1. Where conditions of use have changed materially to the point where new or
additional fees or charges are due or other charges in the Domestic Water
Service are required or appropriate but the Customer refuses to agree to the
additional fees or charges in the Domestic Water Service, the Agency may
terminate the Domestic Water Service; provided, however, that if the reason
for the termination is the non-payment of such fees or charges after
imposition by the Agency, then the Agency shall comply with the procedures
set forth in the Residential Discontinuation Policy.

2. Where excessive demands by one Customer may result in inadequate
Domestic Water Service to others or;

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 49 of 99



“b WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

3. To protect itself against fraud or abusive conduct on the part of the Customer

and,
As provided in this Section and in Parts 4 and 13 of these Regulations.

The Agency shall not terminate Domestic Water Service by reason of
delinquency in payment or otherwise cause cessation of Domestic Water
Services on any Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or at any time when Agency
business offices are not open to the public.

9.4 Medical Provision

9.4.1

94.2

As provided in Section II(C) of the Residential Discontinuation Policy, Residential
Service will not be terminated for nonpayment if all of the following conditions are
met:

1.

Customer submits certification of a primary care provider that discontinuation
of residential service will be life threatening to, or pose a serious threat to the
health and safety of, a resident of the premises where service is provided;

Customer demonstrates he or she is financially unable to pay for water
service within the Agency’s normal billing cycle, including if the customer or
any member of the customer’s household is (a) a current recipient of the
following benefits: CalWORKS, CalFresh, general assistance, Medi-Cal,
SSI/State Supplementary Program or California Special Supplemental
Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children; or (b) the customer
declares the household’s annual income is less than 200% of the federal
poverty level; and

Customer is willing to enter into an amortization agreement, alternative
payment schedule, or a plan for a deferred or reduced payment with respect
to all delinquent charges consistent with the Rules and Regulations. The
repayment option provided should result in repayment of any remaining
outstanding balance within twelve (12) months.

Residential service may be discontinued if:

1.

Final notice of intent to disconnect service is posted at the property at least
five (5) business days prior to the termination date where either of the
following has occurred:

a. Customer fails to comply and is at least sixty (60) days delinquent on the
amortization agreement, alternative payment schedule or deferred or

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 50 of 99

81



82

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S

reduced payment plan; or

b. Customer fails to pay current residential service charges for sixty (60)
days or more while participating in an amortization agreement, alternative
payment schedule, or a deferral or a reduction in payment plan for
delinquent charges.

9.5 At Customer’s Request

A Customer may have Domestic Water Service terminated by notifying the Agency at
least two (2) business days in advance of the desired date of termination and by paying
the charge as provided in Section 11.3. The Agency may require the notice to be in the
form of writing, either electronic or paper. The Monthly Service Charge will continue to
be assessed in accordance with Section 6.2. Domestic Water Service will only be
terminated during the Agency’s normal working hours and working days unless
approved by the Agency in advance.

9.6 Permanent Termination of Service

A Customer may have Domestic Water Service permanently terminated as provided for
in Sections 11.1.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 51 of 99



S

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

PART 10 - RESTORATION OF DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE

10.1

10.2

General Provisions

A Customer whose Domestic Water Service has been terminated may have it Restored
and must pay a restoration fee as set forth in Section 6.2.4. The Agency will endeavor to
make reconnections as soon as practicable, to suit the Customer’s convenience;
however, the Agency shall make the reconnection before the end of the next regular
working day following the Customer’s request and payment of any applicable
reconnection charges pursuant to Appendix A-8.

Unauthorized Restoration

No Person shall turn on water at the meter, once it has been shut off by the Agency, or
interfere with or remove a meter from any Service Connection.

If the Customer turns on the meter stop or permits or causes it to be turned on after it
has been turned off by the Agency, the Agency will again turn off the Domestic Water
Service Connection and remove the meter or seal the meter. An additional charge, as
provided in Appendix A-8, shall be collected before Domestic Water Service is Restored.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 52 of 99

83



S0

PART 11 — TURN ON AND TURN OFF PROCEDURES AND CHARGES

11.1

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Permanently Discontinue Water Service

A Customer must request that water service be discontinued permanently. Such a
request must be made by giving at least two working day’s advance notice to the
Agency. If such notice is not given, all charges applied to the Customer’s account will be
the sole responsibility of the current Customer until the Agency is notified, the account is
closed and the water service is either turned off or at which time a new Customer has
accepted responsibility by completing the necessary application forms as set forth in
Section 4.2. The Agency does not backdate any disconnection of water service.

Temporary Turn-off of Water Service “Emergency”

A Customer must request that the water service be turned off for any emergency that
causes water to flow from the meter or Customer’s property due to a water leak. Water
service that is turned off by any person other than Agency personnel or without Agency
authorization is prohibited and may be subject to fines or additional charges or fees.

Turn-off by the Agency

The Agency may disconnect a Customer's service for various reasons that are listed
below. Such involuntary disconnections are affected by turning off and locking the meter,
thereby stopping the water service; the Agency will make a reasonable attempt to notify
the Customer of disconnection in person or will place a disconnection notice on the
premises served by the disconnected meter prior to termination. Any disconnection by
the Agency shall result in a charge to the Customer, as provided in Section 6.2.3.

Reasons for involuntary disconnection include, but are not limited to, the following:
11.3.1 Non-Payment of Bills

A service may be disconnected for non-payment of periodic bills as specified in
the Residential Discontinuation Policy. Before a service is disconnected, the
Customer will be notified by an Overdue Notice as set forth in Sections 8.18.2. A
service may be disconnected for non-payment of bills of a Customer whether or
not the payment delinquency is associated with water service at that service
connection or at any other water service connection of that same Customer.

11.3.2 Non-Compliance with Rules
The Agency may discontinue service to any Customer for violation of the

Agency's rules and regulations after it has given the Customer at least five days'
written notice of such intention and the violation remains uncured. Where safety

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 53 of 99



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

11.3.3

11.3.4

11.3.5

11.3.6

of water supply is endangered, service may be discontinued immediately without
notice.

Water Waste

In order to protect against serious and or negligent water waste, the Agency may
at its discretion, temporarily turn off the water service to the property at which
said water waste is taking place as provided in Section 12.1. The Agency may
require any leaks or water waste practices to be remedied or the flow of water
mitigated prior to the reconnection of water service to the property as to not
promote or prolong any water waste event to the detriment of the Agency and its
Customers.

Upon reconnection of water service by any non-Agency personnel and the failure
of the Customer to correct any water waste event, the Customer's water service
shall be terminated. Service will be restored only after the water waste has been
remedied, and Customer has paid the reconnection charge as set forth in
Appendix A-8. Any damage caused by the temporary or permanent
disconnection of water service due to any serious and or negligent water waste
shall be the sole responsibility of the Customer.

Unsafe or Hazardous Conditions

The Agency may disconnect a service without notice if unsafe or hazardous
conditions are found to exist on the Customer's premises. The Agency will
immediately notify the Customer of the reasons and the necessary corrections
required before reconnection. Such unsafe or hazardous conditions may exist
due to defective appliances or equipment that may be detrimental to the
Customer, the Agency or to the Agency's other customers.

Fraudulent Use of Service

When the Agency has discovered that a Customer has obtained service by
fraudulent means, or has diverted the water service for unauthorized use, the
service to that Customer may be discontinued without notice. The Agency will not
restore service to such Customer until that Customer has complied with all
applicable rules and reasonable requirements of the Agency and the Agency has
been reimbursed for the full amount of the service rendered and the actual cost
to the Agency incurred by reason of the fraudulent use.

Emergency

The Agency has personnel on call twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a
week to assist Customer’s whose water service has previously been turned off

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 54 of 99

85



86

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020

Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors

&

DMS #18986

for an emergency. The Customer must contact the Agency to request that the
water service be turned back on to ensure that no damage occurs when turning
the water back on. Water service that is turned on by any person other than
Agency personnel or without Agency authorization is in violation of Section 10.2
and may be subject to fines or additional charges or fees.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020

55 of 99




S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

PART 12 - WATER EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION

12.1

12.2

General Provisions

Water efficiency and conservation are critical components in the Agency’s
comprehensive strategy for meeting current and future water needs to its Customers.
Water use regulations effectively reduce waste and fulfill regulatory requirements of the
Agency'’s applicable ordinances and the State of California as stated in EO-B-37.16,
Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life. As a condition of service,
Customers of the Agency must use water delivered through the Agency’s system in a
manner that promotes efficiency and avoids waste.

Wasteful Practices

12.2.1 Wasteful Practices

1.

2.

5.

Hosing off sidewalks, driveways, and other hardscapes;
Washing automobiles with hoses not equipped with a shut-off nozzle;
Using non-recirculated water in a fountain or other decorative water feature;

Watering lawns in a manner that causes runoff, or within 48 hours after
measurable precipitation; and

Irrigating ornamental turf on public street medians.

12.2.2 Enforcement Actions and Penalty Fees. If a customer commits any of the
Wasteful Practices, the Agency may take the following enforcement actions:

1.

4.

First Violation: A written courtesy notice or Door tag delivered to the
Customer along with water conservation material.

Second Violation. For a second complaint within six (6) calendar months of
the courtesy notice, a written warning in the form of a non-compliance,
corrective-action letter sent to the customer.

Third and Subsequent Violations. For a third violation, the Agency at its
discretion may charge a water waste penalty fee of $50.00 per day and
increase of $50.00 for each subsequent violation up to a maximum of
$500.00 per day.

Separate Violations. Each day a violation occurs is a separate violation.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 56 of 99

87



88

S0

12.3

12.4

12.5

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

12.2.3 Notices

All notices shall contain, in addition to the facts of the violation, a statement of the
possible penalties for the present violation for which the notice was written and
each subsequent violation, a statement of the anticipated date of the penalty, if
any, will be enacted for the present violation, and a statement informing the
customer of the customer’s right to a hearing on the violation.

12.2.4 Hearing

Any customer against whom a restriction or limitation is levied has the right to a
hearing and a right to appeal to the Board of Directors. Written request from
customer to the Agency must be received within fifteen (15) working days of the
date of notification of the violation. Enactments of the appropriate penalty shall
be deferred until the appeal is resolved.

12.2.5 Reservation of Rights

The rights of the Agency hereunder shall be cumulative to any other right of the
Agency to discontinue service. All monies collected by the Agency pursuant to
any of the penalty provisions of the chapter shall be deposited in the water
revenue fund as reimbursement for the Agency’s costs and expenses of
administering and enforcing this regulation.

Use of Water Saving Devices and Practices

Each Customer of the Agency is urged to install devices to reduce the quantity of water
to flush toilets and to reduce the flow rate of showers. Each Customer is further urged to
adopt such other water usage and re-usage practices and procedures as are feasible
and reasonable.

Use of Recycled Water

Where recycled water is available and, where consistent with applicable law, the
Customer shall use such recycled water for landscape irrigation and other non-potable
applications. Separate facilities shall be utilized for the transportation and delivery of
recycled water.

Rules and Regulations

The Agency may adopt such rules and regulations imposing restrictions on the use and
consumption of water as it may deem appropriate. Violation of Agency regulations
governing water conservation may result in termination of service, as provided in Section
9.1.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 57 of 99



S0

12.6

12.7

12.8

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Cross Connections

The Agency has a Cross-Connection Control Program (CCCP). The CCCP incorporates
such a plan and can be requested from the Agency.

Unlawful Acts

In order to protect public water supplies, certain acts are, by state law, misdemeanors
and in some instances, penalties are punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for
not more than one year or in the state prison. Among the more significant statutes
involving criminal acts with respect to water systems are:

12.7.1 CA Penal Code Section 498

It is a misdemeanor to tamper, divert, and make connection or reconnection to
any Agency meters, hydrants or facilities with intent to obtain for himself or
herself utility services without paying the full lawful charge and without the
authorization or consent of the utility.

12.7.2 CA Penal Code Section 624

Every person who willfully breaks, digs up, obstructs, or injures any pipe or main
for conducting water, or any works erected for supplying buildings with water, or
any appurtenances or appendages connected thereto, is guilty of a
misdemeanor.

12.7.3 CA Penal Code Section 625

Every person who, with intent to defraud or injure, opens or causes to be
opened, or draws water from any stopcock or faucet by which the flow of water is
controlled, after having been notified that the same has been closed or shut for
specific cause, by order of competent authority, is guilty of a misdemeanor.

12.7.4 CA Health and Safety Code Sections 4450 to 4457
Any act that leads to the pollution of any conduit or reservoir.
Fire Hydrant Damage
When any person, company, or agency is determined to be the responsible party that
has caused damage of a fire hydrant or blow off valve, the Agency may charge that party

with all costs necessary to repair the damages and the cost of water loss computed on
basis of duration of flow and flow rate.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 58 of 99

89



S0

12.9

12.10

12.11

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Private Fire Protection Service

All facilities utilized by the Customer in providing private fire protection to the premises
are the property of the Customer, who shall be responsible for the costs of installation,
repair and maintenance of the private fire protection system.

Use and Testing

Upon prior written request and approval of the Agency, the Customer may test the
system at no cost. Testing a private fire protection system without prior Agency approval
constitutes Unauthorized Water Use and shall result in a fine as provided in Section
6.2.10.

There shall be no water used through the private fire protection system, except to
extinguish fires and for testing.

12.10.1 No Connection to Other System

There shall be no connection between the private fire protection system and
any other water distribution system on the premises.

12.10.2 Rates

The monthly charge depends on the size of the detector check, as set forth in
Appendix A-2. Allowable uses are for testing with prior Agency approval, or to
fight a fire, which has been reported to the fire department.

For testing, consumption charges are waived. No charge will be made for water
used to fight a fire.

12.10.3 Water for Fire Storage Tanks

Occasionally, water may be obtained from a private fire protection system to fill
a storage tank that is part of the fire protection system, but only with prior
written authorization from the Agency and only where an approved means of
measuring the flow quantities is available. Water so used will be billed at
regular service rates.

Water Leak Adjustment Policy
Occasionally, the Agency is asked to adjust a customer’s bill because of high water

consumption on the customer’s side of the meter due to unanticipated water leakage.
The primary responsibility to maintain and monitor water use, plumbing, and security

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 59 of 99



S

12.12

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 60 of 99

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

from vandalism belongs to the customer or property owner with respect to water on the
customer’s side of the meter.

As set forth in Section 8.15, excessive water use due to leaks may qualify for a leak
adjustment. This is an effort to relieve the customer from the rare occurrence of those
leaks uncommon or catastrophic in nature and beyond the control of the customer.
Definitions of a verified adjustment and reporting process are presented in Section
8.15.1.

This policy may be amended from time to time by action of the Board of Directors.
Identity Theft Prevention Policy

The Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”), as part of the implementation of the Fair and
Accurate Credit Transaction (FACT) Act of 2003, requires financial institutions and
creditors holding consumer or other covered accounts to develop and implement a
written Identity Theft Prevention Program which provide for detection of and response to
specific activities (“Red Flags”) which could be related to identity theft.

The Agency staff will review the effectiveness of this policy annually, document any
significant incidents involving identity theft and actions taken and include
recommendations for material changes to the program.

91



S0

PART 13 — CONDITIONS OF DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

13.1  General Provisions

13.1.1

13.1.2

13.1.3

Maintenance of Domestic Water Service

The Agency will exercise reasonable diligence and care to furnish and deliver a
continuous and sufficient supply of water to the Customer and to avoid any
shortage or interruption of delivery of same. The Agency is not liable for
interruption, shortage, insufficiency of supply or any loss or damage occasioned
thereby, if same is caused by accident, act of God, fire, strike, riot, war or any
other cause not within its control.

Suspension of Domestic Water Service

The Agency, whenever it finds it necessary for the purpose of making repairs or
improvements to the Water System, may suspend Domestic Water Service
temporarily. This temporary suspension of service will inactivate a fire
suppression system that is provided water through the Customer’s service
connection. In all such cases, a reasonable notice thereof, as circumstances will
permit, will be given to the Customer. The making of such repairs or
improvements will be done as rapidly as practicable and, if practicable, at such
times as will cause the least inconvenience to the Customers.

Pressure

The Agency attempts to operate the Domestic Water System within a static
pressure range between forty (40) to one hundred fifty (150) pounds per square
inch (psi). However, there are times and areas where static water pressure is
outside this range. Applicants connecting to the Domestic Water System in an
area with a static water pressure below sixty (60) psi will be required to execute a
Low-Pressure Agreement. If the static water pressure exceeds eighty (80) psi,
an individual pressure regulating valve is required on the Customer Service Line
as required by the Uniform Plumbing Code.

The Agency assumes no obligation to deliver water to elevations higher than its
existing facilities serve. Where Properties are situated at such an elevation that
the Applicant cannot be assured of a dependable supply from the Domestic
Water System and/or the desired rates of flow and/or pressure required by the
particular operation to be conducted on the Property cannot be assured by the
Agency, the Applicant, in consideration of Agency approval of a Service
Connection, accepts such Domestic Water Service as the Agency is able to
render from its Water System. The Applicant agrees to construct, if necessary,
and maintain at its sole expense on its Property a tank and/or a booster pump of

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 61 of 99



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

13.1.4

13.1.5

13.1.6

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

sufficient capacity to furnish an auxiliary supply of water at such times as
pressure in the Domestic Water System may be insufficient to supply the
Property with water. In addition, a backflow prevention device may be required in
accordance with the Agency’s Cross Connection Control Plan. The Applicant will
be required to execute a written release to the Agency for all claims for failure to
furnish an adequate water supply.

Due to topography, and other causes, the water pressure is not uniform over the
Agency’s Service Area. The installation of new Domestic Water Infrastructure
and/or modifications to the Water System operation, may result in water pressure
changes to various areas within the Service Area. The Agency will attempt to
maintain adequate pressure and/or flow at all existing Service Connections;
however, Customers dependent upon a continuous water supply shall provide
adequate storage for emergencies and to prevent damage, at their sole expense,
if required by the Agency.

Responsibility

The Agency owns, operates and maintains the Service Connection, up to and
including the meter. The Property Owner is responsible for the Customer Service
Line after the meter.

The Agency is not responsible for the delivery of water through private pipelines
or any damage resulting from the operation of same.

Liability

The Customer waives any and all claims of any nature against the Agency,
except those related to gross negligence on the part of the Agency and releases
the Agency from any liability for damage to the Customer’s system, Property and
appliances from any cause whatsoever not resulting from gross negligence on
the part of the Agency. The Customer further waives any and all claims of any
nature against the Agency and releases the Agency from any liability for losses
or damage to the Property receiving Domestic Water Service, which may involve
quantity, quality, foreign material, time or occasion of the delivery of domestic
water by the Agency.

Damage to Meter by Hot Water

The Customer shall be liable for damage to the meter caused by hot water from
the Property. The deformation or warp of a disc or a registered figured disc of
any meter shall be held to be prima facie evidence of such damage having been
caused by the action of heat. Should such damage occur, the Customer will be
notified to correct the plumbing conditions causing such damage and will be

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 62 of 99

93



S0

13.2

13.3

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

charged for the cost of repairs to the meter. Should the condition not be
corrected, and the meter repair bill not paid within ten (10) days after notice,
Domestic Water Service to the Property may be terminated and Domestic Water
Service will not be Restored until the bill is paid, together with a charge for
restoration of service, as provided for in Section 10.1.

13.1.7 Transfer of Meters

No Person shall transfer or move a meter to a new location without Agency
authorization once it has been installed by the Agency at any Service
Connection. Such transfer or removal will constitute an unauthorized connection
or installation. The Customer is responsible for loss or damage to a meter from
the time it is installed until it is removed by the Agency. Any Person who is
determined by Agency staff to have violated the provisions of this section shall be
subject to a penalty as provided in Appendix A-10; Domestic Water Service may
be terminated, Agency facilities removed or locked off and the Agency may also
file a civil action to recover damages as authorized by Water Code Sections
31080 and 31102.

Change in Water Usage

A Customer making any change to a Property that may result in a material increase of
water demand originally described on the Domestic Water Service application shall
immediately give the Agency a written notice of the nature of the change. Any such
changes must then be approved by the Agency and/or modifications must be made at
the Owner’s expense and in conformance with Agency requirements. Failure to notify
the Agency of such change or failure to comply with these regulations is considered an
unauthorized use of domestic water and shall result in costs and penalties as provided
for in Appendix A-10.

Communication
13.3.1 To Customer

Nonemergency notifications from the Agency to a Customer will normally be
given by telephone or in writing and either mailed or delivered to the street
address described in the application for service. In cases where the Property
Owner has authorized another party, such as a Tenant, to be billed, the Agency
will also provide a copy of the notice to the Property Owner, at its request, as
provided in Section 8.4.

Emergency natifications for small service areas including schools, hospitals,
health care centers, day care centers, convalescent homes and other critical
facilities will be accomplished by door-to-door contact, email, phone calls and

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 63 of 99



S0

13.4

13.5

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

13.3.2

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

door hangers using available domestic water, water service and water quality
personnel and the billing information available to the Agency from the Customer’s
application form. Notification in the affected service area(s) will be completed
within twenty-four (24) hours of being directed by the County Department of
Public Health (CDPH).

Emergency notifications for large service areas including schools, hospitals,
health care centers, day care centers, convalescent homes and other critical
facilities will be performed through electronic communication. Agency Resources
personnel will conduct a press conference where a notice by CDPH will be
furnished to the news media. This includes all radio and television stations
broadcasting in the area and all local and general area newspapers. Notification
in the affected service area(s) will be completed within twenty-four (24) hours of
being directed by the CDPH.

A map of the affected service area will be on display at the press conference and
distributed to the media and to special telephone answering personnel who
accept calls and answer questions from consumers twenty-four (24) hours a day.
In addition, the map of the affected service area will be posted on the Agency’s
website.

To Agency

Nonemergency notifications from the Customer to the Agency may be given and
accepted by any appropriate means of delivery, including but not limited to,
electronically, by phone call, by mail or in person.

Customers shall contact the Agency’s twenty-four-hour (24-hour) emergency
operators at (661) 294-0828 to request immediate assistance.

Conflict with Agency Domestic Water Infrastructure

Any Person making improvements or changes to its Property which may interfere with
Agency easement rights, endanger Domestic Water Infrastructure or cause additional
funds to be expended on operation and maintenance, shall be approved by the Agency.

Resale of Water

No Person shall enter into any contract or agreement to resell domestic water it receives
from the Agency. No Person shall deliver or cause to be delivered domestic water
acquired from the Agency, to any Property other than that described in the application
for Domestic Water Service. Discovery of such action by the Agency may be cause for
immediate termination of service without additional notification.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 64 of 99

95



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S0

13.6  Unauthorized Use of Domestic Water or the Water System

The actions listed below are prohibited by these Regulations; penalties are provided for
in Appendix A-10. Unpaid penalties shall be included on the Customer’s bill and will be
due and payable before Domestic Water Service will be restored. The Property Owner is
liable for payment of all unpaid bills, costs, loss, damage, penalties, charges, or fees
regardless of user or use associated with the Unauthorized Use of Domestic Water or
the Water System.

13.6.1 To operate or attempt to operate a public or private fire hydrant or detector
check, except for the suppression of fire or except when a permit for a
Temporary Service Connection is issued, as provided for in Section 14.3.

13.6.2 To cause or permit the waste of water from the Water System or to maintain or
cause or permit to be maintained any leaky outlets, apparatus or plumbing
fixtures through which water is permitted to waste including, but not limited to,
detector checks.

13.6.3 To use water for washing sidewalks and driveways in a manner that prevents the
usual and customary use of public streets and sidewalks by others.

13.6.4 To permit water sprinklers to spray onto sidewalks and streets or to permit water
to run from the Customer’s Property onto public sidewalks and streets in such a
manner as to cause risk and/or damage to the public or to public and private
Property.

13.6.5 To cause or permit the waste of water by operating any equipment that uses
water in a “single pass” operation. Examples of this use include, but are not
limited to, water cooled equipment (i.e. refrigerators, freezers, ice machines,
chillers, cooling towers, air conditioners, heat exchangers, ice cream dispensers,
yogurt dispensers and precoolers) and commercial vehicle washes (i.e. car
and/or truck washes).

13.6.6 To change or alter the original intended use of the meter and what it serves.

In addition to assessing penalties provided for in Appendix A-10, the Agency may
seek criminal prosecution, as authorized by Section 498 of the California Penal
Code for which any Person who, with intent to obtain for himself or herself
Domestic Water Service without paying the full lawful charge therefor, or with
intent to enable another Person to do so, or with intent to deprive the Agency of
any part of the full lawful charge for Domestic Water Service it provides, commits,
authorizes, solicits, aids or abets any of the following:

1. Divert or causes to be diverted Domestic Water Service, by any means.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 65 of 99

96



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

“ Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

2. Prevents any Domestic Water Service meter, or other device used in
determining the charge for Domestic Water Services, from accurately
performing its measuring function by tampering or by any other means.

3. Tampers with any Property owned by or used by the Agency to provide
Domestic Water Service.

4. Makes or causes to be made any connection with or reconnection with
Property owned or used by the Agency to provide Domestic Water Service
without the authorization or consent of the Agency.

5. Uses or owns the property that receives the direct benefit of all or a portion of
Domestic Water Service and/or has knowledge or reason to believe that the
diversion, tampering, or unauthorized connection existed at the time of that
use, or that the use or receipt was otherwise without the authorization or
consent of the Agency.

Furthermore, the Agency may seek criminal prosecution for the presence of
any of the following objects, circumstances or conditions on Property
controlled by the Customer or by the Person using or receiving the direct
benefit of all or a portion of Domestic Water Service obtained in violation of
Section 498 of the California Penal Code shall permit an inference that the
Customer or Person intended to and did violate Section 498 of the California
Penal Code:

a. Any instrument, apparatus or device primarily designed to be used to
obtain Domestic Water Service without paying the full lawful charge
therefor.

b. Any meter that has been altered, tampered with or bypassed so as to
cause no measurement or inaccurate measurement of Domestic Water
Service.

13.7 Ground Wire Attachment
Any Person is liable for any damage to the Water System or Agency personnel which
may be occasioned by the attachment of any ground wire or wires to any plumbing
which is or may be connected to the Water System.

13.8 Unused Service Connection
A Permanent Service Connection which has been inactive for a period of one hundred
eighty (180) consecutive days may be considered unused and the meter may be

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 66 of 99



S0

13.9

13.10

13.11

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

removed by the Agency. Thereafter, any Person desiring service for the Property, or any
portion thereof, formerly supplied by such inactive Service Connection shall make
application for Domestic Water Service. In cases where the Agency has removed the
meter from the Property, the Applicant will be required to pay the applicable charge for a
permanent Service Connection installation. In cases where the meter has not been
removed from the Property, the Applicant will be required to pay the current charge for
Restoration of service as provided for in Section 10.1.

Quick Closing Valve
13.9.1 Operating Conditions

No Person shall install or use a quick closing valve or other device when such
valve or device during its operation causes a water hammer or an abrupt change
of pressure in the Water System. When such a condition exists, the Customer will
be required to discontinue use of such valve or device immediately upon
notification by the Agency and may be liable for costs to repair any damage
caused to the Agency’s Domestic Water Service Infrastructure.

13.9.2 Notice of Correction

If the notice of correction of such condition is not complied with, service will be
discontinued until the correction is made by a proper installation to eliminate all
such water hammer or abrupt change of pressure.

Responsibility for Equipment

The Customer shall, at its own risk and expense, furnish, install and keep in good and
safe condition all of the equipment on the Customer’s side of the meter that may be
required for receiving, controlling, applying and utilizing water. The Agency is not
responsible for any loss or damage caused by improper installation of such equipment,
negligence, want of proper care or wrongful act of the Customer or of any of its Tenants,
agents, employees, contractors, licensees or permittee in installing or maintaining, using,
operating or interfering with such equipment. The Agency is not responsible for damage
to Property caused by spigots, faucets, valves and other equipment that are open when
water is turned on at the meter.

Damage

Any Person who is determined by Agency staff to have violated the provisions of this
section shall be subject to a penalty as provided in Appendix A-12, Domestic Water
Service may be terminated, Agency facilities removed or locked off and the Agency may
also file a civil action to recover damages as authorized by Water Code Sections 31080
and 31102.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 67 of 99



S0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Part 14 - Private Fire Protection Service Connection and Residential Fire Sprinkler
System

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

General Provisions

When a Private Fire Protection Service Connection (PFPSC) is installed, the control
valve will be left closed and sealed until a written order to tum on the water is received
from the Property Owner. The Agency is not liable for damage of any kind or for any
reason that may occur on or to the Property served.

Special Provisions
14.2.1 PFPSC

For all PFPSC sizes, a double check detector assembly, or required pressure
detector assembly must be installed in accordance with the Agency's Cross
Connection Control Plan.

14.2.2 PFPSC Charges

The Agency's charges for a PFPSC, as noted in this Section, are set out in
Appendix A-2.

Authorized Purpose

A PFPSC shall be used for no other purpose than for the discharge of water in case of
fire. Except for PFPSC installed in accordance with Section 14.2, water for firefighting
purposes will be provided without charge in amounts as required.

Inspection and Tests

Agency employees have the right to enter the Property to make investigations and tests
of the PFPSC. The Customer, or its designated representative, shall accompany the
Agency employee(s) during such inspections and tests.

The Customer shall be responsible to conduct inspections and tests of its private fire
protection system.

Option to Bill

If the Agency determines that a PFPSC is being used for purposes other than fire
extinguishing or the testing of the fire line, the Agency will send a warning letter to the
Owner of the PFPSC. If, after thirty (30) days from the date the notice is sent, the
unauthorized use continues, the Owner of the PFPSC shall be subject to a penalty as

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 68 of 99

99



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

“ Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

provided in Appendix A-10 and service may be terminated, and Agency facilities
removed or locked off. The Agency may also file a civil action to recover damages as
authorized by Water Code Sections 31080 and 31102. The General Manager may waive
this penalty based upon good cause arising from the circumstances involved.

14.6 Termination of Service
14.6.1 PFPSC -Larger Than Two-inch (2-inch)

If water is used for purposes other than permitted herein, the Agency may
terminate the PFPSC or may install a domestic or fire flow meter at the
Customer's expense, and thereafter, the service shall be classified as a
Permanent Service Connection and will be billed at the prevailing charge as
provided in Section 6.2. The Agency is not liable for damage which may result
from said termination of service.

14.6.2 PFPSC -Two-inch (2-inch) or Less
1. Installed in Accordance with Section 14.2.1

The Agency may terminate service in accordance with Section 11.3,
Termination of Service. The Agency is not liable for damage which may result
from said termination of service.
If water is used for purposes other than permitted herein, the Agency may
terminate the PFPSC, or the service shall be classified as a Permanent
Service Connection and will be billed at the prevailing charge as provided in
Section 6.2.

The Agency is not liable for damage which may result from said termination
of service.

14.7 Residential Fire Sprinkler System

Effective January 1, 2011, Residential Fire Sprinklers are required by California
Residential Code, Title 24, Part 2.5 for new construction.

14.7.1 General Provisions
A single Permanent Service Connection shall provide water service for both the
domestic water and residential fire sprinkler portions of the Customer Service
Line. The customer will provide the Agency with the required domestic water and

residential fire sprinkler water demands and minimum pressures at the time of
application for service. The Permanent Service Connection will be sized to meet

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 69 of 99

100



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

these demands and pressure requirements.

&

14.7.2 Special Provisions

A reduced pressure backflow device will be required when the premise is also
served by a non-potable water source.

14.7.3 Termination of Service
The Agency may terminate service in accordance with Section 11.3, Termination

of Service. The Agency is not liable for damage which may result from said
termination of service.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 70 of 99

101



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
’ V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

“ Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Part 15 — Cross-Connection Control Plan
15.1  General Provisions

The Agency has developed a Cross-Connection Control Plan (CCCP) to protect the
potable water supply against actual or potential Cross Connections by isolating, within
the Property, contamination or pollution that may occur because of undiscovered or
unauthorized Cross Connection on the Property. The provisions set forth in the CCCP
are in accordance with Titles 17 and 22 of the California Code of Regulations.

The provisions set forth the CCCP shall be in addition to and not in lieu of the controls
and requirements of other provisions of these Regulations or of other regulatory
agencies, such as local governmental agencies and local and State Health Departments
but may report same to other appropriated agencies if discovered: The Agency is not
responsible for abatement of Cross Connections which may exist within the Customer's
Property.

The Agency has developed an active Cross-Connection Control Plan with a certified
Cross Connection Control program coordinator to administer the program. Any questions

or notifications regarding Cross Connections shall be directed to the Agency’s CCCP
and its Cross-Connection Control coordinator.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 71 of 99

102



S0

Part 16 - Enforcement and Appeals

16.1

16.2

16.3

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

General Provisions

Any Person found to be violating any provision of these Rules and Regulations or the
terms and conditions of the Applicant’s service agreement, permit or any and all
applicable federal, state, or local statutes, regulations, ordinances or other requirement
shall be served by the Agency with written notice that 1) states the nature of the
violation, 2) provides a time limit to correct and 3) refers to Sections 8.14 and 9.2 of
these Regulations, and to the Residential Discontinuation Policy, where applicable, as
describing the hearing and appeals procedures for customers wishing to contest a notice
of violation.

Corrective Action

The Customer shall, within the time limit stated in such notice, permanently correct the
violation. Failure to do so within the time stated may result in termination of Domestic
Water Service by the Agency as provided for in Section 11.3.

The Agency has the right to terminate Domestic Water Service immediately if the
violation impacts the Agency’s obligation to protect public health.

Domestic Water Service will not be Restored until such conditions or defects are
corrected. A charge will be made for the restoration of service as provided for in Section
10.1.

Appeals (other than appeals relating to the discontinuation of Domestic Water Service
for non-payment, which shall be governed by the provisions of Section IV of the
Residential Discontinuation Policy)

16.3.1 Hearing and Administrative Procedures

A customer may appeal a decision, enforcement of a policy or procedure, rate,
fee, charge, or penalty by submitting a written appeal to the General Manager of
the Agency. However, the appeal rights set forth in this Section shall not apply to
termination of service for non- payment of a domestic water bill. An appeal must
be made in writing and submitted to the General Manager within five (5) business
days of the effective date of service termination, or within thirty (30) days of the
effective date of any other enforcement action or decision. Any such appeal shall
include the specific decision, policy, procedure, rate, charge, or penalty being
challenged, a detailed description regarding the nature of the challenge,
evidence supporting the challenge, and the remedy requested.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 72 of 99

103



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

e

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

The hearing on the Customer’s appeal will be conducted by the Agency's
General Manager, or his or her designated representative. The hearing shall be
held as soon as reasonably possible. If service has been terminated, reasonable
efforts should be made to hold the hearing within five (5) business days of receipt
of the written appeal and the Customer shall be promptly notified of the date,
time and place of the hearing. At the hearing, the Customer shall be given a
reasonable opportunity to present information in support of the Customer's
appeal. Agency staff will be given the opportunity to reply.

Absent extenuating circumstances, written notice of the decision by the General
Manager, or his or her designated representative, should be given to the
Customer within five (5) business days of the close of the hearing. The decision
by the General Manager, or his or her designated representative, will be final.

A failure to file a timely appeal in accordance with this Section shall be deemed a
waiver of the right to appeal and will be considered a failure to exhaust
administrative remedies which may impact any attempt by the Customer for any
judicial review.

16.4 Enforcement

In the event a Customer submits an appeal under the procedures set forth in Section
16.3 above, enforcement of the violation shall be suspended until written notice of the
decision by the General Manager or his or her designated representative has been
submitted to the Customer. The notice of the decision shall be deemed to be submitted
to the Customer upon the Agency depositing it in the U.S. mail. Termination for
nonpayment of a water bill is not subject to appeal under these provisions and as a
result, such enforcement will not be suspended.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 73 of 99

104



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Part 17 - Validity

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

17.1  Validity

If any portion of these Regulations or the application thereof to any Person or
circumstance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of these Regulations or the application of
such provision to other Persons or circumstances.

The Board hereby declares that in the event that a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that any provision of these Regulations to be unconstitutional or otherwise
invalid, it would nevertheless have adopted the remaining provisions.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 74 of 99

105



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
‘ S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Appendix A-1 - Charges

A-1 General Provisions
The charges applicable to Domestic Water Service are listed in the following
appendices. Reference to the applicable part, section, or subsection of these
Regulations is included.
The charges set forth in this part are hereby established and fixed. In accordance with
Section 53750(h)(2)(b) of the California Government Code and subject to approval of the

Board of Directors, the Agency may institute an increase or decrease of any charges
listed in the following appendices.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 75 of 99

106



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Effective Date: February 2020
DMS #18986

Approval Date: February 2020

»\)SCV

=¥ WATER

Appendix A-2 - Permanent Service Connection Monthly Service Charge

Approved By: Board of Directors

The Monthly Service Charge for a Permanent Service Connection is assessed on a monthly
basis. See adopted rate reports by Division for additional information.

Table A-2 Effective January 1, 2020

Meter Size Newhall Water |Santa Clarita Water| Valencia Water
(inches) Division Division Division
5/8 x 3/4 N/A $ 2232 $ 16.81
3/4 $ 16.14 $ 30.28 $ 25.22
1 $ 26.96 $ 46.16 $ 4203
11/2 $ 53.75 $ 85.90 $ 84.06
2 $ 86.04 $ 133.56 $ 134.50
21/2 $ 129.13 N/A N/A
3 $ 161.42 $ 260.72 $ 252.19
4 $ 269.08 $ 403.74 $ 420.31
6 $ 538.00 $ 801.04 $ 840.63
8 $ 860.84 $1,277.81 $1,345.00
10 $1,237.58 N/A $1,933.44
12 N/A| N/A $2,774.07
14 N/A N/A $3,782.82

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

February 2020



108

S

Appendix A-3 — Special Fire Monthly Service Charge

SCV

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020

Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors

DMS #18986

The Monthly Service Charge for a Special Fire Service is assessed on a monthly basis. See
adopted rate reports by Division for additional information.

Table A-3 Effective January 1, 2020

Meter Size Newhall Water |Santa Clarita Water| Valencia Water

(inches) Division Division Division
1 N/A $ 3.08 N/A
2 $ 2297 $ 6.15 $ 8.36
4 $ 73.78 $ 1228 $ 16.72
6 $ 139.55 $ 18.41 $ 25.08
8 $ 218.31 $ 2454 $ 33.44
10 N/A $ 30.66 $ 41.80
12 N/A $ 36.79 $ 50.16
14 N/A $ 4292 $ 58.52
16 N/A $ 49.05 N/A
18 N/A $ 55.18 N/A
20 N/A $ 61.30 N/A

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

February 2020

77 of 99




POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

&

Appendix A-4 - Temporary Service Connection Monthly Service Charge

The Monthly Service Charge for a Temporary Service Connection is assessed on a monthly
basis. See adopted rate reports by Division for additional information.

Table A-4
Temporary Connection
From a Fire Hydrant Nelesha_ll _Water Santa Qla_lri_ta Water VaIen_ci_a_Water
ivision Division Division
2% -3inch $ 129.13 $ 26072 $ 25219
6 inch $ 538.00 $ 801.04 N/A
Jumper
3/4 inch $ 24.00 N/A $ 34.42*
1 inch N/A $ 56.11* $ 51.23*
*includes 5 billing units

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 78 of 99

109



110

S

Appendix A-5 - Permanent Service Connection Consumption Charge

SCV

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020

Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors

DMS #18986

The Consumption Charge is quantitative and assessed on a monthly basis per unit of water
(748 gallons). See adopted rate reports by Division for additional information.

Table A-5 Effective January 1, 2020

Newhall Water | Santa Clarita Water Valencia Water
Division Division Division
Domestic Water Supply
per Billing Unit $ 2.8542 $ 1.99 $ 1.839
Recycled Water per
Billing Unit N/A N/A $ 1.577
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 79 of 99




SCV

WATER

S

Appendix A-6 - Temporary Service Connection Consumption Charge

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020

Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors

DMS #18986

The Consumption Charge is quantitative and assessed on a monthly basis. See adopted rate
reports by Division for additional information.

Table A-6 Effective January 1, 2020

Newhall Water Santa Clarita Water Valencia Water
Division Division Division
Domestic Water Supply
oer Billing Unit $ 2.8542 $ 1.99 $ 1.839
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 80 of 99

M



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

&

Appendix A-7 - Temporary Service Connection Installation Charge

The Temporary Service Connection charge is assessed on a one-time basis and payment is
required prior to the Agency providing Domestic Water Service.

The cost to relocate an existing Temporary Service Connection is listed below.

Table A-7
Deposit by Meter Size
Installation Type i
2 %-3inch 6inch
From a Fire Hydrant (Meter
Only) $ 1,200.00 $ 1,500.00
Fire Hydrant (Billing Deposit) $ 500.00 $  500.00

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 81 0f 99

112



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S

Appendix A-8 Restoration or Reconnection of Service Fee

The Restoration or Reconnection of Service fee is assessed on a one-time basis and payment
is required prior to the Agency reactivating Domestic Water Service. In addition, all other

outstanding charges must be paid in full prior to reactivation. Charges described below are only
applicable to existing Customers.

Table A-8

Restoration Time Description Amount
Standard Next Day Restoration (during normal Agency business hours) $ 30.00
Express Restoration (after normal Agency business hours) $ 70.00
Agency observed holidays $ 90.00

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 82 0f 99

113



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

&

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Appendix A-9 Fire Flow Test Charge

The Fire Flow Test charge is assessed at the time of request by any person and payment is
required prior to the Agency performing the test.

Table A-9
Fire Flow Test Amount
All locations $ 175.00
CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 83 of 99

114



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S

Appendix A-10 - Penalties for Unauthorized Use of the Agency's Domestic Water System

Table A-10

Description of Unauthorized Use Penalty Charge
Unauthorized Installation/Connection/Use Penalty $ 1,000 each offense
Unauthorized use of a Private Fire Protection Service $ 1,000 each offense
Connection ’

Cutting Agency lock or bypassing meter $ 50.00

Damage to meter, pipeline, tank, well site :
or other component of the Domestic Water Service $525-8V(:1 @Liﬁgﬁlscofga?; rrepalr,
Infrastructure g

Broken meter stop/shut off valve $ 300.00

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 84 of 99

115



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

&

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Appendix A-11 - Domestic Water Service Application Fee and Deposit

Domestic Water Service Application Fee and Deposit (when required®).

Table A-11

Account Description Deposit Amount
Fee $ 20.00
Deposit* 3-months average usage

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 85 0f 99

116



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S

Appendix A-12 - Domestic Water Service Miscellaneous Fees

Table A-12

Fee Description Amount

Returned Payment Fee $ 35.00

Late Fee — Overdue Notice generated $ 25.00

Disconnection Fee $ 30.00

Out of Agency Fee To Be Determined

Meter Test Fee* $112.00

Pulled Meter Fee Actual cost to Agency

Turn off at Main Actual cost to Agency

Property Damage Actual cost éeeéﬁ:;\gy plus 10%

Unread Meter Fee $ 200.00

$50.00/day — Additional

Water Waste Penalty Fee $50.00/day for each subsequent

violation up to a max of $500.00

*No charge if meter is inaccurate

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 86 of 99

117



118

S0

Appendix A-13 — Policy on Discontinuation of Residential Water Service for Non-Payment

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Notwithstanding any other policy or rule, this Policy on Discontinuation of Residential Water
Service for Non-Payment shall apply to the discontinuation of residential water service for non-
payment under the provisions set forth herein. In the event of any conflict between this Policy
and any other policy or rule, this Policy shall prevail.

Application of Policy; Contact Telephone Number: This policy shall apply
only to residential water service for non-payment and all existing policies and
procedures shall continue to apply to commercial and industrial water service
accounts. Further assistance concerning the payment of water bills and the
potential establishment of the alternatives set forth in this policy to avoid
discontinuation of service can be obtained by calling (661) 294-0828.

Discontinuation of Residential Water Service for Non-Payment:

A.

Rendering and Payment of Bills: Bills for water service will be rendered
to each consumer on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided for in the
rate schedules. Bills for service are due and payable on the third (3rd)
day after generation, as signified by the date on the bill (the “Due Date”)
and become overdue and subject to discontinuation of service if not paid
within sixty (60) days after the Due Date. Payment may be made at the
office or to any representative authorized to make collections. However,
it is the consumer’s responsibility to assure that payments are received at
the specified location in a timely manner. Partial payments are not
authorized unless prior approval has been received. Bills will be
computed as follows:

1. Meters will be read at regular intervals for the preparation of periodic
bills and as required for the preparation of opening bills, closing bills,
and special bills.

2. Bills for metered service will show the meter reading for the current
and previous meter reading period for which the bill is rendered, the
number of units, date, and days of service for the current meter
reading.

3. Billings shall be paid in legal tender of the United States of America.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Supplier shall have the right to
refuse any payment of such billings in coin.

Overdue Bills: The following rules apply to consumers whose bills remain

unpaid for more than sixty (60) days after the Due Date:

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 87 of 99



S0

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

SCV

WATER

1.

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Overdue Notice: If payment for a bill rendered is not made on or
before the forty-fifth (45") day following the bill generation date, a
notice of overdue payment (the “Overdue Notice”) will be mailed to the
water service consumer at least seven (7) business days prior to the
possible discontinuation of service date identified in the Overdue
Notice. For purposes of this policy, the term “business days” shall
refer to any days on which the Supplier’s office is open for business.
If the consumer’s address is not the address of the property to which
the service is provided, the Overdue Notice must also be sent to the
address of the property served, addressed to “Occupant.” The
Overdue Notice must contain the following:

a. Consumer’s name and address;

b. Amount of delinquency;

c. Date by which payment or arrangement for payment must be
made in order to avoid discontinuation of service;

d. Description of the process to apply for an extension of time to pay
the amount owing (see Section llI(D), below);

e. Description of the procedure to petition for review and appeal of
the bill giving rise to the delinquency (see Section 1V, below); and

f. Description of the procedure by which the consumer can request a
deferred, amortized, reduced or alternative payment schedule
(see Section lll, below).

The Supplier may alternatively provide notice to the consumer of the
impending discontinuation of service by telephone. If that notice is
provided by telephone, the Supplier shall offer to provide the
consumer with a copy of this policy and also offer to discuss with the
consumer the options for alternative payments, as described in
Section Ill, below, and the procedures for review and appeal of the
consumer’s bill, as described in Section IV, below.

Unable to Contact Consumer: If the Supplier is not able to contact the
consumer by written notice (e.g., a mailed notice is returned as
undeliverable) or by telephone, the Supplier will make a good faith
effort to visit the residence and leave, or make other arrangements to
place in a conspicuous location, a notice of imminent discontinuation
of service for non-payment, and a copy of this Policy.

Late Charge: A Late Charge, as specified in the Supplier's schedule
of fees and charges, shall be assessed and added to the outstanding
balance on the consumer’s account if the amount owing on that
account is not paid before the Overdue Notice is generated.

February 2020 88 of 99

119



y SLV

%‘ WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Turn-Off Deadline: Payment for water service charges must be
received in the Supplier’s offices no later than 4:30 p.m. on the date
specified in the Overdue Notice. Postmarks are not acceptable.

Notification of Returned Check: Upon receipt of a returned check
rendered as remittance for water service or other charges, the
Supplier will consider the account not paid. The Supplier will attempt
to notify the consumer in person or by mail and provide a notice of
termination of water service to the premises. Water service will be
disconnected if the amount of the returned check and returned check
charge are not paid by the due date specified on the notice, which due
date shall not be sooner than the date specified in the Overdue
Notice; or if an Overdue Notice had not been previously provided, no
sooner than the sixtieth (60™) day after the Due Date of the bill for
which payment by the returned check had been made. To redeem a
returned check and to pay a returned check charge, all amounts
owing must be paid by cash or certified funds.

Returned Check Tendered as Payment for Water Service
Disconnected for Nonpayment:

a. If the check tendered and accepted as payment which resulted in
restoring service to an account that had been disconnected for
nonpayment is returned as non-negotiable, the Supplier may
disconnect said water service upon at least three (3) calendar
days’ written notice. The consumer’s account may only be
reinstated by receipt of outstanding charges in the form of cash or
certified funds. Once the consumer’s account has been
reinstated, the account will be flagged for a one-year period
indicating the fact that a non-negotiable check was issued by the
consumer.

b. If at any time during the one-year period described above, the
consumer’s account is again disconnected for nonpayment, the
Supplier may require the consumer to pay cash or certified funds
to have that water service restored.

C. Conditions Prohibiting Discontinuation: The Supplier shall not discontinue

residential water service if all of the following conditions are met:

1.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

120

Health Conditions — The consumer or tenant of the consumer submits
certification of a primary care provider that discontinuation of water
service would (i) be life threatening, or (ii) pose a serious threat to the
health and safety of a person residing at the property;

February 2020 89 of 99



S0

SCV

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

2. Financial Inability — The consumer demonstrates he or she is
financially unable to pay for water service within the water system’s
normal billing cycle. The consumer is deemed “financially unable to
pay” if any member of the consumer’s household is: (i) a current
recipient of the following benefits: CalWORKS, CalFresh, general
assistance, Medi-Cal, SSI/State Supplementary Payment Program or
California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants
and Children; or (ii) the consumer declares the household’s annual
income is less than 200% of the federal poverty level (see this link for
the federal poverty levels applicable in California:
https://www.healthforcalifornia.com/covered-california/income-limits);
and

3. Alternative Payment Arrangements — The consumer is willing to enter
into an amortization agreement, alternative payment schedule or a
plan for deferred or reduced payment, consistent with the provisions
of Section lll, below.

Process for Determination of Conditions Prohibiting Discontinuation of
Service: The burden of proving compliance with the conditions described
in Subdivision (C), above, is on the consumer. In order to allow the
Supplier sufficient time to process any request for assistance by a
consumer, the consumer is encouraged to provide the Supplier with the
necessary documentation demonstrating the medical issues under
Subdivision (C)(1), financial inability under Subdivision (C)(2) and
willingness to enter into any alternative payment arrangement under
Subdivision (C)(3) as far in advance of any proposed date for
discontinuation of service as possible. Upon receipt of such
documentation, the Supplier's General Manager, or his or her designee,
shall review that documentation and respond to the consumer within
seven (7) calendar days to either request additional information, including
information relating to the feasibility of the available alternative
arrangements, or to notify the consumer of the alternative payment
arrangement, and terms thereof, under Section lll, below, in which the
Supplier will allow the consumer to participate. If the Supplier has
requested additional information, the consumer shall provide that
requested information within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the
Supplier’s request. Within five (5) calendar days of its receipt of that
additional information, the Supplier shall either notify the consumer in
writing that the consumer does not meet the conditions under Subdivision
(C), above, or notify the consumer in writing of the alternative payment
arrangement, and terms thereof, under Section lll, below, in which the
Supplier will allow the consumer to participate. Consumers who fail to

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 90 of 99

121



Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
b V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

e

‘ WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

meet the conditions described in Subdivision (C), above, must pay the
delinquent amount, including any penalties and other charges, owing to
the Supplier within the latter to occur of: (i) two (2) business days after the
date of notification from the Supplier of the Supplier's determination the
consumer failed to meet those conditions; or (ii) the date of the impending
service discontinuation, as specified in the Overdue Notice.

E. Special Rules for Low Income Consumers: Consumers are deemed to
have a household income below 200% of the federal poverty line if: (i)
any member of the customer’s household is a current recipient of the
following benefits: CaWORKS, CalFresh, general assistance, Medi-Cal,
SSI/State Supplementary Payment Program or California Special
Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children; or (ii)
the consumer declares the household’s annual income is less than 200%
of the federal poverty level (see this link for the federal poverty levels
applicable in California: https://www.healthforcalifornia.com/covered-
california/income-limits). If a consumer demonstrates either of those
circumstances, then the following apply:

1. Reconnection Fees: If service has been discontinued and is to be
reconnected, then any reconnection fees during the Supplier's normal
operating hours cannot exceed $50, and reconnection fees during
non-operational hours cannot exceed $150. Those fees cannot
exceed the actual cost of reconnection if that cost is less than the
statutory caps. Those caps may be adjusted annually for changes in
the Consumer Price Index for the Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim
metropolitan area beginning January 1, 2021.

2. Interest Waiver: The Supplier shall not impose any interest charges
on delinquent bills.

F. Landlord-Tenant Scenario: The below procedures apply to individually
metered detached single-family dwellings, multi-unit residential structures
and mobile home parks where the property owner or manager is the
customer of record and is responsible for payment of the water bill.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 91 of 99

122



S0

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

SCV

WATER

1.

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Required Notice:

a. Atleast 10 calendar days prior if the property is a multi-unit

residential structure or mobile home park, or 7 calendar days prior
if the property is a detached single-family dwelling, to the possible
discontinuation of water service, the Supplier must make a good
faith effort to inform the tenants/occupants at the property by
written notice that the water service will be discontinued.

The written notice must also inform the tenants/occupants that
they have the right to become customers to whom the service will
be billed (see Subdivision 2, below), without having to pay any of
the then delinquent amounts.

2. Tenants/Occupants Becoming Customers:

a. The Supplier is not required to make service available to the

tenants/occupants unless each tenant/occupant agrees to the
terms and conditions for service and meets the Supplier's
requirements and rules.

However, if (i) one or more of the tenants/occupants assumes
responsibility for subsequent charges to the account to the
Supplier’s satisfaction, or (ii) there is a physical means to
selectively discontinue service to those tenants/occupants who
have not met the Supplier’s requirements, then the Supplier may
make service available only to those tenants/occupants who have
met the requirements.

If prior service for a particular length of time is a condition to
establish credit with the Supplier, then residence at the property
and proof of prompt payment of rent for that length of time, to the
Supplier’s satisfaction, is a satisfactory equivalent.

If a tenant/occupant becomes a customer of the Supplier and the
tenant’s/occupant’s rent payments include charges for residential
water service where those charges are not separately stated, the
tenant/occupant may deduct from future rent payments all
reasonable charges paid to the Supplier during the prior payment
period.

Alternative Payment Arrangements: For any consumer who meets the three

conditions under Section 1I(C), above, in accordance with the process set forth in
Section 1l(D), above, the Supplier shall offer the consumer one or more of the

February 2020 92 of 99

123



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S0

following alternative payment arrangements, to be selected by the Supplier in its
discretion: (i) amortization of the unpaid balance under Subdivision (A), below;
(i) alternative payment schedule under Subdivision (B), below; (iii) partial or full
reduction of unpaid balance under Subdivision (C), below; or (iv) temporary
deferral of payment under Subdivision (D), below. The General Manager, or his
or her designee, shall, in the exercise of reasonable discretion, select the most
appropriate alternative payment arrangement after reviewing the information and
documentation provided by the consumer and taking into consideration the
consumer’s financial situation and Supplier's payment needs.

A Amortization: Any consumer who is unable to pay for water service within
the normal payment period and meets the three conditions under Section
II(C), above, as the Supplier shall confirm, may, if the Supplier has
selected this alternative, enter into an amortization plan on the following
terms:

1. Term: The consumer shall pay the unpaid balance, with the
administrative fee and interest as specified in Subdivision (2), below,
over a period not to exceed twelve (12) months, as determined by the
General Manager or his or her designee; provided, however, that the
General Manager or his or her designee, in their reasonable
discretion, may apply an amortization term of longer than twelve (12)
months to avoid undue hardship on the consumer. The unpaid
balance, together with the applicable administrative fee and any
interest to be applied, shall be divided by the number of months in the
amortization period and that amount shall be added each month to the
consumer’s ongoing monthly bills for water service.

2. Administrative Fee; Interest: For any approved amortization plan, the
consumer will be charged an administrative fee, in the amount
established by the Supplier from time to time, representing the cost of
initiating and administering the plan. At the discretion of the General
Manager or his or her designee, interest at an annual rate not to
exceed eight percent (8%) shall be applied to any amounts to be
amortized under this Subsection A.

3. Compliance with Plan: The consumer must comply with the
amortization plan and remain current as charges accrue in each
subsequent billing period. The consumer may not request further
amortization of any subsequent unpaid charges while paying
delinquent charges pursuant to an amortization plan. Where the
consumer fails to comply with the terms of the amortization plan for
sixty (60) calendar days or more, or fails to pay the consumer’s
current service charges for sixty (60) calendar days or more after the

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 93 of 99

124



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

Due Date of such current charges, the Supplier may discontinue water
service to the consumer’s property at least five (5) business days after
posting at the consumer’s residence a final notice of its intent to
discontinue service.

S0

B. Alternative Payment Schedule: Any consumer who is unable to pay for
water service within the normal payment period and meets the three
conditions under Section 1I(C), above, as the Supplier shall confirm, may,
if the Supplier has selected this alternative, enter into an alternative
payment schedule for the unpaid balance in accordance with the
following:

1. Repayment Period: The consumer shall pay the unpaid balance, with
the administrative fee and interest as specified in Subdivision (2),
below, over a period not to exceed twelve (12) months, as determined
by the General Manager or his or her designee; provided, however,
that the General Manager or his or her designee, in their reasonable
discretion, may extend the repayment period for longer than twelve
(12) months to avoid undue hardship on the consumer.

2. Administrative Fee; Interest: For any approved alternative payment
schedule, the consumer will be charged an administrative fee, in the
amount established by the Supplier from time to time, representing
the cost of initiating and administering the schedule. At the discretion
of the General Manager or his or her designee, interest at an annual
rate not to exceed eight percent (8%) shall be applied to any amounts
to be paid under this Subsection B.

3. Schedule: After consulting with the consumer and considering the
consumer’s financial limitations, the General Manager or his or her
designee shall develop an alternative payment schedule to be agreed
upon with the consumer. That alternative schedule may provide for
periodic lump sum payments that do not coincide with the established
payment date, may provide for payments to be made more frequently
than monthly, or may provide that payments be made less frequently
than monthly, provided that in all cases, subject to Subdivision (1),
above, the unpaid balance and administrative fee shall be paid in full
within twelve (12) months of establishment of the payment schedule.
The agreed upon schedule shall be set forth in writing and be
provided to the consumer.

4. Compliance with Plan: The consumer must comply with the agreed
upon payment schedule and remain current as charges accrue in
each subsequent billing period. The consumer may not request a

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 94 of 99

125



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S0

longer payment schedule for any subsequent unpaid charges while
paying delinquent charges pursuant to a previously agreed upon
schedule. Where the consumer fails to comply with the terms of the
agreed upon schedule for sixty (60) calendar days or more, or fails to
pay the consumer’s current service charges for sixty (60) calendar
days or more after the Due Date of such current charges, the Supplier
may discontinue water service to the consumer’s property at least five
(5) business days after posting at the consumer’s residence a final
notice of its intent to discontinue service.

C. Reduction of Unpaid Balance: Any consumer who is unable to pay for
water service within the normal payment period and meets the three
conditions under Section II(C), above, as the Supplier shall confirm, may,
if the Supplier has selected this alternative, receive a reduction of the
unpaid balance owed by the consumer, not to exceed thirty percent (30%)
of that balance without approval of and action by the Board of Directors;
provided that any such reduction shall be funded from a source that does
not result in additional charges being imposed on other customers. The
proportion of any reduction shall be determined by the consumer’s
financial need, the Supplier’s financial condition and needs and the
availability of funds to offset the reduction of the consumer’s unpaid
balance.

1. Repayment Period: The consumer shall pay the reduced balance by
the due date determined by the General Manager or his or her
designee, which date (the “Reduced Payment Date”) shall be at least
fifteen (15) calendar days after the effective date of the reduction of
the unpaid balance.

2. Compliance with Reduced Payment Date: The consumer must pay
the reduced balance on or before the Reduced Payment Date, and
must remain current in paying in full any charges that accrue in each
subsequent billing period. If the consumer fails to pay the reduced
payment amount within sixty (60) calendar days after the Reduced
Payment Date, or fails to pay the consumer’s current service charges
for sixty (60) calendar days or more after the Due Date of such current
charges, the Supplier may discontinue water service to the
consumer’s property at least five (5) business days after posting at the
consumer’s residence a final notice of its intent to discontinue service.

D. Temporary Deferral of Payment: Any consumer who is unable to pay for
water service within the normal payment period and meets the three
conditions under Section 1I(C), above, as the Supplier shall confirm, may,
if the Supplier has selected this alternative, have payment of the unpaid

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 95 of 99

126



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

balance temporarily deferred for a period of up to six (6) months after the
payment is due. The Supplier shall determine, in its discretion, how long
of a deferral shall be provided to the consumer.

S0

1. Repayment Period: The consumer shall pay the unpaid balance by
the deferral date (the “Deferred Payment Date”) determined by the
General Manager or his or her designee. The Deferral Payment Date
shall be within twelve (12) months from the date the unpaid balance
became delinquent; provided, however, that the General Manager or
his or her designee, in their reasonable discretion, may establish a
Deferred Payment Date beyond that twelve (12) month period to avoid
undue hardship on the consumer.

2. Compliance with Reduced Payment Date: The consumer must pay
the reduced balance on or before the Deferred Payment Date, and
must remain current in paying in full any charges that accrue in each
subsequent billing period. If the consumer fails to pay the unpaid
payment amount within sixty (60) calendar days after the Deferred
Payment Date, or fails to pay the consumer’s current service charges
for sixty (60) calendar days or more after the Due Date of such current
charges, the Supplier may discontinue water service to the
consumer’s property at least five (5) business days after posting at the
consumer’s residence a final notice of its intent to discontinue service.

Iv. Appeals: The procedure to be used to appeal the amount set forth in any bill for
residential water service is set forth below. A consumer shall be limited to three
(8) unsuccessful appeals in any twelve (12) month period and if that limit has
been reached, the Supplier is not required to consider any subsequent appeals
commenced by or on behalf of that consumer.

A Initial Appeal: Within ten (10) days of receipt of the bill for water service,
the consumer has a right to initiate an appeal or review of any bill or
charge. Such request must be made in writing and be delivered to the
Supplier’s office. For so long as the consumer’s appeal and any resulting
investigation is pending, the Supplier cannot discontinue water service to
the consumer.

B. Overdue Notice Appeal: In addition to the appeal rights provided under
Subsection A, above, any consumer who receives an Overdue Notice
may request an appeal or review of the bill to which the Overdue Notice
relates at least five business (5) days after the date of the Overdue Notice
if the consumer alleges the bill is in error with respect to the quantity of
water consumption set forth on that bill; provided, however, that no such
appeal or review rights shall apply to any bill for which an appeal or

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 96 of 99

127



128

S0

SCV

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

request for review under Subsection A, above, has been made. Any
appeal or request for review under this Subsection B must be in writing
and must include documentation supporting the appeal or the reason for
the review. The request for an appeal or review must be delivered to the
Supplier’s office within that five (5) business day period. For so long as
the consumer’s appeal and any resulting investigation is pending, the
Supplier cannot discontinue water service to the consumer.

Appeal Hearing: Following receipt of a request for an appeal or review
under Subsections A or B, above, a hearing date shall be promptly set
before the General Manager, or his or her designee (the “Hearing
Officer”). After evaluation of the evidence provided by the consumer and
the information on file with the Supplier concerning the water charges in
question, the Hearing Officer shall render a decision as to the accuracy of
the water charges set forth on the bill and shall provide the appealing
consumer with a brief written summary of the decision.

1. If water charges are determined to be incorrect, the Supplier will
provide a corrected bill and payment of the revised charges will be
due within ten (10) calendar days of the bill date for revised charges.
If the revised charges remain unpaid for more than sixty (60) calendar
days after the corrected bill is provided, water service will be
disconnected, on the next regular working day after expiration of that
sixty (60) calendar day period; provided that the Supplier shall provide
the consumer with the Overdue Notice in accordance with Section
[I(B)(1), above. Water service will only be restored upon full payment
of all outstanding water charges, fees, and any and all applicable
reconnection charges.

a. If the water charges in question are determined to be correct, the
water charges are due and payable within two (2) business days
after the Hearing Officer’s decision is rendered. At the time the
Hearing Officer’s decision is rendered, the consumer will be
advised of the right to further appeal before the Board of Directors.
Any such appeal must be filed in writing within seven (7) calendar
days after the Hearing Officer’s decision is rendered if the appeal
or review is an initial appeal under Subdivision A above, or within
three (3) calendar days if the appeal or review is an Overdue
Notice appeal under Subdivision B, above. The appeal hearing
will occur within the next regular two meetings of the Board of
Directors, unless the consumer and Supplier agree to a later date.

b. For an initial appeal under Subdivision A, above, if the consumer
does not timely appeal to the Board of Directors, the water

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 97 of 99



S0

SCV

WATER

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

charges in question shall be immediately due and payable. In the
event the charges are not paid in full within sixty (60) calendar
days from the bill’'s Due Date, then the Supplier shall provide with
the Overdue Notice in accordance with Section II(B)(1), above,
and may proceed in potentially discontinuing service to the
consumer’s property.

c. For an Overdue Notice appeal under Subdivision B, above, if the
consumer does not timely appeal to the Board of Directors, then
water service to the subject property may be discontinued on
written or telephonic notice to the consumer to be given at least
twenty-four (24) hours after the latter to occur of: (i) expiration of
the original notice period set forth in the Overdue Notice; or (ii) the
expiration of the appeal period.

2. When a hearing before the Board of Directors is requested, such
request shall be made in writing and delivered to the Supplier at its
office. The consumer or consumer’s counsel will be required to
personally appear before the Board and present evidence and
reasons as to why the water charges on the bill in question are not
accurate. The Board shall evaluate the evidence presented by the
consumer, as well as the information on file with the Supplier
concerning the water charges in question, and render a decision as to
the accuracy of said charges.

a. If the Board finds the water charges in question are incorrect, the
consumer will be billed for the revised charges and payment shall
be due within ten (10) days of the date of the revised bill. If the
revised charges remain unpaid for more than sixty (60) calendar
days after the due date for that corrected bill, water service will be
disconnected, on the next regular working day after expiration of
that sixty (60) calendar day period; provided that the Supplier shall
provide the consumer with the Overdue Notice in accordance with
Section lI(B)(1), above. Water service will be restored only after
outstanding water charges and any and all applicable
reconnection charges are paid in full.

b. If the water charges in question are determined to be correct, the
water charges are due and payable within two (2) business days
after the decision of the Board is rendered. In the event the
charges are not paid in full within sixty (60) calendar days after the
original bill’'s Due Date, then the Supplier shall provide the
Overdue Notice in accordance with Section II(B)(1), above, and

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 98 of 99

129



130

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #18986

S

may proceed in potentially discontinuing service to the consumer’s
property.

c. Any overcharges will be reflected as a credit on the next regular
bill to the consumer, or refunded directly to the consumer, at the
sole discretion of the Board.

d. Water service to any consumer shall not be discontinued at any
time during which the consumer’s appeal to the Supplier or its
Board of Directors is pending.

e. The Board’s decision is final and binding.

V. Restoration of Service: In order to resume or continue service that has been
discontinued due to non-payment, the consumer must pay a security deposit and
a Reconnection Fee established by the Supplier, subject to the limitation set forth
in Section II(E)(1), above. The Supplier will endeavor to make such reconnection
as soon as practicable as a convenience to the consumer. The Supplier shall
make the reconnection no later than the end of the next regular working day
following the consumer’s request and payment of any applicable Reconnection
Fee.

CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY February 2020 99 of 99



M ITEEEND.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 14, 2020
TO: Board of Directors / A
FROM: Rochelle Patterson g /%

Director of Finance and Administration

SUBJECT:  Approve a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION

Pursuant to Government Code Section 53646, the California Legislature mandates that the
Agency annually prepare and adopt an Investment Policy. The Agency last adopted its policy in
January 2019. The Agency’s Investment Policy applies to all divisions of SCV Water, including
both Regional and Retail Divisions.

General Counsel has advised that there have been changes in state Government Codes and
has modified the existing policy as marked below in Section 9.9. The red struck lines indicate
deletion, whereas the unstruck lines have been added. There are no other changes to the

policy.

9.9 (i) Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered
bank, a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102
of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federal or state-

Ilcensed branch of a fore|gn bank and—&r}ee#ﬁﬁeate&e#depesﬁ—ai—&eemme#e&al

Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit urder{i}-ofthis-sectionand
certificates-of- depesitunder{i-otthis-section-may-tegether may not exceed 30%

of the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy. The Board
of Directors and the Treasurer are prohibited from investing Agency funds, or
funds in the Agency’s custody, in negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a
state or federal credit union if a member of the Board of Directors, or any person
with investment decision-making authority within the Agency also serves on the
Board of Directors, or any committee appointed by the Board of Directors, or the
credit committee or the supervisory committee of the state or federal credit union
issuing the negotiable certificates of deposit.

(i) Deposits at a commercial bank, savings bank, savings and loan association or
credit union that uses a private sector entity that assists in the placement of such
certificates of deposit, pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.8. Deposits
shall be subject to Government Code Section 53638 and may not exceed 50% of
the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy.

131


ajacobs
Item No 6.5

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson


On January 13, 2020, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve the attached resolution adopting a revised Investment Policy.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS
None.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors
approve the attached resolution adopting a revised Investment Policy.

RP/ed

Attachment

A\ Ilr.-\f'll Lf}' ; i

132


ajacobs
Matt


1.0

2.0

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
ADOPTING A REVISED INVESTMENT POLICY

POLICY

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

WHEREAS; the Legislature of the State of California has declared that the
deposit and investment of public funds by local officials and local agencies is an
issue of statewide concern; and

WHEREAS; the legislative body of a local agency may invest surplus monies not
required for the immediate necessities of the local agency in accordance with the
provisions of California Government Code Sections 53601 et seq.; and

WHEREAS; the Treasurer of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“Agency”),
acting under the direction and authority of the Finance Committee of the Agency,
shall annually prepare and submit a statement of investment policy and such
policy, and any changes thereto, shall be considered by the Board of Directors at
a public meeting;

NOW THEREFORE, it shall be the policy of the Agency to invest funds in a
manner, which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum
security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Agency and
conforming to all statutes governing the investment of Agency funds.

SCOPE

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the Agency. These funds are
accounted for in the annual Agency audit. The Agency pools all cash for investment
purposes. This policy is applicable, but not limited to all funds listed below:

General/Operating Fund
Special Revenue Funds
a) One Percent Property Tax Fund
b) Facility Capacity Fee Fund
c) State Water Project Fund
Capital Project Fund
Debt Service Fund
Reserve Funds
Enterprise Fund
Grant Funds

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 1of9

133



134

3.0

4.0

5.0

PRUDENCE; RESPONSIBILITY

3.1

3.2

Prudence: Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic
conditions and the anticipated needs of the Agency, which persons of prudence,
discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; not
for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital
as well as the probable income to be derived. The standard of prudence to be
used by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor" standard (California
Government Code 53600.3) and shall be applied in the context of managing an
overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures
and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of
personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price
changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion
and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

Responsibility: The Treasurer and other individuals assigned to manage the
investment portfolio, acting with the intent and scope of this investment policy
while exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for the
credit risk and market price risk for securities held in the investment portfolio,
provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely manner and
appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

OBJECTIVES
When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing
public funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of the investment activities shall be:

41

4.2

4.3

Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the Agency shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective,
diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do
not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio.

Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the
Agency to meet all operating requirements and budgeted expenditures.
Investments will be undertaken with the expectation that unplanned expenses will
be incurred; therefore, portfolio liquidity will be created to cover reasonable
contingency costs.

Return on Investments: The investment portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic
cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow
characteristics of the portfolio. The goal is to maximize return while ensuring that
safety and liquidity objectives are not compromised.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

Authority to manage the investment program is derived from California Government
Code 53600, et seq. Overall accountability and authority for implementation of this policy
shall remain with the Board of Directors of the Agency and overseen by the Agency’s

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 20f9



6.0

7.0

Finance Committee. The day-to-day responsibility for management and implementation
of the investment program is hereby delegated to the Treasurer, who, where and when
appropriate, shall establish written procedures for the operation of the investment
program consistent with this investment policy. With this delegation the Treasurer is
given the authority to utilize internal staff and outside investment managers to assist in
the investment program. The Treasurer shall use care to assure that those assigned
responsibility to assist in the management of the Agency's portfolio do so in accordance
with this policy. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided
under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer. The
Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a
system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials. Under the provisions
of California Government Code 53600.3, the Treasurer is a trustee and a fiduciary
subject to the prudent investor standard.

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Treasurer and officers and employees involved in the investment process shall
refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution of the
investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment
decisions. Officials and staff members involved with the investment function shall
disclose to the Board of Directors any personal financial interest with a financial
institution, broker or investment issuer conducting business with the Agency. Officials
and staff members shall further disclose to the Board of Directors any personal financial
interest in any entity related to the investment performance of the Agency's portfolio.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

The Treasurer will maintain a list of financial institutions, selected on the basis of credit
worthiness, financial strength, experience and minimal capitalization authorized to
provide investment services. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved
security broker/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide
investment and financial advisory services in the State of California. No public deposit
shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by state laws.

For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the Treasurer shall
select only broker/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California
Department of Securities, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National
Association of Securities Dealers or other applicable self-regulatory organizations.

Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the Treasurer shall
have received from said firm a signed Certification Form. This form shall attest that the
individual responsible for the Agency’s account with that firm has reviewed the Agency’s
Investment Policy and that the firm understands the policy and intends to present
investment recommendations and transactions to the Agency that are appropriate under
the terms and conditions of the Investment Policy.

The Agency is a local agency authorized to invest surplus monies in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF is a special trust fund in the custody of the State
Treasurer and the Local Investment Advisory Board created under Government Code
Section 16429.2, which advises the State Treasurer on the investment and reinvestment
of LAIF deposits. Each local agency with LAIF deposits has a separate account within

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 30f9

135



136

LAIF, but the total deposits in LAIF are managed as a pooled investment account. The
securities eligible for LAIF investments are statutorily specified in Government Code
Section 16430 and are more conservative than those investments permitted under
Government Code Section 53601, which governs the management of invested surplus
monies by local agencies. Accordingly, the Treasurer need not be concerned with the
qualifications of those financial institutions and broker/dealers with whom LAIF transacts
business.

8.0 PORTFOLIO MATURITY LIMITS

The maximum maturity for any single investment in the portfolio shall not exceed five

years. The maximum weighted average maturity for the investment portfolio shall not

exceed three years.

When a security has a mandatory put date, the put date should be used when

calculating weighted average portfolio maturity. When a security has an optional put

date, the optional put date should be used when calculating weighted average portfolio
maturity so long as the put is at the discretion of the Agency and the put price is equal to
or greater than the market value for the security. (A put is a contract that gives its holder

the right to sell an underlying security, commodity, or currency before a certain date for a

predetermined price.)

9.0 AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS

The Agency is empowered by California Government Code 53601 et seq. to invest in the

following:

9.1 Bonds issued by the Agency.

9.2 United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds.

9.3 Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds issued by the State of
California.

9.4 Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the 49 United States in addition to
California, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from revenue-
producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department,
board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49 United States, in addition to
California.

9.5 Bonds, notes, warrants or other evidence of debt issued by a local agency within
the State of California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the local agency, or
by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency; and also including
pooled investment accounts sponsored by the State of California, County
Treasurers, other local agencies or Joint Powers Agencies. The LAIF is an
approved pooled investment account.

9.6 Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations,
participations, or other instruments, including those issued by, or fully guaranteed

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 40f9



as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-
sponsored enterprises.

9.7 Bankers’ acceptances otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts that
are drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank. Purchases of bankers’
acceptances may not exceed 180 days’ maturity or 40% of the Agency’s money
that may be invested pursuant to this policy. However, no more than 30% of the
Agency’s money can be invested in the bankers’ acceptances of any single
commercial bank.

9.8 Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of the highest letter
and number rating as provided for by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating
organization. The entity that issues the commercial paper shall either be:

9.8.1 organized and operating within the United States as a general
corporation, shall have total assets in excess of Five Hundred Million
Dollars ($500,000,000), and shall issue debt, other than commercial
paper, if any, that is rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or
higher by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating organization; or

9.8.2 organized within the United States as a special-purpose corporation,
trust, or limited liability company, have program-wide credit
enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters
of credit, or surety bond, and has commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or
higher, or the equivalent, by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating
organization.

Eligible commercial paper shall have a maximum maturity of 270 days or
less. The Agency shall invest no more than 25% of its money in eligible
commercial paper. The Agency shall purchase no more than 10% of the
outstanding commercial paper of any single corporate issue.

9.9 (i) Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered
bank, a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102
of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federal or state-
licensed branch of a foreign bank. ;-and-{ii}-ceriificates-of depositat-a-commercial

- 1 Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 0.5", Tab stops: Not at 1.06" )

Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit under{i)-of this-section-and + 15"
certificates of deposit under {ii) of this section may together may not exceed 30%

of the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy. The Board

of Directors and the Treasurer are prohibited from investing Agency funds, or

funds

in the Agency’s custody, in negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a state or

federal credit union if a member of the Board of Directors, or any person with

investment decision-making authority within the Agency also serves on the Board

of Directors, or any committee appointed by the Board of Directors, or the credit

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 50f9

137



138

9.10

9.1

9.12

9.13

9.14

committee or the supervisory committee of the state or federal credit union
issuing the negotiable certificates of deposit.

(ii) Deposits at a commercial bank, savings bank, savings and loan association or
credit union that uses a private sector entity that assists in the placement of such
certificates of deposit, pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.8. Deposits
shall be subject to Government Code Section 53638 and may not exceed 50% of
the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy.

Repurchase/Reverse Repurchase Agreements of any securities authorized by
Section 53061. The market value of securities that underlay a repurchase
agreement shall be valued at one hundred two percent (102%) or greater of the
funds borrowed against those securities, and are subject to the special limits and
conditions of California Government Code 53601 (j).

Medium term notes, defined as all corporate and depository institution debt
securities with a maximum remaining maturity of 5 years or less, issued by
corporations organized and operating with the United States or by depository
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the
United States. Notes eligible for investment under this subdivision shall be rated
in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better by a nationally recognized
rating service. Purchases of medium-term notes shall not include other
instruments authorized by this policy and shall not exceed 30% of the Agency’s
money which may be invested pursuant to this policy.

Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies
(mutual funds) investing in the securities and obligations authorized by this
policy, and shares in money market mutual funds, subject to the restrictions of
California Government Code Section 53601(l). The purchase price of
investments under this subdivision shall not exceed 20% of the Agency’s
investments under this policy. However, no more than 10% of the Agency’s
money may be invested in any one mutual fund.

Moneys held by a trustee or fiscal agent and pledged to the payment or security
of bonds or other indebtedness, or obligations under a lease, installment sale, or
other agreement of a local agency, or certificates of participation in those bonds,
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreements, may be invested in
accordance with the statutory provisions governing the issuance of those bonds,
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreement, or to the extent not
inconsistent therewith or if there are no specific statutory provisions, in
accordance with the ordinance, resolution, indenture, or agreement of the local
agency providing for the issuance.

Notes, bonds, or other obligations that are at all times secured by a valid first
priority security interest in securities of the types listed by California Government
Code Section 53651 as eligible securities for the purpose of securing local
agency deposits having a market value at least equal to that required by
California Government Code Section 53652 for the purpose of securing local
agency deposits. The securities serving as collateral shall be placed by delivery

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 60f9



or book entry into the custody of a trust company or the trust department of a
bank which is not affiliated with the issuer of the secured obligation, and the
security interest shall be perfected in accordance with the requirements of the
Uniform Commercial Code or federal regulations applicable to the types of
securities in which the security interest is granted.

9.15 Any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage obligation,
mortgage-backed or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed certificate,
consumer receivable pass-through certificate, or consumer receivable-backed
bond of a maximum of five years maturity. Securities eligible for investment
under this subdivision shall be issued by an issuer rated in a rating category of "A"
or its equivalent or better for the issuer's debt as provided by a nationally
recognized rating service and rated in a rating category of "AA" or its equivalent
or better by a nationally recognized rating service. Purchase of securities
authorized by this subdivision shall not exceed 20% of the Agency’s money that
may be invested pursuant to this policy.

9.16 Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized
pursuant to Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations
authorized under Government Code Section 53601. Each share shall represent
an equal proportional interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the
joint powers authority. To be eligible, the joint powers authority issuing the shares
must have retained an investment advisor that is registered or exempt from
registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission, have not less than
five years of experience in investing in the securities and obligations authorized
under Government Code Section 53601, and have assets under management in
excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000).

9.17 Proposition 1A receivables sold pursuant to California Government Code Section
53999. A “Proposition 1A receivable” constitutes the right to payment of moneys
due or to become due to a local agency, pursuant to clause (iii) of subparagraph
(B) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) of Section 25.5 of Article XIlI of the
California Constitution and Section 100.06 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.

9.18  United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations
issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-
American Development Bank, with a maximum remaining maturity of five years
or less, and eligible for purchase and sale within the United States. Investments
under this subdivision shall be rated in a rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or
better by an NRSRO and shall not exceed 30 percent of the agency's moneys
that may be invested pursuant to this section.

9.19  Any other investment security authorized under the provisions of California
Government Code Sections 5922 and 53601.

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 7 0of9

139



140

10.0

12.0

13.0

Such investments shall be limited to securities that at the time of the investment
have a term remaining to maturity of five years or less, or as otherwise provided
in Government Code Section 53601.

The Agency shall not invest any funds covered by this Investment Policy in
inverse floaters, range notes, interest-only strips derived from mortgage pools or
any investment that may result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity.

COLLATERALIZATION

All certificates of deposit must be collateralized by United States Treasury Obligations.
Collateral must be held by a third party trustee and valued on a monthly basis. The
percentage of collateralizations on repurchase and reverse agreements will adhere to
the amount required under California Government Code 53601(i)(2).

SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY

All securities owned by the Agency, except collateral for repurchase agreements, will be
held in safekeeping at a third party bank trust department that will act as agent for the
Agency under terms of a custody agreement.

Securities used as collateral for repurchase agreements with a term of up to seven days
can be safe kept by a third party bank trust department, or by the broker/dealer's
safekeeping institution, acting as agent for the Agency under the terms of a custody
agreement executed by the broker/dealer and the Agency and specifying the Agency's
perfected ownership of the collateral.

Payment for all transactions will be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP)
basis.

LEVERAGING

Investments may not be purchased on margin. Securities can be purchased on a "When
Issued" basis only when a cash balance can be maintained to pay for the securities on
the purchase settlement date.

DIVERSIFICATION

The Agency will diversify its investments by security type and institution. Assets shall be
diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a
specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of securities.

Diversification strategies shall be reviewed and revised periodically. In establishing
specific diversification strategies, the following general policies and constraints shall
apply:

13.1  Portfolio maturity dates shall be matched versus liabilities to avoid undue
concentration in a specific maturity sector.

13.2  Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and liquidity.

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 80of9



14.0

15.0

13.3 Disbursement and payroll dates shall be covered through maturities of
investments, marketable United States Treasury bills or other cash equivalent
instruments such as money market mutual funds.

REPORTING

The Treasurer shall submit to each member of the Board of Directors an investment
report at least monthly. The report shall include a complete description of the portfolio,
the type of investments, the issuers, maturity dates, par values and the current market
values of each component of the portfolio, including funds managed for Agency by third
party contracted managers. The report will also include the source of the portfolio
valuation. For funds, which are placed in LAIF, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a
county investment pool, the foregoing report elements may be replaced by copies of the
latest statements from such institutions. The report must also include a certification that
(1) all investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full
compliance with the Investment Policy and, (2) the Agency will meet its expenditure
obligations for the next six months as required by Government Code Section
53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively. The Treasurer shall maintain a complete and timely
record of all investment transactions.

INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION

The Investment Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Agency. Moreover, the
Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis, and modifications must be approved by the
Board of Directors.

(Originally Adopted February 2018; Re-adopted January 2019; Revised February 2020)

INVESTMENT POLICY January-February 202019 90of9

141



[This page intentionally left blank.]

142



SLV ITEg‘IEND.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 14, 2020

TO: Board of Directors - et
s =4

FROM: Rochelle Patterson

Director of Finance and Administration

SUBJECT:  Approve a Resolution Adopting a Ticket Distribution Policy

SUMMARY

From time to time, Agency employees or Directors may be offered gifts from vendors and
consultants. In general, and to be consistent with various ethics and fair political practices
codes, gifts should not be accepted when possible, as they could constitute a conflict of interest
to the Agency. If gifts are delivered, however, they are encouraged to be turned over to the
Agency and/or shared amongst the staff. In the event that tickets are gifted, such as to a festival
or athletic event, the acceptance must be approved by the General Manager, and the tickets
must be reported and published on the Agency’s website. For Board of Directors and staff that
accept gifts and/or tickets, they must be reported on their Fair Political Practices Commission
(FPPC) Form 700.

FPPC Regulation 18944.1 creates an exception to the definition of gift for tickets or passes to
entertainment, sports or other similar events which are donated to an agency and distributed to
public officials for use for official public business as long as the agency complies with specified
requirements.

To apply this exception Regulation 18944.1 requires an agency to:

1. Adopt a distribution policy setting minimum provisions required under Regulation
18944.1;

2. Post a copy of the policy on the Agency’s website and email a link to the FPPC for
posting;

3. Ensure the ticket/pass is used for a stated governmental purpose;

4. Complete Form 802 for each distribution and retain Form 802 as a public record under
the Political Reform Act; and

5. Post a copy of each Form 802 on the Agency’s website and email a link to the FPPC for
posting.

143


ajacobs
Item 6.6

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson


144

DISCUSSION

FPPC Regulations 18942, 18944, 18944.1, 18946 and 18946.1 provide when an Agency’s
Official is exempted from reporting certain tickets and passes on a Form 700 or as additional
income, and includes certain required provisions of the Agency’s Ticket Distribution Policy which
provide:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The Agency is to determine who uses the ticket/pass.

The General Manager has authority to establish procedures for ticket distribution in
accordance with the adopted policy.

The General Manager may select him/herself to use certain tickets that are for the
general use by agency officials.

The Agency must post the distribution policy on the Agency’s website as directed and
email a link to the FPPC for additional posting.

The Agency must post all Form 802s to its website as directed and email a link to the
FPPC for additional posting.

Set forth public purposes for the use of such tickets/passes consistent with state law.
Require distribution to accomplish a stated public purpose.

Allow the transfer of tickets by an official to the official’s immediate family or to one guest
for attending the event.

Prohibit recipients from reselling or receipt of compensation for tickets.
Prohibit a source from earmarking tickets/passes for a particular official.
Report tickets used to perform a ceremonial role on Form 802.

Under specified circumstances, allow reporting of tickets distributed to an Agency
department or outside organization, rather than to each individual.

Prohibit disproportionate use of tickets by members of the governing body, chief
administrative officer or department heads.

Require written reports by Officials using a ticket for purposes of oversight or inspection
of facilities.

Allow the distribution of tickets/passes to officials, as specified, for personal use to
support general employee morale, retention or reward.

Based on the foregoing, and on the matters recited in more detail in the resolution itself, staff
requests that the Board of Directors adopt the attached resolution (Attachment 1), which
includes the policy itself (Exhibit A). Any tickets distributed will need to follow procedures that
may include filling out the attached Ticket Distribution Form (Attachment 2) and California Form
802 — Agency Report of Ceremonial Role Events and Ticket/Pass Distributions (Attachment 3).



On January 13, 2020, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve a resolution adopting a Ticket Distribution Policy.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS
None at this time.
RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
the attached resolution adopting a Ticket Distribution Policy.

RP

Attachments

p oty
A\ -

145


ajacobs
Matt


[This page intentionally left blank.]

146



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
ADOPTING A TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY

WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) adopted Section 18944.1, Title 2,
California Code of Regulations (Regulation 18944.1) to regulate the distribution and disclosure
by public agencies of certain tickets and passes to public officials and employees; and

WHEREAS, Regulation 18944.1 provides that a ticket and pass distributed pursuant to an
adopted policy and properly disclosed by the agency is not a gift to the public official and does
not trigger a disclosure requirement on the official’s Statement of Economic Interests, Form 700;
and

WHEREAS, the distribution to and use of such tickets and passes by officials frequently serve
legitimate governmental and/or public purposes; and

WHEREAS, from time to time, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (the Agency) may receive
complimentary or discounted tickets or passes from third party sources, both public and private,
for distribution to Agency officials; and

WHEREAS, based on such practice and the provisions of Regulation 18944.1 adopted and
amended by the FPPC, the Agency desires to adopt a policy regarding the distribution of tickets
and/or passes; and

WHEREAS, the Agency’s proposed Ticket Distribution Policy incorporates the required
provisions of Regulation 18944.1 to ensure that the policy establishes a fair and equitable
process for the distribution to Agency officials of such tickets and passes by the Agency, in
compliance with the requirements of FPPC Regulations.

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency hereby
finds and resolves as follows:

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

Section 2.  The Board of Directors of Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency hereby
approves and adopts the Agency’s Ticket Distribution Policy proposed in accordance
with FPPC Regulation 18944.1, and attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 3.  The General Manager is directed to implement this policy.

Section4.  The Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

Section 5.  The Secretary of the Board shall certify the adoption of this Resolution.

147


edill
Attachment 1


[This page intentionally left blank.]

148



=

S CV POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY

EXHIBIT A

w ATER Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY

1.0 PURPOSE
The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all tickets and/or passes provided to the
Agency are distributed in furtherance of governmental and/or public purposes as
required under Section 18944.1, Title 2, California Code of Regulations (“Regulation
18944.1").
In addition, the purpose of this policy is to ensure that tickets distributed by the Agency
under this policy are disclosed on Form 802 and posted to the Agency’s website within
forty-five days of distribution, as required by Regulation 18944.1.
2.0 APPLICATION
This policy applies to tickets that provide admission to a facility, event, show or
performance for an entertainment, amusement, recreational or similar purpose, and are
either:
a. gratuitously provided to the Agency by an outside source;
b. acquired by the Agency by purchase;
C. acquired by the Agency as consideration pursuant to the terms of a contract for
the use of an Agency venue; or
d. acquired and distributed by the Agency in any other manner.
3.0 SCOPE
This policy applies to all Agency Officials, as defined in Section 4b, below.
4.0 DEFINITIONS
Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, words and terms used in this policy shall
have the same meaning as that ascribed to such words and terms in the Political Reform
Act of 1974 (Government Code section 81000 et seq., as the same may from time to
time be amended) and the Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”) Regulations
(Title 2, California Code of Regulations, section 18110 et seq., as the same may from
time to time be amended).
a. “Agency” means the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency.
b. “Agency Official” means every member, officer, employee or consultant of the
Agency, as defined by Government Code section 82048 and Regulation 18700.3.
Such term shall include, without limitation, any Board member or other appointed
TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY February 2020 lof6

149


edill
Exhibit A


S CV POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY

w ATER Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

S0

official, employee or consultant required to file an annual Statement of Economic
Interests (Form 700).

C. “Immediate family” means the Agency Official’'s spouse and dependent children.
d. “Policy” means this policy for the Distribution of Tickets and/or Passes.
e. “Ticket” shall mean and refer to a “ticket” or “pass” as those terms are defined in

Regulation 18946 and referenced in Regulation 18944.1, both Regulations as
amended from time to time, but which currently define “ticket” or “pass” as
anything that provides admission or access to a facility, event, show or
performance for an entertainment, amusement, recreational or similar purpose.

5.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS

a. The use of complimentary tickets is a privilege extended by the Agency and not
the right of any person to which the privilege may from time to time be extended.
b. Tickets distributed to an Agency Official pursuant to this policy shall not be

transferred to any other person, except to members of such Agency Official’s
immediate family solely for their personal use or to no more than one guest solely
for their attendance at the event.

C. No person who receives a ticket pursuant to this policy shall resell or receive
compensation for the value of such ticket.
d. The General Manager shall have the authority, in his or her sole discretion, to

establish procedures for the distribution of tickets in accordance with this policy.
All requests for tickets which fall within the scope of this policy shall be made in
accordance with the procedures established by the General Manager.

e. The General Manager or his/her designee shall be the “agency head” for
purposes of implementing the provisions of this policy and completing and
posting the Form 802. In such case, where the General Manager desires to
obtain a ticket, the Board members authorize the General Manager to exercise
the Agency’s sole discretion in determining whether the use or behest of tickets
is in accordance with the terms of this policy.

f. No ticket gratuitously provided to the Agency by an outside source and
distributed to, or at the behest of, an Agency Official pursuant to this policy shall
be earmarked by the original source for provision to a particular Agency Official.

g. A ticket provided to a Public Official and one guest of the Official at which the
Official performs a ceremonial role, as defined in Regulation 18942.3, on behalf
of the Agency must be disclosed on Form 802 as set forth below. Any additional
effort by the Agency to either limit or expand permissible ceremonial roles will
require that the revised policy be forwarded to the FPPC.

h. The disproportionate use of tickets and passes, distributed pursuant to this policy
by a member of the governing body, political appointee, department head, or
General Manager is prohibited.

TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY February 2020 20f6

150



S CV POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY
w ATER Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

S0

i. The value of any ticket shall be the fair value of the ticket. The “fair value” is the
face value of the ticket, or the price at which the ticket would otherwise be offered
for sale to the general public by the operator or host. Where the ticket does not
reflect the actual cost for a ticket in a luxury box or suite, the face value is
determined by dividing the total cost of the box or suite by the number of tickets
available for that box or suite.

6.0 PUBLIC PURPOSE FOR WHICH TICKETS MAY BE DISTRIBUTED

Subject to the provisions of this policy, the Agency shall only provide a ticket and/or pass
to an Agency Official, or at the behest of an Agency Official, under one of the following
public and governmental purposes:

a. If the distribution is to an Agency Official and the Official reimburses the Agency
for the fair value of the ticket(s) within 30 days of receipt.
b. If the distribution is to an Agency Official, the Official treats the ticket(s) as

income consistent with applicable federal and state income tax laws and the
Agency complies with the reporting requirements of Section 7, below.

C. If the distribution is to an Agency Official, or is at the behest of an Agency
Official, such distribution must accomplish a governmental and/or public purpose.
The following is a list of governmental and/or public purposes the Agency may
accomplish through the distribution of tickets. The list is illustrative rather than

exhaustive:

1. Facilitating the performance of a ceremonial role or function by an Agency
Official on behalf of the Agency at an event.

2. Facilitating the attendance of an Agency Official at an event where the job
duties of the Official require his or her attendance.

3. Promotion of water conservation, water quality, water services and water
supply within the Agency, regionally and statewide.

4. Promotion of intergovernmental relations and/or cooperation and

coordination of resources with other governmental agencies, including,
but not limited to, attendance at an event with or by elected or appointed
public officials from other jurisdictions, their staff members and guests.

5. Promotion of local and regional businesses, economic development and
tourism activities within the Agency that serve or may potentially serve the
Agency’s residents, including conventions and conferences.

6. Promotion of Agency-run, sponsored or supported events, activities, or
programs.
7. Promotion of community programs and resources available to Agency

residents, including nonprofit organizations and youth programs.

TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY February 2020 30f6

151



S CV POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY

“. b w ATER Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

8. Marketing promotions highlighting the achievements of public agencies,
local residents, nonprofits, community groups and businesses in the
areas of water conservation, water services, water supply, or water

quality.

9. Promotion and marketing of private facilities available for Agency resident
use, including charitable and nonprofit facilities.

10. Promotion and marketing of public facilities and resources available for
Agency resident use.

11. Promotion of Agency growth and development, including outreach efforts,

economic development and job creation opportunities.

12. Promotion of specific Agency community events provided by or
sponsored by the Agency.

13. Promotion of any Agency owned sites or facilities.

14. Exchange programs with foreign officials and dignitaries.

15. Promotion of Agency recognition, visibility, and/or profile on a local, state,
national or worldwide scale.

16. Promotion of Agency services on a local, state, national or worldwide
scale.

17. Promotion of open government and/or community relations by Agency
official appearances, participation and/or availability at business or
community events.

18. Sponsorship agreements involving private events where the Agency
specifically seeks to enhance the Agency’s reputation both locally and
regionally by serving as hosts or sponsors providing the necessary
opportunities to meet and greet visitors, dignitaries, and residents.

19. All written contracts where the Agency, as a form of consideration, has
required that a certain number of tickets be made available for Agency

use.
20. Employment retention and recognition programs.
21. Special outreach programs for veterans, teachers, emergency services,

medical personnel and other civil service occupations.

22. Encouraging or rewarding significant academic, athletic, or public service
achievements by residents or businesses of the Agency service area.

23. Charitable 501 (c)(3) fundraisers for the purpose of networking with other
community and civic leaders.

24. Promotion of and participation in intergovernmental relations and
activities.

25. Promoting, supporting and/or showing appreciation for programs or
services rendered by charitable and non-profit organizations benefiting
Agency residents.

TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY February 2020 4 of 6

152



S CV POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY
w ATER Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

S0

26. Increasing public exposure to, and awareness of, the various recreational,
cultural, and educational venues and facilities available to the public
within the Agency’s service area.

27. Attracting or rewarding volunteer public service.

28. Attracting and retaining highly qualified employees in the Agency’s

service.
29. Recognizing or rewarding meritorious service by an Agency employee.
30. Promoting enhanced Agency employee performance or morale.
31. Recognizing contributions made to the Agency by former Board members

or Agency employees.

32. Spouses of Agency officials in order to accompany him or her to any of
the events listed above.

33. Any purpose similar to above included in any Agency contract.

d. When a public purpose involves the oversight or inspection of facilities by an
Agency Official, the Agency Official is required to provide a written inspection
report and/or recommendation.

e. If the distribution is to an organization outside of the Agency, such distribution is
done pursuant to a public purpose outlined in Section 6¢, above.
f. Subject to the provisions of this policy, tickets obtained by the Agency pursuant

to terms of a contract for use of public property because the Agency controls the
event, or, by purchase at fair market value, may be distributed to Agency
Officials. Any distribution must accomplish a governmental and/or public
purpose in accordance with Section 6c, above.

g. Any ticket obtained pursuant to Section 6f which is distributed to an Agency
Official, other than an elected official or member of the governing body of the
Agency, for the Official’s personal use, to support general employee morale,
retention, or to reward public service is also deemed to serve a public purpose.
Such ticket distribution shall be disclosed pursuant to Section 7, below. For
purposes of this subsection, “personal use” is defined as use by the Agency
Official, his or her family, or no more than one guest.

h. Any Agency Official, any member of the Agency Official’s immediate family, or
guest of the Agency Official may return any unused ticket to the Agency for
redistribution pursuant to this policy.

i. The provisions of this policy apply only to benefits the Agency Official receives
that are provided to all members of the public with the same class of ticket.

7.0 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
a. This policy shall be posted on the Agency’s website in a prominent manner. The
Agency shall, within 30 days of adoption or amendment, send to the FPPC by
email a website link that displays the policy.

TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY February 2020 50f6

153



S CV POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
Title: TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY
w ATER Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

=

b. Tickets distributed by the Agency to any Agency Official which the Agency
Official treats as income pursuant to Section 6b, above, or, which are distributed
for one or more public purposes described in Section 6¢, above, must be
recorded on Form 802 or, on such alternative form(s) as may from time to time
be designated by the FPPC. This form must be maintained as a public record,
and be subject to inspection and copying as required under Government Code
section 81008(a). Within 45 days after distribution the Agency must post these
forms on its website and email a website link to the FPPC that displays the form.

C. Tickets distributed by the Agency for which the Agency receives reimbursement
from the Public Official as provided under Section 6a, above, shall not be subject
to the disclosure provisions of Section 7b.

d. For tickets distributed to a department or other unit of the Agency, and not used
by a member of the Board, political appointee, a department head or the General
Manager, the Agency may report the name of the department or other unit of the
Agency and the number of tickets provided to the department or other unit in lieu
of posting the name of the individual employee(s) as otherwise required.

e. Tickets distributed to an organization outside of the Agency pursuant to Section
6e, above, shall be disclosed in accordance with Section 7b, above, but, may be
done by reporting the name, address, description of the organization, and the
number of tickets or passes provided to the organization in lieu of posting the
names of each individual from the organization as otherwise required.

TICKET DISTRIBUTION POLICY February 2020 6of 6

154



ATTACHMENT 2

- SCV TICKET DISTRIBUTION FORM

% WATER COMPLETE THE INFORMATION BELOW

Employee Information:
Name Department

Phone Email Class Title

Event and Ticket Information:

Date(s) of Event / / Description of Event
/ / Face Value of Ticket $

Name of Outside Source of Ticket(s) Provided to Agency

Number of Tickets Received

Ticket(s) Provided to Agency: E Gratuitously |:| Pursuant to Contract

Purpose for Ticket Distribution:
The purpose of the Ticket Distribution Policy is to ensure that tickets, which are resources of Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency (SCV Water), are distributed to further the public purposes of SCV Water.

] Representation of Santa Clarita Valley on federal, state and regional levels.

] Encouragement of, and education about, water conservation programs.

L] Promotion of SCV Water sponsored or supported community events and programs.

] Promotion of specific programs sponsored or supported by SCV Water.

] Promotion of intergovernmental relations through activities and events involving other public entities.

] Promotion of special events sponsored in whole or part by SCV Water.

] Attraction and retention of highly qualified employees in SCV Water service.

] Promotion of SCV Water and the Santa Clarita Valley water community recognition, visibility, and/or
profile on a local, state, national, or international scale.

] Promotion of open government by SCV Water official appearances, participation, and/or availability at
business, local government and/or community events.

] Increasing public exposure to, and awareness of, the various educational programs available to the
public through SCV Water and SCV Water sponsored programs.

] Recognizing or rewarding meritorious service by a SCV Water employee, promoting enhanced SCV
Water employee performance or morale, and recognizing contributions made to SCV Water by former
officials and employees.

Once completed by employee, route to: Supervisor Board Secretary
Initial and Date Initial and Date
Approval of Ticket Distribution:
General Manager Date Ticket(s) can be raffled: | | Yes [ | No

Additionally, the employee must also complete Form 802 (DMS #12605) and submit it to the Board Secretary along
with this Form for posting on the Agency’s website within 15 days of receiving the tickets.

DMS #12604 Original — File (Board Secretary)
CC - Employee
155


edill
Attachment 2


[This page intentionally left blank.]

156



Agency Report of: ATTACHMENT 3

Ceremonial Role Events and Ticket/Pass Distributions A Public Document
1. Agency Name Date Stamp California
Form 802

Santa Clarita Water Agency
Division, Department, or Region (if applicable)

For Official Use Only

Designated Agency Contact (Name, Title)

D Amendment (Must Provide Explanation in Part 3.)

Area Code/Phone Number E-mail
Date of Original Filing:

(month, day, year)

2. Function or Event Information
Does the agency have a ticket policy? Yes[] No[J Face Value of Each Ticket/Pass $

Event Description: Date(s) / / / /
Provide Title/ Explanation

Ticket(s)/Pass(es) provided by agency?  Yes[] No[J Ifno:

Name of Source

Was ticket distribution made at the behest ves[] No[] fYes:
of agency official?

Official’s Name (Last, First)

3. Recipients
* Use Section A to identify the agency’s department or unit. * Use Section B to identify an individual. * Use Section C to identify an outside organization.
Number
A. Name of Agency, Department or Unit of Ticket(s)/ Describe the public purpose made pursuant to the agency’s policy
Passes
. Number
B. Name of Individual of Ticket(s)/ Identify one of the following:
(Last, First) Passes
Ceremonial Role D Other D Income D
If checking “Ceremonial Role” or “Other” describe below:
Ceremonial Role D Other D Income D
If checking “Ceremonial Role” or “Other” describe below:
Cc Name of Outside Organization fNTl"T(bfr / Describe the public purpose made pursuant to the agency’s polic
- include address and description) of Ticket(s) 4 s 5 el [l
(inc Passes

4. Verification

I have read and understand FPPC Regulations 18944.1 and 18942. | have verified that the distribution set forth above, is in accordance
with the requirements.

Signature of Agency Head or Designee Print Name Title (month, day, year)

Comment:

FPPC Form 802 (2/2016)
DMS #12605 FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

157


edill
Attachment 3


158

Agency Report of:

Ceremonial Role Events and Ticket/Pass Distributions

California

A Public Document

This form is for use by all state and local government
agencies. The form identifies persons that receive
admission tickets and passes and describes the public
purpose for the distribution. This form was prepared by
the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) and is
available at www.fppc.ca.gov.

General Information

FPPC Regulation 18944.1 sets out the circumstances
under which an agency’s distribution of tickets to
entertainment events, sporting events, and like occasions
would not result in a gift to individuals that attend the
function. In general, the agency must adopt a policy which
identifies the public purpose served in distributing the
admissions. The Form 802 serves to detail each event
and the public purpose of each ticket distribution. FPPC
Regulation 18942 lists exceptions to reportable gifts,
including ceremonial events, when listed on this form.

When the regulation procedures are followed, persons,
organizations, or agencies who receive admissions

are listed on a Form 802. Agency officials do not report
the admissions on the official’s Statement of Economic
Interests, Form 700, and the value of the admission is not
subject to the gift limit.

The Form 802 also informs the public as to whether the
admissions were made at the behest of an agency official
and whether the behested tickets were provided to an
organization or to specific individuals.

Exception

FPPC This form is not required for admission provided to a
school or university district official, coach, athletic director,
or employee to attend an amateur event performed by
students of that school or university.

Reporting and Public Posting

Ticket Distribution Policies: An agency must post its
ticket policy on its website within 30 days of adoption or
amendment and e-mail a link of the website location to

FPPC at form802@fppc.ca.gov.

Form 802: The use of the ticket or pass under the policy
must be reported on Form 802 and posted on the agency’s
website within 45 days of distribution. A link to the website
location of the forms must be e-mailed to FPPC at
form802@fppc.ca.gov.

The FPPC will post on its website the link to each agency’s
policy and completed forms. It is not necessary to send

an e-mail each time a new Form 802 is posted. Itis

only necessary to submit the link if the posting location
changes.

This form must be maintained as a public document.

Privacy Information Notice

Information requested by the FPPC is used to administer
and enforce the Political Reform Act. Failure to provide
information may be a violation subject to administrative,
criminal, or civil penalties. All reports are public records
available for inspection and reproduction. Direct questions
to FPPC’s General Counsel.

Instructions

Part 1. Agency Identification:

List the agency’s name. Provide a designated agency
contact person, their phone number, and e-mail address.
Mark the amendment box if changing any information on
a previously filed form and include the date of the original
filing.

Part 2. Function or Event Information:

Confirm that your agency has a policy for ticket
distribution. Unless the ceremonial role or income box in
Part 3, Section B, is marked, this form is only applicable if
your agency has a policy.

Complete all of the other required fields that identify the
ticket value, description of event, date(s) and whether the
ticket was provided by the agency or an outside source. If
an agency official behests the tickets, the official’s name is
also required. Use the comment field or an attachment to
explain in full.

Part 3. Ticket Recipients:

This part identifies who uses the tickets. The identification
requirements vary depending upon who received the
tickets and are categorized into three sections. Each
section must list the number of tickets received. Use the
comment field or an attachment to explain in full.

Section A. Report tickets distributed to agency staff,

other than an elected official or governing board member,
pursuant to the agency’s policy. It is not necessary to list
each employee’s name, but identify the unit/department for
which the employee works. The agency must describe the
public purpose associated with the ticket distribution. A
reference to the policy is permissible.

Section B. Report: 1) any agency official who performs

a ceremonial role; 2) any agency official who reports the
value as income; or 3) tickets used by elected officials and
governing board members (including those distributed
pursuant to the agency’s policy).

Section C. Report tickets provided to an organization.
The organization’s name, an address (website url is
permissible), and a brief description of the public purpose
are required.

FPPC Form 802 (2/2016)
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)



Agency Report of: California 802
Ceremonial Role Events and Ticket/Pass Distributions Form

Continuation Sheet A Public Document

Agency Name

Santa Clarita Water Agency

3. Recipients

* Use Section A to identify the agency’s department or unit. * Use Section B to identify an individual. * Use Section C to identify an outside organization.

Number
A. Name of Agency, Department or Unit of Ticket(s)/ Describe the public purpose made pursuant to the agency’s policy
Passes
. Number
B. Name of Individual of Ticket(s)/ Identify one of the following:
(Last, First) Passes
Ceremonial Role D Other D Income D
If checking “Ceremonial Role” or “Other” describe below:
Ceremonial Role D Other D Income D
If checking “Ceremonial Role” or “Other” describe below:
Ceremonial Role D Other D Income D
If checking “Ceremonial Role” or “Other” describe below:
Ceremonial Role D Other D Income D
If checking “Ceremonial Role” or “Other” describe below:
. — Number
C. _Name of Outside Organization of Ticket(s)/ Describe the public purpose made pursuant to the agency’s policy
(include address and description) Passes

FPPC Form 802 (2/2016)
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

159



[This page intentionally left blank.]

160



Sﬂ[ ITEM NO.

7.1
WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM
DATE: January 14, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Eric Campbell

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

SUBJECT:  Approve a Resolution Authorizing (1) the Issuance of One or More Series of
Revenue Bonds by the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority; (2) the
Execution of Certain Documents; and (3) Certain Other Actions

SUMMARY

As the finance team continues to prepare for the upcoming bond issuance, staff recommends
the Finance and Administration Committee recommend to the Board approval of the attached
resolution (Attachment 1) approving various legal documents and authorizing the sale of one or
more series of revenue bonds. The proposed transaction is estimated to price in June 2020 and
would close in July 2020. The attached proposed resolution does not represent a final
commitment to the issuance of bonds. There are several steps remaining to be taken prior to
Staff seeking approval to go forward with the bond issuance, including presentation of the
Offering Document (Official Statement) to the Board in May 2020 for approval, along with
seeking final approval of going forward with the bond issuance.

DISCUSSION
Proposed Resolution
The proposed resolution does the following:

1 Authorizes the issuance of one or more series of revenue bonds to provide funding for
refinancing Series 2010A, 2015A, 2016A and 2017A and provide funding for Agency
capital projects over the next three years that may include:

Castaic Conduit

Distribution System - RV-2 Modifications

ESFP Clearwell/CT Improvements

ESFP Sludge Collection System

ESIPS Pipeline Improvements

Foothill Feeder Connection

Honby Parallel

Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 4

Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 5

Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 6

Magic Mountain Reservoir

Recycled Water Program Phase Il, 2A - Central Park
Recycled Water Program Phase Il, 2B - Vista Canyon

161


edill
Eric Campbell

ajacobs
Item 7.1


162

Recycled Water Program Phase Il, 2C - South End
Recycled Water Program Phase Il, 2D - West Ranch
Rosedale Rio Bravo Extraction

Solar Panel Acquisition Price

PFAS treatment

The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) Resolution (Attachment 1) authorizes the
following:

1 Approves the Installment Purchase Agreement (Attachment 2), which contains the
financial covenants (such as a rate covenant, an additional debt test, etc.), these
covenants are the same as prior transactions, except that the covenants now apply to
the Agency as a whole, rather than as individual divisions.

2 Approves the Continuing Disclosure Certificate (Attachment 3) which is substantially
similar to other Continuing Disclosure Certificates entered into by the Agency, (most
recently in 2018).

3 Approves the Purchase Contract (Attachment 4) with the underwriting team of Citigroup,
Goldman Sachs and Morgan Stanley.

4 Approves Escrow Agreement for Series 2010A (Attachment 5).

5 Approves the Depository Agreement (Attachment 6) which contains the “intercept”
provision used to directly deposit the Agency’s share of the 1% Property Tax moneys
from Los Angeles and Ventura Counties into a special bank account.

6 Approves Amendments to the 1999A Trust Agreement (Attachment 7) and 2018A
Indenture of Trust (Attachment 8) and Installment Purchase Agreement (Attachment 9)
to implement the intercept provision as described in 5 above.

7 Authorizes the Agency to take the required steps to execute and deliver all documents
necessary to consummate the sale and delivery of bonds.

Refunding Overview

The proposed refinancing of Series 2010A, 2015A, 2016A and 2017A is a critical step in the
post-merger integration as it eliminates the need to maintain four separate sets of accounting
records. Streamlining the accounting requirements by consolidating financial reporting will result
in increased efficiency of accounting and administrative staff. By eliminating the four separate
sets of accounting records, it will be possible to create a path to eliminate the wholesale rate
and provide uniformity among retail rates for all Agency retail customers. No immediate rate
action would be required to support the finance plan.

The refunding plan assumes the pricing of the tax-exempt refunding of Series 2010A in July of
2020, and taxable refunding of Series 2015A, 2016A and 2017A. Taxable refunding bonds are
needed since the call dates of these Series are more than 90 days after the expected closing in
July 2020. Under tax code restrictions, tax-exempt proceeds cannot be issued to refund
outstanding tax-exempt bonds more than 90 days from the call date of the refunded bonds.
Based on current market conditions, the aggregate refunding is estimated to generate over 3%
in net present value savings (over $6 million).



Legal Documents

The proposed Instaliment Purchase Agreement (Attachment 2) is between the Agency and the
USCVJPA and governs how the Agency would make installment payments to the USCVJPA. It
requires revenues to be maintained at 120% of annual debt service and operating and
maintenance costs. The proposed Continuing Disclosure Certificate (Attachment 3) provides
that the Agency would provide information on any issues that may affect its debt financing
transactions on annual basis. The proposed Purchase Contract (Attachment 4) governs the
purchase of the Revenue Bonds by the Underwriter. The proposed Escrow Agreement
(Attachment 5) govern the use of proceeds to pay and retire Series 2010A, 2015A, 2016A and
2017A.

Set forth below are good faith estimates of Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., the municipal
advisor, as required under Section 5852.1 of the California Government Code (the “Code”). The
following estimates have no bearing on, and should not be misconstrued as, any not-to-
exceed financial parameters authorized by resolution.

(a) The true interest cost of the bonds is estimated at 3.04%, calculated as provided in
Section 5852.1(a)(1)(A) of the Code.

(b) The finance charge of the Bonds, including all fees and charges paid to third parties, is
estimated at $1,205,520.

(c) Proceeds of the Bonds received by the Agency for the sale of the Bonds, including the
estimated principal amount of the proposed Bonds of $252,760,000, plus the proposed
premium of $17,565,648 and the proposed cash contribution of $2,000,000 and the prior
debt service reserve fund amount of $5,349,556, less the finance charges set forth in (b)
above, is equal to $276,469,684.

(d) The total payment amount calculated as provided in Section 5852.1(a)(1)(D) of the Code
is estimated at $361,911,913.

The foregoing are estimates and the final costs will depend on market conditions and can be
expected to vary from the estimated amounts set forth above.

Next Actions

The Preliminary Official Statement (POS) will be prepared by the end of April 2020. In late April
2020, the POS and legal documents will be distributed to the rating agency analysts. In May
2020, the Board and the USCVJPA will be asked to approve the POS and authorize staff to
complete the transaction. The proposed transaction is estimated to price in June 2020 and close
in July 2020.

On January 13, 2020, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’'s
recommendation to approve a resolution authorizing (1) the issuance of one or more series of
revenue bonds by the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority; (2) the execution of
certain documents; and (3) certain other actions.

163



FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

There are no financial obligations or commitments incurred by approving the proposed
documents.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve a
resolution authorizing (1) the Issuance of One or More Series of Revenue Bonds by the Upper
Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority, (2) the Execution of Certain Documents; and (3)
Certain Other Actions.

EC

Attachments

P
/\f‘ﬂ Li’—"‘ #:

164


ajacobs
Matt


ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY:
(1) REQUESTING THE ISSUANCE BY THE UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF REVENUE BONDS;
(2) AUTHORIZING AN INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT,
A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE, AN ESCROW AGREEMENT
AND A PURCHASE CONTRACT; AND
(3) AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (the
“Agency”) has determined that it may be in the best interest of the Agency to authorize the
acquisition of certain capital improvements for the water system, to refinance the acquisition of
certain capital improvements and to take certain actions with respect to other outstanding bonds
and certificates of participation; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined to request the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers
Authority (the “Authority”) to issue one or more series of revenue bonds to effect such financing
and refinancing and to pay the costs of issuance in connection therewith;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency hereby
finds, determines, declares and resolves as follows:

SECTION 1. The issuance by the Authority of one or more series of revenue bonds (“Bonds”)
in the principal amount not to exceed $275,000,000 to finance the acquisition of capital
improvements, to refinance the acquisition of capital improvements and to pay the costs of
issuance in connection therewith is hereby requested.

SECTION 2. The Installment Purchase Agreement, in substantially the form on file with the
Secretary of the Board, is hereby approved, subject to final approval as to form by General
Counsel and the law firm of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation
(“Bond Counsel”). The President, Vice President, General Manager, Assistant General
Manager and Secretary (the “Authorized Officers”), each acting singly, are hereby authorized
and directed to execute and deliver such Installment Purchase Agreement with such changes,
insertions and omissions as may be approved by Bond Counsel, said execution by an
Authorized Officer being conclusive evidence of such approval.

SECTION 3. The Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in substantially the form on file with the
Secretary of the Board, is hereby approved, subject to final approval as to form by General
Counsel and Bond Counsel. Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Certificate with such changes,
insertions and omissions as may be approved by Bond Counsel, said execution by an
Authorized Officer being conclusive evidence of such approval.

SECTION 4. The Escrow Agreement (2010A), in substantially the form on file with the
Secretary of the Board, is hereby approved, subject to final approval as to form by General
Counsel and Bond Counsel. Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver such Escrow Agreement (2010A) with such changes, insertions
and omissions as may be approved by Bond Counsel, said execution by an Authorized Officer
being conclusive evidence of such approval.

165


edill
Attachment 1


166

SECTION 5. The Depository Agreement, in substantially the form on file with the Secretary of
the Board, is hereby approved, subject to final approval as to form by General Counsel and
Bond Counsel. Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver the Depository Agreement with such changes, insertions and omissions as
may be approved by Bond Counsel, said execution by an Authorized Officer being conclusive
evidence of such approval.

SECTION 6. The Chief Financial and Administrative Officer is hereby directed to send a letter
to each of the County of Los Angeles and the County of Ventura (the “Instruction Letter”)
directing that all amounts allocated by the respective County from the 1% ad valorem tax to the
Agency after the date hereof shall be deposited by each County directly into the 1% Property
Tax Account created pursuant to the Depository Agreement.

SECTION 7. Amendment No. 1 to Trust Agreement (1999A), in substantially the form on file
with the Secretary of the Board, is hereby approved, subject to final approval as to form by
General Counsel and Bond Counsel. Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Amendment with such changes, insertions
and omissions as may be approved by Bond Counsel, said execution by an Authorized Officer
being conclusive evidence of such approval.

SECTION 8. Amendment No. 1 to Indenture (2018A), in substantially the form on file with the
Secretary of the Board, is hereby approved, subject to final approval as to form by General
Counsel and Bond Counsel. Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver such Amendment with such changes, insertions and omissions
as may be approved by Bond Counsel, said execution by an Authorized Officer being
conclusive evidence of such approval.

SECTION 9. Amendment No. 1 to Installment Purchase Agreement (2018A), in substantially
the form on file with the Secretary of the Board, is hereby approved, subject to final approval as
to form by General Counsel and Bond Counsel. Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is
hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Amendment with such changes,
insertions and omissions as may be approved by Bond Counsel, said execution by an
Authorized Officer being conclusive evidence of such approval.

SECTION 10. The Purchase Contract with Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as representative, in
substantially the form on file with the Secretary of the Board, is hereby approved. Each
Authorized Officer, acting singly, or the designee thereof are hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver the Purchase Contract with such changes, insertions and omissions as may
be approved by the person executing the same, said execution by such Authorized Officer being
conclusive evidence of such approval; provided, however, that in no event shall the principal
amount of the Bonds exceed $275,000,000, nor shall the underwriter’s discount exceed 0.20%
of the principal amount of the Bonds, nor shall the true interest cost of the Bonds exceed 4.00%.

SECTION 11. The Board acknowledges that the good faith estimates required by Section
5852.1 of the California Government Code are disclosed in paragraph 4 to the staff report and
are available to the public at the meeting at which this resolution is approved.

SECTION 12. Each Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to apply amounts on deposit
in the Newhall County Water Division reserve account to the prepayment of the two outstanding
loans to which the Agency is a party as successor to the Newhall County Water District, such
prepayment to occur prior to or in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.



SECTION 13. Each Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to apply amounts on deposit
in the Santa Clarita Water Division reserve account to fund a portion of the cost of refunding the
Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A
(Santa Clarita Water Division), such application of funds to occur prior to or in connection with
the issuance of the Bonds.

SECTION 14. Each Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to fund the final payment of
principal and interest on the Castaic Lake Water Agency Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2014A due on August 1, 2020, prior to or in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

SECTION 15. Each Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to fund the final payment of
principal and interest with respect to the Castaic Lake Water Agency Adjustable Rate Refunding
Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2008A (1994 Refunding Project) (the “2008
COPs”) due on August 1, 2020, prior to or in connection with the issuance of the Bonds or to
fund the early tender of the 2008 COPs prior to or in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

SECTION 16. Each Authorized Officer and such other officers of the Agency are authorized and
directed to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents, including an
insurance agreement with a municipal bond insurer, which they may deem necessary or
advisable in order to consummate the sale and delivery of the Bonds, and otherwise effectuate
the purposes of this Resolution, and such actions previously taken by such officers are hereby
ratified and confirmed. Bond Counsel is hereby directed to revise the series designations and
document dates with respect to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate, the Escrow Agreement, the referenced Amendments and the Purchase Contract
based on when the Bonds are actually issued. Such revisions shall be deemed to be ministerial
and shall not constitute an amendment to any of the documents so revised.

SECTION 17. Unless otherwise defined herein, all terms used herein and not otherwise defined
shall have the meanings given such terms in the Installment Purchase Agreement unless the
context otherwise clearly requires.

SECTION 18. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

167



[This page intentionally left blank.]

168



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 1/3/20

ATTACHMENT 2

INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT
by and between
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
and

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
Dated as of February 1, 2020

Relating to

S
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020A

$
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2020B

169


edill
Attachment 2


170

INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into and dated as of
February 1, 2020, by and between SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY, an agency
duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the “Agency”),
and UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, a joint exercise of powers
authority duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the
“Authority”).

WHEREAS, the Agency proposes to undertake the acquisition of certain capital
improvements to the Water System, as more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto (the
“Project”);

WHEREAS, the Agency is authorized under the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Act,
Chapter 833 of Statutes of 2017, and all laws amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto, to acquire
property for the Water System;

WHEREAS, the Agency is authorized pursuant to Article 11 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of
Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code to refinance the acquisition of property for the Water
System (the “Refunding Project”);

WHEREAS, the Authority has agreed to assist the Agency by financing the 2020 Project and
refinancing the Refunding Project;

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, as amended,
constituting Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California, to
assist its members in the financing and refinancing of the acquisition of capital improvements;

WHEREAS, the Agency and the Authority have duly authorized the execution of this
Installment Purchase Agreement; and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to have happened and to
have been performed precedent to and in connection with the execution and delivery of this
Installment Purchase Agreement do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and
due time, form and manner as required by law, and the parties hereto are now duly authorized to
execute and enter into this Installment Purchase Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THESE PREMISES AND OF THE
MUTUAL AGREEMENTS AND COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN AND FOR OTHER
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE PARTIES HERETO DO HEREBY AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:



ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1.  Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this
section shall for all purposes hereof and of any amendment hereof or supplement hereto and of any
report or other document mentioned herein or therein have the meanings defined herein, the
following definitions to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of any of the
terms defined herein. All capitalized terms used herein and not defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed thereto in the Indenture.

Acquisition Fund. The term “Acquisition Fund” means the Agency account designated by
the Agency as account number , together with other accounts created in the future and
designated by action of the Board of Directors of the Agency as a part of the Acquisition Fund
created pursuant to Section 3.6 hereof.

Agency. The term “Agency” means Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, an agency duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, including the Law
including as the successor to the Castaic Lake Water Agency and the Newhall County Water District.

Authority. The term “Authority” means Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority, a
joint exercise of powers authority created pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as
of June 1, 2011, as amended and restated pursuant to the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of
Powers Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2018, each by and between the Agency and the Devil’s Den
Water District.

Bonds. The term “Bonds” means all revenue bonds or notes of the Agency authorized,
executed, issued and delivered by the Agency, the payments of which are on a parity with the 2020
Installment Payments and which are secured by a pledge of and lien on the Revenues, and payable
from Net Revenues, subordinate to the Senior Obligations.

Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The term “Continuing Disclosure Certificate” means that
certain Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated the date of issuance of the 2020A Bonds, of the
Agency, as originally executed and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the
terms thereof.

Contracts. The term “Contracts” means this Installment Purchase Agreement and any
amendments and supplements hereto, and all contracts of the Agency previously or hereafter
authorized and executed by the Agency which are payable on a parity with the 2020 Installment
Payments and which are secured by a pledge and lien on the Revenues as described in Section 5.1
hereof, including but not limited to the 2018 A Installment Purchase Agreement, and any credit
facility agreement that may be entered into by the Agency in connection with the issuance of tax
revenue anticipation notes issued by the Agency outstanding from time to time, and which are
payable from Net Revenues subordinate to the Senior Obligations.

Corporation. The term “Corporation” means Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Financing
Corporation, a nonprofit public benefit corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue
of the laws of the State of California.

171



172

Debt Service. The term “Debt Service” means, for any Fiscal Year, the sum of:

1) the interest payable during such Fiscal Year on all outstanding Bonds,
assuming that all outstanding serial Bonds are retired as scheduled and that all outstanding term
Bonds are prepaid or paid from sinking fund payments as scheduled (except to the extent that such
interest is capitalized or is reasonably anticipated to be reimbursed to the Agency by the United
States of America pursuant to Section 54AA of the Code (Section 1531 of Title I of Division B of the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. No. 111-5, 23 Stat. 115 (2009), enacted
February 17, 2009)), or any future similar program);

(ii) that portion of the principal amount of all outstanding serial Bonds maturing
in such Fiscal Year (but excluding Excluded Principal);

(iii)  that portion of the principal amounts of all outstanding term Bonds required
to be prepaid or paid in such Fiscal Year (but excluding Excluded Principal); and

(iv)  that portion of the Installment Payments required to be made during such
Fiscal Year (except to the extent that the interest portion of such Installment Payments is capitalized
or is reasonably anticipated to be reimbursed to the Agency by the United States of America pursuant
to Section 54AA of the Code (Section 1531 of Title I of Division B of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. No. 111-5, 23 Stat. 115 (2009), enacted February 17, 2009)), or
any future similar program and excluding Excluded Principal);

provided that, as to any such Bonds or Installment Payments bearing or comprising interest at
other than a fixed rate, the rate of interest used to calculate Debt Service shall be assumed to bear
interest at a fixed rate equivalent to the higher of: (i) the then current variable interest rate borne by
such Bonds or Contracts plus 1%; and (ii) the highest average variable rate borne over a 6 month
period during the preceding 24 months by outstanding variable rate debt issued by the Agency or, if
no such variable rate debt is at the time outstanding, by variable rate debt of which the interest rate is
computed by reference to an index comparable to that to be utilized in determining the interest rate
for the debt then proposed to be issued;

provided further that if any series or issue of such Bonds or Installment Payments have
twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the aggregate principal amount of such series or issue due in
any one year (and such principal is not Excluded Principal), Debt Service shall be determined for the
Fiscal Year of determination as if the principal of and interest on such series or issue of such Bonds
or Installment Payments were being paid from the date of incurrence thereof in substantially equal
annual amounts over a period of thirty (30) years from the date of calculation;

provided further that the amount on deposit in a debt service reserve fund on any date of
calculation of Debt Service shall be deducted from the amount of principal due at the final maturity
of the Bonds and Contracts for which such debt service reserve fund was established and in each
preceding year until such amount is exhausted,;

provided further that Debt Service shall be reduced by the amount of investment earnings
credited to any debt service reserve fund created with respect to Contracts or Bonds; and




provided further that if the Bonds or Contracts constitute Paired Obligations, the interest rate
on such Bonds or Contracts shall be the resulting linked rate or the effective fixed interest rate to be
paid by the Agency with respect to such Paired Obligations.

Depository Agreement. The term “Depository Agreement” means the Depository
Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between the Agency and U.S. Bank National
Association, as depository agent, as such Depository Agreement may be supplemented or amended in
accordance with the terms thereof.

Event of Default. The term “Event of Default” means an event described in Section 8.1.

Excluded Principal. The term “Excluded Principal” means each payment of principal of any
Bond or Contract for which there is on file with the Trustee (i) a certificate of an Independent
Municipal Advisor to the effect that such Bond or Contract is commercial paper or otherwise of a
revolving or short-term nature and has a maturity of less than 42 months and (ii) a certificate of an
Authorized Representative to the effect that the Agency intends to pay such principal from the
proceeds of Bonds or Contracts or other bonds, notes or other obligations of the Agency. No such
determination shall affect the security for such Bonds or Contracts or the obligation of the Agency to
pay such Bonds or Contracts from Net Revenues.

Fiscal Year. The term “Fiscal Year” means the period beginning on July 1 of each year and
ending on the last day of June of the succeeding year, or any other twelve-month period selected and
designated as the official Fiscal Year of the Agency.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The term “Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles” means the uniform accounting and reporting procedures prescribed by the California
State Controller or his successor for public agencies in the State of California, or failing the
prescription of such procedures means generally accepted accounting principles as presented and
recommended by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants or its successor, or by the
National Council on Governmental Accounting or its successor, or by any other generally accepted
authority on such principles.

Indenture. The term “Indenture” means the Indenture of Trust, dated as of February 1, 2020,
by and between the Authority and the Trustee, as originally executed and as it may from time to time
be amended or supplemented in accordance with its terms.

Independent Certified Public Accountant. The term “Independent Certified Public
Accountant” means any firm of certified public accountants appointed by the Agency, and each of
whom is independent pursuant to the Statement on Auditing Standards No. 1 of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Independent Municipal Advisor. The term “Independent Municipal Advisor” means a
financial consultant or firm of such consultants appointed by the Agency, and who, or each of whom:
(1) is in fact independent and not under domination of the Agency; (2) does not have any substantial
interest, direct or indirect, with the Agency; (3) is registered as a “municipal advisor,” as defined in
Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and (4) is not connected with the
Agency as an officer or employee of the Agency, but who may be regularly retained to make reports
to the Agency.

173



174

Initial Rating Requirement. The term “Initial Rating Requirement” means a long term debt
rating of A3 or better by Moody’s and A- or better by S&P.

Installment Payment Date. The term “Installment Payment Date” means any date on which
Installment Payments are scheduled to be paid by the Agency under and pursuant to any Contract.

Installment Payments. The term “Installment Payments” means the installment payments of
interest and principal scheduled to be paid by the Agency under and pursuant to the Contracts.

Installment Purchase Agreement. The term “Installment Purchase Agreement” means this
Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between the Agency and the
Authority, as originally executed and as it may from time to time be amended or supplemented in
accordance herewith.

Law. The term “Law” means Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Act, Chapter 833 of
Statutes of 2017, and all laws amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto and Article 11 of
Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code.

Manager. The term ‘“Manager” means the General Manager of the Agency, or any other
person designated by the General Manager to act on behalf of the General Manager.

Minimum Rating Requirement. The term “Minimum Rating Requirement” means a long
term debt rating of Baa2 by Moody’s or BBB by S&P.

Net Proceeds. The term “Net Proceeds” means, when used with respect to any casualty
insurance or condemnation award, the proceeds from such insurance or condemnation award
remaining after payment of all expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in the collection of such
proceeds.

Net Revenues. The term “Net Revenues” means, for any Fiscal Year, the Revenues for such
Fiscal Year less Senior Debt Service, Operation and Maintenance Costs for such Fiscal Year and 1%
Property Tax Receipts applied to pay amounts with respect to the 2018A Installment Purchase
Agreement for such Fiscal Year.

1999 Installment Purchase Agreement. The term “1999 Installment Purchase Agreement”
means the Installment Purchase Agreement, by and between the Agency and the Corporation, dated
as of June 1, 1999.

1% Property Tax Account. The term “1% Property Tax Account” means account in the
Revenue Fund contained pursuant to Section 5.2 hereof.

1% Property Tax Receipts. The term “1% Property Tax Receipts” means amounts received
by the Agency from the counties of Los Angeles and Ventura from the levy by such counties of the
1% ad valorem property tax.

Operation and Maintenance Costs. The term “Operation and Maintenance Costs” means:
(i) costs spent or incurred for maintenance and operation of the Water System calculated in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, including (among other things) the
reasonable expenses of management and repair and other expenses necessary to maintain and
preserve the Water System in good repair and working order, and including administrative costs of




the Agency that are charged directly or apportioned to the Water System, including but not limited to
salaries and wages of employees, payments to the Public Employees Retirement System, overhead,
insurance, taxes (if any), fees of auditors, accountants, consultants, attorneys or engineers and
insurance premiums, and including all other reasonable and necessary costs of the Agency or charges
(other than debt service payments) required to be paid by it to comply with the terms of the 2020A
Bonds or of this Installment Purchase Agreement or any Contract or of any resolution or indenture
authorizing the issuance of any Bonds or of such Bonds, or payments, if any, required in connection
with the Water Contract; and (ii) all payments with respect to Operation and Maintenance
Obligations; but excluding in all cases (i) depreciation, replacement and obsolescence charges or
reserves therefor, amortization of intangibles, including amortization of water rights, unrealized
losses in investments, write offs of the value of any impaired assets or other bookkeeping entries of a
similar nature and (ii) all payments with respect to Operation and Maintenance Obligation, but
excluding in all cases depreciation, replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor and
amortization of intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature, and any amounts
transferred to the Rate Stabilization Fund.

Operation and Maintenance Obligation. The term “Operation and Maintenance Obligation”
means any contractual obligation with respect to any facilities, properties, structures, works, services,
water or rights to receive water, or any loan of credit to or guaranty of debts, claims or liabilities of
any other person (including a joint powers agency of which the Agency is a member) with respect to
any facilities, properties, structures, works, services, water or rights to receive water, so long as in
each case the payments thereunder are designated as Operation and Maintenance Costs by the Board
of Directors of the Agency. Bonds and Contracts shall not constitute Operation and Maintenance
Obligations.

Paired Obligation Provider. The term “Paired Obligation Provider” means a party to a Paired
Obligation other than the Agency.

Paired Obligations. The term “Paired Obligations” means any Bond or Contract (or portion
thereof) designated as Paired Obligations in the resolution, indenture or other document authorizing
the issuance or execution and delivery thereof, which are issued or executed and delivered: (i) the
principal of which, at the time of adoption or execution of the resolution, indenture or other
document authorizing the issuance or execution thereof, is of equal amount maturing and to be
redeemed or prepaid (or cancelled after acquisition thereof) on the same dates and in the same
amounts; and (ii) the interest rates with respect to which, taken together, are reasonably expected, at
the time of adoption or execution of the resolution, indenture or other document authorizing the
issuance or execution thereof, to result in a fixed interest rate obligation of the Agency for the term of
such Bond or Contract, as certified by an Independent Municipal Advisor in writing, and which
comply with the provisions of Section 10.15 hereof.

Parity Project. The term “Parity Project” means any additions, betterments, extensions or
improvements to the Water System designated by the Board of Directors of the Agency as a Parity
Project, the acquisition and construction of which has been or will be paid for with the proceeds of
any Contracts or Bonds.

Purchase Price. The term “Purchase Price” means the principal amount plus interest thereon
owed by the Agency to the Authority under the terms hereof as provided in Section 4.1.

175



176

Rate Stabilization Fund. The term “Rate Stabilization Fund” means the fund by that name
continued pursuant to Section 5.5 hereof.

Refunding Project. The term “Refunding Project” means the additions, betterments,
extensions and improvements to the Water System described as the Refunding Project in Exhibit B
hereto.

Revenue Fund. The term “Revenue Fund” means the fund previously established by the
Agency and continued by the terms of Section 5.2 hereof.

Revenues. The term “Revenues” means all income, rents, rates, fees, charges and other
moneys derived from the ownership or operation of the Water System on or after the date hereof,
including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

@) all income, rents, rates, fees, charges, business interruption insurance proceeds or
other moneys derived by the Agency from the sale, furnishing and supplying of the water or other
services, facilities, and commodities sold, furnished or supplied through the facilities of or in the
conduct or operation of the business of the Water System;

(i1) the earnings on and income derived from the investment of such income, rents, rates,
fees, charges, or other moneys, including Agency reserves and the Rate Stabilization Fund;

(iii))  the proceeds of any facility capacity fees or any other connection fees collected by
the Agency in connection with the Water System;

(iv)  the proceeds of any stand-by or water availability charges collected by the Agency in
connection with the Water System;

v) amounts received by the Agency from the counties of Los Angeles and Ventura from
the levy by such counties of the 1% ad valorem property tax;

but excluding in all cases (w) all taxes and assessments, ad valorem or otherwise (including
investment earnings thereon), levied and received by the Agency and restricted by law to be applied
to the payment of the Water Contract and related costs, (X) customers’ deposits or any other deposits
or advances subject to refund until such deposits or advances have become the property of the
Agency, (y) excluding any proceeds of taxes or assessments restricted by law to be used by the
Agency to pay bonds hereafter issued and (z) any and all revenues derived from the ownership or
operation of or a connection with Separate Facilities.

“Revenues” shall also include all amounts transferred from the Rate Stabilization Fund to the
Revenue Fund with respect to any Fiscal Year in accordance with Section 5.5 hereof and shall not
include any amounts transferred from the Revenue Fund to the Rate Stabilization Fund with respect
to any Fiscal Year in accordance with Section 5.2(d) hereof.

Senior Debt Service. The term “Senior Debt Service” means Debt Service as such term is
defined in the 1999 Installment Purchase Agreement, which definition is incorporated herein by
reference.




Senior Obligations. The term “Senior Obligations” means the 1999 Installment Purchase
Agreement, which contract is payable from Revenues prior to the Installment Payments, the Bonds
and the Contracts.

Separate Facilities. The term “Separate Facilities” means any facilities acquired or financed
by the Agency on or after the date hereof and which were not financed from the proceeds of Bonds or
Contracts of the Agency and which facilities are determined by the Board of Directors of the Agency
to be Separate Facilities.

Subordinate Obligations. The term “Subordinate Obligations” means all revenue bonds,
notes or other obligations of the Agency and all contracts of the Agency, which are secured by a
pledge and lien on the Revenues subordinate to the pledge of and lien on the Revenues securing the
Installment Payments described in Section 5.1 hereof and which are payable from Net Revenues
subordinate to the Installment Payments.

Trustee. The term “Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association, Los Angeles,
California, acting in its capacity as Trustee under and pursuant to the Indenture, and its successors
and assigns.

2018A Installment Purchase Agreement. The term “2018A Installment Purchase
Agreement” means the Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2018, by and between
the Agency and the Authority, as supplemented by Supplement No. 1 to the Installment Purchase
Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between the Agency and the Corporation.

2020 Installment Payment Date. The term “2020 Installment Payment Date” means the
second Business Day preceding each Interest Payment Date pursuant to the Indenture.

2020 Installment Payments. The term “2020 Installment Payments” means the Installment
Payments scheduled to be paid by the Agency under and pursuant hereto.

2020 Project. The term “2020 Project” means the additions, betterments, extensions and
improvements to the Water System described as the 2020 Project in Exhibit A hereto.

Water Contract. The term “Water Contract” means the Contract between the State of
California Department of Water Resources and the Agency, as successor to the Castaic Lake Water
Agency, dated April 30, 1963, and any renewal, amendment or supplement thereof from time to time.

Water Service. The term “Water Service” means the water distribution service made
available or provided by the Water System.

Water System. The term “Water System” means the whole and each and every part of the
water system of the Agency, including the portion thereof existing on the date hereof and all
additions, betterments, extensions and improvements to such water system or any part thereof
hereafter acquired or constructed, and including any retail water distribution facilities acquired after
the date hereof unless the Board of Directors of the Agency determines by resolution that such
facilities shall not be included in the Water System, but in either event not including Separate
Facilities.

177



178

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1.  Representations by the Agency. The Agency makes the following
representations:

(a) The Agency is an agency duly organized and existing under and pursuant to
the laws of the State of California.

(b) The Agency has full legal right, power and authority to enter into this
Installment Purchase Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder, to carry out and
consummate all other transactions contemplated by this Installment Purchase Agreement, and the
Agency has complied with the provisions of the Law in all matters relating to such transactions.

(©) By proper action, the Agency has duly authorized the execution, delivery and
due performance of this Installment Purchase Agreement.

(d) The Agency will not take or, to the extent within its power, permit any action
to be taken which results in the interest paid for the installment purchase of the 2020 Project and the
portion of the Refunding Project financed from the proceeds of the 2020A Bonds under the terms of
this Installment Purchase Agreement included in the gross income of the Authority or its assigns for
purposes of federal or State of California personal income taxation.

(e) The Agency has determined that it is necessary and proper for Agency uses
and purposes within the terms of the Law that the Agency acquire the 2020 Project and refinance the
Refunding Project in the manner provided for in this Installment Purchase Agreement.

Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties by the Authority. The Authority makes the
following representations and warranties:

(a) The Authority is a joint exercise of powers authority duly organized and in
good standing under the laws of the State of California, has full legal right, power and authority to
enter into this Installment Purchase Agreement and to carry out and consummate all transactions
contemplated by this Installment Purchase Agreement and by proper action has duly authorized the
execution and delivery and due performance of this Installment Purchase Agreement.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Installment Purchase Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions herein contemplated will not violate any provision of law, any
order of any court or other agency of government, or any indenture, material agreement or other
instrument to which the Authority is now a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets is
bound, or be in conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute a default (with due notice or the
passage of time or both) under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument, or result in the
creation or imposition of any prohibited lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon
any of the properties or assets of the Authority.

© The Authority will not take or permit any action to be taken which results in
interest paid for the installment purchase of the 2020 Project and the portion of the Refunding Project
financed from the proceeds of the 2020A Bonds under the terms of this Installment Purchase



Agreement being included in the gross income of the Authority for purposes of federal or State of
California personal income taxation.

ARTICLE III
ACQUISITION OF THE PROJECT

Section 3.1. Sale of the Refunding Project to Authority. In consideration for the
Authority’s assistance in refinancing the Refunding Project, the Agency agrees to sell, and hereby
sells, to the Authority and the Authority agrees to purchase, and hereby purchases from the Agency,
the Refunding Project.

Section 3.2.  Purchase and Sale of the 2020 Project and the Refunding Project. In
consideration for the 2020 Installment Payments as set forth in Section 4.2, the Authority agrees to
sell, and hereby sells, to the Agency, and the Agency agrees to purchase, and hereby purchases, from
the Authority, the 2020 Project and the Refunding Project at the purchase price specified in Section
4.1 hereof and otherwise in the manner and in accordance with the provisions of this Installment
Purchase Agreement.

Section 3.3.  Title. All right, title and interest in the Refunding Project shall vest in the
Agency immediately upon execution and delivery of this Installment Purchase Agreement. Each
component of the 2020 Project shall vest in the Agency immediately upon acquisition or construction
thereof. Such vesting shall occur without further action by the Authority or the Agency and the
Authority shall, if requested by the Agency or, if necessary to assure such automatic vesting, deliver
any and all documents required to assume such vesting.

Section 3.4.  Acquisition and Construction of the 2020 Project. The Authority hereby
agrees to cause the 2020 Project, and any additions or modifications thereto to be constructed,
acquired or installed by the Agency as its agent, and the Agency shall enter into contracts and
provide for, as agent of the Authority, the complete construction, acquisition and installation of the
2020 Project. The Agency hereby agrees that the Agency will cause the construction, acquisition and
installation of the 2020 Project to be diligently performed after the deposit of funds with the Trustee
pursuant to Section 3.02 of the Indenture, upon satisfactory completion of design work and
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act and approval by the Board of Directors of
the Agency, unforeseeable delays beyond the reasonable control of the Agency only excepted. It is
hereby expressly understood and agreed that the Authority shall be under no liability of any kind or
character whatsoever for the payment of any cost of the 2020 Project and that all such costs and
expenses shall be paid by the Agency, regardless of whether the funds deposited in the Acquisition
Fund are sufficient to cover all such costs and expenses.

Section 3.5.  Changes to the 2020 Project. The Agency may substitute other improvements
for those listed as components of the 2020 Project in Exhibit A hereto, but only if the Agency first
files with the Authority and the Trustee a statement of the Agency: (a) identifying the improvements
to be deleted from such Exhibit and the improvements to replace such deleted improvements; and (b)
stating that the estimated costs of construction, acquisition and installation of the substituted
improvements are not less than such costs for the improvements previously planned to be paid from
the proceeds of the 2020A Bonds.

10

179



180

Section 3.6.  Acquisition Fund. There is hereby created with the Agency a fund to be
known as the “Acquisition Fund,” which the Agency shall maintain and hold in trust separate and
apart from other funds held by it. The moneys in the Acquisition Fund shall be applied to the
payment of the costs of acquisition of the 2020 Project and of expenses incidental thereto. Before
any payment is made from the Acquisition Fund, the Manager shall cause to be filed with the Chief
Financial and Administrative Officer of the Agency a Written Requisition in the form set forth in
Exhibit C hereto. Upon receipt of such Written Requisition, the Chief Financial and Administrative
Officer of the Agency will pay the amount set forth therein. The Chief Financial and Administrative
Officer of the Agency need not make any such payment if he or she has received notice of any lien,
right to lien or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys
so to be paid, which has not been released and will not be released simultaneously with such
payment.

When the 2020 Project shall have been constructed and acquired in accordance with this
Installment Purchase Agreement, a statement of the Agency stating the fact and date of such
acquisition, construction and acceptance and stating that all of such costs of acquisition and
incidental expenses have been determined and paid (or that all of such costs and expenses have been
paid less specified claims which are subject to dispute and for which a retention in the Acquisition
Fund is to be maintained in the full amount of such claims until such dispute is resolved), shall be
delivered to the Chief Financial and Administrative Officer of the Agency and the Trustee by the
Manager. Upon the receipt of such statement, the Chief Financial and Administrative Officer of the
Agency shall transfer any remaining balance in the Acquisition Fund not needed for Acquisition
Fund purposes (but less the amount of any such retention which shall be certified to the Chief
Financial and Administrative Officer of the Agency by the Manager) to the Revenue Fund.

ARTICLE 1V
SERIES 2020A INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS
Section 4.1.  Purchase Price.

(a) The Purchase Price to be paid by the Agency hereunder to the Authority is the
sum of the principal amount of the Agency’s obligations hereunder plus the interest to accrue on the
unpaid balance of such principal amount from the date hereof over the term hereof, subject to
prepayment as provided in Article VIL.

(b) The principal amount of the payments to be made by the Agency hereunder is
set forth in a certificate of the Manager to be attached hereto as Exhibit B.

© The interest to accrue on the unpaid balance of such principal amount to be
made by the Agency hereunder is set forth in a certificate of the Manager to be attached hereto as
Exhibit B, and shall be paid by the Agency as and constitute interest paid on the principal amount of
the Agency’s obligations hereunder.

Section4.2. 2020 Installment Payments. The Agency shall, subject to its rights of
prepayment provided in Article VII, pay the Authority the Purchase Price in installment payments of
interest and principal in the amounts and on the 2020 Installment Payment Dates as set forth in a
certificate of the Manager, a copy of which shall be delivered to the Trustee by the Agency and is
attached hereto as Exhibit B.

11



Each 2020 Installment Payment shall be paid to the Authority in lawful money of the United
States of America. In the event that the Agency fails to make any of the payments required to be
made by it under this section, such payment shall continue as an obligation of the Agency until such
amount shall have been fully paid and the Agency agrees to pay the same with interest accruing
thereon at the rate or rates of interest then applicable to the remaining unpaid principal balance of the
2020 Installment Payments if paid in accordance with their terms.

The obligation of the Agency to make the 2020 Installment Payments is absolute and
unconditional, and until such time as the Purchase Price shall have been paid in full (or provision for
the payment thereof shall have been made pursuant to Article IX), the Agency will not discontinue or
suspend any 2020 Installment Payments required to be made by it under this section when due,
whether or not the 2020 Project or any part thereof is operating or operable or has been completed, or
its use is suspended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed or terminated in whole or in part, and such
payments shall not be subject to reduction whether by offset or otherwise and shall not be conditional
upon the performance or nonperformance by any party of any agreement for any cause whatsoever.

ARTICLE V
SECURITY

Section 5.1.  Pledge of Revenues. All Revenues, the Revenue Fund, the Rate Stabilization
Fund and all amounts on deposit in such funds are hereby irrevocably pledged to the payment of the
2020 Installment Payments as provided herein, subject however to the pledge thereon securing
Senior Obligations now in existence, and the Revenues shall not be used for any other purpose while
any of the 2020 Installment Payments remain unpaid; provided that out of the Revenues and amounts
on deposit in the Revenue Fund and the Rate Stabilization Fund, there may be apportioned such sums
for such purposes as are expressly permitted herein. This pledge, together with the pledge created by
all other Contracts and Bonds, shall constitute a second lien on Revenues, the Revenue Fund and the
Rate Stabilization Fund and all amounts on deposit therein as permitted herein subordinate to the
pledge securing Senior Obligations and, subject to the application of Revenues, in accordance with
the terms hereof.

Section 5.2.  Allocation of Revenues. In order to carry out and effectuate the pledge and
lien contained herein, the Agency agrees and covenants that all Revenues shall be received by the
Agency in trust hereunder and shall be deposited when and as received in a special fund designated
as the “Revenue Fund,” which fund was previously established by the Agency and is hereby
continued by the terms of this Section 5.2, and which fund the Agency agrees and covenants to
maintain and to hold separate and apart from other funds so long as any Contracts or Bonds remain
unpaid. The Revenue Fund includes the 1% Property Tax Account described in Section 5.1(a) below
and which is contained hereunder. All 1% Property Tax Receipts shall be deposited in the 1%
Property Tax Account and applied in accordance with the Depository Agreement. Moneys in the
Revenue Fund shall be used and applied by the Agency as provided in this Installment Purchase
Agreement.

To the extent the Agency receives any 1% Property Tax Receipts from the County of
Los Angeles or the County of Ventura, the Agency shall immediately transfer such amounts to the
Depository Agent for deposit by the Depository Agent in the 1% Property Tax Payment Account.

12

181



182

The Agency shall, from the moneys in the Revenue Fund, pay all Operation and Maintenance
Costs (including amounts reasonably required to be set aside in contingency reserves for Operation
and Maintenance Costs, the payment of which is not then immediately required) as such Operation
and Maintenance Costs become due and payable. All remaining moneys in the Revenue Fund shall
be used to make payments with respect to Senior Debt Service on Senior Obligations if 1% Property
Tax Receipts are insufficient therefor, and thereafter shall be set aside by the Agency at the following
times in the following respective special funds in the following order of priority and all moneys in
each of such funds shall be held in trust and shall be applied, used and withdrawn only for the
purposes hereinafter authorized in this section:

(a) Bond Payment Fund. On or before each 2020 Installment Payment Date, the
Agency shall, from the moneys in the Revenue Fund, transfer to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond
Payment Fund a sum equal to the 2020 Installment Payment coming due on such 2020 Installment
Payment Date. The Agency shall also, from the moneys in the Revenue Fund, transfer to the
applicable trustee or payee for deposit in the applicable payment fund, without preference or priority,
and in the event of any insufficiency of such moneys ratably without any discrimination or
preference, any other Debt Service in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, resolution or
indenture relating thereto, including but not limited to the 2018A Installment Purchase Agreement to
the extent not paid from 1% Property Tax Receipts.

No deposit need be made in the Bond Payment Fund as 2020 Installment Payments if the
amount in the Bond Payment Fund is at least equal to the amount of the 2020 Installment Payment
due and payable on the next succeeding 2020 Installment Payment Date. All money in the Bond
Payment Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture.

(b) Reserve Fund. On or before each 2020 Installment Payment Date, the
Agency shall, from the remaining moneys in the Revenue Fund, thereafter, without preference or
priority, transfer to the applicable trustee for reserve funds and/or accounts, if any, as may have been
established in connection with Senior Obligations, Bonds or Contracts, that sum, if any, necessary to
restore such funds or accounts to an amount equal to the reserve requirement with respect thereto.

© Subordinate Obligations. On or before any date that the payment of principal
and interest is due with respect to any Subordinate Obligations, the Agency shall, from moneys in the
Revenue Fund, transfer to the applicable trustee or payee for deposit in the applicable payment fund,
without preference or priority, and in the event of any insufficiency of such moneys ratably without
discrimination or preference, payment on such Subordinate Obligations in accordance with the
provisions of such Subordinate Obligation.

(d) Surplus. Moneys on deposit in the Revenue Fund on any date when the
Agency reasonably expects such moneys will not be needed for the payment of Operation and
Maintenance Costs or for any of the purposes described in clauses (a) though (c) above may be
expended by the Agency at any time for any purpose permitted by law, including but not limited to
payment of any amounts due and payable under the Water Contract or to deposit amounts in the Rate
Stabilization Fund in accordance with Section 5.5 hereof.

13



Section 5.3.  Additional Contracts and Bonds. The Agency may at any time execute any
Contract or issue any Bonds, as the case may be, in accordance herewith; provided:

(a) The Net Revenues for the most recent audited Fiscal Year preceding the date
of adoption by the Board of Directors of the Agency of the resolution authorizing the issuance of
such Bonds or the date of the execution of such Contract, as the case may be, as evidenced by both a
calculation prepared by the Agency and a special report prepared by an Independent Certified Public
Accountant or an Independent Municipal Advisor on such calculation on file with the Agency, shall
have produced a sum equal to at least one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the Debt Service for
such Fiscal Year; and

(b) The Net Revenues for the most recent audited Fiscal Year preceding the date
of the execution of such Contract or the date of adoption by the Board of Directors of the Agency of
the resolution authorizing the issuance of such Bonds, as the case may be, including adjustments to
give effect as of the first day of such Fiscal Year to increases or decreases in income, rents, fees,
rates and charges for the Water Service approved and in effect as of the date of calculation, as
evidenced by both a calculation prepared by the Agency and a special report prepared by an
Independent Certified Public Accountant or an Independent Municipal Advisor on such calculation
on file with the Agency, shall demonstrate a sum equal to at least one hundred twenty percent
(120%) of the Debt Service for such Fiscal Year plus the Debt Service which would have accrued on
any Contracts executed or Bonds issued since the end of such Fiscal Year assuming such Contracts
had been executed or Bonds had been issued at the beginning of such Fiscal Year plus the Debt
Service which would have accrued had such Contract been executed or Bonds been issued at the
beginning of such Fiscal Year; and

(c) The estimated Net Revenues for the then current Fiscal Year and for each
Fiscal Year thereafter to and including the first complete Fiscal Year after the latest date of operation
of any uncompleted Parity Project financed from proceeds of such Contract or Bonds, as evidenced
by a certificate on file with the Agency, including (after giving effect to the completion of all such
uncompleted Parity Projects) an allowance for estimated Net Revenues for each of such Fiscal Years
arising from any increase in the income, rents, fees, rates and charges estimated to be fixed and
prescribed for the Water Service and which are economically feasible and reasonably considered
necessary based on projected operations for such period, as evidenced by a certificate of the Manager
on file with the Agency, shall produce a sum equal to at least one hundred twenty percent (120%) of
the estimated Debt Service for each of such Fiscal Years, after giving effect to the execution of all
Contracts and the issuance of all Bonds estimated to be required to be executed or issued to pay the
costs of completing all uncompleted Parity Projects within such Fiscal Years, assuming that all such
Contracts and Bonds have maturities, interest rates and proportionate principal repayment provisions
similar to the Contract last executed or then being executed or the Bonds last issued or then being
issued for the purpose of acquiring and constructing any of such uncompleted Parity Projects.

Notwithstanding the foregoing: (i) Bonds issued or Contracts executed to refund Bonds or
Contracts may be delivered without satisfying the conditions set forth above if Debt Service in each
Fiscal Year after the Fiscal Year in which such Bonds are issued or Contracts executed is not greater
than 105% of Debt Service which would have been payable in each such Fiscal Year prior to the
issuance of such Bonds or execution of such Contracts; and (ii) Bonds issued or Contracts executed
to refund Senior Obligations may be delivered without satisfying the conditions set forth above if
total Debt Service and Senior Debt Service in each Fiscal Year after the Fiscal Year in which such
Bonds are issued or Contracts executed is not greater than 105% of total Debt Service and Senior

14

183



184

Debt Service which would have been payable in each such Fiscal Year prior to the issuance of such
Bonds or execution of such Contracts.

Notwithstanding satisfaction of the other conditions to the execution of any Contract or the
issuance of Bonds set forth in this Section 5.3, no such execution or issuance may occur if an Event
of Default (or any event which, once all notice or grace periods have passed, would constitute an
Event of Default) exists unless such Event of Default shall be cured upon such execution or issuance.

Section 5.4.  Investments. All moneys held by the Agency in the Revenue Fund, including
the 1% Property Tax Account, shall be invested in Permitted Investments and the investment
earnings thereon shall remain on deposit in such fund, except as otherwise provided herein. All
moneys held by the Agency in the Rate Stabilization Fund shall be invested in Permitted Investments
and the investment earnings thereon shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund upon receipt thereof.

Section 5.5.  Rate Stabilization Fund. There is hereby continued a special fund designated
as the “Rate Stabilization Fund” to be held by the Agency in trust hereunder, which fund the Agency
agrees and covenants to maintain and to hold separate and apart from other funds so long as any
Installment Payments or Bonds remain unpaid. Money transferred by the Agency from the Revenue
Fund to the Rate Stabilization Fund in accordance with Section 5.2(d) shall be held in the Rate
Stabilization Fund and applied in accordance with this Installment Purchase Agreement.

The Agency may withdraw all or any portion of the amounts on deposit in the Rate
Stabilization Fund and transfer such amounts to the Revenue Fund for application in accordance with
Section 5.2 hereof or, in the event that all or a portion of the 2020 Installment Payments are
discharged in accordance with Section 9.1(b) or (c) hereof, transfer all or any portion of such
amounts for application in accordance with said section.

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS OF THE AGENCY

Section 6.1.  Compliance with Installment Purchase Agreement and Ancillary Agreements.
The Agency will punctually pay the 2020 Installment Payments in strict conformity with the terms
hereof, and will faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms
contained herein required to be observed and performed by it, and will not terminate this Installment
Purchase Agreement for any cause including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any
acts or circumstances that may constitute failure of consideration, destruction of or damage to the
2020 Project, commercial frustration of purpose, any change in the tax or other laws of the United
States of America or of the State of California or any political subdivision of either or any failure of
the Authority to observe or perform any agreement, condition, covenant or term contained herein
required to be observed and performed by it, whether express or implied, or any duty, liability or
obligation arising out of or connected herewith or the insolvency, or deemed insolvency, or
bankruptcy or liquidation of the Authority or any force majeure, including acts of God, tempest,
storm, earthquake, war, rebellion, riot, civil disorder, acts of public enemies, blockade or embargo,
strikes, industrial disputes, lockouts, lack of transportation facilities, fire, explosion, or acts or
regulations of governmental authorities.

The Agency will faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions, covenants
and terms contained in the Indenture required to be observed and performed by it, and it is expressly

15



understood and agreed by and among the parties to this Installment Purchase Agreement and the
Indenture that, subject to Section 10.6 hereunder, each of the agreements, conditions, covenants and
terms contained in each such agreement is an essential and material term of the purchase of and
payment for the 2020 Project by the Agency pursuant to, and in accordance with, and as authorized
under the Law.

The Agency will faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions, covenants
and terms required to be observed and performed by it pursuant to all outstanding Contracts and
Bonds as such may from time to time be executed or issued, as the case may be.

Section 6.2.  Against Encumbrances. The Agency will not make any pledge of or place
any lien on Revenues or the moneys in the Revenue Fund or the Rate Stabilization Fund except as
provided herein. The Agency may at any time, or from time to time, issue evidences of indebtedness
or incur other obligations for any lawful purpose which are payable from and secured by a pledge of
and lien on Revenues or any moneys in the Revenue Fund as may from time to time be deposited
therein or the Rate Stabilization Fund, provided that such pledge and lien shall be subordinate in all
respects to the pledge of and lien thereon provided herein.

Section 6.3.  Against Sale or Other Disposition of Property. The Agency will not enter
into any agreement or lease which impairs the operation of the Water System or any part thereof
necessary to secure adequate Revenues for the payment of the 2020 Installment Payments, or which
would otherwise impair the rights of the Authority hereunder or the operation of the Water System.
Any real or personal property which has become nonoperative or which is not needed for the
efficient and proper operation of the Water System, or any material or equipment which has become
worn out, may be sold if such sale will not impair the ability of the Agency to pay the 2020
Installment Payments and if the proceeds of such sale are deposited in the Revenue Fund.

Nothing herein shall restrict the ability of the Agency to sell any portion of the Water System
if such portion is immediately repurchased by the Agency and if such arrangement cannot by its
terms result in the purchaser of such portion of the Water System exercising any remedy which
would deprive the Agency of or otherwise interfere with its right to own and operate such portion of
the Water System.

Section 6.4.  Against Competitive System. The Agency and the Authority hereby
acknowledge that Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 36 Val Verde currently operates a
retail water supply and distribution system within the boundaries of the Agency and that nothing
contained in this Installment Purchase Agreement is intended to alter or affect such activities. The
Agency will not, to the extent permitted by law: (a) acquire, construct, maintain or operate; or (b)
within the scope of its powers, permit any other public or private agency, corporation, district or
political subdivision or any person whomsoever to acquire, construct, maintain or operate within the
Agency any water importation, treatment and distribution facilities competitive with the Water
System.

16

185



186

Section 6.5. Tax Covenants. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Installment
Purchase Agreement, absent a Favorable Opinion of Special Counsel that the exclusion from gross
income of interest on the 2020A Bonds will not be adversely affected for federal income tax
purposes, the Agency and the Authority covenant to comply with all applicable requirements of the
Code necessary to preserve such exclusion from gross income and specifically covenant, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, as follows:

(a) Private Activity. The Agency and the Authority will not take or omit to take
any action or make any use of the proceeds of the 2020A Bonds or of any other moneys or property
which would cause the 2020A Bonds to be “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section
141 of the Code.

(b) Arbitrage. The Agency and the Authority will make no use of the proceeds of
the 2020A or of any other amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take or omit to take any
action which would cause the 2020A Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section
148 of the Code.

(©) Federal Guarantee. The Agency and the Authority will make no use of the
proceeds of the 2020A Bonds or take or omit to take any action that would cause the 2020A Bonds to
be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.

(d) Information Reporting. The Agency and the Authority will take or cause to
be taken all necessary action to comply with the informational reporting requirements of Section
149(e) of the Code.

e Hedge Bonds. The Agency and the Authority will make no use of the
proceeds of the 2020A Bonds or any other amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any
action or refrain from taking any action that would cause the 2020A Bonds to be considered “hedge
bonds” within the meaning of Section 149(g) of the Code unless the Agency and the Authority take
all necessary action to assure compliance with the requirements of Section 149(g) of the Code to
maintain the exclusion from gross income of interest on the 2020A Bonds for federal income tax
purposes.

®) Miscellaneous. The Agency and the Authority will take no action, or omit to
take any action, inconsistent with the expectations stated in any Tax Certificate executed with respect
to the 2020A Bonds and will comply with the covenants and requirements stated therein and
incorporated by reference herein.

(2) Compliance with Tax Certificate. In furtherance of the foregoing tax
covenants of this Section 6.5, the Agency covenants that it will comply with the provisions of the
Tax Certificate, which is incorporated herein as if fully set forth herein. These covenants shall
survive payment in full or defeasance of the 2020A Bonds.

This section shall not be applicable to, and nothing contained herein shall be deemed to
prevent the Agency and the Authority from issuing bonds, the interest with respect to which has been
determined by Special Counsel to be subject to federal income taxation, including, but not limited to
the 2020B Bonds.

17



Section 6.6.  Maintenance and Operation of the Water System. The Agency will maintain
and preserve the Water System in good repair and working order at all times and will operate the
Water System in an efficient and economical manner and will pay all Operation and Maintenance
Costs as they become due and payable.

Section 6.7.  Payment of Claims. The Agency will pay and discharge any and all lawful
claims for labor, materials or supplies which, if unpaid, might become a lien on the Revenues or the
funds or accounts created hereunder or under the Indenture or on any funds in the hands of the
Agency pledged to pay the 2020 Installment Payments or to the Owners prior or superior to the lien
of the 2020 Installment Payments or which might impair the security of the 2020 Installment
Payments.

Section 6.8.  Compliance with Contracts. The Agency will comply with, keep, observe
and perform all agreements, conditions, covenants and terms, express or implied, required to be
performed by it contained in the Water Contract and all contracts for the use of the Water System and
all other contracts affecting or involving the Water System, to the extent that the Agency is a party
thereto.

Section 6.9.  Insurance.

(a) The Agency will procure and maintain or cause to be procured and
maintained insurance on the Water System with responsible insurers in such amounts and against
such risks (including accident to or destruction of the Water System) as are usually covered in
connection with facilities similar to the Water System so long as such insurance is available from
reputable insurance companies.

In the event of any damage to or destruction of the Water System caused by the perils
covered by such insurance, the Net Proceeds thereof shall be applied to the reconstruction, repair or
replacement of the damaged or destroyed portion of the Water System. The Agency shall begin such
reconstruction, repair or replacement promptly after such damage or destruction shall occur, and shall
continue and properly complete such reconstruction, repair or replacement as expeditiously as
possible, and shall pay out of such Net Proceeds all costs and expenses in connection with such
reconstruction, repair or replacement so that the same shall be completed and the Water System shall
be free and clear of all claims and liens.

If such Net Proceeds exceed the costs of such reconstruction, repair or replacement, then the
excess Net Proceeds shall be applied in part to the prepayment of 2020 Installment Payments as
provided in Article VII and in part to such other fund or account as may be appropriate and used for
the retirement of Bonds and Contracts in the same proportion which the aggregate unpaid principal
balance of 2020 Installment Payments then bears to the aggregate unpaid principal amount of such
Bonds and Contracts. If such Net Proceeds are sufficient to enable the Agency to retire the entire
obligation evidenced hereby prior to the final due date of the 2020 Installment Payments as well as
the entire obligations evidenced by Bonds and Contracts then remaining unpaid prior to their final
respective due dates, the Agency may elect not to reconstruct, repair or replace the damaged or
destroyed portion of the Water System, and thereupon such Net Proceeds shall be applied to the
prepayment of 2020 Installment Payments as provided in Article VII and to the retirement of such
Bonds and Contracts.

18

187



188

(b) The Agency will procure and maintain such other insurance which it shall
deem advisable or necessary to protect its interests and the interests of the Authority, which
insurance shall afford protection in such amounts and against such risks as are usually covered in
connection with municipal water systems similar to the Water System.

© Any insurance required to be maintained by paragraph (a) above and, if the
Agency determines to procure and maintain insurance pursuant to paragraph (b) above, such
insurance, may be maintained under a self-insurance program so long as such self-insurance is
maintained in the amounts and manner usually maintained in connection with water systems similar
to the Water System and is, in the opinion of an accredited actuary, actuarially sound.

Section 6.10. Accounting Records; Financial Statements and Other Reports. The Agency
will keep appropriate accounting records in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all
transactions relating to the Water System, which records shall be available for inspection by the
Authority and the Trustee at reasonable hours and under reasonable conditions. The Trustee shall
have no duties to inspect such records.

Section 6.11. Protection of Security and Rights of the Authority. The Agency will preserve
and protect the security hereof and the rights of the Authority to the 2020 Installment Payments
hereunder and will warrant and defend such rights against all claims and demands of all persons.

Section 6.12. Payment of Taxes and Compliance with Governmental Regulations. The
Agency will pay and discharge all taxes, assessments and other governmental charges which may
hereafter be lawfully imposed upon the Water System, or any part thereof or upon the Revenues
when the same shall become due. The Agency will duly observe and conform with all valid
regulations and requirements of any governmental authority relative to the operation of the Water
System, or any part thereof, but the Agency shall not be required to comply with any regulations or
requirements so long as the validity or application thereof shall be contested in good faith.

Section 6.13.  Amount of Rates and Charges.

(a) In any Fiscal Year in which the amount on deposit in the Rate Stabilization
Fund on the first day of such Fiscal Year is less than Debt Service payable in such Fiscal Year, the
Agency shall fix and prescribe rates and charges for Water Service which are reasonably expected to
be sufficient to yield during such Fiscal Year Net Revenues which will equal one hundred twenty
percent (120%) of the Debt Service for such Fiscal Year.

(b) In any Fiscal Year in which the amount on deposit in the Rate Stabilization
Fund on the first day of such Fiscal Year is at least equal to Debt Service payable in such Fiscal
Year, the Agency shall fix and prescribe Revenues, other than described in clause (iii) of the
definition thereof, that are reasonably expected to be sufficient to yield during such Fiscal Year such
Revenues equal to one hundred twenty percent (120%) of Operation and Maintenance Costs during
such Fiscal Year.

© The Agency may make adjustments from time to time in such rates and
charges and may make such classifications thereof as it deems necessary, but shall not reduce the
rates and charges then in effect unless the Net Revenues or Revenues, as the case may be, from such
reduced rates and charges will at all times be sufficient to meet the requirements of this section.

19



(d) So long as the Agency has complied with its obligations set forth in clause (a)
and (b) above, the failure of Net Revenues to equal one hundred twenty percent (120%) of Debt
Service at the end of a Fiscal Year shall not constitute a default or an Event of Default hereunder.

Section 6.14. Collection of Rates and Charges. The Agency will have in effect at all times
by-laws, rules and regulations requiring each customer who purchases water from the Agency to pay
the rates and charges applicable to the Water Service and providing for the billing thereof and for a
due date and a delinquency date for each bill. In each case where such bill remains unpaid in whole
or in part after it becomes delinquent, the Agency may disconnect such purchaser from the Water
System, and such purchaser shall not thereafter be reconnected to the Water System except in
accordance with Agency by-laws or rules and regulations governing such situations of delinquency.

Section 6.15. Eminent Domain Proceeds. If all or any part of the Water System shall be
taken by eminent domain proceedings, the Net Proceeds thereof shall be applied as follows:

(a) If: (i) the Agency files with the Authority and the Trustee a certificate
showing: (1) the estimated loss of annual Net Revenues, if any, suffered or to be suffered by the
Agency by reason of such eminent domain proceedings; (2) a general description of the additions,
betterments, extensions or improvements to the Water System proposed to be acquired and
constructed by the Agency from such Net Proceeds; and (3) an estimate of the additional annual Net
Revenues to be derived from such additions, betterments, extensions or improvements; and (ii) the
Agency, on the basis of such certificate filed with the Authority and the Trustee, determines that the
estimated additional annual Net Revenues will sufficiently offset the estimated loss of annual Net
Revenues resulting from such eminent domain proceedings so that the ability of the Agency to meet
its obligations hereunder will not be substantially impaired (which determination shall be final and
conclusive), then the Agency shall promptly proceed with the acquisition and construction of such
additions, betterments, extensions or improvements substantially in accordance with such certificate
and such Net Proceeds shall be applied for the payment of the costs of such acquisition and
construction, and any balance of such Net Proceeds not required by the Agency for such purpose
shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund.

(b) If the foregoing conditions are not met, then such Net Proceeds shall be
applied in part to the prepayment of 2020 Installment Payments as provided in Article VII and in part
to such other fund or account as may be appropriate and used for the retirement of Bonds and
Contracts in the same proportion which the aggregate unpaid principal balance of 2020 Installment
Payments then bears to the aggregate unpaid principal amount of such Bonds and Contracts.

Section 6.16. Further Assurances. The Agency will adopt, deliver, execute and make any
and all further assurances, instruments and resolutions as may be reasonably necessary or proper to
carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance hereof and to better assure and confirm unto
the Authority the rights and benefits provided to it herein.

Section 6.17. Enforcement of Contracts. So long as any of the 2020A Bonds are
outstanding, the Agency will not voluntarily consent to or permit any rescission of, nor will it
consent to any amendment to or otherwise take any action under or in connection with the Water
Contract or any other contracts previously or hereafter entered into which contracts provide for water
to be supplied to the Agency which will reduce the supply of water thereunder (except as provided
therein) if such rescission or amendment would in any manner impair or adversely affect the rights of
the owners from time to time of the 2020A Bonds.

20

189



190

Section 6.18. Compliance with Water Contract. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the
Agency will comply with Section 34(a) of the Water Contract.

Section 6.19. Continuing Disclosure. The Agency will comply with and carry out all of the
provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Installment Purchase Agreement, failure of the Agency to comply with the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate shall not be considered an Event of Default; however, any Owners of 2020A Bonds or
Beneficial Owners of at least 50% aggregate principal amount of the 2020A Bonds may take such
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by
court order, to cause the Agency to comply with its obligations under this section. For purposes of
this section, “Beneficial Owner” means any person which: (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to
vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any 2020A Bonds (including persons
holding 2020A Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries); or (b) is treated as the
owner of any 2020A Bonds for federal income tax purposes.

Section 6.20. No Additional Senior Obligations. The Agency hereby covenants to not issue
or enter into any additional Senior Obligations.

ARTICLE VII
PREPAYMENT OF SERIES 2020A INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS
Section 7.1.  Prepayment.

(a) The Agency may or shall, as the case may be, prepay from the Net Proceeds
as provided herein the 2020 Installment Payments in whole or in part in the order of payment date as
directed by the Agency, at a prepayment price equal to the sum of the principal amount prepaid plus
accrued interest thereon to the date of prepayment.

(b) The Agency may prepay the 2020 Installment Payments, as a whole or in
part, in the order of payment date as directed by the Agency, on the date and at the prepayment price
(expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of the 2020A Bonds to be prepaid) plus accrued
interest thereon to the date of prepayment, as set forth in Section 4.01 of the Indenture.

Notwithstanding any such prepayment, the Agency shall not be relieved of its obligations
hereunder, including its obligations under Article IV, until the Purchase Price shall have been fully
paid (or provision for payment thereof shall have been provided to the written satisfaction of the
Authority and the Trustee).

Section 7.2.  Method of Prepayment. Before making any prepayment pursuant to
Section 7.1, the Agency shall, within five (5) days following the event permitting the exercise of such
right to prepay or creating such obligation to prepay, give written notice to the Authority and the
Trustee describing such event and specifying the date on which the prepayment will be paid, which
date shall be not less than sixty (60) nor more than seventy-five (75) days from the date such notice is
given.

21



ARTICLE VIII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF THE AUTHORITY

Section 8.1.  Events of Default and Acceleration of Maturities. If one or more of the
following Events of Default shall happen:

(a) if default shall be made by the Agency in the due and punctual payment of
any 2020 Installment Payment or any Contract or Bond when and as the same shall become due and
payable;

(b) if default shall be made by the Agency in the performance of any of the
agreements or covenants required herein or in connection with any Contract or Bond to be performed
by it, and such default shall have continued for a period of thirty (30) days after the Agency shall
have been given notice in writing of such default by the Authority or, if such default is not
reasonably susceptible to cure within thirty (30) days after notice thereof, such default shall have
continued for a period of sixty (60) days;

© if the Agency shall file a petition or answer seeking arrangement or
reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of
America or any state therein, or if a court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition filed with
or without the consent of the Agency seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal
bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or
if under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors any court of competent
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Agency or of the whole or any substantial part of
its property; or

(d) if payment of the principal of any Contract or Bond is accelerated in
accordance with its terms;

then and in each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default specified in
clause (c) and (d) above, the Authority shall, and for any other such Event of Default the Authority
may, by notice in writing to the Agency, declare the entire principal amount of the unpaid 2020
Installment Payments and the accrued interest thereon to be due and payable immediately, and upon
any such declaration the same shall become immediately due and payable, anything contained herein
to the contrary notwithstanding. This section, however, is subject to the condition that if at any time
after the entire principal amount of the unpaid 2020 Installment Payments and the accrued interest
thereon shall have been so declared due and payable and before any judgment or decree for the
payment of the moneys due shall have been obtained or entered the Agency shall deposit with the
Authority a sum sufficient to pay the unpaid principal amount of the 2020 Installment Payments or
the unpaid payment of any other Contract or Bond referred to in clause (a) above due prior to such
declaration and the accrued interest thereon, with interest on such overdue installments, at the rate or
rates applicable to the remaining unpaid principal balance of the 2020 Installment Payments or such
Contract or Bond if paid in accordance with their terms, and the reasonable expenses of the
Authority, and any and all other defaults known to the Authority (other than in the payment of the
entire principal amount of the unpaid 2020 Installment Payments and the accrued interest thereon due
and payable solely by reason of such declaration) shall have been made good or cured to the
satisfaction of the Authority, or provision deemed by the Authority to be adequate shall have been
made therefor, then and in every such case the Authority, by written notice to the Agency, may

22

191



192

rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences; but no such rescission and annulment shall
extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or shall impair or exhaust any right or power
consequent thereon.

Section 8.2.  Application of Funds Upon Acceleration. Upon the date of the declaration of
acceleration as provided in Section 8.1, all Revenues thereafter received by the Agency and all
amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund shall be applied in the following order:

First, to the payment, without preference or priority, and in the event of any
insufficiency ratably without any discrimination or preference, of the fees, costs and expenses, if any
of the Authority and the Trustee in carrying out the provisions of this article, including reasonable
compensation to their respective accountants and counsel;

Second, to the payment of the Operation and Maintenance Costs;
Third, to the payment of Senior Obligations in accordance with the terms thereof;

Fourth, to the payment of the entire principal amount of the unpaid 2020 Installment
Payments and the unpaid principal amount of all Bonds and Contracts and the accrued interest
thereon, with interest on the overdue installments at the rate or rates of interest applicable to the 2020
Installment Payments and such Bonds and Contracts if paid in accordance with their respective
terms; and

Fifth, to the payment of Subordinate Obligations in accordance with the terms
thereof.

Section 8.3.  Other Remedies of the Authority. The Authority shall have the right:

(@ by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to
enforce its rights against the Agency or any director, officer or employee thereof, and to compel the
Agency or any such director, officer or employee to perform and carry out its or his duties under the
Law and the agreements and covenants required to be performed by it or him contained herein;

(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate the
rights of the Authority; or

© by suit in equity upon the happening of an Event of Default to require the
Agency and its directors, officers and employees to account as the trustee of an express trust.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, Authority shall have no security interest in or
mortgage on the 2020 Project, the Water System or other assets of the Agency and no default
hereunder shall result in the loss of the 2020 Project, the Water System, or other assets of the
Agency.

Section 8.4.  Non-Waiver. Nothing in this article or in any other provision hereof shall
affect or impair the obligation of the Agency, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the 2020
Installment Payments to the Authority at the respective due dates or upon prepayment from the Net
Revenues, the Revenue Fund and the other funds herein pledged for such payment, or shall affect or
impair the right of the Authority, which is also absolute and unconditional, to institute suit to enforce
such payment by virtue of the contract embodied herein.

23



A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Authority shall not affect any
subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or impair any rights or remedies on any such
subsequent default or breach of duty or contract. No delay or omission by the Authority to exercise
any right or remedy accruing upon any default or breach of duty or contract shall impair any such
right or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or breach of duty or contract
or an acquiescence therein, and every right or remedy conferred upon the Authority by the Law or by
this article may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be deemed
expedient by the Authority.

If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or exercise any remedy is abandoned or
determined adversely to the Authority, the Agency and the Authority shall be restored to their former
positions, rights and remedies as if such action, proceeding or suit had not been brought or taken.

Section 8.5.  Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to
the Authority is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each such remedy shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter
existing in law or in equity or by statute or otherwise and may be exercised without exhausting and
without regard to any other remedy conferred by the Law or any other law.

ARTICLE IX
DISCHARGE OF OBLIGATIONS

Section 9.1.  Discharge of Obligations. When:

(a) all or any portion of the 2020 Installment Payments shall have become due
and payable in accordance herewith or a written notice of the Agency to prepay all or any portion of
the 2020 Installment Payments shall have been filed with the Trustee; and

(b) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee at or prior to the 2020
Installment Payment Dates or date (or dates) specified for prepayment, in trust for the benefit of the
Authority or its assigns and irrevocably appropriated and set aside to the payment of all or any
portion of the 2020 Installment Payments, sufficient moneys and non-callable Permitted Investments,
issued by the United States of America and described in clauses (a) or (b) of the definition thereof,
the principal of and interest on which when due will provide money sufficient to pay all principal,
prepayment premium, if any, and interest of such 2020 Installment Payments to their respective 2020
Installment Payment Dates or prepayment date or dates as the case may be; and

(©) provision shall have been made for paying all fees and expenses of the
Trustee;

then and in that event, the right, title and interest of the Authority herein and the obligations of the
Agency hereunder shall, with respect to all or such portion of the 2020 Installment Payments as have
been so provided for, thereupon cease, terminate, become void and be completely discharged and
satisfied (except for the right of the Trustee and the obligation of the Agency to have such moneys
and such Permitted Investments applied to the payment of such 2020 Installment Payments).

24

193



194

In such event, upon request of the Agency, the Trustee shall cause an accounting for such
period or periods as may be requested by the Agency to be prepared and filed with the Agency and
shall execute and deliver to the Agency all such instruments as may be necessary or desirable to
evidence such total or partial discharge and satisfaction, as the case may be, and, in the event of a
total discharge and satisfaction, the Trustee shall pay over to the Agency, after payment of all
amounts due the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, as an overpayment of 2020 Installment Payments,
all such moneys or such Permitted Investments held by it pursuant hereto other than such moneys
and such Permitted Investments, as are required for the payment or prepayment of the 2020
Installment Payments, which moneys and Permitted Investments shall continue to be held by the
Trustee in trust for the payment of the 2020 Installment Payments and shall be applied by the Trustee
to the payment of the 2020 Installment Payments of the Agency.

ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1. Liability of Agency Limited. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the
Agency shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source of income other than
the Net Revenues and the other funds provided herein and in the Indenture for the payment of the
2020 Installment Payments or for the performance of any agreements or covenants required to be
performed by it contained herein. The Agency may, however, advance moneys for any such purpose
so long as such moneys are derived from a source legally available for such purpose and may be
legally used by the Agency for such purpose.

The obligation of the Agency to make the 2020 Installment Payments is a special obligation
of the Agency payable solely from such Net Revenues and other funds described herein, and does not
constitute a debt of the Agency or of the State of California or of any political subdivision thereof in
contravention of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction.

Section 10.2. Benefits of Installment Purchase Agreement Limited to Parties. Nothing
contained herein, expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the Agency or the

Authority any right, remedy or claim under or pursuant hereto, and any agreement or covenant
required herein to be performed by or on behalf of the Agency or the Authority shall be for the sole
and exclusive benefit of the other party.

Section 10.3. Successor Is Deemed Included in all References to Predecessor. Whenever
either the Agency or the Authority is named or referred to herein, such reference shall be deemed to
include the successor to the powers, duties and functions that are presently vested in the Agency or
the Authority, and all agreements and covenants required hereby to be performed by or on behalf of
the Agency or the Authority shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors thereof
whether so expressed or not.

Section 10.4. Waiver of Personal Liability. No director, officer or employee of the Agency
shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the 2020 Installment Payments, but
nothing contained herein shall relieve any director, officer or employee of the Agency from the
performance of any official duty provided by any applicable provisions of law or hereby.

Section 10.5. Section Headings, Gender and References. The headings or titles of the
several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended hereto shall be solely for

25



convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof, and words of
any gender shall be deemed and construed to include all genders. All references herein to “Articles,”
“Sections” and other subdivisions or clauses are to the corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions
or clauses hereof; and the words “hereby,” “herein,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “herewith” and other words
of similar import refer to the Installment Purchase Agreement as a whole and not to any particular
article, section, subdivision or clause hereof.

Section 10.6. Partial Invalidity. If any one or more of the agreements or covenants or
portions thereof required hereby to be performed by or on the part of the Agency or the Authority
shall be contrary to law, then such agreement or agreements, such covenant or covenants or such
portions thereof shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining agreements
and covenants or portions thereof and shall in no way affect the validity hereof. The Agency and the
Authority hereby declare that they would have executed the Installment Purchase Agreement, and
each and every other article, section, paragraph, subdivision, sentence, clause and phrase hereof
irrespective of the fact that any one or more articles, sections, paragraphs, subdivisions, sentences,
clauses or phrases hereof or the application thereof to any person or circumstance may be held to be
unconstitutional, unenforceable or invalid.

Section 10.7. Assignment. The Installment Purchase Agreement and any rights hereunder
may be assigned by the Authority, as a whole or in part, without the necessity of obtaining the prior
consent of the Agency.

Section 10.8. Net Contract. The Installment Purchase Agreement shall be deemed and
construed to be a net contract, and the Agency shall pay absolutely net during the term hereof the
2020 Installment Payments and all other payments required hereunder, free of any deductions and
without abatement, diminution or set-off whatsoever.

Section 10.9. California Law. @ THE INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT
SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND GOVERNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

Section 10.10. Notices. All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given by mail to
the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address as such party may
provide to the other party in writing from time to time, namely:

If to the Agency: Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, California 91350
Attention: General Manager

If to the Authority: Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, California 91350
Attention: Executive Director

26

195



196

If to the Trustee: U.S. Bank National Association
633 West Fifth Street, 24th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071
Attention: Global Corporate Trust
Reference: Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, Series
2020A/B

Section 10.11. Effective Date. The Installment Purchase Agreement shall become effective
upon its execution and delivery, and shall terminate when the Purchase Price shall have been fully
paid (or provision for the payment thereof shall have been made to the written satisfaction of the
Authority and the Trustee).

Section 10.12. Execution in Counterparts. The Installment Purchase Agreement may be
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall
constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 10.13. Indemnification of Authority. The Agency hereby agrees to indemnify and
hold harmless the Authority and its directors, offices and employees if and to the extent permitted by
law, from and against all claims, advances, damages and losses, including legal fees and expenses,
arising out of or in connection with the acceptance or the performance of its duties hereunder and
under the Indenture; provided that no indemnification will be made for willful misconduct,
negligence or breach of an obligation hereunder or under the Indenture by the Authority.

Section 10.14. Amendments Permitted.

(a) This Installment Purchase Agreement and the rights and obligations of the
Authority, the Agency, the 2020A Bond Owners and the 2020B Bond Owners, and the Trustee
hereunder may be amended or supplemented at any time by an amendment hereof or supplement
hereto which shall become binding when the written consents of the Owners of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the 2020A Bonds and 2020B Bonds then Outstanding, exclusive of
2020A Bonds and 2020B Bonds disqualified as provided in Section 9.02 of the Indenture, are filed
with the Trustee. No such amendment or supplement shall: (i) reduce the rate of interest on any
2020A Bond or 2020B Bond or extend the time of payment thereof or reduce the amount of principal
or redemption premium, if any, of any 2020A Bond or 2020B Bond or extend the maturity thereof or
otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Authority to pay the interest and principal and
redemption premium, if any, thereon at the time and place and at the rate and in the currency and
from the funds provided therein without the prior written consent of the Owner of the 2020A Bond or
2020B Bond so affected; or (ii) modify any of the rights or obligations of the Trustee without its
prior written consent thereto.

(b) This Installment Purchase Agreement and the rights and obligations of the
Authority, the Agency, the 2020A Bond Owners, the 2020B Bond Owners and the Trustee hereunder
may also be amended or supplemented at any time by an amendment hereof or supplement hereto
which shall become binding upon execution without the written consents of any Owners, but only to
the extent permitted by law:

(D) to add to the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained

herein required to be observed or performed by the Authority or the Agency other agreements,
conditions, covenants and terms thereafter to be observed or performed by the Authority or the

27



Agency, or to surrender any right reserved herein to or conferred herein on the Authority or the
Agency, and which in either case shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owners;

(2)  to modify, amend or supplement this Installment Purchase Agreement
in such a manner as to preserve the exemption of the 2020A Bonds or 2020B Bonds from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 or any similar federal statute hereafter in
effect or to permit the qualification of the Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or any
similar federal statute hereinafter in effect;

3) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or of
correcting, curing or supplementing any defective provision contained herein or in regard to
questions arising hereunder which the Authority or the Agency may deem desirable or necessary, and
which shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owners;

4 to the extent required to conform the procedures under this
Installment Purchase Agreement to the procedures of the Depository, as such procedures may be in
effect from time to time; and

®) to make any modifications or changes necessary or appropriate in the
opinion of Special Counsel to preserve or protect the exclusion from gross income for federal income
tax purposes of interest on the 2020A Bonds.

The Agency shall give written notice of any amendment to the Installment Purchase
Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Authority and the Agency and the Owners and the
Trustee hereunder to Moody’s, S&P and Fitch not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the execution
thereof.

Section 10.15. Paired Obligation Provider Guidelines. For purposes of Section 5.3 and
Section 6.13, Paired Obligations shall comply with the following conditions:

(a) A Paired Obligation Provider shall initially have a long-term rating equal to
or better than the Initial Rating Requirement.

(b) So long as the long-term rating of the Paired Obligation Provider is not
reduced below the Minimum Rating Requirement, the interest rate evidenced by such Paired
Obligation shall be deemed to be equal to the irrevocable fixed interest rate attributable thereto for
purposes of Section 5.3 and Section 6.13.

(c) In the event that a Paired Obligation Provider does not maintain the Minimum
Rating Requirement and the Agency does not replace such Paired Obligation Provider with another
Paired Obligation Provider which maintains the Initial Rating Requirement within ten (10) Business
Days of notice that the Paired Obligation Provider has not maintained the Minimum Rating
Requirement, interest with respect to such Paired Obligations shall be computed for purposes of
Section 5.3 and Section 6.13 without regard to payments to be received from the Paired Obligation
Provider.

28

197



198

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and attested this Installment
Purchase Agreement by their officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written
above.

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

By:

President of the Board of Directors
(SEAL)

Attest:

Secretary of the Board of Directors

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT

POWERS AUTHORITY
By:
President
Attest:
Secretary
S-1



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE 2020 PROJECT

The Project comprises the following described components:

Castaic Conduit

Distribution System - RV-2 Modifications

ESFP Clearwell/CT Improvements

ESFP Sludge Collection System

ESIPS Pipeline Improvements

Foothill Feeder Connection

Honby Parallel

Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 4

Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 5

Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 6

Magic Mountain Reservoir

Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2A - Central Park
Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2B - Vista Canyon
Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2C - South End
Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2D - West Ranch
Rosedale Rio Bravo Extraction

Solar Panel Termination Price

PFAS Treatment

DESCRIPTION OF THE REFUNDING PROJECT

[TO COME]

199



200

EXHIBIT B

CERTIFICATE OF GENERAL MANAGER

I, Matthew Stone, am the duly authorized General Manager of the Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency (the “Agency”) and, pursuant to Sections 4.1(b) and (c) and 4.2 of the Installment Purchase
Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2020 (the “Agreement”), by and between the Agency and the
Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority, set forth the following:

1. The principal amount of payments to be made by the Agency under the Agreement is

2. The installment payments are payable in the amounts and on the 2020 Installment
Payment Dates with respect to the 2020A Bonds as follows:

2020 Installment Payment

Date (Second Business Day Amount Attributable to Amount Attributable to
Prior To) Principal Interest Total
$ $ $
B-1



2. The installment payments are payable in the amounts and on the 2020 Installment

Payment Dates with respect to the 2020B Bonds as follows:

2020 Installment Payment

Date (Second Business Day Amount Attributable to Amount Attributable to
Prior To) Principal Interest
$ $
B-2

Total

201



Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in
the Agreement.

Dated: , 2020 SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER
AGENCY

By:

Matthew Stone
General Manager

B-3

202



EXHIBIT C

FORM OF REQUISITION NO. FOR
DISBURSEMENT FROM ACQUISITION FUND

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

$ _
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020A

The undersigned hereby states and certifies:

@) that the undersigned is the duly appointed, qualified and acting General Manager of
the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, an agency duly organized and existing under and by virtue of
the laws of the State of California (the “Agency”), and as such, is familiar with the facts herein
certified and is authorized to certify the same;

(i1) that, pursuant to Section 3.6 of that certain Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as
of February 1, 2020 (the “Installment Purchase Agreement”), by and between the Agency and the
Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority, a joint exercise of powers authority duly organized
and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, the undersigned hereby
requests the Chief Financial and Administrative Officer of the Agency to disburse this date the
following amounts from the Acquisition Fund established under the Installment Purchase Agreement,
to the payees designated on the attached Exhibit 1;

(ii1))  that each obligation mentioned herein has been incurred by the Agency and is a
proper charge against the Acquisition Fund;

(iv)  that any approval required under the California Environmental Quality Act, as
amended (Division 13 of the California Public Resources Code), prior to the expenditure of such
amount for the purpose set forth on the attached Exhibit 1 has been received and is final;

) that there has not been filed with or served upon the Agency notice of any lien, right
to lien or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys
payable to any of the payees named on the attached Exhibit 1, which has not been released or will not
be released simultaneously with the payment of such obligation, other than materialmen’s or
mechanics’ liens accruing by mere operation of law.

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

General Manager

C-1

203



204

Item
Number

EXHIBIT 1

ACQUISITION FUND DISBURSEMENTS

Payee Name and Address

Purpose of
Obligation

Amount



Section 1.1.

Section 2.1.
Section 2.2.

Section 3.1.
Section 3.2.
Section 3.3.
Section 3.4.
Section 3.5.
Section 3.6.

Section 4.1.
Section 4.2.

Section 5.1.
Section 5.2.
Section 5.3.
Section 5.4.
Section 5.5.

Section 6.1.
Section 6.2.

Table of Contents

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

DEfINITIONS. ¢ttt ettt ettt ettt st sttt 2

ARTICLE 11

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Representations by the AZENCY ......cccveeiieriiiiiieiie ettt see e e seeeseeesere e 9
Representations and Warranties by the AUthOrity .........cceeevveerierrieeniieenieeceeeieeeeene 9

ARTICLE III

ACQUISITION OF THE PROJECT

Sale of the Refunding Project to AUthOTity.........ccoevviieeciiiriiiiiiieieeee et 10
Purchase and Sale of the 2020 Project and the Refunding Project ..........ccccceeuernneen. 10
TTHELE ettt ettt et et et st st h e st he e bt e bt e bt et et eas 10
Acquisition and Construction of the 2020 Project ...........cocceevvereneneeneenieeneeneennens 10
Changes to the 2020 PrOJECE .....cceveeviieiieeiiieie ettt e eeeeeenae s 10
AcqUISItION FUNA.......oooiiiiiii et 11

ARTICLE IV

SERIES 2020A INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS

PUIChase PriCe.......coouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec ettt 11
2020 Installment PAYMENLS ......ccceeevuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeiteeeeeiee ettt 11

ARTICLE V

SECURITY
Pledge Of REVEINUES .......cocuiiiiiiiiiiiccitee ettt sttt 12
AllOCation Of REVENUES........coiiiiiiiiiiieiteiee ettt sttt 12
Additional Contracts and BONdS ..........cccceereiniriiiiniiiiiieniceeeeeeseeeeeeeeee e 14
IIVESTIMENTS ..ottt ettt e st e st esenbaeeesareeeens 15
Rate Stabilization FUNd.........c..ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeceeete e 15

ARTICLE VI

COVENANTS OF THE AGENCY

Compliance with Installment Purchase Agreement and Ancillary Agreements......... 15
AgainSt ENCUMDIANCES. .......oiiuiiiiiieiiieiie ettt ettt e n 16

205



206

Section 6.3.
Section 6.4.
Section 6.5.
Section 6.6.
Section 6.7.
Section 6.8.
Section 6.9.
Section 6.10.
Section 6.11.
Section 6.12.
Section 6.13.
Section 6.14.
Section 6.15.
Section 6.16.
Section 6.17.
Section 6.18.
Section 6.19.
Section 6.20.

Section 7.1.
Section 7.2.

Section 8.1.
Section 8.2.
Section 8.3.
Section 8.4.
Section 8.5.

Section 9.1.

Section 10.1.
Section 10.2.

Table of Contents

(continued)

Page
Against Sale or Other Disposition of Property .........cccecceevieenieirieiiie e 16
Against COMPELILIVE SYSTEIML....cccueiruiertieitierieeitiete ettt eteeteetesete st e st esbeesbeesbeebeeeeens 16
TaX COVEMANLS ....ouviiiiiiiiiiiiieitee ettt st s 17
Maintenance and Operation of the Water System ........cccccocceeveriiniinncnncnicnicneenee. 18
Payment Of ClaimS ......c.ceeriierieesieeie et ere et ee et e ee e e eensaesneesnneeenne s 18
Compliance With CONLIACES .......c.eevierieriieniieiieitett ettt eas 18
INSULANCE ...t s 18
Accounting Records; Financial Statements and Other Reports ..........ccccceeveneeeennene. 19
Protection of Security and Rights of the Authority..........ccccoeciiiniiniiiniiniieeee 19
Payment of Taxes and Compliance with Governmental Regulations............ccc.cc..... 19
Amount of Rates and Charges ..........cceccuvereierieiiieeiie et seee s 19
Collection of Rates and Charges ...........coceeveerieriiriiinienienieeieeeeseene et 20
Eminent Domain Proceeds............ccoueriiriiiiiniiniiniiieeeeeceeeteeeeee e 20
FUIther ASSUTANCES........cocueviiriiiiiiiieieie sttt s 20
Enforcement of CONTIACES .......cc.eioiiriiiiinieniieniteieeeee ettt st 20
Compliance with Water CONLIACT.........ceeeruiiiriieinieeiiieete ettt ettt e 21
Continuing DISCIOSUIE ........eevviiiriieiieeeie et erieereeerteeeeeee e e eeeeeaeeeeeessseesneeensnes 21
No Additional Senior OBIIZAtiONS .........c.cervueerieerieeiieeniee ettt 21

ARTICLE VII
PREPAYMENT OF SERIES 2020A INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS
PrEPAYIMENL ....eiiniiieiiieiieeie ettt ettt et e et e et e et esssaeenbeesnaeenneenee s 21
Method Of Prepayment. ..........cocuiiiiiieiienieietesiee ettt ettt st e e 21
ARTICLE VIII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF THE AUTHORITY
Events of Default and Acceleration of Maturities ............cecceevverviernieneenecnecneeneennees 22
Application of Funds Upon ACCEleration ............ceceevueevuerieniinienienieseesieesieeieeeens 23
Other Remedies of the AUthOTILY .......cocvvieiiieiieeeee e 23
NONEWAIVET ...ttt sttt e s ate e st esabeesabeesaees 23
Remedies NOt EXCIUSIVE .....cc.ooiiiiiiiniiiiiieienieieceeene e 24
ARTICLE IX
DISCHARGE OF OBLIGATIONS
Discharge of OBIIZAtIONS .........covuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt e 24
ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS
Liability of Agency Limited ........ccccecieriiiiiiiiiniieiieeeieeeeeeee et 25
Benefits of Installment Purchase Agreement Limited to Parties ............ccccceeeeneenn. 25
ii



Section 10.3.
Section 10.4.
Section 10.5.
Section 10.6.
Section 10.7.
Section 10.8.
Section 10.9.

Section 10.10.
Section 10.11.
Section 10.12.
Section 10.13.
Section 10.14.
Section 10.15.

Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C

Table of Contents

(continued)

Page
Successor Is Deemed Included in all References to Predecessor ..........cccceceeiennnenee. 25
Waiver of Personal Liability .........ccoccoiiiiiiiiiniiiiiieeeeeee e 25
Section Headings, Gender and References ...........coccevceeriiiiniiiiiiiineiieeieeeeee e 25
Partial INValIdity......c.coouiriiiiiiiiiee et 26
ASSIZNIMENL ..evieuiiieiieeiie et eteeeeeteeete et eeteeeteeeseeasseeessseesseeesseeasseeanseeansseensseenseen 26
INEE CONIIACE ....eeitieiieeeitee ettt ettt st et e sttt e sat e e sabeesabeesabeesabeesbbeesabeesabeesabeesanes 26
California Law .....cocuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiteteectee ettt sttt 26
INOTICES ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et e bt e bt et e bt e bt e bt eateeatesabeeabeeatesbeesbeesbeesbeebeenbeenteens 26
EAfECtiVe DAte ...eouviiiiiiieieee ettt st 27
Execution in COUNEIPAITS..........cevuereerienienieeieenieeteettett et st et eseeseee e saeesmeennees 27
Indemnification Of AUNOTILY .....cceeciieeieiiieie e s 27
Amendments Permitted............coouieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceteetcee et 27
Paired Obligation Provider GUIdEIINES .........cccueevieeriieriieeieeie e 28
Description of the 2020 ProjJect .......cocueeruieiiiienieiieetestesee et A-1
Certificate of General Manager........ccc.cocuieierieriiiniiniineeneeneeeeee et B-1
Form of Requisition No. ___ for Disbursement from Acquisition Fund.................. C-1

ii

207



[This page intentionally left blank.]

208



ATTACHMENT 3 Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

Draft of 12/19/19

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and
delivered by the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (the “Agency”) in connection with the issuance
by the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority (the “Authority”) of its $ Upper
Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A and Taxable Series 2020B
(Federally Taxable) (collectively, the “Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to an
Indenture of Trust, dated as of February 1, 2020 (the “Indenture of Trust”), by and between U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”) and the Authority. The Agency covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Purpose of this Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed
and delivered by the Agency for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and
in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the Rule.

2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture of Trust, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

Annual Report. The term “Annual Report” means any Annual Report provided by the
Agency pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

Beneficial Owner. The term “Beneficial Owner” means any person which: (a) has the power,
directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds
(including persons holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries); or (b) is
treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax purposes.

EMMA. The term “EMMA” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic
Municipal Market Access System for municipal securities disclosures, maintained on the Internet at
http://emma.msrb.org/.

Fiscal Year. The term “Fiscal Year” means the one-year period ending on the last day of
June of each year.

Holder. The term “Holder” means a registered owner of the Bonds.

Installment Purchase Agreement. “Installment Purchase Agreement” means that certain
Installment Purchase Agreement executed and entered into as of February 1, 2020, by and between
the Agency and the Authority.

Listed Events. The term “Listed Events” means any of the events listed in Sections 5(a) and
(b) of this Disclosure Certificate.

Official Statement. The term “Official Statement” means the Official Statement dated
, 2020 relating to the Bonds.

Participating Underwriter. The term “Participating Underwriter” means any of the original
underwriters of the Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

209


edill
Attachment 3


210

Rule. The term “Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to
time.

3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The Agency shall provide not later than 270 days following the end of its
Fiscal Year (commencing with Fiscal Year 2020) to EMMA an Annual Report relating to the
immediately preceding Fiscal Year which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this
Disclosure Certificate, which Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate
documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section
4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

(b) If the Agency is unable to provide to EMMA an Annual Report by the date
required in subsection (a), the Agency shall send to EMMA a notice in the manner prescribed by the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

4. Content of Annual Reports. The Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by
reference the following:

(a) The audited financial statements of the Agency for the prior Fiscal Year,
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to
governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the
Agency’s audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required to
be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements in a
format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the audited
financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they come
available.

(b) Principal amount of the Bonds outstanding.

© An update, for the prior Fiscal Year only, of the information in the following
tables or paragraphs under the caption entitled “WATER SUPPLY” in Appendix A of the Official
Statement:

[TO COME]

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Agency or related public entities,
which have been submitted to EMMA; provided, that if any document included by reference is a
final official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board; and
provided further, that the Agency shall clearly identify each such document so included by reference.

5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Agency shall give, or cause to
be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds in a
timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the event:

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies;



2. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial

difficulties;
3. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;
4, substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
5. adverse tax opinions or issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of

proposed or final determination of taxability or of a Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB);

6. tender offers;

7. defeasances;

8. ratings changes;

9. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings; and

Note: For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (9), the event is considered to
occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer
for an obligated person in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding
under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such jurisdiction has been
assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and officials or officers in possession but subject
to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority
having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated
person.

10. default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of
terms, or other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation, any of which reflect financial
difficulties.

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Agency shall give, or cause to
be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if
material:

1. unless described in Section 5(a)(5), other material notices or
determinations by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the tax status of the Bonds or other
material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

2. modifications to the rights of Bond holders;

3. optional, unscheduled or contingent Bond redemptions;

4. release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the
Bonds;

5. non-payment related defaults;

211



212

6. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving
the Agency or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Agency, other than in the ordinary
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms;

7. appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the
name of a trustee;

8. incurrence of a financial obligation, or agreement to covenants, events
of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation, any of which
affect Bond holders.

© If the Agency determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
under Section 5(b) would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Agency shall file a
notice of such occurrence with EMMA in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days
after the event.

(d) For purposes of the events identified in subparagraphs (a)(10) and (b)(8)
under this Section 5, the term “financial obligation” means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative
instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an
existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term financial obligation shall
not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board consistent with the Rule.

6. Termination of Obligation. The Agency’s obligations under this Disclosure
Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the
Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Agency shall give
notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

7. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the Agency may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate may be waived, provided that, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, such
amendment or waiver is permitted by the Rule.

8. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set
forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other
information in any notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this
Disclosure Certificate. If the Agency chooses to include any information in any notice of occurrence
of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the
Agency shall not thereby have any obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such
information or include it in any future notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

9. Default. In the event of a failure of the Agency to file an annual report under Section
4 hereof or to file a report of significant event under Section 5 hereof, any Holders or Beneficial
Owners of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking
mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Agency to comply with its obligations
under this Disclosure Certificate to make such filing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no action may
be undertaken by Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds with respect to the adequacy of the



information contained in any such filing or otherwise without the approval in writing of Holders or
Beneficial Owners of at least 50% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds. A default under
this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Indenture, and the sole
remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Agency to comply with this
Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

No Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may institute such action, suit or proceeding to
compel performance unless they shall have first delivered to the Agency satisfactory written evidence
of their status as such, and a written notice of and request to cure such failure, and the Agency shall
have refused to comply therewith within a reasonable time.

10. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

Agency, the Participating Underwriter and Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the
Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Dated: , 2020 SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

By:
Its: President of the Board of Directors

213



[This page intentionally left blank.]

214



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft dated J 3, 2020
ATTACHMENT 4 raft dated January

PURCHASE CONTRACT

$ _
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020A

$ _
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2020B

, 2020

Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, California 91350-2173

Santa Clarita Water Agency
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, California 91350-2173

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as representative (the “Representative”) of itself,
Goldman Sachs & Co., LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (together, the “Underwriters”)
acting on behalf of themselves and not as an agent or representative of you, offers to enter into
this purchase contract (the “Purchase Contract”) with the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
(the “Agency”) and the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority (the “Authority”),
which will be binding upon the Agency, the Authority and the Underwriters upon the acceptance
hereof by the Agency and the Authority. This offer is made subject to its acceptance by the
Agency and the Authority by execution of this Purchase Contract and its delivery to the
Representative, on or before 8:00 p.m., California time, on the date hereof. All terms used herein
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Official Statement
(as hereafter defined).

1. Purchase and Sale. Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the
representations, warranties and agreements hereinafter set forth, the Underwriters hereby agree
to purchase, and the Authority hereby agrees to cause to be delivered to the Underwriters, all (but
not less than all) of $__ aggregate principal amount of the Upper Santa Clara Valley
Joint Powers Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A (the “Series 2020A Bonds™) and
$ aggregate principal amount of the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers
Authority Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2020B (the “Series 2020B Bonds” and, together with
the Series 2020A Bonds, the “Bonds”). The Bonds will mature in the amounts and on the dates
and bear interest at the rates set forth on Appendix A hereto. The Underwriters will purchase the
Series 2020A Bonds for the aggregate purchase price of $ ___ (representing the

215


edill
Attachment 4


216

aggregate principal amount of the Series 2020A Bonds [less/plus] a [net] reoffering
[discount/premium] of $ and less an underwriting discount of $ ). The
Underwriters will purchase the Series 2020B Bonds for the aggregate purchase price of
$ (representing the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2020B Bonds less an
underwriting discount of $ ).

2. Description and Purpose of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed and
delivered pursuant to an Indenture of Trust dated as of February 1, 2020 (the “Indenture”) by and
between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (“U.S. Bank”). The Series
Bonds are special limited obligations of the Authority and are payable solely from Revenues and
from certain other amounts on deposit in funds and accounts under the Indenture. Revenues will
consist primarily of amounts received by the Authority (the “Series 2020 Installment Payments™)
pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of February 1, 2020 (the “Installment
Purchase Agreement”), between the Authority and the Agency and all interest or gain derived
from the investment of amounts in any of the funds or accounts established under the Indenture.
The obligation of the Agency to make the Series 2020 Installment Payments is a special
obligation of the Agency payable solely from the Net Revenues of the Water System (as such
terms are defined in the Installment Purchase Agreement) of the Agency. The Bonds shall be as
described in the Indenture and the Official Statement dated , 2020, relating to the
Bonds (which, together with all exhibits and appendices included therein or attached thereto and
such amendments or supplements thereto which shall be approved by the Representative, is
hereinafter called the “Official Statement”).

The Bonds are being issued to (i) finance the acquisition of certain capital improvements
to the Agency’s Water System, (ii) refund the certain outstanding obligations, and (iii) pay the
costs of issuing the Bonds, all as more particularly described in the Official Statement.

3. Public Offering. The Underwriters agree to make an initial bona fide public
offering of all the Bonds at the public offering prices set forth on the inside cover page of the
Official Statement. Subsequent to the initial public offering, the Underwriters reserve the right
to change the initial public offering prices as they deem necessary in connection with the
marketing of the Bonds, provided that the Underwriters shall not change the interest rates set
forth on Appendix A hereto. The Underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers
(including dealers depositing the Bonds into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than
initial public offering prices. The Underwriters also reserve the right (i) to engage in transactions
that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the Bonds at a level above that
which might otherwise prevail in the open market and (ii) to discontinue such transactions, if
commenced, at any time.

4. Establishment of Issue Price.

(a) The Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agrees to assist the Authority
in establishing the issue price of the Series 2020A Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the
Authority at Closing an “issue price” or similar certificate, together with the supporting pricing
wires or equivalent communications, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, with
such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the

2 Purchase Contract



Representative, the Authority and Bond Counsel, to accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales
price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to the public of the Series 2020A Bonds.

(b) [Except for the Hold-the-Price Maturities described in subsection (c) below and
Schedule A attached hereto,] the Authority will treat the first price at which 10% of each
maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of
that maturity (if different interest rates apply within a maturity, each separate CUSIP number
within that maturity will be subject to the 10% test). Schedule I attached hereto sets forth the
maturities of the Series 2020A Bonds for which the 10% test has been satisfied as of the date of
this Purchase Contract (the “10% Test Maturities”) and the prices at which the Underwriters
have sold such 10% Test Maturities to the public.

(©) [With respect to the maturities of the Series 2020A Bonds that are not 10% Test
Maturities, as described in Schedule A attached hereto (the “Hold-the-Price Maturities”), the
Representative confirms that the Underwriters have offered such maturities of the Series 2020A
Bonds to the public on or before the date of this Purchase Contract at the offering price or prices
(the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in Schedule A
attached hereto. The Authority and the Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agree that
the (i) the Representative shall retain the unsold bonds of each Hold-the-Price Maturity and shall
not allocate any such bonds to any other Underwriter and (ii) the restrictions set forth in the next
sentence shall apply to the Hold-the-Price Maturities, which will allow the Authority to treat the
initial offering price to the public of each such maturity as of the sale date as the issue price of
that maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”). So long as the hold-the-offering-price rule
remains applicable to any maturity of the Hold-the-Price Maturities, the Representative will
neither offer nor sell unsold bonds of such maturity of the Hold-the-Price Maturities to any
person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period
starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:

@) the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the sale date; or

(ii) the date on which the Representative has sold at least 10% of that maturity
of the Hold-the-Price Maturities to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial
offering price to the public.

The Representative shall advise the Authority promptly after the close of the fifth (S5th) business
day after the sale date whether it has sold 10% of that maturity of the Hold-the-Price Maturities
to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public]

(d) The Representative confirms that:

6)) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each
third-party distribution agreement (to which the Representative is a party) relating to the
initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing
wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a
member of the selling group and each broker-dealer that is a party to such third-party
distribution agreement, as applicable:

3 Purchase Contract

217



218

(A)(1) to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series
2020A Bonds of each maturity allocated to it, whether or not the Closing Date has
occurred, until either all Series 2020A Bonds of that maturity allocated to it have
been sold or it is notified by the Representative that the 10% test has been
satisfied as to the Series 2020A Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the
reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic intervals
or otherwise upon request of the Representative, and (ii) to comply with the hold-
the-offering-price rule, if applicable, if and for so long as directed by the
Representative and as set forth in the related pricing wires,

(B)  to promptly notify the Representative of any sales of Series 2020A
Bonds that, to its knowledge, are made to a purchaser who is a related party to an
underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the
public (each such term being used as defined below),

© to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the underwriter,
dealer or broker-dealer, the Representative shall assume that each order submitted
by the underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer is a sale to the public.

(ii) any agreement among underwriters or selling group agreement relating to
the initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing
wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter or dealer that is a
party to a third-party distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial
sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party
to such third-party distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the
public the unsold Series 2020A Bonds of each maturity allocated to it, whether or not the
Closing Date has occurred, until either all Series 2020A Bonds of that maturity allocated
to it have been sold or it is notified by the Representative or such underwriter or dealer
that the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Series 2020A Bonds of that maturity,
provided that, the reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable
periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of the Representative or such underwriter or
dealer, and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, if and for so
long as directed by the Representative or the underwriter or the dealer and as set forth in
the related pricing wires.

(e) The Authority acknowledges that, in making the representations set forth in this
subsection, the Representative will rely on (i) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with
the requirements for establishing the issue price of the Series 2020A Bonds, including, but not
limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the
Series 2020A Bonds, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing
wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the
Series 2020A Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling
group to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of the Series 2020A Bonds,
including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if
applicable to the Series 2020A Bonds, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related
pricing wires, and (iii) in the event that an underwriter or dealer who is a member of the selling
group is a party to a third-party distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the

4 Purchase Contract



initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a
party to such agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing the issue price of the
Series 2020A Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule, if applicable to the Series 2020A Bonds, as set forth in the third-party
distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Authority further acknowledges that
each underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement to adhere to
the requirements for establishing issue price of the Series 2020A Bonds, including, but not
limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the
Series 2020A Bonds, and that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other
underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a
party to a third-party distribution agreement, to comply with its corresponding agreement to
comply with the requirements for establishing the issue price of the Series 2020A Bonds,
including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if
applicable to the Series 2020A Bonds.

®) The Underwriters acknowledge that sales of any Series 2020A Bonds to any
person that is a related party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Series 2020A
Bonds to the public (each such term being used as defined below) shall not constitute sales to the
public for purposes of this section. Further, for purposes of this section:

@) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Authority (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting
syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the public and
(B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a
person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds
to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the
public),

(ili)  a purchaser of any of the Series 2020A Bonds is a “related party” to an
underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (A)
more than 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock,
if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of
another), (B) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits
interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership
of another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding
stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as
applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including
direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv)  “sale date” means the date of execution of this Purchase Contract by all
parties.

5. Delivery of Official Statement. Pursuant to the authorization of the Authority and
the Agency, the Underwriters have distributed copies of the Preliminary Official Statement dated

5 Purchase Contract

219



220

, 2020, relating to the Bonds, which, together with the cover page and appendices
thereto, is herein called the “Preliminary Official Statement.” By their execution of this
Purchase Contract, the Authority hereby approves and ratifies the distribution and use by the
Underwriters of the Preliminary Official Statement (other than Appendices __, _ , _,and __to
the Preliminary Official Statement) and the Agency hereby approves and ratifies the distribution
and use by the Underwriters of Appendices _ , _ , _ , and __ to the Preliminary Official
Statement (the “Agency Portion”). The Authority agrees to execute and deliver a final Official
Statement in substantially the same form as the Preliminary Official Statement with such
changes as may be made thereto with the consent of the Authority and/or the Agency and the
Representative, as appropriate, and to provide copies thereof to the Underwriters as set forth in
Paragraph 7(a)(xiv) hereof. The Agency and the Authority hereby authorize the Underwriters to
use and distribute, in connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds: the Preliminary Official
Statement, the Official Statement, the Indenture, the Installment Purchase Agreement, the
Escrow Agreements (as hereinafter defined), the Continuing Disclosure Certificate (as
hereinafter defined), and other documents or contracts to which the Agency or the Authority is a
party in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Contract, including this
Purchase Contract and all information contained herein, and all other documents, certificates and
statements furnished by the Agency or the Authority to the Underwriters in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Purchase Contract.

6. The Closing. At 8:00 a.m., California time, on , 2020, or at such
other time or on such earlier or later business day as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the
Agency, the Authority and the Representative, the Agency and the Authority will cause to be
executed and delivered (i) the Bonds in book-entry form through the facilities of The Depository
Trust Company, or its agent, on behalf of the Representative, and (ii) the closing documents
hereinafter mentioned at the offices of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional
Corporation (“Bond Counsel”) in Newport Beach, California or another place to be mutually
agreed upon by the Agency, the Authority and the Representative. The Underwriters will accept
such delivery of the Bonds and pay the purchase price of such Bonds as set forth in Section 1
hereof in immediately available funds to the order of the Agency. This payment for and delivery
of the Bonds, together with the execution and delivery of the aforementioned documents, is
herein called the “Closing.”

7. (a) Agency Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The Agency
represents, warrants and covenants to the Underwriters that:

1) Due Organization, Existence and Authority. The Agency is an
agency duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of California
(the “State”), with full right, power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations
under this Purchase Contract, the Installment Purchase Agreement, the hereinafter defined
Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the Escrow Agreement (2010A), dated as of February 1, 2020
by and between the Agency and U.S. Bank as escrow agent (the “2010A Escrow Agreement”)
(collectively, the “Agency Documents”) and to carry out and consummate the transactions
contemplated by the Agency Documents and the Agency Portion of the Official Statement.

(i1) Due Authorization and Approval. By all necessary official action
of the Agency, the Agency has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of and

6 Purchase Contract



the performance by the Agency of the obligations contained or described in the Agency Portion
of the Preliminary Official Statement, the Agency Portion of the Official Statement and the
Agency Documents and as of the date hereof, such authorizations and approvals are in full force
and effect and have not been amended, modified or rescinded. When executed and delivered,
each Agency Document will constitute the legally valid and binding obligation of the Agency
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or similar laws or equitable
principles relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally or by the exercise of judicial
discretion in appropriate cases or by limitations on legal remedies against public agencies in the
State.

(iii)  Agency Portion of Official Statement Accurate and Complete. The
Agency Portion of the Preliminary Official Statement was as of its date, and the Agency Portion
of the Official Statement is, and at all times subsequent to the date of the Official Statement up to
and including the Closing will be, true and correct in all material respects, and the Agency
Portion of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Agency Portion of the Official Statement
contain, and up to and including the Closing, will contain no misstatement of any material fact
and do not, and up to and including the Closing, will not omit any statement necessary to make
the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances in which such statements were
made, not misleading (except no representation is made with respect to information relating to
DTC or DTC’s book-entry system or any information provided by the Underwriters for inclusion
in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement, including but not limited to the
information contained under the caption “Underwriting” (collectively, the “Excluded
Information™).

(iv)  Underwriters’ Consent to Amendments and Supplements to
Agency Portion of the Official Statement. The Agency will advise the Representative promptly
of any proposal to amend or supplement the Agency Portion of the Official Statement and will
not effect or consent to any such amendment or supplement without the consent of the
Representative, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. The Agency will advise the
Representative promptly of the institution of any proceedings known to it by any governmental
agency prohibiting or otherwise affecting the use of the Agency Portion of the Official Statement
in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the Bonds.

v) Agency Agreement to Amend or Supplement Agency Portion of
the Official Statement. If after the date of this Purchase Contract and until 25 days after the end
of the “underwriting period” (as defined in Section 240 15¢2-12 in Chapter II of Title 17 of the
Code of Federal Regulations (“Rule 15¢2-12”)), any event occurs as a result of which the
Agency Portion of the Official Statement as then amended or supplemented would include an
untrue statement of a material fact, or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make
the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading, and, in the reasonable opinion of the Representative, an amended or
supplemented Official Statement should be delivered in connection with the offers or sales of the
Bonds to reflect such event, the Agency promptly will prepare at its expense an amendment or
supplement which will correct such statement or omission and the Agency shall promptly furnish
to the Representative a reasonable number of copies of such amendment or supplement. The
Underwriters hereby agree to deposit the Official Statement with the Municipal Securities

7 Purchase Contract

221



222

Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”). The Underwriters acknowledge that the end of the
“underwriting period” will be the date of Closing.

(vi) No Material Change in Finances. Except as otherwise described in
the Agency Portion of the Official Statement, there shall not have been any material adverse
changes in the financial condition of the Agency since the end of the fiscal year ending June 30,
2019.

(vii)  No Breach or Default. As of the time of acceptance hereof, (A) the
Agency is not in default, nor has it been in default, as to principal or interest with respect to an
obligation issued or incurred by the Agency, and (B) the Agency is not and will not be, in any
manner which would materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Agency
Documents, in breach of or in default under any applicable constitutional provision, law or
administrative rule or regulation of the State or the United States, or any applicable judgment or
decree or any trust agreement, loan agreement, bond, note, resolution, ordinance, agreement or
other instrument to which the Agency is a party or is otherwise subject, and no event has
occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both,
would constitute, in any manner which would materially adversely affect the transactions
contemplated by the Agency Documents, a default or event of default under any such instrument;
and, as of such time, the authorization, execution and delivery of the Agency Documents and
compliance with the provisions of each of such agreements or instruments do not and will not, in
any manner which would materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the
Agency Documents, conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any applicable
constitutional provision, law or administrative rule or regulation of the State or the United States,
or any applicable judgment, decree, license, permit, trust agreement, loan agreement, bond, note,
resolution, ordinance, agreement or other instrument to which the Agency (or any of its officers
in their respective capacities as such) is subject, or by which it or any of its properties is bound,
nor will any such authorization, execution, delivery or compliance result in the creation or
imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever
upon any of its assets or properties or under the terms of any such law, regulation or instrument,
except as may be provided by the Agency Documents.

(viii) No Litigation. As of the time of acceptance hereof and as of the
date of Closing, no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or
by any court, government agency, public board or body, is pending or, except as disclosed in the
Official Statement, to the best knowledge of the Agency after due investigation, threatened
(A) in any way questioning the corporate existence of the Agency or the titles of the officers of
the Agency to their respective offices; (B) affecting, contesting or seeking to prohibit, restrain or
enjoin the execution or delivery of any of the Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting the
validity of the Bonds or the Agency Documents or the consummation of the transactions
contemplated thereby, or contesting the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2020A Bonds
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, or contesting the powers of the Agency to
enter into the Agency Documents; (C) which may result in any material adverse change to the
financial condition of the Agency or to its ability to pay the Series 2020 Installment Payments
when due; or (D) contesting the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement
or the Official Statement or any supplement or amendment thereto or asserting that the
Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement contained any untrue statement of a

8 Purchase Contract



material fact or omitted to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, and there is no basis for any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the
nature described in clauses (A) through (D) of this sentence.

(ix)  Prior Liens on Net Revenues. Other than the Senior Obligations
(as defined in the Installment Purchase Agreement), the Agency does not and will not, as of the
date of Closing, have outstanding any other indebtedness which indebtedness is secured by a lien
on the Net Revenues (as defined in the Installment Purchase Agreement) superior to the lien of
the Series 2020 Installment Payments on the Net Revenues. Other than the Installment Payments
pursuant to the 2018A Installment Purchase Agreement, the Agency will not, as of the date of
Closing, have outstanding any other indebtedness which indebtedness is secured by a lien on the
Net Revenues on a parity with the lien of the Series 2020 Installment Payments on the Net
Revenues.

(x) Further Cooperation: Blue Sky. The Agency will furnish such
information, execute such instruments and take such other action in cooperation with the
Underwriters as the Underwriters may reasonably request in order (A) to qualify the Bonds for
offer and sale under the Blue Sky or other securities laws and regulations of such states and other
jurisdictions of the United States as the Representative may designate and (B) to determine the
eligibility of the Bonds for investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and
will use its best efforts to continue such qualifications in effect so long as required for the
distribution of the Bonds; provided, however, that the Agency shall not be required to execute a
general or special consent to service of process or qualify to do business in connection with any
such qualification or determination in any jurisdiction.

(xi)  Consents and Approvals. All authorizations, approvals, licenses,
permits, consents and orders of or filings with any governmental authority, legislative body,
board, agency or commission having jurisdiction in the matters which are required for the due
authorization of, which would constitute a condition precedent to or the absence of which would
materially adversely affect the due performance by the Agency of its obligations in connection
with, the Agency Documents or the prepayments of the Refunded Obligations have been duly
obtained or made, except as may be required under the Blue Sky or securities laws of any state in
connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds.

(xii)  No Other Obligations. Between the date of this Purchase Contract
and the date of Closing and except as otherwise disclosed in the Official Statement, the Agency
will not, without the prior written consent of the Representative, offer or issue any bonds, notes
or other obligations for borrowed money, or incur any material liabilities, directly or
contingently payable from the Net Revenues.

(xiii) Certificates. Any certificate signed by any official of the Agency
and delivered to any of the Underwriters shall be deemed to be a representation and warranty by
the Agency to the Underwriters as to the statements made therein.

(xiv) Compliance with Rule 15¢2-12. The Agency Portion of the
Preliminary Official Statement heretofore delivered to the Underwriters has been deemed final

9 Purchase Contract

223



224

by the Agency as of the date of the Preliminary Official Statement, except for the omission of
such information as is permitted to be omitted in accordance with paragraph (b)(i) of Rule 15¢2-
12. The Agency hereby covenants and agrees that, within seven business days from the date
hereof, it shall cause a final form of the Official Statement to be delivered to the Underwriters in
sufficient quantity to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of Rule 15¢2-12 and Rules of the MSRB.

(xv)  Continuing Disclosure. Other than as disclosed in the Official
Statement, during the past five years, the Agency has not failed to comply in any material respect
with any continuing disclosure undertaking previously entered into by the Agency pursuant to
Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Agency will undertake, pursuant
to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”), to provide
annual reports and notices of certain events in accordance with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-
12. A form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate is set forth in an Appendix to the Official
Statement relating to the Agency.

(b) Authority Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The Authority
represents, warrants and covenants to the Underwriters that:

@) Due Organization, Existence and Authority. The Authority is a
joint exercise of powers agency duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of
the State, with full right, power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations
under this Purchase Contract, the Installment Purchase Agreement, the Escrow Agreement
(2015A), dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between the Authority and U.S. Bank, as escrow
agent (the “2015A Escrow Agreement”), the Escrow Agreement (2016A), dated as of February
1, 2020, by and between the Authority and U.S. Bank, as escrow agent (the “2016A Escrow
Agreement”), the Escrow Agreement (2017A), dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between the
Authority and U.S. Bank, as escrow agent (the “2017A Escrow Agreement” and, collectively
with the 2010A Escrow Agreement, the 2015A Escrow Agreement and the 2016A Escrow
Agreement, the “Escrow Agreements”) and the Indenture (collectively, the ‘“Authority
Documents”), and to carry out and consummate the transactions contemplated by the Authority
Documents and the Official Statement, excluding the Agency Portion (the “Authority Portion™).

(ii) Due Authorization and Approval. By all necessary official action
of the Authority, the Authority has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of,
and the performance by the Authority of the obligations contained or described in the
Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and the Authority Documents and as of
the date hereof, such authorizations and approvals are in full force and effect and have not been
amended, modified or rescinded. When executed and delivered, each Authority Document will
constitute the legally valid and binding obligation of the Authority enforceable in accordance
with its terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or similar laws or equitable principles relating to or affecting
creditors’ rights generally or by the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases or by
limitations on legal remedies against public agencies in the State.

(iii)  Authority Portion of the Official Statement Accurate and
Complete. The Authority Portion of the Preliminary Official Statement was as of its date, and
the Authority Portion of the Official Statement is, and at all times subsequent to the date of the

10 Purchase Contract



Official Statement up to and including the Closing will be, true and correct in all material
respects, and the Authority Portion of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Authority
Portion of the Official Statement contain, and up to and including the Closing, will contain no
misstatement of any material fact and do not, and up to and including the Closing, will not omit
any statement necessary to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the
circumstances in which such statements were made, not misleading (except no representation is
made with respect to information relating to the Excluded Information).

(iv)  Represntative’s Consent to Amendments and Supplements to
Authority Portion of the Official Statement. The Authority will advise the Representative
promptly of any proposal to amend or supplement the Authority Portion of the Official Statement
and will not effect or consent to any such amendment or supplement without the consent of the
Representative, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. The Authority will advise the
Representative promptly of the institution of any proceedings known to it by any governmental
agency prohibiting or otherwise affecting the use of the Authority Portion of the Official
Statement in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the Bonds.

V) Authority Agreement to Amend or Supplement Authority Portion
of the Official Statement. If after the date of this Purchase Contract and until 25 days after the
end of the “underwriting period” (as defined in Rule 15¢2-12), any event occurs as a result of
which the Authority Portion of the Official Statement as then amended or supplemented would
include an untrue statement of a material fact, or omit to state any material fact necessary in
order to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading, and, in the reasonable opinion of the Representative, an
amended or supplemented the Official Statement should be delivered in connection with the
offers or sales of the Bonds to reflect such event, the Authority promptly will prepare at its
expense an amendment or supplement which will correct such statement or omission and the
Authority shall promptly furnish to the Underwriters a reasonable number of copies of such
amendment or supplement. The Representative hereby agrees to deposit the Official Statement
with the MSRB. The Underwriters acknowledge that the end of the “underwriting period” will
be the date of the Closing.

(vi)  Compliance with Rule 15¢2-12. The Authority Portion of the
Preliminary Official Statement heretofore delivered to the Underwriters has been deemed final
by the Authority as of the date of the Preliminary Official Statement, except for the omission of
such information as is permitted to be omitted in accordance with paragraph (b)(i) of Rule 15¢2-
12. The Authority hereby covenants and agrees that, within seven business days from the date
hereof, it shall cause a final form of the Official Statement to be delivered to the Underwriters in
sufficient quantity to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of Rule 15¢2-12 and Rules of the MSRB.

8. Closing Conditions. The Underwriters have entered into this Purchase Contract in
reliance upon the representations, warranties and covenants herein and the performance by the
Agency and the Authority of their respective obligations hereunder, both as of the date hereof
and as of the date of the Closing. The Underwriters’ obligations under this Purchase Contract
are and shall be subject to the following additional conditions:

11 Purchase Contract

225



226

(a) Bring-Down _Representation. The representations, warranties and
covenants of the Agency and the Authority contained herein, shall be true, complete and correct
at the date hereof and at the time of the Closing, as if made on the date of the Closing.

(b) Executed Agreements and Performance Thereunder. At the time of the
Closing (i) the Agency Documents and the Authority Documents shall be in full force and effect,
and shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented except with the written consent of
the Representative, (ii) there shall be in full force and effect such resolutions (the “Resolutions”)
as, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be necessary in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Official Statement, the Agency Documents and the Authority Documents,
(iii) the Agency shall perform or have performed its obligations required or specified in the
Agency Documents to be performed at or prior to Closing, (iv) the Authority shall perform or
have performed its obligations required or specified in the Authority Documents to be performed
at or prior to Closing, and (v) the Official Statement shall not have been supplemented or
amended, except pursuant to Paragraphs 7(a)(iv), 7(a)(v), 7(b)(iv), and 7(b)(v) hereof or as
otherwise may have been agreed to in writing by the Representative.

(©) No Default. At the time of the Closing, no default, or any event that with
the passage of time would be reasonably likely to result in default, shall have occurred or be
existing under the Resolutions, the Authority Documents, the Agency Documents, or any other
agreement or document pursuant to which any of the Agency’s financial obligations were issued
and the Agency shall not be in default in the payment of principal or interest on any of its
financial obligations which default would materially adversely impact the ability of the Agency
to make the Series 2020 Installment Payments.

(d) Termination Events. The Representative shall have the right to terminate
this Purchase Contract, without liability therefor, by written notification to the Agency if at any
time at or prior to the Closing:

1) any event shall occur which causes any statement contained in the
Official Statement to be materially misleading or results in a failure of the Official Statement to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements in the Official Statement, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or

(ii) the marketability of the Bonds or the market price thereof, in the
opinion of the Representative, has been materially adversely affected by an amendment to the
Constitution of the United States or by any legislation in or by the Congress of the United States
or by the State, or the amendment of legislation pending as of the date of this Purchase Contract
in the Congress of the United States, or the recommendation to Congress or endorsement for
passage (by press release, other form of notice or otherwise) of legislation by the President of the
United States, the Treasury Department of the United States, the Internal Revenue Service or the
Chairman or ranking minority member of the Committee on Finance of the United States Senate
or the Committee on Ways and Means of the United States House of Representatives, or the
proposal for consideration of legislation by either such Committee or by any member thereof, or
the presentment of legislation for consideration as an option by either such Committee, or by the
staff of the Joint Committee on Taxation of the Congress of the United States, or the favorable
reporting for passage of legislation to either House of the Congress of the United States by a

12 Purchase Contract



Committee of such House to which such legislation has been referred for consideration, or any
decision of any federal or State court or any ruling or regulation (final, temporary or proposed)
or official statement on behalf of the United States Treasury Department, the Internal Revenue
Service or other federal or State authority materially adversely affecting the federal or State tax
status of the Agency, or the status of the interest on bonds or notes or obligations of the general
character of the Bonds; or

(iii)  any legislation, ordinance, rule or regulation shall be introduced in,
or be enacted by any governmental body, department or agency of the State, or a decision by any
court of competent jurisdiction within the State or any court of the United States shall be
rendered which, in the reasonable opinion of the Representative, materially adversely affects the
market price of the Bonds; or

(iv)  legislation shall be enacted by the Congress of the United States, or
a decision by a court of the United States shall be rendered, or a stop order, ruling, regulation or
official statement by, or on behalf of, the Securities and Exchange Commission or any other
governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall be issued or made to the
effect that the execution, delivery, offering or sale of obligations of the general character of the
Bonds, or the execution, delivery, offering or sale of the Bonds, including all underlying
obligations, as contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement, is in violation or would be in
violation of, or that obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or the Bonds, are not
exempt from registration under, any provision of the federal securities laws, including the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended and as then in effect, or that the Indenture needs to be
qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended and as then in effect; or

v) additional material restrictions not in force as of the date hereof
shall have been imposed upon trading in securities generally by any governmental authority or
by any national securities exchange which restrictions in the reasonable opinion of the
Representative materially adversely affect the Underwriters’ ability to market, sell or trade the
Bonds; or

(vi)  a general banking moratorium shall have been established by
federal or state authorities or any material disruption in commercial banking or securities
settlement or clearance services shall have occurred which moratorium or disruption in the
reasonable opinion of the Representative materially adversely affects the Underwriters’ ability to
market or deliver the Bonds; or

(vii)  the United States has become engaged in hostilities which have
resulted in a declaration of war or a national emergency or there has occurred any other outbreak
or escalation of currently existing hostilities or a national or international calamity or crises,
financial or otherwise, the effect of such outbreak, escalation, calamity or crisis on the financial
markets of the United States, being such as, in the reasonable opinion of the Representative,
would affect materially and adversely the ability of the Underwriters to market or deliver the
Bonds; or

(viii) any rating of the securities of the Authority or the Agency
reflecting the creditworthiness of the Agency shall have been downgraded, suspended or

13 Purchase Contract

227



228

withdrawn by a national rating service, which, in the reasonable opinion of the Representative,
materially adversely affects the marketability or market price of the Bonds; or

(ix)  the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding described in
Paragraph 7(a)(viii) hereof which, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, materially
adversely affects the market price of the Bonds; or

(x) there shall be in force a general suspension of trading on the New
York Stock Exchange.

(e) Closing Documents. At or prior to the Closing, the Underwriters shall
receive with respect to the Bonds the following documents:

1) Bond Opinion. An approving opinion of Bond Counsel dated the
date of the Closing and substantially in the form included as Appendix __ to the Official
Statement, together with a letter from such counsel, dated the date of the Closing and addressed
to the Representative, to the effect that the foregoing opinion addressed to the Authority may be

relied upon by the Underwriters to the same extent as if such opinion were addressed to it.

(i1) Supplemental Opinion. A supplemental opinion or opinions of
Bond Counsel addressed to the Representative, in form and substance acceptable to the
Representative, and dated the date of the Closing substantially to the following effect:

(A) The Purchase Contract has been duly authorized, executed
and delivered by the Agency and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the
other parties thereto is a valid and binding agreement of the Agency enforceable in accordance
with its terms, except that the rights and obligations under the Purchase Contract are subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance and other similar
laws affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles if equitable remedies are
sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to limitations on legal
remedies against public agencies in the State; and

(B) The statements contained in the Official Statement on the
cover page and under the captions [“INTRODUCTION,” “THE 2020 BONDS,” “SECURITY
FOR THE 2020 BONDS,” “CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS,” and “TAX MATTERS”] and
in Appendix __ and Appendix __ thereto, insofar as such statements purport to summarize
certain provisions of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Installment Purchase Agreement, State law
and Bond Counsel’s opinions concerning certain federal tax matters relating to the Bonds,
present a fair and accurate summary of such provisions.

(iii)  Defeasance Opinion. A defeasance opinion of Bond Counsel with
respect to the obligations refunded from proceeds of the Bonds to the extent required by the
instruments authorizing such obligations.

(iv)  Agency Counsel Opinion. An opinion of Best Best & Krieger,
LLP, co-general counsel to the Agency, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the
Representative, in form and substance acceptable to the Representative substantially to the
following effect:

14 Purchase Contract



(A)  The Agency is a public entity duly organized and validly
existing under the Constitution and the laws of the State, and has all the necessary power and
authority to enter into and perform its duties under the Agency Documents;

B) The resolution authorizing the Agency Documents has been
duly adopted or ratified by the Agency;

(C)  Each of the Agency Documents has been duly authorized,
executed and delivered by the Agency and each constitutes a legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligation of the Agency;

(D)  The execution and delivery of the Agency Documents by
the Agency and compliance by the Agency with the provisions thereof, will not conflict with, or
constitute or with the giving of notice or the passage of time would constitute, a breach of or
default under the Agency’s duties under Article 34(a) of the Contract between the State of
California Department of Water Resources and Castaic Lake Water Agency for a Water Supply,
entered into on April 30, 1963, by and between the State of California Department of Water
Resources and the Agency and Resolution No. 178 of the Agency adopted on December 8, 1976
or the Purchase Agreement with Buena Vista Water Storage District and Rosedale-Rio Bravo
Water Storage District for 11,000 acre feet of water per year for a term ending December 31,
2036 and as extended consistent with the extension of the State Water Contract or under any
existing law or administrative rule or regulation, or, to the best knowledge of such counsel, any
court order or decree, or any agreement, contract or other instrument to which the Agency is a
party or is otherwise subject or bound;

(E) Because the primary purpose of such counsel’s professional
engagement was not to establish factual matters and because of the wholly or partially non-legal
character of many determinations involved in the preparation of the Preliminary Official
Statement and the Official Statement, such counsel is not passing upon and does not assume any
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any of the statements contained in the
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement and makes no representation that it has
independently verified the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any such statements. However,
in such counsel’s capacity as general counsel for the Agency, such counsel advises that no
information has come to its attention to lead it to believe that, as of its date the Preliminary
Official Statement, and as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, the Official Statement
(excluding therefrom all reports, financial and statistical data and forecasts therein, and the
appendices thereto, the information contained under the caption “UNDERWRITING,” and
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING” and the Excluded Information (as to which
such counsel expresses no opinion)) contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact
or omitted or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

(F) Except as otherwise disclosed in the Official Statement,
there is no litigation, proceeding, action, suit, or investigation (or any basis therefor) at law or in
equity before or by any court, governmental agency or body, pending or, to such counsel’s best
knowledge, threatened, against the Agency challenging the creation, organization or existence of
the Agency, or the validity of the Agency Documents or seeking to restrain or enjoin the

15 Purchase Contract

229



230

payment of the Series 2020 Installment Payments or in any way contesting or affecting the
validity of the Agency Documents or any of the transactions referred to therein or contemplated
thereby or contesting in any way the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official
Statement or the Official Statement, or any amendment or supplement thereto, or contesting the
authority of the Agency to enter into or perform its obligations under any of the Agency
Documents, or under which a determination adverse to the Agency would have a material
adverse effect upon the financial condition or the revenues of the Agency, or which, in any
manner, questions or affects the right or ability of the Agency to enter into the Agency
Documents or affects in any manner the right or ability of the Agency to make the Series 2020
Installment Payments.

v) Authority Counsel Opinion. An opinion of Stradling Yocca
Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, special counsel to the Authority, dated the date of
the Closing and addressed to the Representative, in form and substance acceptable to the
Representative substantially to the following effect:

(A)  The Authority is a joint exercise of powers agency, duly
created and lawfully existing under the laws and Constitution of the State;

(B)  The Authority Documents have been authorized by all
necessary corporate action on the part of the Authority, have been duly executed and delivered
by the Authority and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties
thereto, the Authority Documents constitute legally valid and binding obligations of the
Authority, enforceable against the Authority in accordance with their respective terms, except as
enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium,
fraudulent conveyance or other similar laws, to the application of equitable principles if equitable
remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to limitations
or legal remedies against public agencies in the State;

(C)  To the best of such counsel’s knowledge after due inquiry,
the execution and delivery of the Authority Documents and compliance with the provisions
thereof; under the circumstances contemplated thereby, do not and will not conflict with any
existing law, regulation, court order or consent decree to which the Authority is subject or
constitute on the part of the Authority a breach of or default under any agreement or other
instrument to which the Authority is a party or by which it is bound;

(D) The Authority Portion of the Official Statement has been
prepared by, or on behalf of, the Authority and the Official Statement has been executed on its
behalf by the President of the Authority’s Board of Directors; and

(E) Based on the information made available to such counsel,
and without having undertaken to determine independently or assume any responsibility for the
accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements contained therein, the information in the
Official Statement relating to the Authority under the captions “INTRODUCTION,” “THE
AUTHORITY,” and “LITIGATION—The Authority” is true and accurate to the best of such
counsel’s knowledge at and as of the date of the Official Statement and at and as of the date of
Closing.

16 Purchase Contract



(vi)  U.S. Bank Counsel Opinion. The opinion of counsel to U.S. Bank,
dated the date of the Closing, addressed to the Agency and the Representative, to the effect that:

(A)  U.S. Bank is a national banking association duly organized
and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its origin and has the corporate power to
execute and deliver the Indenture and the Escrow Agreements (together, the “U.S. Bank
Documents”) and to perform its obligations under the U.S. Bank Documents;

(B)  The execution and delivery by U.S. Bank of the U.S. Bank
Documents and any other documentation relating to the U.S. Bank Documents and its
performance of its obligations under the U.S. Bank Documents, have been and are as of the date
hereof duly authorized by all necessary corporate action;

(C)  No approval, authorization or other action by, or filing
with, any governmental body or regulatory authority (which has not been obtained) is required in
connection with the due execution, delivery and performance by U.S. Bank of the U.S. Bank
Documents; and

(D) The U.S. Bank Documents have been duly executed and
delivered and constitute the valid and legally binding obligations of U.S. Bank enforceable
against it in accordance with their terms except as such enforceability may be limited by
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity (regardless of
whether enforcement is sought as a proceeding in equity or at law).

(vii)  Underwriters’ Counsel Opinion. A letter from Gilmore & Bell,
P.C., counsel to the Underwriters (“Underwriters’ Counsel”), dated the date of Closing and
addressed to the Underwriters to the effect that:

(A) Such counsel is of the opinion that the Bonds are not
subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the
Indenture is exempt from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended,;

(B)  Such counsel is of the opinion that the provisions of the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate comply with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(C)  While such counsel has not verified and is not passing upon
and does not assume responsibility for, the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements
contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, such counsel has
participated in conferences with representatives of and counsel for the Agency and the Authority
and Bond Counsel and representatives of the Underwriters at which the contents of the
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement were discussed and revised. Based on
such counsel’s representation of the Underwriters in connection with the issuance of the Bonds,
no facts came to the attention of the attorneys in such firm rendering legal services in connection
with such representation which caused such counsel to believe that the Preliminary Official
Statement contained, as of its date, or the Official Statement contained as of its date or as of the
date of Closing contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a

17 Purchase Contract

231



232

material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (except that no opinion
or belief is expressed as to (i) the expressions of opinion, the assumptions, the projections, the
financial statements, or other financial, numerical, economic, demographic or statistical data
contained in the Official Statement, (ii) the information with respect to DTC and its book-entry
system, (iii) the information contained in Appendices _ , _ , and __to the Official Statement) or
(iv) the Excluded Information.

(viii) Agency Certificate. A certificate of the Agency, dated the date of
the Closing, signed on behalf of the Agency by the General Manager or other duly authorized
officer of the Agency to the effect that:

(A) The representations, warranties and covenants of the
Agency contained in the Purchase Contract are true and correct in all material respects on and as
of the date of the Closing as if made on the date of the Closing and the Agency has complied
with all of, the terms and conditions of the Purchase Contract required to be complied with by
the Agency at or prior to the date of the closing;

(B)  No event affecting the Agency has occurred since the date
of the Official Statement which has not been disclosed therein or in any supplement or
amendment thereto which event should be disclosed in the Official Statement in order to make
the statements in the Agency Portion of the Official Statement, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading (except no representation is made with respect to
information relating to the Excluded Information); and

© No event has occurred and is continuing which, with the
passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute an event of default under the
Agency Documents.

(ix)  Authority Certificate. A certificate of the Authority, dated the date
of the Closing, signed on behalf of the Authority by a duly authorized officer of the Authority to
the effect that:

(A) The representations, warranties and covenants of the
Authority contained in the Purchase Contract are true and correct in all material respects on and
as of the date of the Closing as if made on the date of the Closing and the Authority has complied
with all of the terms and conditions of the Purchase Contract required to be complied with by the
Authority at or prior to the date of the closing;

(B)  No event affecting the Authority has occurred since the
date of the Official Statement which has not been disclosed therein or in any supplement or
amendment thereto which event should be disclosed in the Official Statement in order to make
the statements in the Authority Portion of the Official Statement, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading (except no representation is made with respect to
information relating to the Excluded Information); and

18 Purchase Contract



O No event has occurred and is continuing which, with the
passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute an event of default under the
Authority Documents.

(x) Certificate of U.S. Bank. A certificate, dated the date of Closing,
signed by a duly authorized official of U.S. Bank satisfactory in form and substance to the
Representative, to the effect that:

(A) U.S. Bank is duly organized and existing as a national
banking association under the laws of the United States of America, having the full corporate
power and authority to enter into and perform its duties under the U.S. Bank Documents;

B) U.S. Bank is duly authorized to enter into the U.S. Bank
Documents and has duly executed and delivered the U.S. Bank Documents, and assuming due
authorization and execution by the other parties thereto, the U.S. Bank Documents are legal,
valid and binding upon U.S. Bank, and enforceable against U.S. Bank in accordance with their
terms;

©) U.S. Bank, acting as the trustee under the Indenture, has
duly executed the Bonds under the Indenture and delivered the Bonds to or upon the order of the
Underwriters; and

(D)  No consent, approval, authorization or other action by any
governmental or regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the banking or trust powers of U.S.
Bank that has not been obtained is or will be required for the execution and delivery of the Bonds
or the consummation by U.S. Bank of its obligations under the U.S. Bank Documents.

(xi)  Transcripts. Two transcripts of all proceedings relating to the
authorization, execution and delivery of the Bonds.

(xii)  Official Statement. The Official Statement and each supplement or
amendment, if any, thereto, executed on behalf of the Authority by duly authorized officers
thereof.

(xiii) Documents. An original executed copy of each of the Authority
Documents and each of the Agency Documents.

(xiv) Agency Resolution. A certified copy of each resolution of the
Agency authorizing the Agency Documents, certified by the Secretary for the Agency.

(xv)  Authority Resolution. A certified copy of each Authority
Resolution, certified by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority.

(xvi) Resolution of U.S. Bank. A certified copy of the general
resolution of U.S. Bank authorizing the execution and delivery of certain documents by certain
officers and employees of U.S. Bank, which resolution authorizes the execution and delivery of
the U.S. Bank Documents by U.S. Bank.

19 Purchase Contract

233



234

(xvii) 15¢2-12 Certificates of the Agency and the Authority. Certificates
of the Agency and the Authority “deeming final” their respective portions of the Preliminary
Official Statement for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12.

(xviii) Tax Certificate. A tax certificate with respect to the Series 2020A
Bonds in form satisfactory to Bond Counsel.

(xix) 8038-G. Evidence that the federal tax information form 8038-G
relating to the Series 2020A Bonds has been prepared for filing.

(xx) CDIAC Statements. A copy of Notices of Sale required to be
delivered to the California Debt Investment Advisory Commission pursuant to Sections 8855(g)
and 53583 of the California Government Code.

(xxi) Rating. Evidence from S&P Global Ratings, a Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services LLC business that the Bonds have been assigned a rating of * e

(xxii) Continuing Disclosure Certificate. ~An executed copy of the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

(xxiii) Verification Report. A verification report of ,
certified public accountants, as described in the Official Statement.

(xxiv) Additional Documents. Such additional certificates, instruments
and other documents as the Underwriters may reasonably deem necessary.

If the Agency or the Authority shall be unable to satisfy the conditions contained in this Purchase
Contract, or if the obligations of the Underwriters shall be terminated by the Representative for
any reason permitted by this Purchase Contract, this Purchase Contract shall terminate and none
of the Representative, the Underwriters, the Agency nor the Authority shall be under further
obligation hereunder, except as further set forth in Section 9 hereof.

9. Expenses. (a) The Underwriters shall be under no obligation to pay and the
Agency shall pay or cause to be paid the expenses incident to the performance of the obligations
of the Agency hereunder including but not limited to (a) the costs of the preparation and printing,
or other reproduction (for distribution on or prior to the date hereof) of the Agency Documents
and the Authority Documents and the cost of preparing, printing, issuing and delivering the
Bonds; (b) the fees and disbursements of any counsel, municipal advisors, accountants or other
experts or consultants retained by the Agency and the Authority; (c) the fees and disbursements
of Bond Counsel, general counsel to the Agency, and special counsel to the Authority; (d) the
fees and disbursements of the rating agency; (e) the cost of printing and distributing the
Preliminary Official Statement and any supplements and amendments thereto and the cost of
printing and distributing the Official Statement and any supplements and amendments thereto,
including a reasonable number of copies thereof for distribution by the Underwriters; (f)
expenses (included in the expense component of the Underwriters’ spread) incurred on behalf of
the Agency’s officers or employees which are incidental to implementing this Purchase Contract,
including, but not limited to, meals, transportation, and lodging of those officers or employees;
(g) CUSIP Service Bureau fees and charges; and (h) Trustee fees.

20 Purchase Contract



(b) The Underwriters are required to pay fees to the CDIAC in connection with the
offering of the Bonds. Notwithstanding that such fees are solely the legal obligation of the
Underwriters, the Agency agrees to reimburse the Underwriters for such fees.

(©) The Underwriters shall pay (from the expense component of the underwriting
spread): (i) the cost of preparation and printing of this Purchase Contract and the Preliminary and
Supplemental Blue Sky Memorandum; (ii) all advertising expenses and Blue Sky filing fees in
connection with the public offering of the Bonds; and (iii) the fees of Digital Assurance
Certification, L.L.C. for a continuing disclosure undertaking compliance review; and (iv) all
other expenses incurred by the Underwriters in connection with the public offering of the Bonds,
including the fees and disbursements of Underwriters’ Counsel.

10. Notice. Any notice or other communication to be given to the Agency under this
Purchase Contract may be given by delivering the same in writing to:

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency,
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road

Santa Clarita, California 91350-2173
Attention: General Manager

Any notice or other communication to be given to the Authority under this Purchase
Contract may be given by delivering the same in writing to:

Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road

Santa Clarita, California 91350-2173

Attention: Executive Director

Any notice or other communication to be given to the Underwriters under this Purchase
Contract may be given by delivering the same in writing to the Representative:

Citigroup Global Markets Inc.
444 South Flower Street, 27th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071
Attention: Cameron Parks, Director

11. Entire Agreement. This Purchase Contract, when accepted by the Agency and the
Authority, shall constitute the entire agreement among the Agency, the Authority and the
Underwriters with respect to the subject matter hereof and is made solely for the benefit of the
Agency, the Authority and the Underwriters (including the successors of the Underwriters). No
other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder by virtue hereof, except as provided
herein. All of the representations, warranties and agreements of the Agency and the Authority in
this Purchase Contract shall remain operative and in full force and effect except as otherwise
provided herein, regardless of any investigations made by or on behalf of the Underwriters and
shall survive the delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

12. No Advisory or Fiduciary Role. The Agency and Authority acknowledge and
agree that (1) the purchase and sale of the Bonds pursuant to this Purchase Contract is an arm’s-

21 Purchase Contract

235



236

length commercial transaction among the Agency, the Authority and the Underwriters, (ii) in
connection therewith and with the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading up to the
consummation of such transaction, the Underwriters are and have been acting solely as a
principal and are not acting as the agent, advisor or fiduciary of the Agency or the Authority,
(iii) the Underwriters have not assumed an advisory, fiduciary or municipal advisory
responsibility in favor of the Agency or the Authority with respect to the offering contemplated
hereby or the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether
the Underwriters have provided other services or are currently providing other services to the
Agency and the Authority on other matters) and the Underwriters have no obligation to the
Agency or the Authority with respect to the offering contemplated hereby except the obligations
expressly set forth in this Purchase Contract and (iv) the Agency and Authority have consulted
their own legal, financial, municipal advisory, and other advisors to the extent deemed
appropriate.

13. Counterparts. This Purchase Contract may be executed by the parties hereto in
separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all
such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

14. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for
any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof.

15. STATE LAW GOVERNS. THE VALIDITY, IN INTERPRETATION AND
PERFORMANCE OF THIS PURCHASE CONTRACT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

16. No Assignment. The rights and obligations created by this Purchase Contract
shall not be subject to assignment by the Underwriters, the Authority or the Agency without the
prior written consent of the other party hereto.

22 Purchase Contract



CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC., as
Representative of itself GOLDMAN

SACHS & CO., LLC and MORGAN
STANLEY & CO. LLC

Director

Accepted as of the date
first stated above:

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

By:

General Manager

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT
POWERS AUTHORITY

By:

Treasurer

S-1
PURCHASE CONTRACT

237



238

APPENDIX A

$ _
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2020A

Maturity Date Principal Pricing
(August 1) Amount Interest Rate Yield Price Rule
$

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2020B

Maturity Date Principal
(August 1) Amount Interest Rate Yield Price

APPENDIX A



EXHIBIT B

$_
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 2020A

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, on behalf of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., on behalf of itself
and as representative (the “Representative”) of Goldman Sachs & Co., LLC and Morgan
Stanley & Co. LLC (together, the “Underwriting Group™), hereby certifies as set forth
below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned obligations (the
“Series 2020A Bonds”).

The Representative, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency and the Upper Santa
Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority (the “Issuer”), have executed a Purchase Contract
(the “Purchase Contract”) in connection with the Series 2020A Bonds on the Sale Date.
The Representative has not modified the Purchase Contract since its execution on the
Sale Date.

1. Sale of the Series 2020A Bonds. As of the date of this certificate, for
each Maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds, the first price at which at least 10% of such
Maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in
Schedule A.

a) [Initial Offering Price of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities.

1) The Underwriters offered the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Maturities to the Public for purchase at the respective initial offering
prices listed in Schedule A (the “Initial Offering Prices”) on or before the
Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for
the Series 2020A Bonds is attached to this certificate as Schedule B.

ii) As set forth in the Purchase Contract, the Underwriters
have agreed in writing that, (i) the Representative would retain the unsold
Series 2020A Bonds of each Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity and not
allocate any such Series 2020A Bonds to any other Underwriter, (ii) for
each Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities, the
Representative would neither offer nor sell any of the unsold Series 2020A
Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the
Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Holding Period for such
Maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), and (iii) any selling group
agreement shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of
the selling group, and any retail distribution agreement shall contain the
agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the retail distribution

239



240

agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant to
such agreement, the Representative has not offered or sold unsold Series
2020A Bonds of any Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities at
a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that
Maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds during the Holding Period.]

2. Defined Terms
a) Issuer means Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority.

b) General Rule Maturities means those Maturities of the Series
2020A Bonds listed in Schedule A hereto as the “General Rule Maturities.”

c) Maturity means Series 2020A Bonds with the same credit and
payment terms. Series 2020A Bonds with different maturity dates, or Series
2020A Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are
treated as separate maturities.

d) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate,
partnership, association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a
Related Party to an Underwriter. A person is a “Related Party” to an
Underwriter if the Underwriter and the person are subject, directly or indirectly, to
(1) at least 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their
stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one
corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital
interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct
ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common
ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital
interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a
corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the
applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other).

e) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract
in writing for the sale of a Maturity of the Series 2020A Bonds. The Sale Date of
the Series 2020A Bonds is , 2020.

f) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting
syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the
Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or
indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in
the initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the Public (including a member of a
selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the
initial sale of the Series 2020A Bonds to the Public).



3. Disclaimer.

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.
Nothing in this certificate represents the Representative’s interpretation of any laws,
including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder (collectively, the “Code’) and we
make no warranty regarding the sufficiency of the foregoing representations for purposes
of such provisions of the Code. The undersigned understands that the foregoing
information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the representations
set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance with the federal income tax
rules affecting the Series 2020A Bonds, and by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a
Professional Corporation, in connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on the
Series 2020A Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the
preparation of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax
advice it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Series 2020A Bonds.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we remind you that we are not accountants or actuaries,
nor are we engaged in the practice of law. The representations set forth herein are not
necessarily based on personal knowledge and, in certain cases, the undersigned is relying
on representations made by the other members of the Underwriting Group.

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS
INC., as representative of the Underwriting

Group
By:
Name:
Title:
Dated: , 2020.
To Be Attached:

SCHEDULE A — Sale Prices

SCHEDULE B — Final Pricing Wire

241



[This page intentionally left blank.]

242



ATTACHMENT 5 Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

Draft dated January 21, 2020

ESCROW AGREEMENT (SERIES 2010A)

THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (SERIES 2010A), dated as of February 1, 2020 (the
“Agreement”), by and between the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (successor to Castaic Lake
Water Agency) (the “Agency”) and U.S. Bank National Association, Los Angeles, California, as
escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”), is entered into in accordance with Resolution No. 2020-__ of the
Agency adopted on February 4, 2020, and a Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the “2010A
Trust Agreement”), by and among U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “2010A Trustee”),
the Agency and the Castaic Lake Water Agency Financing Corporation (the “Corporation”) to
defease the outstanding Refunding Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2010A (2001
Refunding Project) (the “2010A Certificates”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Agency previously authorized the execution and delivery of the 2010A
Certificates pursuant to the 2010A Trust Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Agency and the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority (the
“Authority”) have determined that a portion of the proceeds of the $ aggregate principal
amount of the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A (the
“Bonds”) issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between the
Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), will be used to provide a
portion of the funds to pay the regularly scheduled payment of interest with respect to the 2010A
Certificates on August 1, 2020 (the “Prepayment Date”), and to pay on the Prepayment Date the
principal of the 2010A Certificates maturing on and after the Prepayment Date, without premium (the
“Prepayment Price”); and

WHEREAS, by irrevocably depositing with the Escrow Agent moneys (as permitted by, in
the manner prescribed by, and all in accordance with the 2010A Trust Agreement), which moneys
will be used to purchase securities meeting the criteria set forth in clause (A) of the definition of
Permitted Investments in the 2010A Trust Agreement and are as described on Schedule A hereto (the
“Federal Securities”), which Federal Securities satisfy the criteria set forth in Section 10.1 of the
2010A Trust Agreement, provided the principal of and the interest on which when paid will provide
money which, together with the moneys deposited with the Escrow Agent at the same time pursuant
to this Agreement, will be fully sufficient to pay and discharge the 2010A Certificates;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein
contained, the Agency and the Escrow Agent agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Deposit of Moneys. The Escrow Agent hereby acknowledges receipt of
$ from the Trustee from a portion of the net proceeds of the sale of the Bonds. The
Agency hereby instructs the Escrow Agent to deposit the foregoing amounts into the 2010A Escrow
Fund established hereunder.

The Escrow Agent shall hold all such amounts in irrevocable escrow separate and apart from
other funds of the Authority, the Agency and the Escrow Agent in a fund hereby created and
established to be known as the “2010A Escrow Fund” and to be applied solely as provided in this

243


edill
Attachment 5


244

Agreement. The Agency represents that the moneys set forth above are at least equal to an amount
sufficient to purchase the Federal Securities listed in Schedule A hereto.

SECTION 2. Investment of Moneys. The Escrow Agent acknowledges receipt of the
moneys described in Section 1 and agrees immediately to invest $ in the Federal
Securities listed on Schedule A hereto and to deposit such Federal Securities in the 2010A Escrow
Fund and to hold $ in the 2010A Escrow Fund in cash. The Escrow Agent shall be
entitled to rely upon the conclusion of (the “Verification Agent”), that the Federal
Securities listed on Schedule A hereto mature and bear interest payable in such amounts and at such
times as, together with cash on deposit in the 2010A Escrow Fund, will be sufficient to pay the
regularly scheduled payment of interest with respect to the 2010A Certificates on the Prepayment
Date and to pay on the Prepayment Date the Prepayment Price of the 2010A Certificates maturing on
and after the Prepayment Date.

SECTION 3. Investment of Any Remaining Moneys. At the written direction of the
Agency, the Escrow Agent shall reinvest any other amount of principal and interest, or any portion
thereof, received from the Federal Securities prior to the date on which such payment is required for
the purposes set forth herein, in noncallable Federal Securities maturing not later than the date on
which such payment or portion thereof is required for the purposes set forth in Section 5, at the
written direction of the Agency, as verified in a report prepared by an independent certified public
accountant or firm of certified public accountants of favorable national reputation experienced in the
refunding of obligations of political subdivisions to the effect that the reinvestment described in said
report will not adversely affect the sufficiency of the amounts of securities, investments and money
in the 2010A Escrow Fund to pay when due the regularly scheduled payment of interest with respect
to the 2010A Certificates on the Prepayment Date, and to pay on the Prepayment Date, the
Prepayment Price of the 2010A Certificates maturing on and after the Prepayment Date, and
provided that the Agency has obtained and delivered to the Escrow Agent an unqualified opinion of
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, that such reinvestment will not
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest
portion of the Installment Payments (as such term is defined in the 2010A Trust Agreement) or
interest on the Bonds. Any interest income resulting from investment or reinvestment of moneys
pursuant to this Section 3 which is not required for the purposes set forth in Section 5, as verified in
the letter of the Verification Agent originally obtained by the Agency with respect to the refunding of
the 2010A Certificates or in any other report prepared by an independent certified public accountant
or firm of certified public accountants of favorable national reputation experienced in the refunding
of tax-exempt obligations of political subdivisions, shall be paid to the Agency promptly upon the
receipt of such interest income by the Escrow Agent. The determination of the Agency as to whether
an accountant qualifies under this Escrow Agreement shall be conclusive.

SECTION 4. Substitution of Securities. Upon the written request of the Agency, and
subject to the conditions and limitations herein set forth and applicable governmental rules and
regulations, the Escrow Agent shall sell, redeem or otherwise dispose of the Federal Securities,
provided that there are substituted therefor from the proceeds of the Federal Securities other Federal
Securities, but only after the Agency has obtained and delivered to the Escrow Agent: (i) an
unqualified opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, to the effect
that the substitution of securities is permitted under the legal documents in effect with respect to the
2010A Certificates and that such reinvestment will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross
income for federal income tax purposes of the interest portion of the Installment Payments (as such
term is defined in the 2010A Trust Agreement) or interest on the Bonds; and (ii) a report by a firm of




independent certified public accountants to the effect that the reinvestment described in said report
will not adversely affect the sufficiency of the amounts of securities, investments and money in the
2010A Escrow Fund to pay the regularly scheduled payment of interest with respect to the 2010A
Certificates on the Prepayment Date, and to pay on the Prepayment Date, the Prepayment Price of the
2010A Certificates maturing on and after the Prepayment Date. The Escrow Agent shall not be liable
or responsible for any loss resulting from any reinvestment made pursuant to this Agreement and in
full compliance with the provisions hereof.

SECTION 5. Payment of 2010A Certificates.

(a) Payment. From the maturing principal of the Federal Securities and the
investment income and other earnings thereon and other moneys on deposit in the 2010A Escrow
Fund, the Escrow Agent shall apply the amounts on deposit in the 2010A Escrow Fund to pay the
regularly scheduled payment of interest with respect to the 2010A Certificates on the Prepayment
Date, and to pay on the Prepayment Date, the Prepayment Price of the 2010A Certificates maturing
on and after the Prepayment Date.

(b) Irrevocable Instructions to Provide Notice. The forms of the notice required
to be mailed pursuant to Sections 4.3 and 10.1 of the 2010A Trust Agreement are substantially in the
forms attached hereto as Exhibits A and B. The Agency hereby irrevocably instructs the Escrow
Agent to provide a notice of prepayment and a notice of defeasance of the 2010A Certificates in
accordance with Sections 4.3 and 10.1, respectively, of the 2010A Trust Agreement, as required to
provide for the prepayment of the 2010A Certificates in accordance with this Section 5, and to file
such notices with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access
System, maintained on the Internet at http://emma.msrb.org/ at such times that such notices are
provided pursuant to Sections 4.3 and 10.1 of the 2010A Trust Agreement.

© Unclaimed Moneys. Any moneys which remain unclaimed for two years
after the Prepayment Date shall be repaid by the Escrow Agent to the Agency.

(d) Priority of Payments. The owners of the 2010A Certificates shall have a first
and exclusive lien on all moneys and securities in the 2010A Escrow Fund until such moneys and
such securities are used and applied as provided in this Agreement.

(e) Termination of Obligation. As provided in the 2010A Trust Agreement, upon
deposit of moneys with the Escrow Agent in the 2010A Escrow Fund as set forth in Section 1 hereof
and the purchase of the various Federal Securities as provided in Section 2 hereof, all obligations of
the Agency under the 2010A Trust Agreement with respect to the 2010A Certificates shall cease,
terminate and become void except as set forth in the 2010A Trust Agreement. As provided in
Section 9.1 of the Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the “2010A Installment
Purchase Agreement”), by and between the Agency and the Corporation, the obligations of the
Agency under the 2010A Installment Purchase Agreement with respect to the Series 2010A
Installment Payments (as such term is defined in the 2010A Trust Agreement) shall cease, terminate,
become void and be completely discharged and satisfied (except for the rights of the 2010A Trustee
and the obligation of the Agency to have the Federal Securities and moneys on deposit in the 2010A
Escrow Fund applied to Installment Payments).

SECTION 6. Application of Certain Terms of the 2010A Trust Agreement. All of the
terms of the 2010A Trust Agreement relating to the making of payments of principal of and interest

245



246

with respect to the 2010A Certificates and relating to the exchange or transfer of the 2010A
Certificates are incorporated in this Agreement as if set forth in full herein. The procedures set forth
in Section 8.3 of the 2010A Trust Agreement relating to the resignation and removal and merger of
the 2010A Trustee under the 2010A Trust Agreement are also incorporated in this Agreement as if
set forth in full herein and shall be the procedures to be followed with respect to any resignation or
removal of the Escrow Agent hereunder.

SECTION 7. Performance of Duties. The Escrow Agent agrees to perform only the duties
set forth herein and shall have no responsibility to take any action or omit to take any action not set
forth herein.

SECTION 8. Escrow Agent’s Authority to Make Investments. Except as provided in
Section 2 hereof, the Escrow Agent shall have no power or duty to invest any funds held under this
Agreement or to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the moneys or Federal Securities held
hereunder.

SECTION 9. Indemnity. The Agency hereby assumes liability for, and hereby agrees
(whether or not any of the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated) to indemnify, protect,
save and keep harmless the Escrow Agent and its respective successors, assigns, agents, employees
and servants, from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims,
actions, suits, costs, expenses and disbursements (including reasonable legal fees and disbursements)
of whatsoever kind and nature which may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against, the
Escrow Agent at any time (whether or not also indemnified against the same by the Agency or any
other person under any other agreement or instrument, but without double indemnity) in any way
relating to or arising out of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the
establishment hereunder of the 2010A Escrow Fund, the acceptance of the funds and securities
deposited therein, the retention of the proceeds thereof and any payment, transfer or other application
of moneys or securities by the Escrow Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement;
provided, however, that the Agency shall not be required to indemnify the Escrow Agent against the
Escrow Agent’s own negligence or willful misconduct or the negligence or willful misconduct of the
Escrow Agent’s respective employees or the willful breach by the Escrow Agent of the terms of this
Agreement. In no event shall the Agency or the Escrow Agent be liable to any person by reason of
the transactions contemplated hereby other than to each other as set forth in this Section. The
indemnities contained in this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 10. Responsibilities of Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent and its agents and
employees shall not be held to any personal liability whatsoever, in tort, contract, or otherwise, in
connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the establishment of the 2010A
Escrow Fund, the acceptance of the moneys or securities deposited therein, the retention of the
Federal Securities or the proceeds thereof, the sufficiency of the Federal Securities to pay the 2010A
Certificates or any payment, transfer or other application of moneys or obligations by the Escrow
Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or by reason of any non-negligent act,
non-negligent omission or non-negligent error of the Escrow Agent made in good faith in the conduct
of its duties. The recitals of fact contained in the “Whereas” clauses herein shall be taken as the
statements of the Agency, and the Escrow Agent assumes no responsibility for the correctness
thereof. The Escrow Agent makes no representation as to the sufficiency of the proceeds to
accomplish the refunding of the 2010A Certificates or to the validity of this Agreement as to the
Agency and, except as otherwise provided herein, the Escrow Agent shall incur no liability in respect
thereof. The Escrow Agent shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its duties under




this Agreement except for its own negligence, willful misconduct or default, and the duties and
obligations of the Escrow Agent shall be determined by the express provisions of this Agreement.
The Escrow Agent may consult with counsel, who may or may not be counsel to the Authority or the
Agency, and in reliance upon the written opinion of such counsel shall have full and complete
authorization and protection in respect of any action taken, suffered or omitted by it in good faith in
accordance therewith. Whenever the Escrow Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter
be proved or established prior to taking, suffering, or omitting any action under this Agreement, such
matter may be deemed to be conclusively established by a certificate signed by an officer of the
Agency.

SECTION 11. Amendments. This Agreement is made for the benefit of the Agency and the
owners from time to time of the 2010A Certificates and it shall not be repealed, revoked, altered or
amended without the written consent of all such owners, the Escrow Agent and the Agency;
provided, however, that the Agency and the Escrow Agent may, without the consent of, or notice to,
such owners, amend this Agreement or enter into such agreements supplemental to this Agreement as
shall not adversely affect the rights of such owners and as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and
provisions of this Agreement, the Law (as such term is defined in the 2010A Installment Purchase
Agreement), or the 2010A Trust Agreement, for any one or more of the following purposes: (i) to
cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Agreement; (ii) to grant to, or confer upon,
the Escrow Agent for the benefit of the owners of the 2010A Certificates, any additional rights,
remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to, or conferred upon, such owners or the
Escrow Agent; and (iii) to include under this Agreement additional funds. The Escrow Agent shall
be entitled to rely conclusively upon an unqualified opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, A
Professional Corporation, with respect to compliance with this Section, including the extent, if any,
to which any change, modification, addition or elimination affects the rights of the owners of the
various 2010A Certificates or that any instrument executed hereunder complies with the conditions
and provisions of this Section.

SECTION 12. Notice to Rating Agencies. In the event that this Agreement or any provision
thereof is severed, amended or revoked the Escrow Agent shall provide written notice of such
severance, amendment or revocation to the rating agencies then rating the 2010A Certificates.

SECTION 13. Term. This Agreement shall commence upon its execution and delivery and
shall terminate on the later to occur of either: (i) the date upon which the 2010A Certificates have
been paid in accordance with this Agreement; or (ii) the date upon which no unclaimed moneys
remain on deposit with the Escrow Agent pursuant to Section 5(c) of this Agreement.

SECTION 14. Compensation. The Escrow Agent shall receive its reasonable fees and
expenses as previously agreed to by the Escrow Agent, the Agency, and the Agency and any other
reasonable fees and expenses of the Escrow Agent approved by the Agency; provided, however, that
under no circumstances shall the Escrow Agent be entitled to any lien or assert any lien whatsoever
on any moneys or obligations in the 2010A Escrow Fund for the payment of fees and expenses for
services rendered or expenses incurred by the Escrow Agent under this Agreement.

SECTION 15. Severability. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in
this Agreement on the part of the Agency or the Escrow Agent to be performed should be determined
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such covenants or agreements shall be null
and void and shall be deemed separate from the remaining covenants and agreements herein
contained and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

247



248

SECTION 16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all or
any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as an original but all of which shall constitute and be
but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 17. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

SECTION 18. Insufficient Funds. If at any time the Escrow Agent has actual knowledge
that the moneys and investments in the 2010A Escrow Fund, including the anticipated proceeds of
and earnings thereon, will not be sufficient to make all payments required by this Agreement, the
Escrow Agent shall notify the Agency and the Agency in writing, of the amount thereof and the
reason therefor to the extent known to it. The Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility regarding
any such deficiency.

SECTION 19. Notice to Authority, the Agency and Escrow Agent. Any notice to or demand
upon the Escrow Agent may be served or presented, and such demand may be made, at the principal
corporate trust office of the Escrow Agent at U.S. Bank National Association, 633 West Fifth Street,
24th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90071, Attention: Global Corporate Trust, Reference: Castaic
Lake Water Agency, Series 2010A. Any notice to or demand upon the Authority or the Agency shall
be deemed to have been sufficiently given or served for all purposes by being mailed by registered or
certified mail, and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office letter box, addressed to the Authority
or the Agency, as the case may be, at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon
Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, Attention: General Manager (or such other address as may
have been filed in writing by the Authority or the Agency with the Escrow Agent).

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written.

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

President of the Board of Directors

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Escrow Agent

By:

Authorized Officer

S-1

249



250

Purchase
Date

SCHEDULE A

Federal Securities

Type of Maturity Par
Security Date Amount Rate
$ %

Schedule A-1

Price



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF PREPAYMENT

REFUNDING REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, SERIES 2010A
(2001 REFUNDING PROJECT)

BASE CUSIP NO. 14837Q

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to the owners of the above-captioned Certificates (the
“Certificates”) pursuant to the Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the “2010A Trust
Agreement”), by and among the Castaic Lake Water Agency (the “Agency”), the Castaic Lake Water
Agency Financing Corporation (the “Corporation”) and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee
(the “2010A Trustee”), that the Certificates in the amount of $42,080,000 have been called for
prepayment on August 1, 2020 (the “Prepayment Date”).

MATURITY
CusIP (August 1) RATE AMOUNT PRICE
148370BZ1 2021 4.00% $1,000,000 100%
148370CZ0 2021 5.00 2,405,000 100
148370CAS 2022 5.00 3,560,000 100
148370CB3 2023 4.50 500,000 100
148370DB2 2023 5.00 3,240,000 100
148370CC1 2024 4.00 3,925,000 100
148370DDS§ 2025 5.00 3,080,000 100
148370CD9 2025 4.25 1,000,000 100
148370CE7 2026 4.25 2,785,000 100
148370DE6 2026 4.50 1,500,000 100
148370CF4 2027 4.375 4,465,000 100
148370CG2 2028 4.50 4,660,000 100
148370CHO 2029 4.50 4,870,000 100
148370CJ6 2030 5.00 5,090,000 100

The Certificates will be payable on the Prepayment Date at a Prepayment Price of 100% of
the principal amount prepaid (the “Prepayment Price”). The Prepayment Price of the Certificates
will become due and payable on the Prepayment Date. Interest on the Certificates to be prepaid will
cease to accrue on and after the Prepayment Date, and such Certificates will be surrendered to the
2010A Trustee.

All Certificates are required to be surrendered to the principal corporate office of the 2010A
Trustee, on the Prepayment Date at the following location. If the Certificates are mailed, the use of
registered, insured mail is recommended:

U.S. Bank National Association
633 West Fifth Street, 24th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071
Attention: Global Corporate Trust
Reference: Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority, Series 2010A

Exhibit A-1

251



252

If the Owner of any Certificate subject to optional prepayment fails to deliver such Certificate
to the 2010A Trustee on the Prepayment Date, such Certificate shall nevertheless be deemed prepaid
on the Prepayment Date and the Owner of such Certifiacte shall have no rights in respect thereof
except to receive payment of the Prepayment Price from funds held by the 2010A Trustee for such
payment.

A form W-9 must be submitted with the Certificates. Failure to provide a completed form
W-9 will result in 31% backup withholding pursuant to the Interest and Dividend Tax Compliance
Act of 1983. Under the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003, 28% will be
withheld if the tax identification number is not properly certified.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

DATED this __ day of , 2020.

Exhibit A-2



EXHIBIT B

NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE

REFUNDING REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, SERIES 2010A
(2001 REFUNDING PROJECT)

BASE CUSIP NO. 148370

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to the owners of the above-captioned Certificates (as further
defined below, the “2010A Certificates™) that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (successor to
Castaic Lake Water Agency) (the “Agency”), has deposited with U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (the “2010A Trustee”) under the Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006 (the “2010A
Trust Agreement”), by and among the Agency, the Castaic Lake Water Agency Financing
Corporation (the “Corporation”) and the 2010A Trustee, cash and federal securities, the principal of
and interest on which when paid will provide moneys sufficient to pay the regularly scheduled
payment of interest with respect to the 2010A Certificates on August 1, 2020, and to pay on August
1, 2020, the principal of the 2010A Certificates maturing on and after August 1, 2020, without
premium.

The 2010A Certificates to be defeased are as follows:

MATURITY

CusIP (August 1) RATE AMOUNT
148370BY4 2020 4.00% $1,560,000
148370CY3 2020 5.00 1,700,000
148370BZ1 2021 4.00 1,000,000
148370CZ0 2021 5.00 2,405,000
148370CAS 2022 5.00 3,560,000
148370CB3 2023 4.50 500,000
148370DB2 2023 5.00 3,240,000
148370CC1 2024 4.00 3,925,000
148370DD8 2025 5.00 3,080,000
148370CD9 2025 4.25 1,000,000
148370CE7 2026 4.25 2,785,000
148370DE6 2026 4.50 1,500,000
148370CF4 2027 4.375 4,465,000
148370CG2 2028 4.50 4,660,000
148370CHO 2029 4.50 4,870,000
148370CJ6 2030 5.00 5,090,000

In accordance with the 2010A Trust Agreement, the 2010A Certificates are deemed to have
been paid in accordance with Section 10.1 thereof and the obligations of the Agency under the
2010A Trust Agreement and the Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006, by and
between the Agency and the Corporation, with respect to the 2010A Certificates shall thereupon
cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied.

DATED this __th day of , 2020.

Exhibit B-1

253



[This page intentionally left blank.]

254



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
ATTACHMENT 6 Draft of 1/3/19

DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT

THIS DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT dated as of February 1, 2020 (the “Agreement”) by
and between Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“Depositor”), an agency duly organized and
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, and U.S. Bank National
Association, a national banking association duly organized and existing under and by virtue of
the laws to the United States of America (“Depository Agent”).

Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to such terms in the
Indenture (as such term is defined below).

WHEREAS, the Depositor previously: (i) caused to be executed and delivered its Castaic
Lake Water Agency (Water System Improvement Project) Revenue Certificates of Participation,
Series 1999A (the “1999A Certificates”) pursuant to the Trust Agreement, dated as of June 1,
1999, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Trust Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2020, each
by and among the Depositor (as successor to Castaic Lake Water Agency), Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency Financing Corporation (formerly known as Castaic Lake Water Agency
Financing Corporation) (the “Corporation””) and U.S. Bank National Association (formerly
known as U.S. Bank Trust National Association), as trustee (the “1999A Trustee”) (collectively,
the “1999A Trust Agreement”); and (ii) caused the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers
Authority (the “Authority”) to issue Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2018A (the “2018A Bonds”
and, together with the 1999A Certificates, the “Obligations”) pursuant to the Indenture of Trust,
dated as of January 1, 2018, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Indenture of Trust, dated as of
February 1, 2020, each by and between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (the “2018A Trustee” and, together with the 1999A Trustee, the “Trustee”) (together, the
“2018A Indenture” and, collectively with the 1999A Trust Agreement, the “Indenture”);

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, do hereby
covenant and agree as follows:

Section 1 Appointment of Depository Agent. Depositor hereby appoints Depository
Agent to act as depository agent in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, and
Depository Agent hereby accepts such appointment.

Section 2 Establishment of Account. Depository Agent will open and maintain an
account on the terms and conditions set forth herein (the “Account”). The Account shall
constitute the “1% Property Tax Account” which is an account in the fund previously established
by the Depositor and referred to as the “Revenue Fund” as described in the Indenture. Moneys
on deposit in the Revenue Fund have previously been pledged to the payment of the Installment
Payments (as such term is defined in the 1999A Trust Agreement and the 2018A Indenture) and
shall be applied as set forth in the documents under which such moneys have been pledged. The
Funds (as such term is defined below) held in the Account will not bear interest independently of
the interest, dividends and other distributions and payments that may arise from Permitted
Investments (as defined below) made pursuant to Section 5 hereof.

Section 3 Wire Instructions. Wire transfer instructions for sending the Funds, as
hereinafter defined, to Depository Agent are set forth in Schedule III.

255


edill
Attachment 6


256

Section 4 Deposits into the Account. Depositor has directed (i) the County of Los
Angeles to transfer all amounts allocated by the County of Los Angeles from time to time
constituting the Depositor’s share of the County of Los Angeles 1% ad valorem property tax
directly to the Depository Agent for deposit to the Account set forth in Section 2 hereof and (ii)
the County of Ventura to transfer all amounts allocated by the County of Ventura from time to
time constituting the Depositor’s share of the County of Ventura 1% ad valorem property tax
directly to the Depository Agent for deposit to the Account set forth in Section 2 hereof. In
addition, to the extent the Depositor receives any amounts from the County of Los Angeles or
the County of Ventura representing its share of the 1% ad valorem property taxes allocated by
the respective county, the Depositor shall immediately transfer such amounts to the Depository
Agent for deposit to the Account set forth in Section 2 hereof. All such amounts transferred to
the Depository Agent shall be in immediately available funds (the “Funds”), which Funds will be
held by Depository Agent for the benefit of the Owners of the Obligations and any other Bonds
and Contracts which are Outstanding from time to time as provided in Section 6 hereof. The
Funds, plus all interest, dividends and other distributions and payments thereon received by
Depository Agent from time to time, less any property distributed and/or disbursed in accordance
with this Agreement, from time to time are collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Account
Property”. Depository Agent will have no duty to solicit delivery of the Funds. For purposes of
this Agreement “Business Day” will mean any day U.S. Bank National Association is open for
business at the address set forth herein, excluding Saturdays and Sundays.

Section 5 Investment of the Account Property.

(a) As soon as practicable after the receipt thereof, Depository Agent will cause the
Account Property to be invested in such Permitted Investments as defined below as Depositor
may specify in writing from time to time. During the term of this Agreement, Depositor will
bear and retain the sole responsibility for the selection of the investments of the Account
Property and all risks from any such investments.

(b) “Permitted Investments” will be one or more of the following:

i. Money market or mutual funds registered under the Investment Company
Act of 1940, excluding such funds with a floating net asset value,
including any fund for which Depository Agent or an affiliate of
Depository Agent serves as an investment advisor, administrator,
shareholder servicing agent, custodian or sub-custodian, notwithstanding
that (A) Depository Agent or an affiliate of Depository Agent charges and
collects fees and expenses from such funds for services rendered (provided
that such charges, fees and expenses are on terms consistent with terms
negotiated at arm’s length) and (B) Depository Agent charges and collects
fees and expenses for services rendered, pursuant to this Agreement;

ii. direct obligations of, or obligations fully guaranteed as to principal and
interest by, the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof,

! Depositor hereby acknowledges that it has received and read the Prospectus for the selected investment of the
Account Property and understands that investments in the Money Market or Mutual Fund are not insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and are not obligations of or guaranteed by Depository Agent.



provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the
United States; or

iii. a deposit account of Depository Agent.

(© If Depository Agent does not receive written instructions for the Account
Property, the Account Property shall remain uninvested with no liability for interest therein. The
Depositor hereby instructs the Depository Agent to initially invest all amounts on deposit in the
1% Property Tax Account in [a deposit account identified in section 5(b)(iii)]. Depository Agent
will have no obligation to cause the Account Property to be invested on the day of deposit if the
Account Property or instructions are not delivered to Depository Agent within a reasonable
amount of time prior to the applicable cut-off time for any Permitted Investment. In any event,
instructions received after 10:30 a.m. Pacific Time /1:30 p.m. Eastern Time will be treated as if
received on the following Business Day and the Account Property will be invested on such day.
Depository Agent will have no responsibility for any investment losses resulting from the
investment, reinvestment or liquidation of the Account Property. Any interest or other income
received on such investment and reinvestment of the Account Property will become part of the
Account Property and losses incurred on such investment and reinvestment of the Account
Property will be reflected in the value of the Account Property from time to time.
Notwithstanding any other provision herein, Depository Agent will have the power to sell or
liquidate the foregoing investments whenever Depository Agent is required to release all or any
portion of the Account Property pursuant to this Agreement. In no event will Depository Agent
be deemed an investment manager or adviser in respect of any selection of investments
hereunder.

Section 6 Distribution of the Account Property. Depository Agent will hold the
Account Property in its possession and disburse the Account Property or any specified portion
thereof only as follows:

(a) Not later than ten (10) Business Days prior to each Interest Payment Date (as such
term is defined in the 1999A Trust Agreement), the 1999A Trustee shall direct the Depository
Agent (which direction need not be in writing if the Depository Agent and the 1999A Trustee are
the same entity), from Account Property on deposit in the 1% Property Tax Account, to transfer
to the 1999A Trustee an amount of Account Property necessary to cause the amount on deposit
in the payment fund created with respect to the 1999A Certificates to be equal to the next
Installment Payment (as such term is defined in the 1999A Trust Agreement).

(b) Not later than ten (10) Business Days prior to each Interest Payment Date (as such
term is defined in the 2018A Indenture), the 2018A Trustee shall direct the Depository Agent
(which direction need not be in writing if the Depository Agent and the 2018A Trustee are the
same entity), from Account Property on deposit in the 1% Property Tax Account, to transfer to
the 2018A Trustee an amount of Account Property necessary to cause the amount on deposit in
the payment fund created with respect to the 2018A Bonds to be equal to the next Installment
Payment (as such term is defined in the 2018 A Indenture).

(©) On the date that the Depository Agent receives written notice from the Depositor
(a copy of such notice shall be provided to the Trustee) that the amount of Account Property on
deposit in the 1% Property Tax Account is equal to or greater than the Installment Payments due

257



258

during the remainder of the calendar year, the Depository Agent shall transfer the excess to the
Depositor. In addition, on each August 2, the Depository Agent shall transfer any Account
Property to the Depositor for deposit by the Depositor in the Revenue Fund. To the extent that
Account Property remains after the making of such transfers required by this Section 6(c) of this
Agreement, additional disbursements of Account Property shall be made at the direction of the
Depositor in the following manner: Depositor may deliver a written notice signed by an
authorized person as set forth on Schedule I attached hereto (“Authorized Representative”) to
disburse all or a portion of the Account Property to the Depositor for deposit by the Depositor in
the Revenue Fund as specified therein (the “Disbursement Instruction”). Depository Agent will
and is hereby authorized to withdraw and pay said disbursement as specified in a Disbursement
Instruction. Depository Agent will act upon a Disbursement Instruction received pursuant to
Section 11 hereunder and will rely upon the content in the Disbursement Instruction without
making further inquiry and will assume due execution thereof and the truth and correctness of
any information or statement contained therein. Further, Depository Agent will rely upon the
signature(s) thereon of an Authorized Representative regardless of by whom or by what means
the actual or purported signature(s) thereon may have been affixed thereto if such signature(s)
resemble the specimen on Schedule I attached hereto or as provided to Depository Agent from
time to time. Depository Agent will incur no liability to Depositor or otherwise for having acted
in accordance with instructions on which it is authorized to rely pursuant to the provisions
hereof.

(d) All payments of the Account Property will be effected by wire transfer in
immediately available funds; provided that transfers to the Trustee may be made by internal
transfer.

Section 7 Compensation of Depository Agent. Depository Agent will be entitled to
receive payment from Depositor for fees, costs and expenses for all services rendered by
Depository Agent hereunder in accordance with Schedule II to this Agreement. Depositor will
reimburse Depository Agent on demand for all losses, liabilities, damages, disbursements,
advances or expenses paid or incurred by Depository Agent in the administration of its duties
hereunder, including, but not limited to, all counsel, advisor and agent fees and disbursements.
At all times, Depository Agent will have a right of set off and first lien upon the Account for
payment of customary fees, costs and expenses and all such losses, liabilities, damages or
expenses from time to time. Such fees, costs and expenses will be paid from the Account
Property to the extent not otherwise paid hereunder and Depository Agent may sell, convey or
otherwise dispose of any Account Property for such purpose.

Section 8 Resignation or Removal of Depository Agent.

Depository Agent may resign and be discharged from its duties hereunder at any time by
giving written notice thirty (30) calendar days prior to such resignation to Depositor as provided
in this Section. Depositor may remove Depository Agent at any time by giving written notice
signed by the Authorized Representative at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to such removal
to Depository Agent. Following such resignation or removal, a successor Depository Agent will
be appointed by Depositor, who will provide written notice of such to the resigning or removed
Depository Agent. Such successor Depository Agent will become Depository Agent hereunder,
and all Account Property will be transferred to it upon the resignation or removal date specified
in such notice. If Depositor is unable to appoint a successor Depository Agent within thirty (30)



calendar days after such notice, Depository Agent may, in its sole discretion, deliver the Account
Property to Depositor at the address provided herein or may petition any court of competent
jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Depository Agent or for other appropriate relief.
The costs and expenses (including but not limited to its attorney fees and expenses) incurred by
Depository Agent in connection with such proceeding will be paid by Depositor. On the
resignation/removal date and after receipt of the identity of the successor Depository Agent,
Depository Agent will either deliver and/or disburse the Account Property then held hereunder to
the successor Depository Agent, less Depository Agent’s fees, costs and expenses or other
obligations owed to Depository Agent. Upon its resignation or removal and delivery and/or
disbursement of the Account Property in its entirety as set forth in this Section, Depository Agent
will be discharged of and from any and all future obligations arising in connection with the
Account Property or this Agreement.

Section 9 Indemnification of Depository Agent. Depositor agrees to indemnify and
hold Depository Agent harmless against any and all liabilities, losses, claims, damages or
expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, that Depository Agent may incur by reason of or
based upon its actions under this Agreement other than as a result of the gross negligence or
willful misconduct of Depository Agent.

Section 10 Rights, Duties and Immunities of Depository Agent. Acceptance by
Depository Agent of its duties under this Agreement is subject to the following terms and
conditions, which all parties to this Agreement hereby agree will govern and control the rights,
duties and immunities of Depository Agent.

(a) General Duties. The duties and obligations of Depository Agent will be
determined solely by the express provisions of this Agreement and Depository Agent will not be
liable except for the performance of such duties and obligations. Depository Agent is not a party
to, and is not bound by, or required to comply with any agreement or other document out of
which this Agreement may arise. Depository Agent will not be required to inquire as to the
performance or observance of any duty, obligation, term or condition under any other
agreements or arrangements between Depositor and any other party. Depository Agent will not
be under any liability to the party hereto by reason of any failure on the part of Depositor or any
maker, guarantor, endorser or other signatory of any document or any other third party to
perform, such party’s obligations under any such document. Except for amendments to this
Agreement referred to herein, and except for notifications or instructions to Depository Agent
under this Agreement, Depository Agent will not be obliged to recognize or be chargeable with
knowledge of any of the terms or conditions of any agreement between Depositor and any other
party, notwithstanding that references thereto may be made herein and whether or not it has
knowledge thereof. Depository Agent will not be liable for the accuracy of any calculations or
the sufficiency of any funds for any purpose. The Depository Agent may establish additional
accounts or subaccounts within the Funds as the Depository Agent shall deem necessary and
prudent in furtherance of its duties under this Agreement upon written notification to Depositor.

(b) Depository Agent Funds. Depository Agent will not be required to expend or risk
any of its own funds or otherwise incur any liability, financial or otherwise, in the performance
of any of its duties hereunder.

259



260

(c) Validity of Communications to Depository Agent. Except for comparisons with
the signature specimen provided by the parties in Schedule I, Depository Agent will not have any
responsibility to determine the authenticity or validity of any notice, direction, instruction,
instrument, document or other items delivered to it by any party, or for the identity, authority or
rights of persons executing or delivering any such notice, direction, instruction, instrument,
document, or other items delivered to it by such party or parties. Depository Agent is authorized
to comply with and rely upon any notice, direction, instruction or other communication believed
by it to have been sent or given by Depositor and will be fully protected in acting in accordance
with such written direction or instructions given to it under, or pursuant to, this Agreement.

(d) No Fiduciary Relationship. This Agreement will not be deemed to create a
fiduciary relationship among the parties hereto under state or federal law.

(e) Judicial, Regulatory or Governmental Acts. If at any time Depository Agent is
served with any judicial or administrative order, judgment, decree, writ or other form of judicial
or administrative process which in any way affects the Account Property (including but not
limited to orders of attachment or any other forms of levies or injunctions or stays relating to the
transfer of the Account Property), Depository Agent is authorized to comply therewith in any
manner as it or its legal counsel of its own choosing deems appropriate; and if Depository Agent
complies with any such judicial or administrative order, judgment, decree, writ or other form of
judicial or administrative process, Depository Agent will not be liable to any of the parties hereto
or to any other person or entity even though such order, judgment, decree, writ or process may be
subsequently modified or vacated or otherwise determined to have been without legal force or
effect.

) Liability. Depository Agent will not be liable for any action taken or omitted or
for any loss or damage resulting from its actions or its performance of its duties hereunder in the
absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct on its part. In no event will Depository Agent
be liable (1) for acting in accordance with or relying upon any instructions on which it is
authorized to rely pursuant to the provisions hereof, (ii) for any consequential, punitive or special
damages, (iii) for the acts or omissions of its nominees, designees, subagents or subcustodians
who are appointed with due care, or (iv) for an amount in excess of the value of the Account
Property, valued as of the date of loss.

(2) Ambiguity or Disputes. If any ambiguity or uncertainty should arise hereunder or
in any notice or other communication received by Depository Agent, Depository Agent is hereby
authorized by Depositor to refrain from taking any action other than to retain possession of the
Account Property, unless Depository Agent receives a joint written instruction, signed by an
Authorized Representative, eliminates such ambiguity or uncertainty.

(h) Legal Counsel. Depository Agent may consult with legal counsel of its own
choosing, at the expense of Depositor, as to any matter relating to this Agreement and
Depository Agent will incur no liability and will be fully protected in respect of any action taken,
omitted or suffered by it in good faith in accordance with the advice or opinion of such counsel.

(1) Conlflicting Claim. If any dispute or conflicting claim should arise with respect to
the payment, ownership or right of possession of the Account or the Account Property,
Depository Agent will be entitled, in its sole discretion, to refuse to comply with any and all




claims, demands or instructions. Depository Agent is authorized and directed to retain in its
possession, without liability to anyone, except for its own gross negligence or willful
misconduct, all or any part of the Account Property until such dispute will have been settled
either by mutual agreement of the parties concerned or by final order, decree or judgment of a
court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction in the United States of America (as notified to
Depository Agent in writing by the parties to the dispute or their Authorized Representatives
and setting forth the resolution of the dispute). Depository Agent will be under no duty
whatsoever to institute, defend or partake in such proceedings. The rights of Depository Agent
under this paragraph are in addition to all other rights which it may have by law or otherwise
including, without limitation, the right to file an action in interpleader.

Q) Force Majeure. Depository Agent will not incur liability for not performing any
act or not fulfilling any duty, obligation or responsibility hereunder by reason of any occurrence
beyond the control of Depository Agent (including but not limited to any act or provision of any
present or future law or regulation or governmental authority, natural catastrophes, civil or
military disturbances, loss or malfunctions of utilities, any act of God or war, terrorism or the
unavailability of the Federal Reserve Bank or other wire or communication facility).

&) Electronic Communication. When Depository Agent acts on any communication
(including, but not limited to, communication with respect to the delivery of securities or the
wire transfer of funds) sent by electronic transmission, Depository Agent, absent gross
negligence or willful misconduct, will not be responsible or liable in the event such
communication is not an authorized or authentic communication of the party involved or is not in
the form the party involved sent or intended to send (whether due to fraud, distortion or
otherwise). Depository Agent will not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly
or indirectly from Depository Agent’s reliance upon and compliance with such instructions
notwithstanding such instructions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written
instruction. Depositor agrees to assume all risks arising out of the use of such electronic
transmission to submit instructions and directions to Depository Agent, including without
limitation the risk of Depository Agent acting on unauthorized instructions, and the risk of
interception and misuse by third parties.

) Statements. Depository Agent will furnish Depositor periodic cash transaction
statements which include detail for all investment transactions effected by Depository Agent or
brokers selected by Depositor or any investment advisor. Upon Depositor’s election, such
statements will be delivered via Depository Agent’s Online Trust and Custody service and upon
electing such service, paper statements will be provided only upon request. Statements will be
deemed to be correct and final upon receipt thereof by Depositor unless Depositor notifies
Depository Agent in writing to the contrary within thirty (30) Business Days of the date of such
statement. Depositor agrees and acknowledges that it will be deemed to have been “furnished”,
“delivered” and/or “in receipt” of a statement at the earlier of: (a) five (5) calendar days after it is
mailed to Depositor via U.S. Postal Service; (b) Depositor actually receives it; or (c) Depository
Agent makes it available via electronic means. Also, for purposes of this Agreement, the words
“delivered” includes, but is not limited to, statements returned to the Depository Agent as a result
of a bad mailing address. If statements are returned due to error outside of Depository Agent,
Depositor agrees that: (a) Depository Agent may hold all future statements until the mailing
address is properly updated in the records of Depository Agent; (b) returned and held statements
will be held by the Depository Agent for thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by

261



262

Depository Agent of the returned statement and/or date the statement was generated by
Depository Agent; and (c¢) Depository Agent is authorized to destroy returned and held paper
statements after sixty (60) calendar days have elapsed from the date of receipt by Depository
Agent of the returned statement and/or date the statement was generated by Depository Agent.
Depositor agrees that its obligation to review statements within the required time frame is not
excused in the event Depository Agent holds and/or destroys any returned or held paper
statement pursuant to this Agreement. Depositor and waives the right to receive brokerage
confirmations of security transactions effected by Depository Agent as they occur, to the extent
permitted by law. Depositor further understand that trade confirmations for securities
transactions effected by Depository Agent will be available upon request and at no additional
cost and other trade confirmations may be obtained from the applicable broker.

(m)  Degree of Care. Depository Agent will not be under any duty to give the Account
Property held by it hereunder any greater degree of care than it gives property held by it in
similar transactions.

(n) Confidentiality. All non-public information and advice furnished by the party to
Depository Agent shall be treated as confidential and will not be disclosed to third parties unless
required by law, except that Depository Agent may disclose (a) the identity of Depositor as a
client or client reference of Depository Agent; (b) any information required to be disclosed to
any government regulator of Depository Agent or its affiliates; and (c) any information to
Depository Agent’s affiliated entities and product and service providers to the extent necessary
to provide the financial products and services under the Agreement.

Section 11 Notices. All notices, consents, requests, instructions, approvals and other
communications provided for in this Agreement must be in writing, signed by the Authorized
Representative and sent by: (i) personal delivery, overnight delivery by a recognized courier or
delivery service, (ii) mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid, or (iii) electronic transmission, which includes email with an imaged or scanned
attachment (such as a .pdf) or other similar electronic transmission, (receipt confirmed); and
become effective when delivered to the addresses noted below or such other address as may be
substituted therefor by written notification by the Authorized Representative. Notices to
Depository Agent will be deemed to be effective when actually received by Depository Agent’s
Corporate Trust Department.

If to Depositor, to:

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, California 91350
Attention: General Manager
Email: mstone@scvwa.org

Phone: (661) 297-1600



with a copy to:

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth

660 Newport Center Drive, Suite 1600
Newport Beach, California 92660
Attention: Douglas S. Brown, Esq.
Email: dbrown@sycr.com

Phone: (949) 725-4106

If to Depository Agent, to:

U.S. Bank National Association
633 West Fifth Street, 24th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071
Attention: Global Corporate Trust
Email: alicia.estrada@usbank.com

If Depository Agent receives notices or information other than as required by this Agreement,
Depository Agent will disregard such information.

Section 12 Wiring Instructions. If fund transfer instructions are given other than as
set forth on Schedule III attached hereto, such instructions must be communicated to Depository
Agent in a writing delivered pursuant to Section 11. Depository Agent shall seek confirmation
of such instructions by telephone call-back to an Authorized Representative, and Depository
Agent may rely upon the confirmations of anyone purporting to be the Authorized
Representative so designated. Depository Agent and the beneficiary’s bank with respect to any
funds transfer will rely solely upon any account numbers or similar identifying numbers
provided by Depositor to identify (i) the beneficiary, (ii) the beneficiary’s bank, or (iii) an
intermediary bank. Depository Agent may apply any of the Funds for any payment order it
executes using any such identifying number, even when its use may result in a person other than
the beneficiary being paid, or the transfer of funds to a bank other than the beneficiary’s bank or
an intermediary bank designated. The party to this Agreement acknowledges that such security
procedure is commercially reasonable.

Should Depositor propose to direct or direct Depository Agent to make a payment to any other
party, including a foreign financial institution (as defined in section 1471(d)(4) of the Internal
Revenue Code) or a non-financial institution (as defined in section 1472(d) of the Internal
Revenue Code), then Depositor shall provide Depository Agent with each certification described
in subparagraph (ii) of Section 21(a).

Without assuming any responsibility to make any such determination, if Depository Agent
determines that any withholding (as provided in Section 21) applies to any fund transfer based on
the withholding certificates (or lack thereof) or other information that Depository Agent obtains
or has in its possession, Depository Agent shall withhold the taxes as applicable and shall not be
obligated to increase any amount transferred or otherwise compensate the transfer’s recipient for
any amounts withheld.

263



264

Section 13 Termination. This Agreement will terminate on the date the Depository
Agent receives notice from the Depositor or the Trustee that none of the Obligations or any other
Contracts or Bonds remain Outstanding.

Section 14 Continuing Obligations. The obligations under Sections 6 — 10, 15, and
18 — 23 hereof will survive the resignation or removal of Depository Agent, the termination of
this Agreement and the payment of all amounts hereunder.

Section 15 Inconsistent Provisions. Depositor agrees that to the extent that the
provisions of any other agreement relating to the Account Property are inconsistent with the
terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement will control.

Section 16 ~ Counterparts. This Agreement and any amendments hereto may be
executed in any number of counterparts each of which will be deemed to be an original, and all
of which together will constitute but one and the same instrument. Executed copies of this
Agreement and any amendments hereto delivered pursuant to Section 11 above will be as
effective as an original to bind the parties.

Section 17 Severability. The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision
of this Agreement will in no way affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any other
provision; and if any provision is held to be unenforceable as a matter of law, the other
provisions will not be affected thereby and will remain in full force and effect.

Section 18 Authorized Representative. Depositor hereby identifies to Depository
Agent the officers, employees or agents designated on Schedule I attached hereto as an
Authorized Representative with respect to any notice, certificate, instrument, demand, request,
direction, instruction, waiver, receipt, consent or other document or communication required or
permitted to be furnished to Depository Agent. Such Schedule I may be amended and updated
by written notice to Depository Agent with a copy to the other party to this Agreement provided
that failure to furnish such copy to any other party will not affect the validity of such notice to
Depository Agent. Depository Agent will be entitled to rely on such original or amended
Schedule I with respect to any party until a new Schedule I is furnished by such party to
Depository Agent.

Section 19 Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

Section 20 Jurisdiction. Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably agrees that any
action, suit or proceedings against any of them by any of the other aforementioned parties with
respect to this Agreement will be brought before the jurisdiction of any federal or state court of
competent jurisdiction located in the County of Los Angeles, California. Each party hereto
further irrevocably consents to the service of any complaint, summons, notice or other process
relating to any such action or proceeding by delivery thereof to it by hand or by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, in the manner provided for herein. Each party hereto
hereby expressly and irrevocably waives any claim or defense in any such action or proceeding
based on improper venue or forum non conveniens or any similar basis. To the extent permitted
by law, in connection with any claim, cause of action, proceeding or other dispute concerning
this Agreement (each a “Claim”), the parties to this Agreement expressly, intentionally, and

10



deliberately waive any right each may otherwise have to trial by jury. In the event that the
waiver of jury trial set forth in the previous sentence is not enforceable under the law applicable
to this Agreement, the parties to this Agreement agree that any Claim, including any question of
law or fact relating thereto, will, at the written request of any party, be determined by judicial
reference pursuant to California law. The parties will select a single neutral referee, who will be
a retired state or federal judge. If the parties are unable to agree upon a referee, the court will
appoint the referee. The referee will report a statement of decision to the court. Nothing in this
paragraph will limit the right of any party at any time to exercise self-help remedies, foreclose
against collateral or obtain provisional remedies. The parties will bear the fees and expenses of
the referee equally, unless the referee orders otherwise. The referee will also determine all issues
relating to the applicability, interpretation, and enforceability of this paragraph. The parties
acknowledge that if a referee is selected to determine the Claims, then the Claims will not be
decided by a jury.

Section 21 Tax Matters.

(a) Withholding Forms. (i) Depository Agent does not have any interest in the
Account Property deposited hereunder but is serving as depository holder only and having only
possession thereof. Depositor will pay or reimburse Depository Agent upon request for any taxes
relating to the Account Property incurred in connection herewith and will indemnify and hold
harmless Depository Agent from any amounts that it is obligated to pay in the way of such taxes.
Any payments of income from this Account will be subject to withholding regulations then in
force with respect to United States taxes. Due to the requirement that all accounts have
Taxpayer Identification Numbers documented by appropriate W-8 or W-9 forms, Depositor
agrees to provide the appropriate form to Depository Agent, duly completed and signed by its
Authorized Representative. Depositor acknowledges that failure to provide such forms may
prevent or delay disbursement of the Account Property hereunder. The Depositor agrees to
submit new Forms W-8 or W-9 (as the case may be) should the jurisdiction of its domicile or
residence change or any other change in circumstances make the applicable withholding tax
consequence incorrect during the terms of this Agreement.

(i) Additionally, if Depositor proposes to direct or direct Depository Agent to make a
payment to any other party, including a foreign financial institution (as defined in section
1471(d)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code) or a non-financial institution (as defined in section
1472(d) of the Internal Revenue Code) then Depositor shall provide Depository Agent with a
certification in form and substance satisfactory to Depository Agent acting in its sole discretion
that it has obtained valid documentation sufficient to determine the Chapter 3 and Chapter 4
(FATCA) status of the payee and that any payment to the payee is not subject to Chapter 3 and
Chapter 4 (FATCA) withholding.

(iii) If Depository Agent does not receive either a Form W-8 or Form W-9 required by
subparagraph (i) of this Section 21(a) or each certification required by subparagraph (ii) of this
Section 21(a) from Depositor regarding the beneficiary of any payment made hereunder, then
Depository Agent shall treat the recipient as a foreign financial institution.

b) Tax Reporting. Depository Agent will report payments of income from the

Account, and if required and applicable, of principal, to Depositor or other payment recipients on
an annual basis as required by law, by providing the applicable IRS Form 1099 or Form 1042-S.

11

265



266

(©) Owner(s) of Income. For purposes of reporting the aggregate amount of income
on the Account Property, Depositor will be considered owner of such income.

(d) Withholding. Depository Agent will withhold any taxes as and to the extent
required by sections 1471 through 1474 of the Internal Revenue Code (“FATCA”), sections 1441
through 1464 of the Internal Revenue Code (“Chapter 3 withholding”) or any provision of the
Internal Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder. In transferring any funds or payment to
any entity pursuant to this Agreement, Depository Agent will transfer the funds net of any
FATCA, Chapter 3 withholding or other withholding taxes. Depository Agent will not be
required to increase any payment in respect of which it withholds U.S. taxes or otherwise
compensate the recipient of the payment for any amount so withheld withholding. Each of
Depositor agrees to provide Depository Agent with information sufficient to identify the type of
payment, allocation statement to each party and a certification of the Chapter 3 and Chapter 4
(FATCA) status of each payee and whether any U.S. withholding taxes (including but not limited
to FATCA withholding taxes and Chapter 3 withholding taxes) apply to payments being made to
any such payee. Depositor has the primary responsibility to determine the validity of Forms W-8
and W-9 obtained from the beneficiary of any payment and any applicable withholding tax
consequence thereto. Notwithstanding any identification by Depositor of the type of payment or
the rate of withholding applicable thereto, if Depository Agent determines that the payment is
subject to withholding taxes, Depository Agent will withhold the applicable tax.

Section 22  USA PATRIOT Act. Depositor will provide to Depository Agent such
information as Depository Agent may reasonably require to permit Depository Agent to comply
with its obligations under the federal USA PATRIOT Act (Uniting and Strengthening America
by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001) and
any other law, statute, regulation or regulation relating to prohibited practices. Depository Agent
will not credit any amount of the Funds or any interest or investment proceeds earned thereon, or
make any payment of all or a portion of the Funds or any interest or investment proceeds earned
thereon, to any person unless and until such person has provided to Depository Agent such
documents as Depository Agent may require to permit Depository Agent to comply with its
obligations under such Act or any other such law, statute, regulation or regulation relating to
prohibited practices.

Section 23 Miscellaneous.

(a) The rights and remedies conferred upon the parties hereto shall be cumulative,
and the exercise or waiver of any such right or remedy will not preclude or inhibit the exercise of
any additional rights or remedies. The waiver of any right or remedy hereunder will not preclude
the subsequent exercise of such right or remedy.

(b) This Agreement is for the exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors hereunder, and will not be deemed to give, either express or implied, any
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim to any other entity or person whatsoever.

(©) Each party hereby represents and warrants (i) that this Agreement has been duly
authorized, executed and delivered on its behalf and constitutes its legal, valid and binding
obligation and (ii) that the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the parties
hereto does not and will not violate any applicable law or regulation.

12



(d) The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only
and will have no effect on the interpretation or operation hereof.

(e) Except as otherwise permitted herein, this Agreement may be modified only by a
written amendment signed by the Authorized Representative and Depository Agent, and no
waiver of any provision hereof will be effective unless expressed in a writing signed by the
proper party’s Authorized Representative and Depository Agent.

® No party may assign any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without
the written consent of the other parties.

(2) Any entity into which Depository Agent may be merged or converted or with
which it may be consolidated, or any entity resulting from any merger, conversion or
consolidation to which Depository Agent will be a party, or any entity succeeding to all or
substantially all of the corporate trust business of Depository Agent will be the successor of
Depository Agent hereunder without the execution or filing of any paper with any party hereto or
any further act on the part of any of the parties hereto except where an instrument of transfer or
assignment is required by law to effect such succession, anything herein to the contrary
notwithstanding.

[Signature Page to Follow]

13

267



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day
and year first above written.

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
as Depositor

By:

President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
as Depository Agent

By:

Authorized Officer

268



SCHEDULE I

Account Signing Authority

Authorized Representative(s) of Depositor

Signature: Signature:

Print: Matt Stone Print: Eric Campbell

Title: General Manager Title: Chief Financial and
Administrative Officer

Phone: (661) 297-1600 Phone: (661) 297-1600

Email: mstone @scvwa.org Email: ecampbell @scvwa.org

Certification: The undersigned certifies that each of the individuals listed above is an authorized
representative of Depositor with respect to any instruction or other action to be taken in
connection with the Agreement and U.S. Bank National Association will be entitled to rely on
such list until a new list is furnished to U.S. Bank National Association. The undersigned further
certifies that he or she is duly authorized to sign this Account Signing Authority.

Signature:

Name: April Jacobs

Its: Secretary

Date: , 2020

269



270

Schedule II

DEPOSITORY AGENT COMPENSATION

Acceptance Fee - The acceptance fee includes the administrative review of document, Amount $1,000
initial setup of the account, and other reasonably required services up to and including
the closing. This is a one-time, non-refundable fee, payable at closing. Does not include legal fees.

Depository - Annual fee for standard depository services Amount $2,000

Direct Out of Pocket Expenses. Reimbursement of expenses associated with the performance of our duties,
including but not limited to publications, legal counsel's fees and expenses after the initial closing, travel expenses,
and filing fees will be billed at cost.

Extraordinary Administration Services. Extraordinary Administration Services ("EAS") are duties, responsibilities or activities not expected to be provided by
the trustee or agent at the outset of the transaction, not routine or customary, and/or not incurred in the ordinary course of business, and may require analysis or
interpretation. Billing for fees and expenses related to EAS is appropriate in instances where particular inquiries, events or developments are unexpected, even if
the possibility of such circumstances could have been identified at the inception of the transaction, or as changes in law, procedures, or the cost of doing
business demand. At our option, EAS may be charged on an hourly (time expended multiplied by current hourly rate), flat or special fee basis at such rates or in
such amounts in effect at the time of such services, which may be modified by us in our sole and reasonable discretion from time to time. In addition, all fees and
expenses incurred by the trustee or agent, in connection with the trustee's or agent's EAS and ordinary administration services and including without limitation
the fees and expenses of legal counsel, financial advisors and other professionals, charges for wire transfers, checks, internal transfers and securities
transactions, travel expenses, communication costs, postage (including express mail and ovemight delivery charges), copying charges and the like will be
payable, at cost, to the trustee or agent. EAS fees are due and payable in addition to annual or ordinary administration fees. Failure to pay for EAS owed to U.S.
Bank when due may result in interest being charged on amounts owed to U.S. Bank for extraordinary administration services fees and expenses at the prevailing
market rate.

General. Your obligation to pay under this Fee Schedule shall govern the matters described herein and shall not be superseded or modified by the terms of the
governing documents and survive any termination of the transaction or governing documents and the resignation or removal of the trustee or agent. This Fee
Schedule shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state identified in the governing documents without giving effect to the conflict of
laws principles thereof. You agree to the sole and exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts of the state identified in the governing documents over any
proceeding relating to or arising regarding the matters described herein. Payment of fees constitutes acceptance of the terms and conditions described herein.

Account approval is subject to review and qualification. Fees are subject to change at our discretion and upon written notice. Fees paid in advance will not be
prorated. The fees set forth above and any subsequent modifications thereof are part of your agreement. Finalization of the transaction constitutes agreement to
the above fee schedule, including agreement to any subsequent changes upon proper written notice. In the event your transaction is not finalized, any related
out-of-pocket expenses will be billed to you directly. Absent your written instructions to sweep or otherwise invest, all sums in your account will remain uninvested
and no accrued interest or other compensation will be credited to the account. Payment of fees constitutes acceptance of the terms and conditions set forth.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR OPENING A NEW ACCOUNT:

To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify and record
information that identifies each person who opens an account.

For a non-individual person such as a business entity, a charity, a Trust or other legal entity we will ask for documentation to verify its formation and existence as
a legal entity. We may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization documents from individuals claiming authority to represent
the entity or other relevant documentation.



SCHEDULE IIT

Wire Instructions:

If to Depositor:

ABA No.:
Bank Name:
Account No.:
Account Name:

If to Depository Agent:

ABA: 091000022

Bank Name: U.S. Bank National Association
Account No.: 180121167365

BNF: U.S. Bank Trust N.A.

Account Name: 1% Property Tax Account
Attention: Global Corporate Trust

271



[This page intentionally left blank.]

272



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 1/3/20

ATTACHMENT 7

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO TRUST AGREEMENT

dated as of

February 1, 2020

by and among

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
(formerly known as U.S. Bank Trust National Associatioi,
as Trustee,

AND

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY FINANCING CORPORATION,
formerly known as Castaic Lake Water Agency Financing Corporation

AND

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY,
as successor to Castaic Lake Water Agency

relating to

CASTAIC LAKE WATER AGENCY
(WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PROJECT)
REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION
SERIES 1999A

273


edill
Attachment 7


274

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO TRUST AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO TRUST AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”) is made and
entered into as of February 1, 2020 by and among SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER
AGENCY, as successor to Castaic Lake Water Agency (the “Agency”), SANTA CLARITA
VALLEY WATER AGENCY FINANCING CORPORATION, formerly known as Castaic Lake
Water Agency Financing Corporation (the “Corporation”) and U.S. BANK NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION (formerly known as U.S. Bank Trust National Association), as trustee (the
“Trustee”).

WHEREAS, the Agency, the Corporation and the Trustee entered into the Trust Agreement,
dated as of June 1, 1999 (the “Trust Agreement”), relating to the Castaic Lake Water Agency
Revenue Certificates of Participation (Water System Improvement Project) Series 1999A (the
“Certificates™);

WHEREAS, the Agency has opened an account with U.S. Bank National Association, as
depository agent (the “Depository Agent”) titled the “1% Property Tax Account” which is an account
in the fund previously established by the Agency and referred to as the “Revenue Fund” and which
deposit account is subject to a Depository Agreement dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between
the Agency and the Depository Agent (the “Depository Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Agency and the Corporation desire to amend the Trust Agreement pursuant
to Section 9.1(b) thereof to provide for the application of the 1% Property Tax Account;

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THESE PREMISES AND OF THE
MUTUAL AGREEMENTS AND COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN AND FOR OTHER
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE PARTIES HERETO DO HEREBY AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. This Amendment hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Trust Agreement unless specifically modified by this Amendment. All terms and
conditions set forth in the Trust Agreement which are not specifically modified by this Amendment
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 2. The capitalized terms set forth in this Amendment not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Trust Agreement.

SECTION 3. A new subsection (d) is hereby added to Section 5.2 of the Trust Agreement
as follows:

(d) Notwithstanding anything in the Trust Agreement to the
contrary and in order to enhance the security for the payment of the
Certificates, the Agency hereby agrees (i) to provide written
instruction and direction to the County of Los Angeles to transfer all
amounts allocated by the County of Los Angeles from time to time
constituting the Agency’s share of the County of Los Angeles 1% ad
valorem property tax directly to the Depository Agent for deposit in



the 1% Property Tax Account, and (ii) to provide written instruction
and direction to the County of Ventura to transfer all amounts
allocated by the County of Ventura from time to time constituting the
Agency’s share of the County of Ventura 1% ad valorem property tax
directly to the Depository Agent for deposit in the 1% Property Tax
Account. In connection therewith, the Agency hereby covenants to
maintain the 1% Property Tax Account so long as the Certificates
remain Outstanding. In addition, so long as the Certificates remain
Outstanding:

1) The Agency shall not terminate or otherwise
discontinue or suspend its instruction and direction to the County of
Los Angeles or the County of Ventura to transfer the amounts
associated in Section 5.2(d) directly to the Depository Agent for
deposit in the 1% Property Tax Account;

2) The Agency shall enter into such agreements or take
such further actions reasonably necessary from time to time to
implement the instruction and direction to the County of Los Angeles
and the County of Ventura to transfer the amounts described in
Section 5.2(d) directly to the Depository Agent; and

3) The Agency shall maintain the Trustee as the trustee
for all other indebtedness or obligations which are payable from and
secured by a subordinate pledge of and lien on the Revenues or any
moneys in the Revenue Fund.

SECTION 4. Section 5.8 is hereby added to the Trust Agreement as follows.

Section 5.8 1% Property Tax Account.

Not later than ten (10) Business Days prior to each Interest
Payment Date, the Trustee shall direct the Depository Agent (which
direction need not be in writing if the Depository Agent and the
Trustee are the same entity), from moneys on deposit in the 1%
Property Tax Account, to transfer to the Trustee an amount necessary
to cause the amount on deposit in the payment fund created with
respect to the Certificates to be equal to the next Installment Payment.

SECTION 5. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND GOVERNED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

SECTION 6. This Amendment shall become effective upon its execution and delivery.

SECTION 7. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed as an original, all of which shall constitute but one of the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment by their
officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

275



276

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
formerly known as U.S. Bank Trust National
Association, as Trustee

By:

Authorized Officer

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY,
as successor to Castaic Lake Water Agency

By:

President

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
FINANCING CORPORATION,

formerly known as the Castaic Lake Water Agency
Financing Corporation

By:

President



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 1/3/20

ATTACHMENT 8

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO INDENTURE OF TRUST

dated as of

February 1, 2020

by and between

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee,

AND

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

relating to

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2018A

277


edill
Attachment 8


278

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO INDENTURE OF TRUST

This AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO INDENTURE OF TRUST (the “Amendment”) is made and
entered into as of February 1, 2020 by and between UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT
POWERS AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as trustee
(the “Trustee™).

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Trustee entered into the Indenture of Trust, dated as of
January 1, 2018 (the “Indenture”), relating to the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (the “Bonds”);

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (the “Agency”)
entered into the Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2018 (the “Installment
Purchase Agreement”), relating to the Bonds;

WHEREAS, the Agency has opened an account with U.S. Bank National Association, as
depository agent (the “Depository Agent”) titled the “1% Property Tax Account” which is an account
in the fund previously established by the Agency and referred to as the “Revenue Fund” and which
deposit account is subject to a Depository Agreement dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between
the Agency and the Depository Agent (the “Depository Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to amend the Indenture pursuant to Section 9.01(b)
thereof to provide for the application of the 1% Property Tax Account;

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THESE PREMISES AND OF THE
MUTUAL AGREEMENTS AND COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN AND FOR OTHER
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE PARTIES HERETO DO HEREBY AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. This Amendment hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Indenture unless specifically modified by this Amendment. All terms and conditions
set forth in the Indenture which are not specifically modified by this Amendment shall remain in full
force and effect.

SECTION 2. The capitalized terms set forth in this Amendment not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Indenture.

SECTION 3. Section 5.8 is hereby added to the Indenture as follows.

Section 5.8 1% Property Tax Account.

Not later than ten (10) Business Days prior to each Interest
Payment Date, the Trustee shall direct the Depository Agent (which
direction need not be in writing if the Depository Agent and the
Trustee are the same entity), from moneys on deposit in the 1%
Property Tax Account, to transfer to the Trustee an amount necessary



to cause the amount on deposit in the payment fund created with
respect to the Bonds to be equal to the next Installment Payment.

SECTION 4. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND GOVERNED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

SECTION 5. This Amendment shall become effective upon its execution and delivery.

SECTION 6. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed as an original, all of which shall constitute but one of the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment by their
officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee

By:

Authorized Officer

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT
POWERS AUTHORITY,

By:

President

THE AGENCY HERETO CONSENTS AND AGREES TO THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
AGENCY SET FORTH IN SECTION 3 HEREOF:

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
By:

Name:
Its:

279



[This page intentionally left blank.]

280



Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 1/3/20

ATTACHMENT 9

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

dated as of

February 1, 2020

by and between

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

AND

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

relating to

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2018A

281


edill
Attachment 9


282

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT NO.1 TO INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the
“Amendment”) is made and entered into as of February 1, 2020 by and between UPPER SANTA
CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) and SANTA CLARITA
VALLEY WATER AGENCY (the “Agency”).

WHEREAS, the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”)
entered into the Indenture of Trust, dated as of January 1, 2018, relating to the Upper Santa Clara
Valley Joint Powers Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (the “Bonds”);

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (the “Agency”)
entered into the Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2018 (the “Installment
Purchase Agreement”), relating to the Bonds;

WHEREAS, the Agency has opened an account with U.S. Bank National Association, as
depository agent (the “Depository Agent”) titled the “1% Property Tax Account” which is an account
in the fund previously established by the Agency and referred to as the “Revenue Fund” and which
deposit account is subject to a Depository Agreement dated as of February 1, 2020, by and between
the Agency and the Depository Agent (the “Depository Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Agency desire to amend the Installment Purchase
Agreement pursuant to Section 10.14(b) thereof to provide for the application of the 1% Property
Tax Account;

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THESE PREMISES AND OF THE
MUTUAL AGREEMENTS AND COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN AND FOR OTHER
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE PARTIES HERETO DO HEREBY AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. This Amendment hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions
set forth in the Installment Purchase Agreement unless specifically modified by this Amendment.
All terms and conditions set forth in the Installment Purchase Agreement which are not specifically
modified by this Amendment shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 2. The capitalized terms set forth in this Amendment not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Installment Purchase Agreement.

SECTION 3. A new Section 6.21 is hereby added to the Installment Purchase Agreement as
follows:

1% Property Tax. Notwithstanding anything in the Installment
Purchase Agreement to the contrary and in order to enhance the
security for the payment of the Bonds, the Agency hereby agrees (i)
to provide written instruction and direction to the County of Los
Angeles to transfer all amounts allocated by the County of Los
Angeles from time to time constituting the Agency’s share of the




County of Los Angeles 1% ad valorem property tax directly to the
Depository Agent for deposit in the 1% Property Tax Account, and
(i) to provide written instruction and direction to the County of
Ventura to transfer all amounts allocated by the County of Ventura
from time to time constituting the Agency’s share of the County of
Ventura 1% ad valorem property tax directly to the Depository Agent
for deposit in the 1% Property Tax Account. In connection therewith,
the Agency hereby covenants to maintain the 1% Property Tax
Account so long as the Bonds remain Outstanding. In addition, so
long as the Bonds remain Outstanding:

(a) The Agency shall not terminate or otherwise
discontinue or suspend its instruction and direction to the County of
Los Angeles or the County of Ventura to transfer the amounts
associated in Section 6.21 directly to the Depository Agent for deposit
in the 1% Property Tax Account;

(b) The Agency shall enter into such agreements or take
such further actions reasonably necessary from time to time to
implement the instruction and direction to the County of Los Angeles
and the County of Ventura to transfer the amounts described in
Section 6.21 directly to the Depository Agent; and

©) The Agency shall maintain the Trustee as the trustee
for all Contracts and Bonds and all other indebtedness or obligations
which are payable from and secured by a subordinate pledge of and
lien on the Revenues or any moneys in the Revenue Fund.

SECTION 4. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND GOVERNED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

SECTION 5. This Amendment shall become effective upon its execution and delivery.

SECTION 6. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed as an original, all of which shall constitute but one of the same instrument.

283



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment by their
officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

By:

President of the Board of Directors

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT
POWERS AUTHORITY

President

284



Sﬂl ITEM NO.

7.2
WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 14, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Eric Campbell

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

SUBJECT:  Approve a Community Facility District Policy

SUMMARY

At the September 16, 2019 Finance and Administration Committee meeting, staff and the
Committee discussed the creation of a Community Facility District (CFD) Policy that would
establish requirements that must be met for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) to
participate in financing infrastructure costs through a CFD.

The policy describes the conditions that will determine if the Agency will participate in a CFD
financing, how risk to the Agency is managed, and the CFD structures that the Agency may
elect to participate in.

DISCUSSION

CFDs are often created for establishing a method of financing public improvements, fees, or
services by imposing a “special tax” on real property in a defined geographic area. CFDs
issue bonds, repaid by homeowners through an annual levy of the CFD special tax. The
special tax is commonly referred to as a “Mello-Roos” tax. The Agency has historically not
facilitated capacity fees or regional facilities for new development to be financed through a
CFD, whether the CFD was created by the Agency or an overlapping public agency.

Some public agencies, such as school districts, utilize CFDs to accelerate funding of fees or
improvements. Theoretically, financing fees through a CFD should result in lower housing
prices in the development area as the related infrastructure costs that are financed are
excluded from the housing development costs.

The attached policy has been reviewed by the Agency’s general counsel.

On January 13, 2020, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve the attached proposed CFD policy.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

None at this time.

285


edill
Eric Campbell

ajacobs
Item 7.2


RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
the attached proposed CFD policy.

Attachment

EC

A /

286


ajacobs
Matt


Sl

2.0

3.0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT (CFD) FINANCING POLICY
Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #19530

COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT (CFD) POLICY

INTRODUCTION

This policy has been developed to formally establish requirements that must be met for
the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency or SCV Water) to participate in financing
infrastructure costs through a Community Facility District (CFD). Community Facility
Districts are often created for establishing a method of financing public improvements,
fees, or services by imposing a “special tax” on real property in a defined geographic
area. CFDs issue bonds, repaid by homeowners through an annual levy of the CFD
special tax. The special tax is commonly referred to as a “Mello-Roos” tax. SCV Water
has not utilized CFDs in the past, whether the CFD was created by the Agency or
another public agency. The Agency’s primary benefit of participating in CFDs is that
CFDs are a source of financing critical infrastructure that would not impact its existing
debt coverage ratios. A secondary benefit of CFD financing is that it ensures that the
new development property owners pay their share of the cost of growth in the Agency’s
capacity to serve its customers.

This policy describes the conditions that will determine if the Agency will participate in a
CFD financing, how risk to the Agency is managed, and the CFD structures that SCV
Water may elect to participate in.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose of SCV Water's Community Facilities District Financing Policy is to ensure
the Agency’s: prudent management of risk; financial stability; access to an additional
financing tool during a period of significant infrastructure investment, while managing the
equitable allocation of costs to its customers.

LIMITS AND CONSTRAINTS FOR CFD PARTICIPATION
For the Agency to consider participating in a CFD, the following conditions must be met:
1. Facility Capacity Fees will not be financed
2. On acase by case basis, there must be a benefit to the Agency’s customers as
determined by the sole discretion of the Board
3. Staff time must be available to carry out the Agency’s responsibilities in
establishing and administering the CFD, and the Agency’s ongoing
administration costs must be included in the special tax
4. A Deposit and Reimbursement Agreement between the Agency and the
developer must be agreed upon whereby the developer pays all the Agency’s
costs, including third party consultant and legal costs
5. Prior to the formation of the CFD or the issuance or sale of special tax bonds, the
Agency and Developer will have a completed an Acquisition Agreement, setting
forth the terms upon which the Agency will acquire the specific infrastructure to
be funded by the CFD and acquired using proceeds of the special taxes and/or
bonds

COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT POLICY February 2020 1of3

287



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT (CFD) FINANCING POLICY

Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #19530

S0

6. All Agreements shall be governed by, construed and enforced under the
Constitution and laws of the State of California. Venue for any legal actions
involving this Agreement shall rest with the Superior Court, County of
Sacramento

7. Another public agency must be the primary administrator (School District,
California Statewide Communities Development Authority (“CSCDA”)).

4.0 PRUDENT MANAGEMENT OF RISK
a. The Agency will not allow its Facility Capacity Fees (FCFs) to be included in CFD
Financing. FCFs must be paid by the developer when building permits are
issued. CFDs may only be used to pay for the costs of infrastructure.

b. There will be no obligation or requirement for the Agency to pay the bonds.

c. The CSCDA works with advisors, consultants, and an underwriter to determine
the credit quality of the developer/landowner and economic viability of the
proposed project to be financed.

d. Specific credit quality requirements are mandated and documented in Section
53345.8 of Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982. (Bonding requirements)

e. In order to enhance the credit quality of bond issues, the CSCDA will require that
each bond issue be secured by a reserve fund, funded in an amount no less than
the least of: (a) 10% of the original proceeds of the bond issue, (b) maximum
annual debt service on the bonds of such issue, or (c) 125% of the average
annual debt service on the bonds of such issue.

f. Prior to the issuance of any CFD bonds, all environmental and/or land-use
planning approvals, special permits (e.g. permits required by the Army Corps of
Engineers, California Fish and Game, and other agencies), and approval by the
city or county in whose jurisdiction the development lies of a tentative map must
be obtained.

g. As CFD bonds are secured by real property owned by the Developer and
ultimately by the purchaser of the developed property, CFD debt has no impact
on Agency financial metrics or credit capacity.

h. The Agency will not be forming any CFDs, therefore the Agency will not be
associated with any debt issued by such CFDs.

i. To ensure that the Agency will be reimbursed for all costs incurred related to
CFD creation, the Agency will enter into a “Deposit and Reimbursement
Agreement” with the Developer requiring the Developer to deposit an initial
amount of funds into an account for the Agency to use to pay preliminary
incidental costs and expenses incurred in connection with proceedings to
implement a CFD. Should the account be drawn down to a determined amount,

COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT POLICY February 2020 20f3

288



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
V Title: COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT (CFD) FINANCING POLICY
Approval Date: February 2020 Effective Date: February 2020

WATER Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #19530

S

the Agency will notify the Developer to provide an additional deposit to enable
continuing payments of preliminary expenses. Limited administrative costs may
also be recovered from special tax proceeds.

j.  The total tax burden (that is, the maximum annual CFD special tax, together with
ad valorem property taxes, special assessments, special taxes for any
overlapping CFD , and any other taxes, fees and charges payable from and
secured by the property) on any residential owner-occupied parcel in a CFD,
shall not exceed 2% (the basic property tax levy of 1%, plus 1%) of the expected
assessed value of such parcel upon completion of the public and private
improvements relating thereto.

(Originally adopted February 2020)

COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT POLICY February 2020 30f3

289



[This page intentionally left blank.]

290



SLV lTEE:lgNQ

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 14, 2020
TO: Board of Directors ~ =
FROM: Rochelle Patterson Lo

Director of Finance and Administration

SUBJECT:  Approve Entering Into a Contract with Fieldman Rolapp & Associates for
Financial Advisor Services

SUMMARY

Staff recommends a new one-year contract with Fieldman Rolapp & Associates (FRA) for as-
needed debt management, municipal and financial advisory services in the amount not to
exceed $125,000 for the period of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020. The Agency
first engaged FRA in 2008 to assist with the Agency’s interest rate swap. In the last five years,
the Agency has expensed $68,044 with FRA for financial advisory services. (Expenses incurred
for bond issuances will be recovered through bond proceeds.)

FY 2018/19 $14,562.08
FY 2017/18 $16,369.42
FY 2016/17 $13,664.30
FY 2015/16 $ 3,281.25
FY 2014/15 $20,166.50

DISCUSSION

Staff recommends a new one-year contract based on FRA’s continued good service, familiarity
with the Agency’s finances, its relationship with the rating agencies and its ongoing rapport with
the Agency, as well as the good service and support that it has provided. Examples of ongoing
work include obtaining ratings from the rating agencies for debt issuance as well as for ongoing
rating agency surveillance, interpretation of Frank-Dodd rules and regulations and updating the
Debt Management and Derivative policies. FRA resources can assist staff with upcoming
projects, such as creating forecasting models for budgets, rates and capital planning.

FRA was the financial advisor for the Santa Clarita Water Division’s issuance of new debt in
2017 (Series 2017A) and the Valencia Water Division issuance in 2018 (Series 2018A).

As the Agency considers the issuance of new bonds in 2020 to continue the Capital
Improvement Program projects and refunding of existing debt, FRA will be instrumental in
analyzing the Agency’s options including sizing the potential bond issuance.

On January 13, 2020, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’'s
recommendation to enter into a contract with Fieldman Rolapp & Associates for financial advisor
services.

291


ajacobs
Item 7.3

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson


FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The new contract would cover charges for services based on hourly rates as shown in the
attached proposal (Attached). Should the Agency issue debt, the fees would be based on
transaction size, and those fees would be covered by bond proceeds. Based on activity to date,
staff recommends an amount not to exceed $125,000 for on-going, as-needed debt
management, municipal and financial advisory services.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
entering into a contract with Fieldman Rolapp & Associates for financial advisor services in an
amount not to exceed $125,000 for the period of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020.
RP

Attachment

A f\f I'. Ilf/?(;?

292


ajacobs
Matt


FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc.

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE
MUNICIPAL ADVISORY SERVICES

TO

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

SCV

WATER

December 13, 2019

19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100 ¢ Irvine, CA 92612 ¢ phone: 949.660.7300 ¢ fax: 949.474.8773 ¢ www.fieldman.com

293



[This page intentionally left blank.]

294



= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

December 13, 2019

Mr. Matt Stone, General Manager
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, CA 91350

Re: Proposal for Contract Extension in Connection with Municipal Advisory Services
Dear Mr. Stone:

We are pleased to submit this proposal to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“SCVWA?”, or the “Agency”) for
Municipal Advisory Services. The experience of Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (the “Firm” or “FRA”) with
water finance and providing municipal advisory services to the Agency for more than a decade will permit us to
continue to provide unparalleled services and advice to the Agency. As you are aware, we are small enough to give
you personalized service, yet large enough to offer that service in a very sophisticated manner.

Over the last ten years, FRA is one of California’s leading municipal financial advisors having advised on more
California public utility related finance issues than any other financial advisory firm. The proposed team of
professionals has in-depth knowledge of the Agency and has a proven record of delivering high quality advisory
services and work products. Our commitment to supplying detailed quantitative analyses underlying each
recommendation will facilitate the making of prudent decisions by SCVWA. We trust that the material contained
herein will conclusively demonstrate the usefulness of engaging our team for another year.

FRA is the right advisor for SCVWA:

g

We have provided advice that has (i) guided the Agency through the liquidity crisis in 2008; (if) resulted
in high credit ratings for the wholesale and retail issuers; and (iii) provided favorable results in
numerous transactions.

g

We have a long history of successful setvice to California municipalities, with an emphasis on water and
wastewater enterprises, and have been providing independent financial advice to our clients for over 50
years.

iyl

We are the most experienced financial advisor for water and wastewater financings in California. Since
2008, we have advised on 169 water/wastewater transactions totaling nearly $5.3 billion in par amount

of obligations sold.

gl

We develop debt issuance strategies that achieve high credit ratings, enabling issuers to access capital at
the lowest possible cost.

il

We have significant experience in developing financial models in support of reserve policy levels, long-
range financial plans, and short-term funding plans.

The team is highly experienced and will seamlessly continue to work for SCVWA. We are confident that our
unparalleled depth of knowledge and experience with SCVWA and the industry will provide the Agency with
extraordinary service.

Respectfully submitted,
FIELDMAN, ROLAPP & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Ghtcsy

Robert A. Porr
Executive Vice President

19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100 # Irvine, CA 92612 ¢ phone: 949.660.7300 ® fax: 949.474.8773 ¢ www.fieldman.com

295



[This page intentionally left blank.]

296



o SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services

December 13, 2019 LU
TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. Statement of Firm EXPEIICIICE c.vviuiuireririiiiiieieieiritteetetsiiteseseses e sessas s sessssaenes 1
2. Proposed Team ... s 3
3. PrOPOSEA FFEES ettt et 4
APPENDIX A: Project Team Resumes
APPENDIX B: Standard Proposal Regulatory Disclaimers & Disclosures

TABLE OF CONTENTS

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

297



[This page intentionally left blank.]

298



SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
’ WATER

December 13, 2019

1. STATEMENT OF FIRM EXPERIENCE

Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (“FRA” or the “Firm”) founded in 1966, is a full service, independent, financial
advisory firm that is headquartered in Orange County, California. As an independent advisor, FRA neither
underwrites bonds nor has a relationship, direct or otherwise, with any municipal bond underwriter, broker/dealer
or financial institution. The Firm represents public entities and non-profit organizations only and does not
represent for profit enterprises. Our staff of 15 (10 financial advisors), are all based in Irvine with one Partner of
the firm now residing in Northern California. Through our Employee Stock Ownership Program (ESOP), our
employees, as beneficial owners of the Firm, participate in an ownership culture. Each of us has a strong interest in
being efficient and providing responsive service on each and every assignment.

For more than 50 years, FRA has provided SV RTRIININO VNN N4 EIT:CRINEIARITOIANI VN
financial ~ advisory  services to  California

municipalities and has had a dedicated focus on

Water & Wastewater Financings, 2008 - 2018%

special districts providing California water and/or FINANCIAL ADVISOR # of Issues P?G‘;m;z;t
wastewater — services. The results of our [ Fieldman Rolapp & Associates 169 $5,257
commitment to the California water industry are | 2 public Resources Advisory Group 137 $14,921
demonstrated by our rankings: FRA leads all other | 3 PFM Financial Advisors LLC 114 §7,701
financial advisory firms in completing | 4 Montague DeRose & Associates LLC 108 $14,475
water/wastewater related financings for California | 5 KNN Public Finance 43 $3,329
entities, both special districts and California cities 6 B““”‘fm MCC‘*II‘?"BEI“' & Co 32 $3,054
with water enterprises. The table to the right [— Datrle Welhiusocaite b 36/1

.. . . 8 Hilltop Securities 20 $1,378
shqws ReﬁmtlY rankmgs of t.he top ten financial 3 Kot &G B $1.294
advisors’ expetience with California water and/of [70 Fracca & Associates 9 $1,095
wastewater bond issues over the past ten years. TOP TEN TOTALS . $53,375

* Source: Refinitty, the Financial & Risk Business of Thomson Reuters as of May 16, 2019.

Includes soke adiisory rofes ondy.

The number of transactions and assignments that we have completed and the diversity of our clients have given our
professionals a better understanding of the business side of the municipal water/wastewater industry and the
challenges faced. Challenges facing California utilities not only come from providing essential services, but from the
financial markets. Our understanding of the water industry and thorough understanding of public finance permits
us to address challenges with practical, yet effective financial solutions.

FRA concentrates its consulting activities in the following areas:

iyl

Creating financial plans, whether short or long term, that allow our clients to successfully and
economically fund capital needs.

Developing debt management and reserve policies necessary to form a strong financial foundation.
Preparing models that use alternative funding sources and clearly present financial outcomes to
allow clients to make fully informed decisions.

Establishing credit rating objectives and strategies to ensure capital market access at the lowest cost
possible.

Timely execution of financing plans by aggressively managing the capital funding process.

Advising on investing capital and operating moneys to maximize earnings without risk to principal
or sacrificing liquidity.

Advising on using (or terminating) interest rate swaps and other hedging mechanisms to address
specific financial risks.

gl

iyl

gl

iyl

Although each activity can be addressed individually, our approach views each of our consulting activities as an
integral component of a global strategy. Our advice addresses every aspect of a client’s financial status. By

PAGE |1

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

299



300

SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
’ WATER

December 13, 2019

concentrating on a client’s global strategy, the Firm provides practical and cost-effective advice in every aspect of the
capital process.

Customized Financial Models

Some examples of customized financial models we frequently create include:

Financial modeling to determine optimal debt structures. FRA is familiar with each of the traditional public
funding structures — private placements, direct loans and publicly issued bonds. We have extensive experience with
designing a financial model capable of using alternative funding sources to meet a variety of client objectives. We
work with our clients to determine which outputs of a model are most important to a client, for example key credit
metrics and overall cost. We then design the model to have outputs that show overall debt service costs from
competing funding sources, as well as debt service coverage and other key credit rating metrics. We utilize the model
outputs to advise our clients on their best options, including a comparison of potential overall funding costs.

Federal WIFIA Loan Experience. In 2017, we were retained by Orange County Water District to provide
assistance and guidance in the creation of the required 40-year financial model related to obtaining a Federal Loan
through the EPA’s Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (“WIFIA”). We subsequently advised the
District on the implementation, documentation, and financial modeling related to closing of the $135 million WIFIA
Loan in July of 2018. Our role included quantifying the benefits of the Federal Loan compared to a traditional
capital market transaction.

FRA has also advised Silicon Valley Clean Water in the development of a long-range financial plan and financial
model in support of its submission of a Letter of Interest for WIFIA Loan financing in 2017 and 2018. The model
analyzes funding alternatives for its $600 million capital improvement plan required to fully replace certain key
wastewater conveyance tunnels and upgrade treatment plant facilities. The model allows for the pairing of different
proportions of various funding alternatives to optimize debt issuance. FRA developed the responses and content for
the financial section of the LOI. Out customized financial model produced the necessary data and information to
meet or exceed the level of information required by the LOI. In October 2018 Silicon Valley Clean Water was
invited by EPA to file an application for a WIFIA Loan; the loan closed in July 2019 for a total amount of $218
million.

Credit Metric Analysis Model. Our financial modeling integrates key rating agency credit metrics. This
information allows us to advise clients in connection with rate structures, debt capacity, reserve levels and overall
credit rating strategy. Within the past five years this approach has been used for the Agency, Cucamonga Valley
Water District, El Dorado Irrigation District, Merced Irrigation District, Mesa Water District, Olivenhain Municipal
Water District, Orange County Water District, Rancho California Water District and South Coast Water District.

Reserve Policy Models. We create financial models to specifically assess vatious reserve policy funding options
and levels. We have utilized these models for engagements with the Agency, Cucamonga Valley Water District, Mesa
Water District, Merced Irrigation District, Orange County Water District and Santa Ana Watershed Project
Authority, among others.

Board Presentations. On our engagements we typically provide at least one public presentation to the Board or
Finance Committee. Our objective is to concisely present our analysis and recommendations regarding any
proposed financial transactions or strategies. We seek to engage in questions and discussion so the Board members
are comfortable with all options presented.

PAGE |2

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES



SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
’ WATER

December 13, 2019

FRA Technical and Data Resources

Our market data and technical resources include a live Bloomberg Professional terminal and a subscription to
Thomson Reuters Municipal Market Data website (TM3) that provides us with the most up-to-date market events
and data. Each of these allows us to gather and analyze the fixed-income markets for use in debt pricing, spread
negotiations and forecasting economic conditions. These sources are ideal for research and have been utilized in
several customized models.

Historic Data Analysis. We have numerous charts and databases which track various key interest rates over time,
including municipal bond specific rates such as the Revenue Bond Index and the floating rate SIFMA index. We
provide our clients customized information out of this data to assist in decision-making.

Bond Sizing Software and Customized Refunding Analysis. We maintain DBC Finance software licenses for
bond sizing and to analyze refunding opportunities. Within the software framework, we generate customized reports
for the needs of our clients. In particular, we have developed a framework for analysis of refunding opportunities
which includes detailed reports on interest rate sensitivity and differing scenatios.

2. PROPOSED TEAM

Our experience has proven to us that the best structure to serve clients is best accomplished by assigning
professional staff with a variety of talents, each of whom will assume different duties and responsibilities. Using a
team approach assures SCVWA that several individuals will be familiar with its needs and requirements. This
approach offers superior service, better turnaround times and more efficient use of staff time.

Our team for SCVWA consists of our most experienced utility professionals. Mr. Porr has served as an advisor to

SCVWA since 2008 and Ms. Carpenter has been involved with all the SCVWA work since 2014.

Robert Porr, J.D., Executive Vice President will serve as the Engagement Manager and will be the leader of our
advisory team. Robert’s role is to ensure that the Agency’s objectives related to our engagements are met and that
our resources are deployed to optimize our service to SCVWA. Mr. Porr will be supported by Lora Carpenter,
Assistant Vice President. The roles and responsibilities, in connection with a bond transaction, of each team
member, as well as their experience, are listed below. In addition, detailed resumes for each of our team members
can be found in Appendix A.

Robert and Lora will be available daily to SCVWA.

MEMBER ROLE/RESPONSIBILITY EXPERIENCE & SKILLS

Robert A. Porr, J.D. Engagement Manager Qualifications

Executive Vice President v Responsible for understanding objectives v’ 33 years of experience in municipal finance
of SCVWA; organizing and directing the including 8 years as an investment banker.

949.660.7323 direct overall team and the process. v' 17 years of experience as a financial advisor

949.751.8445 cell v’ Primary responsibility of creating funding with Fieldman.

rport@fieldman.com and credit rating strategies. v" Solely focused on California utility practice.

v’ Provide strategic direction for v Has completed more than $7.5 billion of

presentations, bond structures, and municipal transactions.

60% of time expended

managing the sale process.
Presenting work-product to Staff and
Board Members.

Financial advisory clients include Silicon Valley
Clean Water, Mojave Water Agency, Orange
County Water District and Rancho California
Water District.

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

PAGE |3

301



i SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
’ WATER

December 13, 2019

MEMBER ROLE/RESPONSIBILITY EXPERIENCE & SKILLS

Lora Carpenter Project Manager and Lead Quantitative Consultant Qualifications
Assistant Vice President v Responsible for creation of financial v Over 5 years of expetience in municipal finance

analyses; directing and overseeing all with Fieldman Rolapp & Associates, Inc.
949.660.7312 direct quantitative analyses. v Bxperience in debt-sizing and refunding
949.892.8617 cell V' Supervise credit analysis. analysis.
Icarpenter@fieldman.com v Supporting Mr. Porr during presentations v' Expetience in cash flow and debt modeling

to SCVWA. analysis and credit analysis and metrics.

v Has provided quantitative and technical analysis
40% of time expended on numerous transactions for numerous utility
clients.

3. PROPOSED FEES
Non-Transactional Fees

For non-transactional engagements, we propose to be paid on a non-contingent hourly basis, plus reimbursement
for verifiable expenses. FRA agrees to hold the houtrly rates, shown below, in effect through December 2020.

Personnel Hourly Rate
Executive OffiCer ..o $370.00
Principal ... ....$340.00
Executive/Senior Vice President.... ....$325.00
Vice President.......cceeeevererererereenennne. ....$270.00
Assistant Vice President.....covveeveeeeveeeieiiiieenennn, $230.00
Senior ASSOCIALE ..vvvevieveveeierieieiericeeee et $195.00
ASSOCIALE ettt eae e ene e $175.00
ANALYS T $110.00
Administrative ASSIStANTS.....eeveveeereeeeeeeeresresreeeeenennes $85.00
(@)1 T OO $50.00

Expenses

Expenses will be billed for separately and will cover, among other things, travel, lodging, subsistence, overnight
courier, computer, and fax transmission charges.

Transactional Fees
Negotiated Competitive
Transaction Size Sale Fees Sale Fees
$1 to $10,000,000 $36,000 $45,000
$10,000,001 to $20,000,000 $46,000 $55,000
$20,000,001 to $30,000,000 $55,000 $65,000
$30,000,001 to $60,000,000 $65,000 $75,000
$60,000,001 to And above To be negotiated To be negotiated

With respect to the proposed transaction that will refund the Series 2010, 2015, 2016 and 2017 and generate
approximately $50 million for capital improvements, including $14 million for the purchase of certain solar panels, FRA
proposes to be compensated on an houtly basis with an estimated fee of $125,000 plus expenses.

PAGE |4

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES
302



SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
’ WATER

December 13, 2019

Expenses

Expenses will be billed for separately and will cover, among other things, travel, lodging, subsistence, overnight
courier, computer, and fax transmission charges.

Abandonment

If, once commenced, the services of the Consultant are terminated prior to completion of our final report for any
reason, we are to be reimbursed for professional services and direct expenses incurred up to the time we receive
notification of such termination at the standard houtrly rates shown above.

PAGE |5

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

303



304

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services

December 13, 2019

h SCV

WATER

Engagement Manager

ROBERT A. PORR

949.660.7323 direct
949.751.8445 cell
rport@fieldman.com

APPENDIX A
PROJECT TEAM RESUMES

Mr. Robert A. Porr, Executive Vice President, returned to the firm in May
2005 after spending eight years as a public finance investment banker. Since re-
joining the firm, he has focused on serving the firm’s utility clients. He has been
advisor to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (formerly Castaic Lake Water
Agency), Eastern Municipal Water District, Rancho California Water District,
Orange County Water District, Cucamonga Valley Water District, Western
Municipal Water District, Mesa Water District, Nevada Irrigation District, Azusa
Light & Water, Westlands Water District, Silicon Valley Clean Water, and
Olivenhain Municipal Water District. Mr. Porr leads the swap advisory practice
at the Firm and has served as swap advisor to Riverside County Transportation
Commission, Eastern Municipal Water District, Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency (formerly Castaic Lake Water Agency), the County of Riverside, Hemet
Unified School District, and Western Municipal Water District.

His experience as an investment banker includes working with numerous local
agencies in connection with the issuance of more than $1.2 billion in debt. Mr.
Porr has assisted issuers with the structure and sale of many forms of debt
including general obligation, special tax, assessment, revenue and lease backed
debt. He structured neatly $100 million of complex tax-backed refunding debt
for the County of Riverside and developed a novel lease revenue bond structure
for the Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority.

Mr. Porr worked as a finance/marketing representative for Lockheed Mattin
Finance Corporation. During his time with LMFC, Mr. Porr worked on
developing financing structures to support turnkey delivery programs for
communication satellites, aircraft and proprietary technology products. Mr. Porr
was involved in projects for the People’s Republic of China, valued at
approximately $1 billion, and for a consortium of Asian telephony entities valued
at nearly $500 million.

Mz. Porr earned his undergraduate degree in Psychology from Pace University in
New York, NY and his Juris Doctorate from New York Law School in New
York, NY.

Mr. Potr holds the Series 50 License and is admitted to practice law in the State of
New York.

APPENDIX A-1

FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services

December 13, 2019

SCV

WATER

Project Manager and Lead
Quantitative Consultant

LORA A. CARPENTER

949.660.7312 direct
949.892.8617 cell
lcarpenter@fieldman.com

Ms. Lora Carpenter, Assistant Vice President, joined the firm in March
2014. Since joining the firm, Ms. Carpenter has been active with the firm’s water
and wastewater utility clients. She has worked on a variety of transactions which
include both Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Participation. She has worked
with many of our large water utility clients, including Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency (formetly Castaic Lake Water Agency), Orange County Water District,
Rancho California Water District and Silicon Valley Clean Water conducting
credit analysis, preparing credit presentations and analyzing structuring
alternatives. She has provided assistance on swap terminations and variable-rate
bond structures. Her Mathematics and analytics background provides the
essential skills sets when preparing quantitative analyses to support transaction
structures and researching relevant market conditions and events.

Additionally, Ms. Carpenter has previously worked with Cucamonga Valley
Water District, Merced Irrigation District, Matina Coast Water District,
Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Mojave Water Agency, Dublin San Ramon
Services District and Westlands Water District. She manages the technical
aspects, transaction flow and implementation of financing strategies and credit
analysis.

Ms. Carpenter has familiarity with the organization of Joint Powers Authorities
from her work on structuring bond financings for Silicon Valley Clean Water,
Santa Rosa Regional Resources Authority, Chino Basin Desalter Authority and
Central Coast Water Authority.

Ms. Carpenter also provides non-transactional based financial advisory setvices
to support Firm recommendations, including: financial modeling, long-term
financial planning and policy review.

Prior to joining the firm, Ms. Carpenter worked in a teaching advisory role on a
several subjects, including Calculus and Algebra.

Ms. Carpenter received her Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from
Bucknell University. She is a registered municipal advisor representative (Series

50 qualified).

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

APPENDIX A-2

& ASSOCIATES

305



) SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
: WATER

December 13, 2019

APPENDIX B
Standard Proposal Regulatory Disclaimers & Disclosures

APPENDIX B-1

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES
306



SCV

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
‘ WATER

December 13, 2019

Standard Proposal Regulatory Disclaimers & Disclosures

FRA is a SEC-registered Municipal Advisor. When formally engaged by public agency clients, we undertake a
fiduciary duty with respect to advice provided on financial matters.

PROPOSAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE “ADVICE” OR MUNICIPAL ADVISORY RELATIONSHIP

These materials ate delivered to you for the purpose of obtaining an engagement as your municipal advisor, and we
wish to clarify the nature of our relationship. We are providing the information contained in these materials for
informational purposes only. The information provided in these matetials does not create or imply any fiduciary
relationship, and is being provided solely for the purpose of marketing our services to you as a prospective client of
FRA. The information provided to you is not be construed as “advice” within the meaning of Section 15B of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, or relied upon by you as advice in determining a course of action in
connection with any current or prospective undertakings relative to any municipal securities issuance or municipal
financial product. Any information contained in these materials has been prepared without taking into account your
circumstances, financial or otherwise, and is not intended to replace or supplement any advice you may have already
received internally or externally from any other professional.

Potential for Limitation of Advisory Scope Disclosure

At the explicit direction of the District, our scope of services may be limited to the implementation of a pre-
determined financial transaction or strategy. In such instances, a complete review of all feasible and suitable
financial alternatives will not be undertaken as patt of our engagement. We would otherwise operate under a
fiduciary duty to consider all feasible and suitable alternatives to accomplish a given objective.

Potential Conflict of Interest Disclosure

Compensation contingent on the completion of a financing or project is customary for municipal financial advisors.
To the extent that our compensation for the proposed engagement is contingent on successful completion of any
transactions, a potential conflict of interest exists as we would have a potential incentive to recommend the
completion of a transaction that might not be optimal for the District. However, as noted earlier, FRA undertakes a
fiduciary duty in advising public agencies regardless of compensation structure.

APPENDIX B-2

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES
307



[This page intentionally left blank.]

308



FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

SCOPE OF SERVICES
TO

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

SCV

WATER

December 13, 2019

19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100 # Irvine, CA 92612 ® phone: 949.660.7300 ® fax: 949.474.8773 ¢ www.fieldman.com

309



[This page intentionally left blank.]

310



FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

December 13, 2019

Matt Stone, General Manager

Eric Campbell, Chief Financial Officer
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd.

Santa Clarita, CA 91350

Re: Scope of Services for Financial Modeling Services
Dear Mr. Stone and Mr. Campbell,

We are pleased to submit this scope of services to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“SCVWA?”, or the
“Agency”) to provide financial modeling services. We are confident that it demonstrates that Fieldman,
Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (the “Firm”, or “FRA”) is highly experienced in water finance and possesses the
strong technical capabilities to create a sophisticated long-range-financial plan model (“LRFPM”) to permit
the Agency to successfully and efficiently maintain a strong financial position and complete its Capital
Improvement Plan (“CIP”). The firm, is small enough to give you personalized service, yet large enough to
offer that service in a very sophisticated manner.

FRA is California’s leading municipal financial advisor having advised on more California water/wastewater
related finance issues than any other financial advisory firm. Inherent to our utility practice is the creation of
financing plans and models whether for a single putpose (Commercial Paper related for San Diego County
Water Authority), or a long-range financial plan, or (as we have for several clients) a multi-year plan issuance
to support a client’s imminent capital funding issuance. The proposed team of professionals has in-depth
knowledge of the financial aspects of water/wastewater agencies and a history of delivering high quality
advisory services and work products. Our commitment to supplying detailed quantitative analysis underlying
each recommendation will facilitate the making of prudent decisions by the Agency’s governing body. Our
approach to serve as an extension of staff will enable us to provide unbiased, creative and reliable advice.

We trust that the material contained herein will conclusively demonstrate the usefulness that our team can
bring for developing the LRFPM for SCVWA.

FRA is the right advisor for SCVWA:

* We have served as financial and municipal advisor to SCVWA since early 2008 and have an
excellent working knowledge of the Agency.

*  We have a long history of successful service to California municipalities, with an emphasis on
water and wastewater enterprises, and have been providing independent financial advice to our
clients for more than 52 years.

*  We have direct, relevant experience in matters important to the Agency. Our team has extensive
expetrience in creating complex financial models that analyze benefits and drawbacks of
alternative capital funding methods.

*  We develop debt issuance strategies that achieve high credit ratings, enabling issuers to access
capital at the lowest possible cost.

*  We are the most experienced financial advisor for water and wastewater financings in California.
Since 2008, we have advised on 169 water/wastewater transactions for California issuets totaling
nearly $5.3 billion in par amount of obligations sold.

19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100 # Irvine, CA 92612 ¢ phone: 949.660.7300 ® fax: 949.474.8773 ¢ www.fieldman.com

311



312

Our proposal highlights the Firm’s strengths and outlines our approach for meeting the Agency’s needs. We
have included samples of long range financial plans in Appendix A.

Appendix C contains our Standard Proposal Regulatory Disclaimers & Disclosures.

We are confident that our unpatalleled depth of knowledge and experience will provide SCVWA with
extraordinary service and our commitment to SCVWA will ensure its objectives are met.

Respectfully submitted,

FIELDMAN, ROLAPP & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Robert A. Porr

Executive Vice President
Direct: Line: 949-660-7323
Fax: 949-474-8773

E-mail: rporr@fieldman.com
19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100

Irvine, CA 92612

Approved to Proceed:

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

By:

Eric Campbell
Title: Chief Financial Officer

19900 MacArthur Blvd., Suite 1100 # Irvine, CA 92612 ¢ phone: 949.660.7300 ® fax: 949.474.8773 ¢ www.fieldman.com



Proposal for Financial Advisory Services
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

SCV

December 13, 2019 Ll
Table of Contents

1. Statement of Firm Experience 1

2. Developing A Long Range Financial Plan Model for SCVWA 3

3. Proposed Team 5

4.  Financial Policies Experience 6

5. Estimated Fees 6

Appendix A — Sample Long Range Financial Plans
Appendix B — Project Team Resumes

Appendix C — Standard Proposal Regulatory Disclaimers & Disclosures

TABLE OF CONTENTS

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

313



[This page intentionally left blank.]

314



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

1. STATEMENT OF FIRM EXPERIENCE

Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (“FRA” or the “Firm”) founded in 1966, is a full service, independent,
financial advisory firm that is headquartered in Orange County California. As an independent advisor, FRA
neither underwrites bonds nor has a relationship, direct or otherwise, with any municipal bond underwriter,
broker/dealer or financial institution. The Firm represents public entities and non-profit organizations only
and does not represent for profit enterprises. Our staff of 15, (10 financial advisors), are all based in Irvine
with one Partner of the firm now residing in Northern California. Through our Employee Stock Ownership
Program (ESOP), our employees, as beneficial owners of the Firm, participate in an ownership culture. Each
of us has a strong interest in being efficient and providing responsive service on each and every assignment.

QR RIS N ER SIS E N TOP 10 FINANCIAL ADVISORS IN CALIFORNIA

financial advisory = services to California Water & Wastewater Financings, 2008 - 2018*
municipalities and has had a dedicated focus - ParArooiio?
on special districts providing California water FINANCIALADVISOR # of Issues (USS mil)
and/or wastewater services. Clients in the [ Fieldman Rolapp & Associates 169 $5,257
utility practice sector include special districts | 2 Public Resources Advisory Group 137 $14,921
and California cities with water and/or | 3 PFM Financial Advisors LLC 114 $7,701
wastewater enterprises. Our commitment to [ 4 Montague DeRose & Associates LLC 108 5$14,475
California water is demonstrated by our |2 KNN Public Finance 43 $3,329
: : - —= = s
rankings: FRA leads all other top ten ranked 6 Backstrom McCarley Bexry & Co 2 $,004
: . . . 7 Bartle Wells Associates 26 $871
financial advisory firms in completing : = =
lated . Th 8 Hilltop Securities 20 $1,378
water/waste\yater related - transactions. € [9 Kitahata & Company 13 51294
table to the right shows Refinitiv rankings of [70 Frasca & Associates 9 $1,095
the top ten financial advisors’ experience T "EN TOTALS . $53,375
with California water and/ Oor wastewater the Financial & Risk Business of Thomson Reuters as of May 16, 2019,
bond issues over the past ten years. Inclhides sok adisory roks only.

California Utility Transactional Experience

Over the period from 2008 through May 16, 2019, FRA advised its water, wastewater and electric utility
clients on the issuance of 169 transactions exceeding $5.3 billion in par. Such amounts do not include the
$135 million WIFIA Loan or the approximate $260 million of California state loans that we advised clients to
pursue. The number of transactions we have completed, and the diversity of our clients, has provided our
consultants with a unique understanding of the business side of the municipal water and wastewater industry.

Federal WIFIA Loan Experience. In 2017, we were retained by the Orange County Water District
(“OCWD?”) to provide assistance and guidance in the creation of the required financial model related to
obtaining a loan through the EPA’s Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (“WIFIA”). We
subsequently advised OCWD on the implementation, documentation, and financial modeling related to the
closing of a $135 million WIFIA Loan in July of 2018. Our role included quantifying the benefits of the
WIFIA Loan compared to a traditional capital market transaction.

FRA has also advised Silicon Valley Clean Water in the development of a long-range financial plan and
financial model in support of its submission of a Letter of Interest for WIFIA Loan financing in 2017 and
2018. The model analyzes funding alternatives for its $600 million capital improvement plan required to fully
replace certain key wastewater conveyance tunnels and upgrade treatment plant facilities. The model allows
for the pairing of different proportions of various funding alternatives to optimize debt issuance. FRA
developed the responses and content for the financial section of the LOIL. Our customized financial model
produced the necessary data and information to meet or exceed the level of information required by the LOI.
In October 2018 Silicon Valley Clean Water was invited by EPA to file an application for a WIFIA Loan; the
loan closed in July 2019 for a total amount of $218 million.

PAGE |1

"= FIELDMAN |ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

315



316

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

California Utility Non-Transactional Experience

Whether independently from or integral to a debt transaction, FRA routinely develops models, financial plans
and policies for clients.

FRA concentrates such consulting activities in the following areas:

Il[\lll

Creating financial plans, whether short or long term, that allow our clients to successfully
and economically fund capital needs.

Developing debt management and reserve policies necessary to form a strong financial
foundation.

Preparing models that use alternative funding sources and clearly present financial outcomes
to allow clients to make fully informed decisions.

Establishing credit rating objectives and strategies to ensure capital market access at the
lowest cost possible.

Timely execution of financing plans by aggressively managing the capital funding process.

I;["\I I;[|||I

I;[|||I

I;III\I I;[|||I

Modeling the investment of capital and operating moneys to maximize earnings to
contribute to capital funds.

Advising on using (or terminating) interest rate swaps and other hedging mechanisms to
address specific financial risks.

I;[|||I

Although each activity can be addressed individually, our approach views each of our consulting activities as
an integral component of a global strategy. Our advice addresses every aspect of a client’s financial status. By
concentrating on a client’s global strategy, the Firm provides practical and cost-effective advice in every
aspect of the capital process.

Customized Financial Models
Some examples of customized financial models we frequently utilize include:

Reserve Policy Models. We ctreate various reserve policy funding options and multiple scenatios to assess
different levels of liquidity. We have developed these models for engagements with Orange County Water
District, Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority, Mesa Water District, Metrced Irrigation District, and
previously for SCVWA, among others.

Credit Metric Analysis. This model is developed to analyze clients’ key rating agency credit metrics and
compare to benchmark and category medians published by all three rating agencies. We used this approach
for engagements with Mesa Water District, Rancho California Water District, Merced Irrigation District, and
previously SCVWA.

Cash flow / Liquidity and Commercial Paper model. We have developed vatious cash flow models for
the capital planning and phasing of bond issues. FRA created customized models for Silicon Valley Clean
Water and San Diego County Water Authority (“SDCWA”). For SDCWA we merged its capital expenditures
estimates with projected revenues and bond proceeds. It is utilized as a tool to determine the amount and
timing for the issuance of commercial paper.

Solar Power Facilities Model. We have developed a customized model to analyze the potential savings
from energy efficient improvements. This includes assessments of leasing versus purchasing solar panel
improvements, and includes the potential to issue bonds to fund the purchase. Customized models have
recently been created for engagements with the Agency of Phoenix, Rancho California Water District,
Western Municipal Water District and SCVWA.

PAGE |2

"= FIELDMAN |ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

Interest Rate Swap Assessments and Valuations. FRA created swap pricing tools and models that permit
us to provide clients with interest rate swap services and work products. Our resources permit us to use the
latest data to provide up-to-the-minute pricing for any potential interest rate swaps, or similar interest rate
derivative options, such as rate locks. Additionally, FRA maintains an interest rate swap valuation model,
which can be customized to assess any existing or proposed transaction. We utilize this model to provide
several clients with annual valuation reports, which is required for their audited financial statements. We have
provided these annual reports to Western Municipal Water District, Westlands Water District, Eastern
Municipal Water District, Sacramento Suburban Water District and SCVWA for its outstanding Adjustable
Rate Refunding Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2008A.

Technical Resources

Bond Sizing Software and Customized Refunding Analysis. We utilize DBC Finance software to
structure and size debt. This sophisticated software package permits FRA to meet the structuring needs of
most any debt. Within the software framework, we are able to generate customized reports for clients.

Market Data and Related Models

We maintain market access through several data platforms, including a live Bloomberg Professional terminal,
Thomson Reuters’ TM3 website, and The Bond Buyer newspaper. This provides us access to all the recent
market transactions as well as current and historic market data. These sources are ideal for research and have
been utilized in several customized models. In addition to modern electronic platforms we, as one of the
most frequent advisor on bond issuances, have, seemingly, constant access to market intelligence from a
broad pool of underwriting desks.

Historic Data Analysis. We maintained numerous charts and databases which track various key interest
rates over time, including those specific to municipal bonds. Some of these resources include the Municipal
Market Index (the most widely used data for bond pricing in the municipal industry), the Revenue Bond
Index and the SIFMA Index that is used for variable rate obligations. We provide our clients customized
information out of this data to assist in decision-making.

2. DEVELOPING A LONG RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN MODEL FOR SCVWA

FRA is providing this scope of services to develop a LRFPM that will establish a foundation for the
evaluation of the Agency’s financial position and sustainability over an extended timeframe. The LRFPM will
forecast revenues and expenses of the four components the Agency, (the “Regional Division” and the “Retail
Divisions” and individually a “Component”), and assess the financial performance of each Component after
taking into account their respective Capital Improvement Programs. FRA will additionally embed within the
LRFPM cash and capital funding alternatives for the completion of the Capital Improvement Programs and
provide “at risk analysis of key revenues and expenses” to identify strengths and weaknesses within the
Agency’s operations.

In the course of our practice, we provide clients with financing plans and financial modeling on a regular
basis. In developing quantitative models for our clients, we have some guidelines.

1. We have no pre-conceived notions on the outcome of the LRFP; each client is different and
strategies and structures which work for one may not work for others. FRA will create a LRFPM for
SCVWA that meets its needs and expectations, not something that is a derivative of prior work.

2. Models ate developed from a “clean slate” and on a ubiquitous platform, such as Microsoft Excel®.

3. Models are created through multiple iterations so that staff has input, which yields a product which is
readily functional for each client.

4. Work-products, including models, are the property of our clients and are provided in usable form.

PAGE |3

"= FIELDMAN |ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

317



318

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER

December 13, 2019

5.

When models are finalized for client use:

a. Inputs are placed in close proximity and labeled (often with color) as variable inputs.

b. Instructions are provided for client use of the model.

c. Cells that do not serve as input are “locked” to avoid unintentional damage to the model.
Models are structured with initial pages of summary information and results. Subsequent pages
provide greater details.

Models are structured by individual team members and audited internally by all other team members
to assure consistency and accuracy.

Specifically for SCVWA our approach will be as follows:

1.

For each Component our work with Staff will permit us to develop a thorough understanding of the
objectives of the Agency with respect to its capital program, finances, and organizational structure.
We will work closely with the Agency to understand capital and financial objectives and risk
tolerances. To gain greater familiarity we will review five years of historical operating results by
analyzing audits, and reviewing operating and capital budgets. Lastly, our team of consultants will
thoroughly review and understand the Capital Improvement Plan of each Component.

The LRFPM will forecast revenues and expenses of the four Components the Agency, and overlay
the financial performance of each Component after taking into account the Capital Improvement
Program for each Component. We would recommend that the forecast period cover a ten to fifteen
year timeframe. On the revenues side, we recommend a thorough analysis of future water sales
estimates (which will require an analysis of water demand and supply), property tax receipts, Facility
Capacity Fee receipts and investment earnings. On the expense side the cost of water, energy and
pension and other post-employment benefits, will require a thorough analysis.

The LRFPM will include the At Risk feature to perform Monte Carlo Simulations to identify
potential events that would threaten the financial strength of the Agency.

The LRFPM will provide financial metrics and ratios, such as days, cash, debt service coverage and
free cash as a petcentage of depreciation, as outputs in addition to the cost of the funding the CIP
through alternative means. This allows the Agency to view funding compatisons based upon a
standardized set of outcomes for ease of comparison. Thus, a wide assortment of funding
mechanisms such as cash, SRF Loans, bank loans, and all forms of public debt can be readily
compared and contrasted. The outputs will provide the Agency with likely outcomes to further
assess revenues requirements, expense controls, financing costs, or the strategy to fund capital
requirements.

Create financial structures which optimize the financial strength of each Component without
compromising future financial flexibility.

To ensure the lowest cost of capital is available to SCVWA we would follow the strategy outlined below by
analyzing each funding mechanism and comparing and contrasting financial outcomes of each possible
alternative.

PAGE |4

FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

* Pursue Grants from Federal and State Agencies ]

* Pursue Low Interest Loans from Federal and State Agencies

* Weigh the Impacts of using Reserves and Debt vs Issuing Debt

*May reduce interest expense, especially for taxable debt, while maintaining prudent reserves
levels for operations and credit ratings

e Issue Lowest-Cost Debt \

*Structuring debt to achieve optimal credit rating and aggressively supporting credit upgrades
*Using interim financing options (commercial paper, lines of credit and notes) to their utmost
advantage
*Issuing variable rate debt
o Self liquidity vs. bank liguidity
* Analyze the use of reserves to hedge interest rate exposure
* Explore the use of interest rate swaps to limit interest rate exposure
*Issuing fixed rate debt
* Forward purchase agreements
*Rate locks
*Negotiating fees and debt pricing

 Underwriters' compensation
* Other consultant fees

3. PROPOSED TEAM

Our experience has proven to us that the best structure to serve clients is best accomplished by assigning
professional staff with a variety of talents, each of whom will assume different duties and responsibilities.
Using a team approach assures SCVWA that several individuals will be familiar with its needs and
requirements. This approach offers superior service, better turnaround times and more efficient use of staff
time.

Robert Porr, J.D., a Executive Vice President with FRA will serve as the Engagement/Project Manager
and will be the primary leader of our effort. The role he serves is the same based on his experience with most
of the Firm’s utility clients. Mr. Porr will be supported by our utility group’s most experienced technical
consultant Ms. Lora Carpenter, Assistant Vice President.

The work plan below estimates the roles and responsibilities of each team member, as well as their
experience, are listed below. In addition, detailed resumes for each of our team members can be found in

Appendix C.

Robert and Lora will be available daily to SCVWA.

PAGE |5

"= FIELDMAN |ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

319



320

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

4. FINANCIAL POLICIES EXPERIENCE

We have served a wide range of clients in the planning, management and policy development required to
support the financial process and implementation of long term capital plans. As part of our typical
engagement for water district clients, we develop policies, or actively teview policies. We have assisted
numerous municipal agencies with policy development and review. The table below illustrates some of our
most recent efforts in the development of new or the review/enhancement of existing policies for our water
district clients.

Financial Debt
Reserve
Plan Policy Management
or Modeling Policy
Olivenhain Municipal Water District v v v
Silicon Valley Clean Water v v v
Mesa Water District v v v
Borrego Water District v v
Padre Dam Municipal Water District v v
Merced Irrigation District v v v
Orange County Water District v v v
Santa Clarita Vglley Water Agency v v v
(formerly Castaic Lake Water Agency)
Vallecitos Water District v v
Westlands Water District v * v
West Valley Water District v v
South Coast Water District v
Sweetwater Authority v
Yorba Linda Water District v v
Cucamonga Valley Water District v v v
Rancho California Water District v
Western Municipal Water District v v
Valley County Water District v v

*  In process.

5. ESTIMATED FEES

We propose to invoice the Agency at our currently houtly rates, plus out-of-pocket expenses. Our proposal
includes, or as specifically directed by staff:

e Creating four financial models, one for each Retail Division and on for the Regional Division;
e Aggregating the three financial models of the Retail Divisions into one;
o Aggregating the combined Retail Divisions’ model with that of the Regional Division;

Providing Monte Carlo simulations; and

Creating and delivering presentations for Staff and for Finance and Administration and Board
Meetings.

PAGE |6

"= FIELDMAN |ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

We estimate our fee to be $74,855.00, including expenses and travel less any invoices that have been
previously paid We would be happy to discuss our fees and our services and work with Staff to negotiate an

agreeable amount.

RO O ORR AR O ORD RROYO O
HOURLY RATE $295.00 $210.00 $140.00 $75.00
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF CIP 4 4 0 0 8
ARCHITECTURE OF FOUR MODELS 2 6 1 0 9
CONSTRUCTION OF FOUR MODELS 30 183 8 0 221
STRUCTURING FINANCING ALTERNATIVES 8 8 2 0 18
INTERACTION WITH STAFF 24 12 0 0 36
INTERACTION WITH COMMITTEE & BOARD MEMBERS 12 6 0 3 21
TOTAL ESTIMATED HOURS 80 219 1 3 313
TOTAL ESTIMATED FEES $23,600.00 $45,990.00 $1,540.00 $225.00 $71,355.00

EXPENSES

HOURLY FEES
$71,355.00

ESTIMATE
$74,855.00

$2,500.00 $1,000.00

Unless agreed to otherwise, services petformed will be billed at the then houtly rates shown below.

Personnel Hourly Rate
Executive OffiCers ..o $370.00
Principals.....ceeceeeeeieneecerieecreeeeecreenenees $340.00
Executive/Senior Vice President.......ccevevenenee.. $325.00
ViCe PreSIdentS. e inivieerieieeeeeeeeseseeresesreeenns $270.00
Assistant Vice President. ..$230.00
SENIOL ASSOCIALE c.viiveierereieeeeiereeteeeeereeeteseesaeesae s $195.00
AASSOCIALE ettt et e e seneeeeenenas $175.00
ANALYStriiiiiicic e $110.00
Administrative ASSISTANTS .....cvevevvereerereereeereeerenenns $85.00
CLELICAL vttt $50.00

Expenses

Expenses will be billed for separately and will cover, among other things, travel, lodging, subsistence,
overnight courier, computer, and fax transmission charges.

Abandonment

If, once commenced, the services of the Consultant are terminated prior to completion of our final report for
any reason, we are to be reimbursed for professional services and direct expenses incurred up to the time we
receive notification of such termination at the standard houtly rates shown above.

PAGE |7

"= FIELDMAN |ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES
321



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

APPENDIX A
SAMPLE LONG RANGE FINANCIAL PLANS

APPENDIX A-1

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

322



ial Plan

January 2019

mnanc

Silicon Valley Clean Water

.
v
o0
c
(C

oc
oTo)
c
O

—




324

Presented January 2019 by:

Matthew Anderson, CPA

Chief Financial Officer / Assistant Manager
Silicon Valley Clean Water

1400 Radio Road

Redwood City, CA 94065
manderson@svcw.org

(650) 832-6261



Silicon Valley Clean Water Commissioners

Commissioner
Warren Lieberman
Alicia Aguirre
George Otte

Mark Olbert

Name

Kimbra McCarthy
Terrence Kyaw
Thomas Fil

Afshin Oskoui
Rebecca Mendenhall

Grace Le
Steven Machida
Phil Scott

Liz Bahrami

Bill Kitajima

Title Member Agency

Chair City of Belmont

Member West Bay Sanitary District
Secretary City of Redwood City

Member City of San Carlos

Member Entity Staff

Title Member Agency

ACM of Administrative Services
Public Works Director

Finance Director

Public Works Director
Administrative Services Director
City Engineer

Interim Public Works Director
District Manager

Accountant

Projects & IT Manager

City of Redwood City

City of Redwood City

City of Belmont

City of Belmont

City of San Carlos

City of San Carlos

City of San Carlos

West Bay Sanitary District
West Bay Sanitary District
West Bay Sanitary District

325



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

326



Name

Teresa A. Herrera
Matthew Anderson
Kim Hackett
Arvind Akela
Monte Hamamoto
Krista Politzer

- SVCW

OreDropsts Time

Silicon Valley Clean Water Staff

Title

Manager

Assistant Manager & Chief Finance Officer
Authority Engineer

Engineering Director

Chief Operating Officer

Financial Analyst

327



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

328



Table of Contents

SECTION 1 — EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND INTRODUCTION ....cccceemmmrrmreiiiiiiiinmsissssssssssssssssssssnnens 1
Purpose of Long-Range FiNancial Planning ..........cooeciiieiieieieciiieee ettt e e e 5
Organizational and BUSINESS STIUCTUIE ......coiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e st e e s 7
GoVErnance & MaNAZEMENT.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e e ee e e e e e eeeeecce et areeeeeeeeeeeaaaaaaaeseeeaaaaansnsssssnnns 7
Financial Oversight and CONTIOL...........ueiiii ittt e e e e e et e e e e e e e arnes 8
ST a - TaTol =1 1Y/ o Te 1= 1] o = PR UPRPRPRN 10

SECTION 2 — GUIDING DOCUMENTS AND PRINCIPLES........cccevttrtimmiiiiiiiimniinissssssssnsssnsensessssens 13
Audited FINANCIal REPOIES ....uiiii it e e e e re e e e e s aa e e e e e s e nnaaeseees 13
OPErating BUAGELS ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e baa e e e e e e e e eeaaaaaaeeeeeaaaaaneeeannn 13
EXPENITUre AlIOCATION. .. ..iiiiiie ittt ettt et e e eseabe e e s eabe e e e s neee s 14
Debt and Capital FINANCING ....vveii i ittt ettt eee e e eee e e e e eeetbaeeeeeeearaeeeeeeennnnnes 19
Cash RESEIVES POLICY ....eeiiiiiiieiei ettt ettt e s e s b e e e e snes 19
INVESTMENT POLICY ... ittt e e e e e e eeeeeaeeeeeeeeee e snssssssesnnnnnrnnes 19

SECTION 3 — MODELING ASSUMPTIONS .....ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiisinnsnnnnssssnsesennniissossssssssssssssssssssassssssssses 22
DEDE STIUCTUIE. ...eeiitee ettt ettt e st e e sttt e s aee e e snbe e e sbbeeesbaeaeeesareeens 22
[=oloTq o] 4 o] (ol o= ot o] &3PPSO PUPT PP 23

SECTION 4 — HISTORICAL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE........ccceemttmtiriiiiiiiiiiniissssssssssssnsesssssnes 30
HISTOFICAl EXPENAITUIES ....eiiiiiiiieiiie ettt sttt et e e e s bte e e s bae e s ssnnee s 30
Revenue-Funded Capital EXPENTITUIES ..............coecueeiriiiiiiiiieieeiiee ettt 30

SECTION 5 — TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS .......ccvvuummnmnnnieniiniiiiiiniissssssnesssssseeseennnens 34
OPErating EXPENAITUIES .....ueiiiiiieiiee ettt sttt sttt e e sate e e s bee e s snbeessabaeeseabeeessnnes 34
Revenue-Funded Capital EXPeNAitUres..........ueeeiiieciiiiiie ettt e e e rrrre e e e e 39
D] oL Y =T oV ol OO P R TRPTPPOTI 36
Cash ReServes CONTIIDUTIONS .....ccoiiiiiiiiei ettt et e b e s e 39
Total Cash FIOW ProjeCtioNnsS ......ccocieiiriiiiiiiiee ettt sttt st st are e s s aea e s saaee e s 39

SECTION 6 — SENSITIVITIES .....uuiiiinnnnenneneeiniiiiiimiiiiisssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 45
Capital Improvement Program AdNErenCe.........ouiiiiicciiiiee et e e e eree e e e 45
SRF LO@N AVAIlADIlITY coueeeeeiiiee ettt ettt e s e e 45
1) = A1) o B TSP VSR P SR UUPPRRPRPO 46
INEEIEST RATES ..t e e et e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeas 46

SECTION 7 — CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS ........cccmmmrrinieiniiiiiiiiissssssenssssseeseenenens 48

329



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

330



SECTION 1 - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND INTRODUCTION

This Long Range Financial Plan (LRFP; or the Plan) describes the anticipated cash flows required
by Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW; or the Authority) over the next decade to provide
wastewater services and fund critical construction for the communities it serves. This includes
funding for operations and maintenance of wastewater facilities, revenue-funded capital
projects, as well as the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) program and its associated debt
service payments. It also describes contributions to cash reserves to go towards future capital
improvements. This Plan is meant to encourage discussion and support decision-making. It
provides to-date financial information to Member Entities (as herein defined) as they measure
the financial implications of decisions and communicate with internal and external stakeholders.

SVCW’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) was placed in operation November 1981 and
connected to an influent conveyance system and effluent disposal system built in 1969. In 2006,
engineering studies determined the majority of SVCW fixed assets were beyond their useful lives
and needed replacement. SVCW therefore initiated its Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to
replace and rehabilitate the wastewater conveyance and treatment system in a structured and
prioritized manner. It has also anticipated more stringent treatment requirements will be
necessary. Now in its eleventh year, the CIP has completed over 120 projects and spent $290
million through October 2018. The CIP is the Authority’s guiding document and a recent update
in October 2018 estimates that, inclusive of spending to date, the program will cost $849.6 million
when completed.

This Plan incorporates the guidelines from the SVCW Joint Powers Agreement, the adopted 2018-
19 Operating and Capital Budget, and relevant fiscal policies that influence cash flow
requirements. It also recognizes the importance of growing the Authority’s cash reserves
dedicated to future projects.

The LRFP is updated each year to measure SVCW financial position relative to anticipated cash
flows needed from SVCW’s Member Entities. After incorporating CIP construction and
expenditure schedules, the LRFP-recommended strategy ensures SVCW obligations can be met
while members strengthen their credit ratings.

Compared to the January 2018 LRFP, this Plan incorporates three significant changes:

e CIP Update — In October 2018, SVCW updated its CIP document to incorporate changes in
project cost estimates, add or delete projects, and apply inflationary impacts to bring
project costs to mid-point of construction. It also included a cost reduction for the
Nutrient Removal Program as new information garnered from the Regional Water Quality
Control Board more fully defines nutrient-loading issues in the San Francisco Bay.
Combined, these factors added $15.9 million and bring total anticipated CIP expenditures
(from inception to completion in 2026) to $849.6 million.

Page 1

331



332

e Construction Timing — Design of SVCW conveyance projects progressed rapidly over the
past year. Collectively known as RESCU, the Regional Environmental Sewer Conveyance
Upgrade program is using a Progressive Design-Build (PDB) project delivery method.
RESCU construction has commenced for the Gravity Pipeline and Front-of-Plant elements.
Total remaining costs of RESCU are approximately $440 million, 90% of which is
anticipated be spent by the end of fiscal year 2020-21.

e Financing Sources — Whereas in last year’s LRFP SVCW assumed a modest amount of
funding would come from Government Loans, this updated LRFP contains optimism in
securing state and federal loans. In 2018 the California State Water Resource Control
Board (the Water Board) included $141 million for SVCW RESCU projects in its Intended
Use Plan. Similarly, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) invited
SVCW to participate in its Water Infrastructure Financing and Innovation Act (WIFIA)
program, indicating up to a $208 million loan amount may be available. This LRFP
therefore adjusted the amounts of governmental loans assumed to be available and
reduced the amount of bond-financing.

Like many other water treatment agencies, SVCW infrastructure was originally funded by the
1972 Clean Water Act. As assets aged, the absence of a sinking fund at SVCW created a reliance
on debt to fund the current CIP. The Authority now strives to obtain the lowest-cost financing
available through a combination of Wastewater Revenue Bonds, low-cost Governmental Loans
at federal and state levels, and cash reserves when available.

When made aware in 2008 of the need to invest a significant amount into SVCW infrastructure,
Member Entities developed strategies to increase their sewer rates. Regular updates to the CIP
and this LRFP have kept Member Entities informed of the next decade of cash flow requirements
and, as a result of their steady rate adjustments, only modest rate increases will be necessary.

SVCW annual cash flow requirements in FY 2019-20 are estimated at $48 million. Cash flow
requirements are thereafter projected to reach $81.3 million by FY 2028-29 when projected new
debt is fully in place. The largest increase in expenditures over the next decade is for debt service
payments, which are estimated to peak at $43.2 million annually once fully in place. Other non-
debt related expenditures are less impactful; the average annual increase in Operating Expense
is less than four percent. This LRFP describes the structure, timing, and amount of all expenditure
increases to inform Member Entities as SVCW plans for the future.

Page 2



$120

$100

$80

$60

$40

$20

Projected Cash Flow Requirements - SVCW Aggregate
($ Millions)

mw New WIFIA Loan

7 [ Line of Credit Interest

[ New Cash Reserves
[ Revenue-Funded Capital

4 mm New SRF Loans

I New Bonds

I Existing SRF Loans
B Existing Bonds
I Operating Expense
=fi=2018 LRFP

2019-20  2020-21  2021-22  2022-23  2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27  2027-28

2028-29

Page 3

333



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 4

334



INTRODUCTION

Purpose of Long-Range Financial Planning

Member Entities’ sewer rates provide the underlying repayment security for all SVCW financing.
As such, in 2008, SVCW developed a Five Year Financial Plan (the “Financial Plan”) to provide a
financial roadmap for funding the CIP and ongoing operating costs. The Financial Plan was
frequently updated and presented to the SVCW Commission (as hereinafter defined) to
incorporate CIP budget figures. It provides a roadmap that Member Entities follow when
considering sewer rates.

A long-Range financial plan combines financial projections with strategy. The Government
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends that all governments regularly engage in long-
Range financial planning as a collaborative process to consider future scenarios and help navigate
challenges. By aligning financial capacity with long-Range service objectives, SVCW and its
Member Entities gain insight as to financial resources needed to support strategies. With this
information, Member Entities can balance objectives and financial challenges.

SVCW will manage its finances and meet critical funding needs while recognizing its Member
Entities’ need to maintain reasonable wastewater rates. This LRFP will be enacted as SVCW and
its Members adopt annual budgets, monitor financial performance, and incorporate
Commission-directed actions. The LRFP is based upon financial planning models that include
long-Range forecasts of operating and capital expenditures. It includes reasonably conservative
assumptions and attempts to account for uncertainties. It aims to generate adequate cash
reserves for capital projects while maintaining good standing in the credit markets to provide
ready access to cost-effective capital financing when needed. It evaluates the capital financing
and debt service coverage policies to optimize cash funding of capital investments. Finally, it
continues to evaluate cash reserve policies that must consider intergenerational equity with
regards to funding capital projects and raising rates.

The LRFP includes a debt structure model to document recommended debt strategy, identify
risks to that strategy, and offer mitigation steps available or alternative funding solutions. As part
of the Plan a financial model (the Model) was created to assess financing alternatives for the CIP.

Page 5

335



336

This LRFP is meant to stimulate discussions for decision making by providing up-to-date financial
information. Member Entities can incorporate this material to understand the financial impact
of decisions, and to communicate those impacts to internal and external stakeholders. This long-
Range financial plan includes the following elements:

e Time Horizon — The plan looks nine years beyond the current fiscal year.

e Scope —The plan considers all expenditures associated with the conveyance and treatment
of wastewater received from Member Entities. Expenditures include all SVCW operating
costs, capital improvements, debt service, and cash reserve requirements.

e Frequency —This long-range plan is updated annually to aid Member Entities with their own
budget and rate-setting processes.

e Content — The plan includes an analysis of the financial environment, revenue and
expenditure forecasts, debt position and affordability analysis, strategies for achieving and
maintaining financial balance, and monitoring mechanisms such as a scorecard of key
financial health indicators. Adherence with the financial plan and the ability to comply with
the financial requirements of this Plan can be measured primarily through debt service
coverage and the number of days cash on hand. SVCW can readily monitor these financial
metrics through an annual review of the Member Entities’ respective audited financial
statements.

e Visibility — The plan will inform Member Entities about the long-Range financial prospects
of SVCW. Each year going forward, actual results will be compared to the LRFP by
integrating it into future LRFPs.

SVCW Member Entity staff was involved in the Plan preparation process to help identify
necessary tables, discuss assumptions, and review results. Member Entities, via the Silicon
Valley Clean Water governing commission (the Commission), can now integrate the
information provided into their own respective financial plans.

Page 6



Organizational and Business Structure

SVCW was founded in 1975 as the successor to the Strategic Consolidation Sewerage Plan. SVCW
took title to all property, capital and equipment of the Strategic Consolidation Sewerage Plan.
SVCW maintains and operates sanitary sewerage pumping, transmission and outfall facilities that
were originally constructed or otherwise owned by the Strategic Consolidation Sewerage Plan.
SVCW provides wastewater transmission, treatment, and effluent disposal services for the
surrounding communities including the Cities of Belmont, Redwood City, and San Carlos and for
the West Bay Sanitary District (collectively, the Members Entities). SVCW provides recycled water
to the City of Redwood City.

SVCW is a Joint Exercise of Powers Authority (JPA) that provides wastewater transmission,
treatment, recycled water, and effluent disposal services to its Member Entities, all facilities of
which (hereinafter referred to as Joint Facilities) are located in the northern part of Silicon Valley
between the cities of San Francisco and San Jose. SVCW’s wastewater treatment plant is located
in the City of Redwood City. SVCW serves more than 200,000 people and businesses located
predominantly in San Mateo County, California. SVCW operates in a strong Bay Area economy,
with a customer base that includes large business customers such as Oracle Corporation, EA
Sports, and Facebook.

SVCW owns and operates a regional wastewater treatment plant with an average dry weather
flow permitted capacity of 29 million gallons per day, an approximately nine-mile influent
force main pipeline that conveys wastewater from the Member Entities to SVCW’s
treatment plant, four wastewater pump stations, and a 1.25-mile effluent disposal pipeline
that discharges treated effluent into the San Francisco Bay.

Governance & Management

The JPA is governed by a four-member Commission consisting of one appointed person from
each of the Member Entities’ governing bodies. There is a total of 100 votes, allocated as follows:

¢ City of Redwood City 42 votes
e West Bay Sanitary District 28 votes
¢ City of San Carlos 19 votes
¢ City of Belmont 11 votes

Avote of at least seventy five percent is required to adopt or amend bylaws, rules, and regulations;
to adopt or modify any budget; to approve any capital costs, contracts, appropriations, or
transfers of more than $75,000; to employ the manager and certain consultants; to sell or dispose
of property; and to approve other designated items. Other actions of the Commission must be
approved by a simple majority of the votes. In addition, any amendment to the Joint Powers
Agreement must be approved by a four-fifths vote by each of the Member Entities’ governing
bodies.

Page 7

337



338

Financial Oversight and Control

SVCW sets an annual budget according to goals established by the Commission that support
operational priorities, the Capital Improvement Program and the Long Range Financial Plan. The
Budget reflects a progressive approach to fund wastewater operations while controlling costs,
minimizing unplanned expenditures, limiting risks, and investing in projects and programs that
provide the long-Range resources needed for the community.

SVCW has no taxing power. SVCW receives nearly all funding, other than interest earnings and
other miscellaneous revenues, from payments made by the Member Entities for operations,
capital improvements, debt service, and cash reserves.

Comparative Residential Sewer Charges

Based upon previous Financial Plans, Member Entities have already adopted significant rate
increases since 2008 to generate their allocable share of the CIP and capital program costs. The
following table shows the single family residential monthly sewer rates of each participating
SVCW Member Entity over the past ten years.

Residential Sewer Rates by Member Agency
Based on 8 HCF of flow

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Belmont $48.06 S$51.34 $72.13 $77.33 $82.77 $88.13 $88.13 $99.47 $105.35 $117.74
City of Redwood City $44.70 $48.72 $53.10 $57.88 $63.09 $68.77 S$74.95 $75.11 $76.68 $78.24
City of San Carlos $43.76 $46.82 $50.10 $53.10 $67.29 $80.75 $88.82 $88.82 $93.26  $97.93
West Bay SD $46.67 $54.17 $57.50 $62.67 $68.33 $74.42 $81.08 $85.92 $89.33  $93.83

Page 8



Despite these increases, Member Entities’ rates remain among the middle tier of San Mateo

County sewer rates.

Monthly Single Family Residential Sewer Rate Survey (December 2018)
San Mateo County - Based on flat rate or 8 hcf of monthly winter water use

SVCW Member Agencies

Regulations and Permits

The federal Clean Water Act requires that all municipal, industrial and commercial facilities that
discharge wastewater or storm-water directly from a point source into a water of the United
States (such as a lake, river, bay, or ocean) must obtain a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (“NPDES”) permit. All permits are written to ensure the receiving waters will achieve

certain water quality standards.

The federal government delegates the NPDES Program to the State of California for
implementation through the State Water Resources Control Board and its nine Regional Water
Quality Control Boards, collectively Water Boards. It is the responsibility of the Water Boards to
preserve and enhance the quality of the state's waters through the development of water quality
control plans and the issuance of NPDES Permits.

Page 9

339



340

SVCW currently operates under a five-year NPDES permit that is valid through September 2022.
As an active member in the Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (“BACWA"), a consortium of publicly-
owned treatment works agencies that operate within the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area,
SVCW prepares for future NPDES permit requirements. BACWA is central since some
requirements imposed may be efficiently fulfilled as a group. Through BACWA, SVCW meets
provisions related to overall receiving water quality monitoring, Total Maximum Daily Load and
Site Specific-Objective Support, Mercury Special Studies, Copper Action Plans, and Cyanide
Action Plans.

Regulatory requirements of the NPDES program may increase in the future. Many California
agencies have already been required to significantly increase treatment to remove nutrients
(ammonia, nitrates and phosphates) and further reduce pathogenic organisms. Studies are also
underway regarding Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients to monitor the cumulative effects of
pharmaceuticals and personal products, including anti-psychotic and antihypertensive drugs.

Additionally, nutrients like nitrogen and phosphorus are found in municipal waste. When
excessive, these nutrients are considered harmful water pollutants leading to such problems as
algae blooms. Nutrient management is an important planning consideration for California
wastewater treatment operators — both to remove and to recover these resources. This LRFP
includes estimated costs needed to address nutrients in SVCW'’s wastewater. It should be noted,
however, that SVCW has joined a cooperative to explore a joint response strategy regarding
future Nutrient Removal requirements.

Financial Modeling

The CIP estimates approximately $559 million remains to be spent on capital expenditures over
the next eight years. The Financial Plan documents the funding strategy, risks to this strategy,
and anticipated mitigation and/or alternative funding solutions available. Prior to issuing debt
SVCW updates a capital finance model to evaluate the impact of capital program spending,
operations and maintenance costs, and debt service to its, and the Member Entities’, financial
condition. To that end, SVCW’s Chief Financial Officer oversees ongoing maintenance of
guantitative modeling that includes, but is not limited to, the following:

* Historic and projected cash flows;
* Historic and projected capital expenditures;
» Historic and projected operating costs;

» Historic and projected cash reserve balances, including the Operating Fund, the CIP Fund,
Revenue-funded Capital Fund, and Debt Service Reserve Fund, if any;

* Historic and projected debt service coverage;

Page 10



The most efficient mix of funding sources (debt and cash);

The most efficient form of debt (government-subsidized loans, capital market offerings,
or private loans) and most efficient structures;

Projected revenue requirements; and

Revenue Sources, including miscellaneous revenues and grants.

The Plan incorporates these factors to develop an all-inclusive projection of future cash flow
requirements. As part of the Plan, the Financial Model was created to generate and assess
multiple debt-based financing alternatives for the CIP. Several scenarios were analyzed to reach
the recommended plan, including the extent to which funds would be sourced from Wastewater

Revenue Bonds versus Governmental Loans. Further analysis and results are described in
Sections 2 and 3 of this Plan.

Page 11

341



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 12

342



SECTION 2 — GUIDING DOCUMENTS AND PRINCIPLES

Audited Financial Reports

SVCW financial statements are maintained in accordance with all state and federal laws,
Generally Accepted Accounting Policy, and standards of the Government Accounting Standards
Board. This means revenues and expenses are recognized on a full accrual basis, where revenues
are recognized in the period when they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period
incurred.

An annual audit is performed by an independent public accounting firm, with an unqualified
opinion that SVCW financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects.

Operating Budgets

Each year, the adopted budget establishes the funding requirements for Member Entities. It
includes all operating costs, revenue-funded capital needs, debt service payments, and cash
reserves requirements. A full overview of all expenditures facilitates discussion of anticipated
changes. Subsequent to the fiscal year-end closing, annual payments made by each SVCW
Member Entity are reconciled against the actual expenditures allocated to each SVCW Member
Entity and any differences are applied toward funding reserves held by SVCW.

The Budget is constructed consistent with goals established by the Commission to support
operational priorities and the Capital Improvement Program. The Budget reflects a progressive
approach to controlling costs, minimizing unplanned expenditures, limiting risk, and investing in
activities that provide the long-Range resources needed for the community.

Used as a baseline for this study, the 2018-19 Budget was $47.1 million. This includes $24.2
million in operating expenditures, $1.5 million for revenue-funded capital projects, additional
cash reserve contributions of $1 million, and debt service payments estimated at $20.4 million.

2018-19 Adopted Budget - Total Contributions by Member Agency

City of Redwood City of West Bay
Description Belmont (11 San Carlos San District
Net Operating Expenditures S 2,973,317 S 11,245,294 S 3,067,987 S 6,927,025 S 24,213,623
Revenue-Funded Capital Expenditures 140,380 721,507 224,905 398,708 1,485,500
Reserve Contributions 92,991 477,945 148,983 264,115 984,034
Debt Service Payments 178,425 11,137,107 3,508,897 5,565,516 20,389,946
Subtotal - Contributions to SVCW S 3,385,113 $§ 23,581,854 S 6,950,772 S 13,155,364 $ 47,073,103

Page 13

343



344

Expenditure Allocation

SVCW annual operating and maintenance costs are allocated according to the Joint Powers
Agreement. Specifically, administrative, safety, and conveyance operating costs are allocated
based on each Member Agency’s proportionate share of total flow contributed to the Joint
Facilities. Pump Station maintenance and operation costs are tracked as actual costs charged to
each pump station and borne by the Member Agency served by each particular pump station.
However, the maintenance and operation costs of the booster station are allocated on a
percentage basis to West Bay Sanitary District and Redwood City at 92% and 8%, respectively.

Treatment plant operation and maintenance costs are allocated according to each Member
Agency’s proportionate contribution of hydraulic flow (“Flow”), Biochemical Oxygen Demand
(“BOD”) and Suspended Solids (“SS”) to the Joint Facilities. The total annual treatment plant
maintenance and operation costs are allocated as 26.5% to flow, 33.5% to Biochemical Oxygen
Demand and 40% to Suspended Solids. Using these allocations, the 2018-19 Operating Budget
assigns costs using the following three-year flow and loading averages:

2018-19 Budget Revenue Allocation to Member Agencies - Adopted

Redwood West Bay
Belmont City San Carlos  San District

Allocation Factors

Flow 12.43% 47.49% 13.89% 26.19% 100%
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) 12.44% 44.63% 12.29% 30.64% 100%
Suspended Solids (SS) 11.97% 46.74% 11.57% 29.72% 100%
Weightings

Operating Expenditures Flow BOD SS
Operations 26.5% 33.5% 40.0% S 1,125,355 S 4,247,351 $ 1,141,584 $ 2,672,767 $ 9,187,056
Maintenance 26.5% 33.5% 40.0% 779,011 2,940,169 790,245 1,850,186 6,359,611
Laboratory 26.5% 33.5% 40.0% 216,185 815,934 219,303 513,450 1,764,871
Environmental Services 26.5% 33.5% 40.0% 143,750 542,546 145,823 341,413 1,173,532
Engineering 26.5% 33.5% 40.0% 93,467 352,765 94,814 221,987 763,033
Safety 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 49,945 190,821 55,812 105,235 401,813
Information Services 26.5% 33.5% 40.0% 206,749 780,317 209,730 491,037 1,687,833
Administrative Services 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 452,709 1,729,619 505,884 953,858 3,642,071
Subtotal $ 3,067,171 $11,599,522 $ 3,163,195 $ 7,149,933 $24,979,821

Subtract Miscellaneous Income  26.5% 33.5% 40.0% S 93,854 $ 354,228 S 95,208 S 222,908 S 766,198

2018-19 Net Operating Revenue Required $ 2,973,317 $11,245,294 $ 3,067,987 $ 6,927,025 $24,213,623

Capital costs are distributed based on each member entity’s percentage of its capacity rights as
defined in the Joint Powers Agreement:

Belmont San Carlos Redwood City West Bay
9.45% 15.14% 48.57% 26.84%

Unrelated to the number of votes originally ascribed to Member Agencies in the Joint Powers
Agreement, the above capital cost distributions are derived from each member entity’s share of

Page 14



maximum capacity rights of the originally-built facilities (“Stage 1” capacity) plus its share of
expansion capacity (“Stage 2”), based on average dry weather flows.

Capital costs associated with the Joint Facilities include improvements resulting from
reconstruction, replacement, rehabilitation, remodeling or relocation. This includes all costs
meeting the definition of a capital expense as defined in SVCW’s Capital Expense Policy.

2018-19 Capital and Reserve Allocation Calculations

City of Redwood City of West Bay
Description Belmont (13 San Carlos  San District
Capital and Reserve Allocation Factors 9.45% 48.57% 15.14% 26.84% 100.00%
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
Plant (cash-funded capital) S 87,885 § 451,701 S 140,802 S 249,612 S 930,000
Pump Stations - - - - -
Force Main - - - - -
Equipment 52,495 269,806 84,103 149,096 555,500
Subtotal S 140,380 S 721,507 $ 224,905 $ 398,708 S 1,485,500
RESERVE CONTRIBUTIONS
Operating Reserve S (1,509) S (7,755) S (2,417) S (4,285) S (15,966)
CIP Reserve 94,500 485,700 151,400 268,400 1,000,000
Subtotal S 92,991 $ 477,945 $ 148983 S 264,115 S 984,034

Capital Improvement Program

SVCW is in the process of rebuilding, rehabilitating, and updating its wastewater conveyance and
treatment facilities which are at or approaching the end of their useful operating lives. A CIP was
developed in 2008 to proactively address near-Range and long-Range capital replacement needs.
Engineering staff periodically updates the CIP to include projects that will address known Joint
Facility deficiencies. This includes rehabilitation and replacement of aging infrastructure and
equipment; improvements and additions to the treatment plant and conveyance system that
substantially enhance reliability; technological upgrades, required regulatory treatment
improvements and system-wide automation projects designed to improve operational efficiency
and reliability (thereby reducing future operating and maintenance expenses); and additional
energy management solutions.

Page 15

345



346

The amounts charged to CIP include all capitalized components of projects such as planning,
design, engineering, construction, and construction management. The costs also include interest
incurred during construction, as well as certain administrative costs like insurance and internal
labor directly related to the CIP work. Since the inception of the CIP, SVCW spent approximately
$290 million through September 2018.

Capital Improvement Program
Cumulative Expenditures ($290 Million)

$350 -

$300 - $26.7

2 [
=

SZOO | $37.0 .
5150 | $40'6 -

$26.7 .
$100 -

$30.9 -

$14.1 -
46 N
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

to date

Page 16




Since inception through September 2018, the majority of CIP spending has been to replace aging
pipes, rehabilitate treatment facilities including energy reliability, deliver process automation,
and improve solids handling processes.

CIP Expenditures ($ Millions)

Spent to Date Remaining
Conveyance System S 1158 S 395.7 S 511.6
Energy and Automation 83.2 26.2 109.4
Plant Process 204 60.4 80.7
General Plant Facilities 35.2 7.6 42.8
Nutrient Removal 0.7 40.5 41.2
Solids Handling 20.4 19.3 39.7
Corrosion and Odor Control 141 9.4 23.5
CIP Support 0.5 0.2 0.7
TOTAL S 290.3 $ 559.2 $ 849.6

Forecasted CIP Expenditures

The CIP was updated in October 2018 and is currently estimated to spend nearly $850 million
from inception to completion beyond 2026. Going forward, remaining expenditures are
estimated at $559 million. The below table illustrates how remaining capital expenditures are
allocated amongst member entities.

SVCW Remaining Capital Expenditures - By Fiscal Year End and Member Allocation

Member Entity 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 Total
Belmont 9.45% S 127 S 18.1 $ 132 $ 38 §$ 1.0 $ 04 S 04 S 34 $ 528
Redwood City 48.57% 65.2 92.9 67.7 194 5.0 1.9 1.9 17.7 271.6
San Carlos 15.14% 20.3 29.0 21.1 6.1 1.6 0.6 0.6 5.5 84.7
West Bay SD 26.84% 36.0 513 37.4 10.7 2.8 1.0 1.0 9.8 150.1
TOTAL 100.00% $ 1342 $ 1913 $ 1393 $ 400 $ 103 $ 38 §$ 38 § 365 $ 5592

Prior LRFP Assumption: S 301 S 1337 S 1875 S 1328 5 330 $ 259 § 265 S 11.7 S 5812

Page 17

347



348

Projected CIP Spending Elements

559 Million
$250 ($ )
$200 m Nutrient Removal
B Treatment Facilities
W Pump Stations & Pipelines
$150 ® Front of Plant Facilities

B Gravity Pipeline

A Prior Year LRFP
$100
$50
A A
— -

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
(remaining)

The majority of anticipated CIP costs can be attributed to replacement of the aging conveyance
system infrastructure, namely, the RESCU program. RESCU is comprised of three significant
elements with a combined remaining expenditures estimate of approximately $443 million.
These projects include:

1. Replacement of the influent force main with a gravity pipeline;

2. Construction of a receiving lift station, screening and grit removal, peak flow and storm
water handling facilities, influent connector pipeline (collectively, “Front of Plant”), and;

3. Replacement / rehabilitation of the pump stations.

The environmental review for RESCU is complete for all elements. Construction has commenced
for the gravity pipeline and Front of Plant elements, and the Authority anticipates entering into
a Design-Build contract in early 2019 for the Pump Station Improvement Plan. Combined, these
three elements require capital expenditures of $112 to $172 million per year for the next three
years.

Page 18



Cash Reserves Policy

In 2013, the SVCW Commission adopted a cash reserves policy that protects its fiscal solvency
and funds future long Range capital needs. The policy describes the goals and amounts intended
to be held in reserves. Each year during the budget process, SVCW reviews reserve balances and
adjusts as needed. SVCW debt reserves mitigate the negative impact of revenue shortfalls from
economic fluctuations, to fund unforeseen expense requirements, to provide stable rates for
member entities, and to help fund future long-Range capital needs.

e The Operating Reserve must be maintained at a minimum balance of 10% of the approved
Operating and Pay-go Capital Budget, plus $1 million. This fund allows for continued
operation in times of local, regional state, or national crisis or for unbudgeted,
unexpected operational, maintenance or capital expenses approved by the SVCW
Commission. As of December 31, 2018 the amount held in this reserve was $3.5 million.

e The Capital Improvement Program Reserve Fund goal is to accrue funds equal to the
annual calculated depreciation of SVCW facilities to meet the long Range needs of
replacing capital assets when their useful life has been met. This will ultimately allow
most major expenses in the future to be paid for on a pay-as-you go basis and limit the
need for borrowing. Per policy, a minimum of $1 million is added to the Capital
Improvement Program Reserve Fund each fiscal year through fiscal year 2020-21, after
which it shall follow prescribed increases until the annual contribution equals annual
depreciation. As of December 31, 2018 the CIP reserve was $17.9 million.

e Stage 2 Capacity Reserve is utilized to pay for capital projects that increase the treatment
capacity of SVCW facilities. This fund is a pay as you go fund that derives income from
fees paid by new customers to buy capacity for the use of SVCW facilities. Projects that
enhance capacity will be built when there are adequate cash reserves to fund the projects
if needed to accommodate additional flow or loadings or at the discretion of the SVCW
Commission. As of December 31, 2018 the amount held in this reserve was $11.1 million.

Debt Policy

SVCW adopted a debt policy in 2017 that considers intergenerational equity between residents,
strives to achieve the lowest possible cost of capital, and mitigates market and credit risk.
Appropriately structured, the debt policy attempts to assign capital costs between current
ratepayers and future generations.

Significant capital acquisitions can be funded through traditional bonds or alternative financing
mechanisms such as government loans (e.g. SRF and WIFIA) and/or public/private partnerships.

Page 19

349



350

Long Range financings are structured to minimize transaction-specific risk and total debt portfolio
risk to SVCW and its Member Entities.

SVCW debt must comply with all laws, legal agreements, contracts, best practices, and adopted
policies related to debt issuance and management, including disseminating, in a timely manner,
disclosure information concerning SVCW’s and SVCW’s Member Entities’ financial condition. It
must also follow sound procurement practices to avoid conflicts of interest.

SVCW debt promotes cooperation and coordination with all stakeholders in the financing and
delivery of services by maintaining cost-effective access to capital markets through prudent debt
management. This includes integrating debt policies with the operating and capital budgets, the
multi-year CIP, the Long Range Financial Plan, and other financial goals. SVCW must also maintain
good investor relationships through the timely dissemination of material financial information to
maintain the highest practical credit rating and ensure efficient access to capital markets.

Long-Range debt financing is not used to fund operating costs or operating deficits of SVCW. The
principal types of municipal debt instruments employed by SVCW to finance long-Range capital
projects are SRF Loans and Wastewater Revenue Bonds. Such instruments may be refunded by
the issuance of refunding obligations for economic savings and/or restructuring considerations.

Short-Range debt has Ranges to maturity of less than five years and may be issued to provide
financing for the acquisition and/or construction of long-lived capital projects that could
otherwise be funded by long-Range debt financing described above. This includes commercial
paper notes that are issued to provide interim project financing, Bond Anticipation Notes which
may have a final maturity of not more than five years and are issued in anticipation of the
issuance of wastewater revenue bonds, and a short-Range line of credit not to exceed five years.

Page 20



Investment Policy

SVCW has adopted a policy to invest monies not required for immediate expenditure. The policy
establishes a standard of care to ensure investments are made with the appropriate
considerations of capital safety, liquidity, and yield. The investment portfolio is diversified such
that losses, if any, on specific securities are offset by the revenue generated from other
investments. The portfolio is also kept sufficiently liquid to meet the operating and capital needs
of SVCW. Within these two constraints, as well as in accordance with California Government
Code Section 53601 through 53686, the investment portfolio is designed to attain the market
rate of return after consideration is given to safety and liquidity.

Page 21

351



352

SECTION 3 — MODELING ASSUMPTIONS

SVCW has developed a Debt Model (the Model) to project debt service costs associated with the
Capital Improvement Plan. Currently there is approximately $559 million of capital projects to be
funded over the next eight years. The Model allows SVCW to produce multiple funding scenarios
that compare debt service costs at aggregate and Member Entity levels. The Model also optimizes
variables by considering the impact of using cash, longer repayment Ranges, caps on debt service
levels, deferred repayment, and changes in interest rate assumptions.

For each change in assumption, the Model displays total aggregate debt service, maximum
aggregate annual cost, average annual debt service cost, weighted average cost of capital and
weighted average CIP repayment year, among a few other debt summary outputs. Additionally,
the Model shows the height and length of the “plateau” of this plateau, a critical consideration
for members’ sewer rates. Finally, the Model also compares efficiency versus affordability of
financing the debt by determining the length of each repayment period and financing rates.

Debt Structure

The Model generated and compared multiple debt financing scenarios to fund the total CIP by
comparing interest rates and average costs per year. The flexibility of the Model allows for
changing multiple assumptions, including interest rates, the timing and structure of government
loan or bond repayments, and the mix of financing methods such as government loans or
wastewater revenue bonds.

While the availability of government loan programs like SRF and WIFIA is uncertain, these loans
are attractive for their low interest rates and traditional structures. Both have a similar structure
as revenue bonds: thirty-year amortization and level debt service, but the SRF interest rate is set
at half the California General Obligation Bonds rate while the WIFIA program is at the Treasury
rate plus a few basis points. For example, tax-exempt interest rates in the current AAA bond
market for a thirty-year maturity were approximately 3.03% as of January 11, 2019; or
approximately 181 basis points higher than SVCW’s anticipated SRF loan at an effective rate of
1.22%. Including the additional execution costs of a publicly offered debt issue, SRF Loans are
clearly the most cost-effective strategy as they become available.

Page 22



Economic Factors

Sewer revenues are somewhat influenced by the strength of the economy and other financial
indicators. SVCW-estimated operating costs and the timing of CIP expenditures assume neither
a significant downturn nor expansion in the San Francisco Bay Area economy. General economic
conditions are comprised of many different factors; but sewer revenues are likely influenced by
only a few factors. This report therefore focuses on six different broad factors that are good
indicators of a strong economic environment: unemployment, assessed property valuation,
taxable sales, income (measured by effective buying income and median household income), and
interest rates.

Unemployment

Reflective of the Bay Area’s strong economy, recent 2018 data from the United States Bureau of
Labor Statistics shows unemployment rates for San Mateo County at 2.2%, well below California
and National rates, respectively. The cities of San Carlos, Redwood City, Menlo Park and Belmont
show similarly low rates.

Unemployment % Rates (Nov. 2018)
18.0% -
16.0% - San Mateo County
= City of San Carlos
14.0% 1 = Redwood City
12.0% - City of Belmont
10.0% - = Menlo Park
........ = California

8.0% - —— USA

6.0% -

4.0% -

2.0% - =

0.0%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Page 23

353



County Assessed Valuations

San Mateo County has approximately $223 billion in total assessed real property valuation, an
increase of $16.5 billion (or 8.0%) from the previous year.

County of San Mateo
Total Assessed Property Valuations
(S Billions)
$250 -

$200 -

$150

$100

$50

$0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Page 24

354



Median Household Income

The median household incomes and effective buying incomes are consistently above the State
and National income rates for San Mateo County, City of Belmont, City of San Carlos, City of
Menlo Park and Redwood City. Public 2018 economic data shows that the median household
income of San Mateo County, at $122.8 thousand, is 197 percent and 165 percent of the Nation’s
and State’s median household income, respectively.

2018 Median Household Income
$160,000 -

| -$136,931
$140,000

$120,000

$100,000
$80,000
$60,000
$40,000

$20,000

S0

Redwood City San Carlos Belmont Menlo Park  San Mateo California  United States
County

Effective Buying Income

The Communities served by SVCW show high effective buying income levels in comparison to
National and State medians. The Effective Buying Income is the amount of a consumer’s
disposable income; it reflects the money consumers have to spend after taxes. The following
chart shows that SVCW communities have Effective Buying Incomes of $86 thousand to $101
thousand, which is 165 percent to 193 percent of the National levels, and 140 percent to 163
percent of California levels.

Page 25

355



356

$120,000

$100,000

$80,000

$60,000

2018 Effective Buying Income

$40,000
$20,000
]
Redwood City San Carlos Belmont Menlo Park  San Mateo California  United States
County
Page 26



Interest Rates

Based upon market conditions, every financing tool has projected interest rates depending on
the type of the debt whether it is fixed or variable. For example, the anticipated SRF loan rate for
the RESCU program, based on discussions with the State, is 1.22%. WIFIA loan rate is tied to the
treasury rate and is forecasted at 3.45%. As fixed rate bonds are subsequently used, SVCW
anticipates a projected interest rate of 4.25% for bonds issued in 2021. Short-Range Note
Obligations are assumed to be at a rate of 2.25%. Finally, the Model uses a total projected
variable rate of 3.40% inclusive of annual liquidity fees. At present, tax-exempt rates have
remained above the near-historical lows of July 2016.

The table below provides tax-exempt interest rates for the Municipal Market Index as of January
4, 2019 and compares current rates to historical rates by Range. The data demonstrates that
interest rates, while near historical lows throughout the yield curve, were lower historically in
the shorter maturities than in the later years, i.e., years 20 through 30.

Current "AAA" MMD and Percentage of Time Historical "AAA"
MMD has been Lower than Current "AAA'" MMD

Srom Jannary 2, 1998 through Jannary 11, 2019
100% -

3.50
90%
_________________________ 3.00
80% il A/ A4 LAV LY g L RS
a
(=]
- - 2
0% 13 230 ~
=
o
60% 2.00
50%

(v4) QNN 3u23In

%l TT
%lSTT
Ya9b" 81
Yob 181
YE8LT
%98'61
%90°0¢
%9681
0L 8T

Y%C6°LT

%Ik 8T

%6L 8T

YLl6°LT

I 0,9°L]
%lS LT

Y%Ch Ll

I 161

I LT
o
U
o

[
-1
=
=
=
TF B s RUES M —--I—v—l'r TI—!-ITIT + 0.00

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 3 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
Marurity

_ (&5 (%]
L2 IR
L
|

£ IE——
{
1

| —
1

v —
4_ 9
d

= 1__ %8L"6T
—/,L7°61
|
— 9L L]
|

o
™

%)
o
(5]
[
o
(]

Source: Thomson Municipal Market Monitor

The two yield curves shown below represents the interest rates for the maturity years 1 - 30 for
October 28, 2015 (the sale date of SVCW’s last Bond issuance) and February 8, 2018 (sale date of
SVCW'’s 2018 Bond issuance) in comparison to January 4, 2019. The most notable change is the
rising of rates along the short end of the yield curve since 2015, as 2019 short-Range ratesin 1 to
10-year maturities have risen sharply while longer maturities have decreased from 2015 levels.

Until 2016, slow national economic recovery prompted central banks to keep interest rates low
to spur economic recovery. The Federal Reserve has continued to increase the Fed Funds rate by

Page 27

357



% percent seven times since and is expected to raise rates three additional times during 2019.
However, with interest rates still near historical lows it remains an advantageous time to finance
projects as recommended by the Plan.

% MMD "AAA" Yield Curve Comparison

3.50 4
=—10/28/2015 ===2/8/2018 ===1/11/2019

3.00 4

2.00

1.00

0.00 - T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T — T
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Maturity

Source: Thomson Municipal Market Monitor

Interest earnings on Project Funds and Reserves:

It is estimated that funds held by SVCW related to the CIP, including reserve funds required by
the SRF Loan program, will receive investment earnings of 1.5% annually over the long Range.

Page 28

358



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 29

359



360

SECTION 4 — HISTORICAL FINANCIALS

Historical Cash Flow Requirements

Total Cash Flow Requirements

SVCW annual cash flow requirements from Members have more than doubled over the past
decade, mostly due to higher debt service payments needed to finance its CIP.

SVCW Historical Cash Flow Requirements
($ Millions)
$47.0 - M Cash Reserves Contributions
m Debt Service Payments
m Revenue-Funded Capital
$37.0 |
B Operating, Excluding Depreciation
$27.0 -
$17.0 -
$7.0 -
$3) -
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget

Historical Unit Costs

When isolated to only Operating Expenditures (excluding Depreciation), SVCW historical
operating unit costs have increased 75% since the pivotal year 2007-08 eleven years ago. Since
then SVCW has experienced ordinary inflationary pressures, increased Maintenance staff to
better service SVCW assets, and established an Engineering Division to develop and manage the
CIP.

Page 30



SVCW Historical Operating Unit Costs

(Excludes Debt Service, Revenue-Funded Capital, and Cash Reserve Contrib.)

$7.00 -

=o—$/thousand gallons of Flow
$6.00 - $/Ib of BOD

~-5$/Ib of TSS
$5.00 - $4.66 $4.63

$4.48
$4.00
$3.00
$1.99 .
$2.00 - #1.96 $1.82 $1.89
$1.00 { $1.28 $1.38 $1.26 $1.23
$.

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget

In addition to the change in wastewater flows caused by droughts, the characteristics of the
wastewater stream have also changed as local communities added housing and commercial
developments. Low-flush toilets have introduced higher concentrations in wastewater, and both
Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and Total Suspended Solids (TSS) have been at all-time highs
beginning 2016-17. The following charts provide a side-by-side comparison of operating volumes
and unit cost trends.

Another influencing factor on unit costs is volatility of operating volumes (Flow, Biological Oxygen
Demand, and Total Suspended Solids). Drought conditions from 2011 to 2016 contributed to a
rise in Unit Costs, then afterwards returned to “normal” levels in 2017. These Unit Costs are
defined as Operating Cost per thousands of gallons treated, Operating Costs per pound of TSS,
and Operating Costs per pound of BOD.

Page 31

361



362

Flow - Gallons Treated (Billions) Operating Expenditures, Cost per thousand gal.
70 (Excluding Depreciation)
= Total Operating Exp. == Cost/Thousand Gallons of Flow
3 s
2 @
g %
g
£ :
3 H
g
8 s
g
8
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-182018-19 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-182018-19
Budget Budget
Suspended Solids Treated Operating Expenditures, Cost per lb. of SS
(millions of Ibs.) $2.50 (Excluding Depreciation) $30
= Total Operating Exp. - Cost per Ib. of SS
$2.00 —-
H
4 $1.50 @
g 8
g £
8 s1.00 ]
S g
°
3
g
$0.50 =
$0.00
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017’1325?;2';9 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-182018-19
Budget
B.O.D. Treated Operating Expenditures, Cost per Ib. of B.O.D.
(millions of Ibs.) (Excluding Depreciation)
mmm Total Operating Exp. == Cost / Ib of B.0.D. Excl. Depr
$4.00 $30
3.50
$ $5 =
g
$3.00 §
g s20 3
G $250 @
@ 1
H g
; $2.00 $15 :;,
> 51.99 <1 9| ®
kS $1.50 . $17 ‘10 g
$1.00 $1_09I$1.20I51.19I51_15 3
$5 °
$0.50
$0.00 s
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017'1320?'19 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-182018-19
Budget Budget

Revenue-Funded Capital Expenditures

Revenue-Funded Capital Expenditures are for capital projects that are generally below $1 million
and completed within one year. Revenue-funded capital projects may include minor construction,
purchase of vehicles or heavy equipment, maintenance repairs that improve an asset’s useful life,
as well as planning studies or preliminary engineering analysis for major capital improvements. Due
to their relatively minor cost, it is appropriate to fund these items using cash rather than long-
Range debt.

Since 2006-07, SVCW has spent approximately $28.8 million on Revenue-Funded Capital. Prior to
formally adopting the Capital Improvement Program in fiscal year 2007-08, Member Entities made

Page 32




relatively large cash contributions to address SVCW’s immediate capital project needs. Since 2008-

09, however, SVCW has averaged $1.4 million annually in Revenue-Funded capital expenditures.

$35.0

$30.0

$25.0

$20.0

$15.0

$10.0

$5.0

Revenue-Funded Capital Expenditures

($ Millions)
$1.5
s1s [
$1.5
s1.2 06 N
$1.2
$L5 IIIII
52'4 -
I
$1.0
$12 IIIII

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Budget

Cash Reserves

The SVCW Commission has adopted cash reserve policies that document the goals and amounts

intended to be held in reserves. Each year, the SVCW budget process reviews reserve balances

and makes adjustments necessary to meet the policy. In 2017-18, $1 million was contributed to
the Capital Improvement Program Reserve.

Page 33

363



SECTION 5 — TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS

In fiscal year 2019-20 SVCW anticipates total expenditures will be $48.2 million for all costs of
operations, debt service, revenue-funded capital, and reserve contributions. This figure is
anticipated to grow to $81.3 million over the next ten years:

Projected SVCW Cash Flow Requirements - Aggregate ($ Millions)

2019-20  2020-21 2021-22 2022-23  2023-24 2024-25 2025-26  2026-27 2027-28  2028-29

Operating Expense $ 2515 $§ 2609 S 2713 $ 27.09 $ 2687 S 2768 $ 2851 S 2936 $ 3023 S 3112
Existing Bonds 17.46 17.02 17.01 17.00 17.00 17.01 16.98 16.98 16.98 16.97
Existing SRF Loans 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 3.32 3.32 3.32 3.32 3.32 3.32
New Bonds - 0.68 2.12 2.12 3.77 3.77 3.77 3.77 3.77 3.77
New SRF Loans - - 5.75 5.75 5.75 5.75 5.75 5.75 5.75 5.75
Line of Credit Interest 0.20 - - - - - - - - -

New WIFIA Loan - - - - - - - 13.36 13.36 13.36
Revenue-Funded Capital 1.80 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
New Cash Reserves 1.00 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 3.50 4.00 4.50 5.00 5.50
TOTAL S 4824 $ 4942 S 5814 $ 5860 S 6122 $ 6253 S 63.83 S 7854 $ 7991 S 81.30

Projected Cash Flow Requirements - SVCW Aggregate

($ Millions)
[ New WIFIA Loan
$120 - = Line of Credit Interest
[ New Cash Reserves
[ Revenue-Funded Capital
$100 - I New SRF Loans
= New Bonds
[ Existing SRF Loans
I Existing Bonds
$80 - :
I Operating Expense
=—2018 LRFP
$60 -
$40 -
$20 -
41 -

2019-20  2020-21  2021-22  2022-23  2023-24  2024-25 2025-26  2026-27 2027-28  2028-29

Page 34

364



Operating Expenditures

Total operating expenses will increase by approximately 3.65 percent annually over the next
decade. The Financial Plan has incorporated future benefits of power generation, revenues from
food waste, and improved productivity from automation.

SVCW Operating Expenditures ($ Millions)

2027-28

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
Description Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Personnel S 157 S 164 $ 170 $ 177 S 184 S 189 S 195 $ 200 $ 205 S 211 $ 21.7
Utilities 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 21 2.2 23
Administrative Costs 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
Equipment & Supplies 2.7 2.7 2.8 29 3.0 31 3.2 33 34 35 3.6
Chemicals 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.7 1.7 18 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0
Professional Services 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 11
Contractual Services 16 17 17 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 21 21 2.2
Regulatory and Training 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
Total Expenditures $ 250 $ 259 $ 269 $ 27.7 $ 287 $ 295 $ 304 $ 313 $ 322 §$ 331 $ 34.1
Less Misc. Revenue (0.8) (0.8) (0.8) (0.5) (1.6) (2.7) (2.7) (2.8) (2.8) (2.9) (3.0)
Net Operating Expend.  $ 242 S 251 $ 261 S 271 $ 271 S 269 $ 277 $ 285 $ 294 $ 30.2 S 31.1
SVCW Operating Unit Costs
(Excludes Debt Service, Revenue-Funded Capital, and Reserve Contributions)
$8.00 -
$7.00 - =4—Cost/Thousand gallons of Flow
~#=Cost/Ib of BOD
4578 $5.95
4 5.7
$6.00 ~B-Cost/Ib of TSS $5.61
$5.20 $5.45
$5.19 $5.18 $5.14 X
s $4.99 N o N
| 4.81 e R
$5.00 $4,'63///v
$4.00 -
$3.00 -
$2.43
$2.30 $2.36
2.17 $2.23
$1.97 $2.04 $2.12 $2.12 $2.10 $
$2.00 -
$1.00 -
$- T T T T T T T T T T
2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
Budget Fest Fest Fest Fest Fest Fest Fest Fest Fest Fest
Page 35

365



Debt Service Structure / Annual Debt Service Payments

SVCW uses debt as necessary to fund its CIP. Through its Member Entities, SVCW has already
funded or has received funding commitments of $457 million for capital improvements. Sources
of funds include Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Member Entity cash contributions, SRF Loans, and
grants.

Source of CIP Funds to date ($ millions)

All-in TIC / Available
Interest Max Proceeds at

Description Rate Proceeds 10/31/18
Bonds

2008 Wastewater Revenue Bonds 503% S 1001 S -

2009 Wastewater Revenue Bonds 5.12% 55.86 -

2014 Wastewater Revenue Bonds 4.18% 65.54 -

2015 Wastewater Revenue Bonds 3.75% 30.00 -

2018 Wastewater Revenue Bonds 3.43% 148.98 101.12

Subtotal - Bonds 310.38 101.12
Cash Contributions in lieu of Debt

Belmont 34.15 10.10

Redwood City 10.00 -

West Bay Sanitary District 13.02 13.02

Subtotal - Cash 57.16 23.12
State Revolving Fund Loans

Control Building 2.60% 11.36 -

WWTP Improvements 1.80% 31.55 -

Conveyance Planning 1.60% 14.00 2.78

Subtotal - SRF 56.91 2.78
Line of Credit

Wells Fargo LOC LIBOR-based 65.00 51.30
Grant Funding

PG&E Cogeneration Grant 2.40 0.60

California Energy Commission 0.50 -

Subtotal - Grant Funding 2.90 0.60
TOTAL $ 49236 $ 178.91

Looking forward, approximately $559 million of the CIP remains to be funded. This LRFP
recommends the following debt structure, with a comparison to the prior year’s LRFP:

Page 36

366



Description 2018 LRFP 2019 LRFP

Remaining CIP to be funded $581 Million $559 Million
Fixed Rate Bonds / % of New Debt $371M / 65% S24M / 4.3%
Variable Rate Bonds / % of New Debt S115M / 19% S48M / 8.5%
Government Loans / % of New Debt S65M / 11% S349M / 62.4%
Proceeds or Cash / % of New Debt S30M /5% S139M / 24.8%
Weighted Average Cost of Capital % 3.64% 2.88%

The updated debt structure, compared to 2018 estimates, will reduce service payments through
the next 23 years. These savings are significant especially over the next seven years due to unique
WIFIA structure that allows debt amortization to be deferred for up to five years after completion
of construction.

Over the entire 41-year period displayed below, total aggregate debt service is now estimated at
$1.28 billion, or approximately $40 million (in nominal dollars) less than the prior year’s LRFP. If
discounted to today’s dollars, this difference is valued at a Net Present Value of $46 million.

SVCW Aggregate Debt Service by Member Agency
($ Millions)

$50 - mmm Belmont
mmm Redwood City

mmm San Carlos

mm West Bay

~M-2018 LRFP

Page 37

367



368

SVCW Wastewater Revenue Bonds

Financing Agreements adopted between SVCW and its Member Entities obligate each of these
agencies to make payments to SVCW for their respective allocable share of debt service. The City
of Belmont has, to date, not participated in SVCW Bond financing and is therefore not obligated
to make debt service payments on bonds currently outstanding.

Existing bond debt service payments are $17.5 million in fiscal year 2019-20, including four
issuances from 2009, 2014, 2015, and 2018. Only one new Bond Debt issuance is planned in 2021,
and a variable-rate issuance in 2023.

State Revolving Fund Loans

SVCW has thus far financed certain projects by entering into three separate sale-repurchase
agreements with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). This program is funded from
the California State Revolving Fund (SRF) program. The project funds, including any accrued
interest, are repaid in annual installments commencing one year after construction.

Current SRF loan payments will peak at $3.3 million. These loans financed the Control Building,
certain Wastewater Treatment Improvements loans, and conveyance system planning efforts.

SVCW s currently in discussions with the SWRCB to secure a $140.8 million SRF loan for the
gravity pipeline element of RESCU, anticipated to close in 2019.

Line of Credit

SVCW holds a $30 million Line of Credit (LOC), with the ability to increase it to $65 million. This
LOC provides bridge financing for CIP projects. It remains a valuable tool to manage cash flow
and to date has reduced overall borrowing costs. Specifically, the LOC furnishes interim cash
flows between bond issuances or when SVCW awaits reimbursement of construction costs
funded by the SRF program. When borrowing through SRF, SVCW pays for services and
afterwards submits paid invoices to the state for reimbursement. Reimbursement generally
takes 90 to 120 days and the LOC acts as a bridge loan during this period.

Page 38



Revenue-Funded Capital Expenditures

SVCW anticipates investing approximately $1.5 million annually in critical projects to maintain
ongoing operations. These projects are purchased and may be installed and managed by staff,
examples of which include vehicles, valves, pumps, motors, gear assemblies, technology devices,
or maintenance equipment.

Cash Reserves Contributions

The table below shows the projected annual cash reserve contributions to the Capital
Improvement Program Fund, its earnings, and the balances. After ten years SVCW is projected to
have nearly $53 million in cash reserves that could be used for the next generation of capital
improvements.

CIP Cash Reserves Forecast ($ Millions)

Description 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
Beginning Balance S 171 $ 183 $ 200 $ 222§ 250 $ 283 S 321 $ 364 S 413 S 46.8
Contributions 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0 5.5
Earnings 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5
Ending Balance S 183 $ 200 $ 222 $ 25.0 $ 283 $ 321 $ 364 $ 413 $ 46.8 $ 52.8

Cash Reserve contributions follow SVCW policy at $1 million contributed annually through fiscal
year 2020-21, after which it increases annually by $500 thousand until contributions match
annual depreciation expense.

Page 39

369



Total Cash Flow Projections by Member Entity

The following charts and tables describe the cash flow projections required for all SVCW
expenditures. Each Member Entity is also provided with a detailed description for their own
planning purposes.

Redwood City
Projected Cash Flows - Redwood City
(S Millions)
$60 - m New WIFIA Loan
i New Cash Reserves
[ Revenue Funded Capital
[ Line of Credit Interest
$50 - I New SRF Loans
= New Bonds
B Existing SRF Loans
$40 - B Existing Bonds
I Operating Expense
=48=2017 LRFP
$30
$20
$10 -
$ -

2019-20  2020-21  2021-22  2022-23  2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27  2027-28  2028-29

Projected SVCW Cash Flow Requirements - Redwood City ($ Millions)

Description 2019-20  2020-21  2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26  2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
Operating Expense $ 1168 $ 1212 $ 12,60 $ 1258 $ 1248 $ 1285 $ 1324 $ 1363 $ 1404 S 1446
Existing Bonds 9.68 9.43 9.42 9.42 9.42 9.41 9.41 9.41 9.41 9.40
Existing SRF Loans 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65
New Bonds - - 0.70 0.70 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
New SRF Loans - - 2.79 2.79 2.79 2.79 2.79 2.79 2.79 2.79

Line of Credit Interest - - - - - - - - - R

New WIFIA Loan - - - - - - - 6.49 6.49 6.49

Revenue Funded Capital 0.87 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73

New Cash Reserves 0.49 0.73 0.97 1.21 1.46 1.70 1.94 2.19 2.43 2.67

TOTAL $ 2404 $ 2432 $ 2853 $ 2876 $ 3003 $ 3064 $ 3127 $ 3839 $ 39.04 $ 39.69
Page 40

370



West Bay Sanitary District

$40 -

$35 -

$30 -

$25 -

$20 -

$15 -

$10 -

Projected Cash Flows - West Bay Sanitary District
($ Millions)

[ New WIFIA Loan

[ New Cash Reserves
[ Revenue Funded Capital
= Line of Credit Interest
= New SRF Loans

= New Bonds

W Existing SRF Loans

I Existing Bonds
B Operating Expense
=g=2017 LRFP

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29

Projected SVCW Cash Flow Requirements - West Bay Sanitary District ($ Millions)

2019-20 2020-21  2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26  2026-27 2027-28 2028-29

Operating Expense $ 719 $ 746 S 776 $ 775 S 769 $ 792 $ 816 S 840 S 865 S 890
Existing Bonds 471 4.59 4.60 4.59 4.59 4.59 4.59 4.58 4.58 4.58
Existing SRF Loans 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 091
New Bonds - 0.68 1.07 1.07 1.51 1.51 1.51 1.51 1.51 1.51
New SRF Loans - - 1.54 1.54 1.54 1.54 1.54 1.54 1.54 1.54
Line of Credit Interest 0.20 - - - - - - - - -

New WIFIA Loan - - - - - - - 3.59 3.59 3.59
Revenue Funded Capital 0.48 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
New Cash Reserves 0.27 0.40 0.54 0.67 0.81 0.94 1.07 1.21 1.34 1.48
TOTAL $ 1358 $§ 1427 S 1664 $ 1675 S 1745 $ 1782 $ 1818 $ 2214 $ 2253 S 2292

Page 41

371



San Carlos

Projected Cash Flows - San Carlos
($ Millions)

420 - mmm New WIFIA Loan
i New Cash Reserves
¢18 |  mmwm Revenue Funded Capital
[ Line of Credit Interest
$16 - mmm New SRF Loans
mmm New Bonds
$14 1 mmm Existing SRF Loans
I Existing Bonds
$12 I Operating Expense
=4#=2017 LRFP
$10
$8
$6
$4
$2
s$-

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29

Projected SVCW Cash Flow Requirements - San Carlos ($ Millions)

2019-20 2020-21  2021-22  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29

Operating Expense $ 319 $ 3318 344 S 343 S 340 $ 351 S 361 S 372 $ 38 S 394
Existing Bonds 3.07 2.99 2.99 2.99 3.00 3.00 2.98 2.99 2.99 2.99
Existing SRF Loans 0.41 0.41 0.41 0.41 0.51 0.51 0.51 0.51 0.51 0.51
New Bonds - - 0.22 0.22 0.47 0.47 0.47 0.47 0.47 0.47
New SRF Loans - - 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87
Line of Credit Interest - - - - - - - - - -

New WIFIA Loan - - - - - - - 2.02 2.02 2.02
Revenue Funded Capital 0.27 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23
New Cash Reserves 0.15 0.23 0.30 0.38 0.45 0.53 0.61 0.68 0.76 0.83
TOTAL S 7.09 $ 7.16 S 8.46 S 853 $ 894 S 9.11 $ 928 $ 1149 $ 1168 S 11.87

Page 42

372



Belmont

Belmont has, to date, chosen to not participate in SVCW Bond issuances, including the 2018 Bond
Issuance. This produces lower debt service payments for Belmont as compared to the 2018 LRFP,
albeit the City of Belmont has financed $22.5 million for SVCW-related capital needs on its own.

Projected Cash Flows - Belmont

e New WIFIA Loan ($ Millions)
$10 - mm New Cash Reserves
[ Revenue Funded Capital
$9 - i Line of Credit Interest
I New SRF Loans
$8 - mmm New Bonds
B Existing SRF Loans
$7 I Existing Bonds

I Operating Expense
=i8=-2017 LRFP

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24  2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29

Projected SVCW Cash Flow Requirements - Belmont ($ Millions)

Description 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24  2024-25 2025-26  2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
Operating Expense $ 309 $ 320 %8 333 $ 333 $ 330 S 340 S 350 $ 360 $ 371 S 382
Existing Bonds - - - - - - - - - -

Existing SRF Loans 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24
New Bonds - - 0.14 0.14 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29
New SRF Loans - - 0.54 0.54 0.54 0.54 0.54 0.54 0.54 0.54
Line of Credit Interest - - - - - - - - - -

New WIFIA Loan - - - - - - - 1.26 1.26 1.26
Revenue Funded Capital 0.17 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14
New Cash Reserves 0.09 0.14 0.19 0.24 0.28 0.33 0.38 0.43 0.47 0.52
TOTAL S 353 § 367 S 452 $ 456 $ 480 $ 495 $ 510 $ 651 $ 6.67 S 6.83

Page 43

373



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 44

374



SECTION 6 — SENSITIVITIES

Traditional risks to the efficient completion of large capital plans include unanticipated increases
such as inflation and interest rate volatility. The risks of inflation and rising interest rates are
outside the control of SVCW; however, strategies can mitigate these risks. The Plan, for instance,
assumes a 4% inflation factor in operating costs. Further, interest rates utilized by the Model are
conservative and generally based on historical averages and, as a result, are presumed to be
higher than current market rates. As another example of cost preparedness, SVCW increased the
CIP estimates by implementing cost inflators through the midpoint of construction.

To assess the impact of borrowing at interest rates higher than the conservative rates assumed
in the recommendation, a sensitivity-analysis was conducted by increasing the weighted cost of
capital by approximately 50 basis points (0.50%). Such an increase would result in a greater debt
service cost of (Net Present Value) $23.8 million over the life of the debt issued.

Capital Improvement Program Adherence

The timing of the projects is considered achievable under present economic and operational
assessments. Based upon the size of the CIP the cost is significant and the interest expense is
also significant. Adhering to the timing of the CIP is singularly the most cost-effective strategy to
minimize inflation and interest rate risks. As the regional economy continues to expand, costs
will continue to rise. Delays to the CIP by one year will likely increase costs by approximately
$26.6 million based upon a construction cost inflation factor of 4%. SVCW has shown that its
Progressive Design-Build project delivery method has so far managed to avoid such inflationary
schedule risks.

Government Loan Availability

The SWRCB has secured $57 million in SRF loans thus far. The low cost of these loans, combined
with attractive repayment Ranges, increased the competition from other agencies. While the
SWRCB has been unable to meet its current demand for SRF loans, it has identified the SVCW
RESCU program as eligible for a $140.8 million SRF loan. SVCW is actively working to close this
loan in mid-2019, though the agreement is not yet completed.

In October 2018 the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) selected SVCW'’s Letter of Interest
for a WIFIA loan. The Authority is now in negotiations with the EPA to secure $208 million for the
RESCU program, with potential flexibility to draw up to $233 million.

Page 45

375



376

Inflation

Operating Expenditures - The LRFP includes inflationary assumptions of approximately 4% on
operating costs. The Consumer Price Index (CPIl) is a measure of the “average change in prices
over time in a fixed market basket of goods and services” which translates to a guide for
determining the prices on food, energy, fuel and other goods and services. CPl is a good indicator
of how the economy holds up against inflation and surrounding economic changes.

Capital Expenditures — Construction costs of labor and materials continue to increase. While
SVCW negotiates for best pricing on projects, the rise in material and labor costs will place
upward pressure on the CIP. SVCW accounted for capital project inflation by increasing the CIP
budget by a range of 3.7% to 4.25% through the midpoint of construction, adding $42.6 million.

Interest Rates

It is impossible to predict interest rate levels or the timing of changes. What is known, however,
is today’s interest rates remain near historical lows. Since tax-exempt interest rates are already
at historical low levels, a decrease in rates is unlikely. A more plausible outcome would be for the
market to experience higher interest rates in the future.

Changes in interest rates would be somewhat mitigated with SRF Loan funding, since its rate is
50% of the State’s public borrowing cost. Publicly issued debt, however, would bear the entire
market increase with estimated rates.

If SVCW’s Weighted-Average Cost of Capital was to increase by 50 basis points (or 0.5%), SVCW
annual debt service payments (at its maximum aggregate point) would increase by $2.18 million.
Over the entire amortization Range, the cost of this change in interest rates would be a Net
Present Value of $23.8 million. It should be noted, however, that both the SRF Loan interest rates
and publicly issued bond rates assumed in the Model have a significant cushion versus the current
market (e.g. fixed rates are approximately 0.82% higher than the recent 2018 Fixed Bond rate).

Page 46



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 47

377



378

SECTION 7 - SUMMARY

SVCW provides this Long Range Financial Plan as a recommendation and implementation
strategy to fund the next decade of capital improvements. The Plan documents the analysis of
possible alternatives. Due to the extensive nature and cost of the CIP, leveraging long Range debt
is the most practical funding method. Individual Members may of course determine that, for their
own specific purposes, cash contributions may be appropriate.

Due to the historical lack of a sinking fund and cash reserves, the recommended debt strategy is
in lieu of a pay-go cash strategy. Debt allows SVCW to distribute costs over the expected useful
lives of constructed assets, and also provides fairness to Members’ ratepayers by spreading costs
across generations and facilitating moderate and consistent rate increases. In general, CIP
funding sources include 1) Capital markets by issuing publicly traded revenue bonds; 2)
government loans through SRF and WIFIA programs when available; and 3) cash that has been
accrued by the Members Agencies.

This LRFP’s recommendations and its outcomes are for planning purposes. SVCW believes it is a
reasonable forecast of expenditures over the next year, including a well-informed position that
SVCW will be able to access government loan programs from the SWRCB and the EPA. This LRFP
therefore is useful for Member Agencies as they consider budgets and analyze their sewer rates.

Page 48



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

379



380



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

APPENDIX B
PROJECT TEAM RESUMES

APPENDIX B-1

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

381



382

Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

December 13, 2019

SCV

WATER

Engagement Manager

ROBERT A. PORR

949.660.7323 direct
949.751.8445 cell

rporr@fieldman.com

PROJECT TEAM RESUMES

Mr. Robert A. Porr, Senior Vice President, returned to the firm in May
2005 after spending eight years as a public finance investment banker.
Since re-joining the firm, he has focused on serving the firm’s utility
clients. He has been advisor to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
(formerly Castaic Lake Water Agency), Eastern Municipal Water District,
Rancho California Water District, Orange County Water District,
Cucamonga Valley Water District, Western Municipal Water District,
Mesa Water District, Nevada Irrigation District, Azusa Light & Water,
Westlands Water District, Silicon Valley Clean Water, and Olivenhain
Municipal Water District. Mr. Porr leads the swap advisory practice at the
Firm and has served as swap advisor to Riverside County Transportation
Commission, Eastern Municipal Water District, Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency (formerly Castaic Lake Water Agency), the County of Riverside,
Hemet Unified School District, and Western Municipal Water District.

His experience as an investment banker includes working with numerous
local agencies in connection with the issuance of more than $1.2 billion in
debt. Mr. Porr has assisted issuers with the structure and sale of many
forms of debt including general obligation, special tax, assessment,
revenue and lease backed debt. He structured nearly $100 million of
complex tax-backed refunding debt for the County of Riverside and
developed a novel lease revenue bond structure for the Alaska Industrial
Development and Export Authority.

Mr. Porr wotked as a finance/marketing representative for Lockheed
Martin Finance Corporation. During his time with LMFC, Mr. Porr
worked on developing financing structures to support turnkey delivery
programs for communication satellites, aircraft and proprietary technology
products. Mr. Porr was involved in projects for the People’s Republic of
China, valued at approximately $1 billion, and for a consortium of Asian
telephony entities valued at nearly $500 million.

Mr. Porr earned his undergraduate degree in Psychology from Pace
University in New York, NY and his Juris Doctorate from New York Law
School in New York, NY.

Mr. Potr holds the Series 50 License and is admitted to practice law in the
State of New York.

APPENDIX B-2

FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

December 13, 2019

WATER

Project Manager and Lead
Quantitative Consultant

LORA A. CARPENTER

949.660.7312 direct
949.892.8617 cell
lcarpenter@fieldman.com

Ms. Lora Carpenter, Assistant Vice President, joined the firm in
March 2014. Since joining the firm, Ms. Carpenter has been active with
the firm’s water and wastewater utility clients. She has worked on a vatiety
of transactions which include both Revenue Bonds and Certificates of
Participation. She has worked with many of our large water utility clients,
including Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (formerly Castaic Lake Water
Agency), Orange County Water District, Rancho California Water District
and Silicon Valley Clean Water conducting credit analysis, prepating credit
presentations and analyzing structuring alternatives. She has provided
assistance on swap terminations and vatiable-rate bond structures. Her
Mathematics and analytics background provides the essential skills sets
when preparing quantitative analyses to support transaction structures and
researching relevant market conditions and events.

Ms. Carpenter has previously worked with Cucamonga Valley Water
District, Merced Irrigation District, Marina Coast Water District,
Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Mojave Water Agency, Dublin San
Ramon Services District and Westlands Water District. She manages the
technical aspects, transaction flow and implementation of financing
strategies and credit analysis.

Ms. Carpenter has familiarity with the organization of Joint Powers
Authorities from her work on structuring bond financings for Silicon
Valley Clean Water, Santa Rosa Regional Resources Authority, Chino
Basin Desalter Authority and Central Coast Water Authority.

Ms. Carpenter also provides non-transactional based financial advisory
services to support Firm recommendations, including: financial modeling,
long-term financial planning and policy review.

Prior to joining the firm, Ms. Carpenter worked in a teaching advisory role
on a several subjects, including Calculus and Algebra.

Ms. Carpenter received her Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics
from Bucknell University. She is a registered municipal advisor
representative (Seties 50 qualified).

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

APPENDIX B-3

& ASSOCIATES

383



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

APPENDIX C
STANDARD PROPOSAL REGULATORY DISCLAIMERS & DISCLOSURES

APPENDIX C-1

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

384



Proposal for Municipal Advisory Services ey
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

WATER
December 13, 2019

Standard Proposal Regulatory Disclaimers & Disclosures

FRA is a SEC-registered Municipal Advisor. When formally engaged by public agency clients, we undertake a
fiduciary duty with respect to advice provided on financial matters.

PROPOSAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE “ADVICE” OR MUNICIPAL ADVISORY
RELATIONSHIP

These materials are delivered to you for the purpose of obtaining an engagement as your municipal advisor,
and we wish to clarify the nature of our relationship. We are providing the information contained in these
materials for informational purposes only. The information provided in these materials does not create or
imply any fiduciary relationship, and is being provided solely for the purpose of marketing our services to you
as a prospective client of FRA. The information provided to you is not be construed as “advice” within the
meaning of Section 15B of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, or relied upon by you as advice in
determining a course of action in connection with any current or prospective undertakings relative to any
municipal securities issuance or municipal financial product. Any information contained in these materials
has been prepared without taking into account your circumstances, financial or otherwise, and is not intended
to replace or supplement any advice you may have already received internally or externally from any other
professional.

Potential for Limitation of Advisory Scope Disclosure

At the explicit direction of the District, our scope of services may be limited to the implementation of a pre-
determined financial transaction or strategy. In such instances, a complete review of all feasible and suitable
financial alternatives will not be undertaken as part of our engagement. We would otherwise operate under a
fiduciary duty to consider all feasible and suitable alternatives to accomplish a given objective.

Potential Conflict of Interest Disclosure

Compensation contingent on the completion of a financing or project is customary for municipal financial
advisors. To the extent that our compensation for the proposed engagement is contingent on successful
completion of any transactions, a potential conflict of interest exists as we would have a potential incentive to
recommend the completion of a transaction that might not be optimal for the District. However, as noted
earlier, FRA undertakes a fiduciary duty in advising public agencies regardless of compensation structure.

APPENDIX C-2

"= FIELDMAN | ROLAPP

& ASSOCIATES

385



[This page intentionally left blank.]

386



SCV ITE.Q1ND.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 10, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brian J. Folsom, Chief Engineer W /@(

Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer
SUBJECT: January 9, 2020 Special Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting

The Engineering and Operations Committee met at 5:30 PM on Thursday, January 9, 2020 in
the Summit Circle Training Room located at 26521 Summit Circle. In attendance were
Committee Chair Tom Campbell; Directors Ed Colley, Jeff Ford, Gary Martin and Lynne
Plambeck; Chief Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie; Chief Engineer Brian Folsom; Principal
Engineer Jason Yim; Principal Engineer Brent Payne; Senior Engineer Jim Leserman; Senior
Engineer Shadi Bader; Engineer Orlando Moreno and Administrative Analyst Elizabeth Gallo.
Two members of the public were present. A copy of the agenda is attached.

Item 1: Public Comments — There was public comment.

Item 2: Recommend Approval of (1) a Resolution for a Construction Contract with
Cedro Construction, Inc., (2) a Work Authorization to Woodard & Curran for Engineering
Services During Construction and (3) a Work Authorization to Michael Baker
International for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the West Ranch
Recycled Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project — Recommended actions for this item
are included in a separate report being submitted at the February 4, 2020 regular Board
meeting.

Item 3: Recommend Approval of a Resolution for a Construction Contract with Ferreira
Construction Co., Inc., and a Work Authorization to Cannon Corporation for
Construction Management and Inspection Services for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water
Main Extension (Phase 2B) Project — Recommended actions for this item are included in a
separate report being submitted at the February 4, 2020 regular Board meeting.

Item 4: Operations and Production Report — Staff and the Committee reviewed the
Operations and Production Report.

Item 5: Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report — Staff and the
Committee reviewed the Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report.

Item 6: Committee Planning Calendar — Staff and the Committee reviewed the FY 2019/20
Committee Planning Calendar.

Item 7: General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance
Services Section Activities — Keith Abercrombie provided an update on PFAS, AMI, and the
upcoming DWR Shutdown in early February.

Item 8: General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities — Brian Folsom updated
the Committee on the new On-Call Engineering/CM/Inspection Services RFP currently being
advertised.

Item 9: Adjournment — The meeting adjourned at 6:25 PM.

387


egallo
Brian Folsom initials

egallo
Keith Abercrombie initials

ajacobs
Item No 9.1


BJF/KA

Attachment

—

./"\f‘u'ﬁk (f) -

388


ajacobs
Matt


WATER

Date: December 30, 2019

To: Engineering and Operations Committee
Tom Campbell, Chair
Ed Colley
William Cooper
Jeff Ford
Gary Martin
Lynne Plambeck

From: Brian J. Folsom, Chief Engineer W M//
Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer

A special meeting of the Engineering & Operations Committee is scheduled to meet on
Thursday, January 9, 2020 at 5:30 PM at Summit Circle located at 26521 Summit Circle,
Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Training Room.

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

ITEM PAGE
1. Public Comments
2. * Recommend Approval of (1) a Resolution for a Construction Contract 1

with Cedro Construction, Inc., (2) a Work Authorization to Woodard &
Curran for Engineering Services During Construction and (3) a Work
Authorization to Michael Baker International for Construction
Management and Inspection Services for the West Ranch Recycled
Water Main Extension (Phase 2D) Project

3. * Recommend Approval of a Resolution for a Construction Contract 5
with Ferreira Construction Co., Inc., and a Work Authorization to
Cannon Corporation for Construction Management and Inspection
Services for the Vista Canyon Recycled Water Main Extension
(Phase 2B) Project

4. *  Operations and Production Report 9
5. *  Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report 67
6. * Committee Planning Calendar 69

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD + SANTA CLARITA, CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 « 661 2971600 » FAX 661 297-1611

website address: www.yourscvwater.com

389


egallo
Brian Folsom initials

egallo
Keith Abercrombie initials

egallo
Typewritten Text


390

December 30, 2019
Page 2 of 2

7. General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and
Maintenance Services Section Activities

8. General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities

9. Adjournment

Indicates attachments
¢ To be distributed

NOTICES:

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning (661) 297-1600, or
writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA
91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation
requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency
staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related
accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency
to provide the requested accommodation.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72)
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, during
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.

Posted on December 31, 2019.

Me?


egallo
Matt Stone initials


| SCV ITEEEND.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 14, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Eric Campbell

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

SUBJECT: January 13, 2020 Special Finance and Administration Committee Meeting

The Finance and Administration Committee met at 6:00 PM on Monday, January 13, 2020 in the
Training Room of the Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant. In attendance were Committee Chair
Dan Mortensen, Directors B.J. Atkins, Ed Colley, Bob DiPrimio, Maria Gutzeit and R. J. Kelly.
Staff members present were Financial Analyst Darine Conner, Management Analyst Erika Dill,
Director of Finance and Administration Rochelle Patterson, General Manager Matt Stone,
Customer Service Manager Kathleen Willson and myself. Financial Consultants Robert Porr and
Anderson Cooper were present, as well as two members of the public. A copy of the agenda is
attached.

Item 1: Public Comment — There was public comment.

Item 2: Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing (1) the Issuance of One or
More Series of Revenue Bonds by the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority;
(2) the Execution of Certain Documents; and (3) Certain Other Actions — Recommended
actions for this item are included in a separate report being submitted at the February 4, 2020
regular Board meeting.

Item 3: Recommend Approval of a Customer Service Policy and Revised Fees for
Reconnection of Service — Recommended actions for this item are included in a separate
report being submitted at the February 4, 2020 regular Board meeting.

Item 4: Recommend Approval of a Community Facility District (CFD) Policy —
Recommended actions for this item are included in a separate report being submitted at the
February 4, 2020 regular Board meeting.

Item 5: Discuss Retail Cost-of-Service and Rate Design — Staff and the Committee
discussed the retail cost-of-service and rate design.

Item 6: Recommend Approval of a Resolution to Enter Into a Contract with Fieldman
Rolapp — Recommended actions for this item are included in a separate report being
submitted at the February 4, 2020 regular Board meeting.

Item 7: Status of State Water Contract Fund — Staff and the Committee discussed the
status of the State Water Contract Fund.

391


ajacobs
Item No. 9.2

ajacobs
Eric Campbell


392

Item 8: Recommend Approval of a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy —
Recommended actions for this item are included in a separate report being submitted at the
February 4, 2020 regular Board meeting.

Item 9: Recommend Approval of a Ticket Distribution Policy — Recommended actions for
this item are included in a separate report being submitted at the February 4, 2020 regular
Board meeting.

Item 10: Discuss Components of Monthly Financial Packet — Staff and the Committee
discussed the components of the monthly financial packet.

Item 11: Committee Planning Calendar — Staff and the Committee reviewed the FY 2019/20
Committee Planning Calendar.

Item 12: General Report on Finance and Administration Activities — Staff advised the
Committee that the Compensation and Classification Study updates will be delayed due to staff
changes at the contracting agency.

Item 13: Adjournment — The meeting was adjourned at 8:51 PM.

EC/ed

Attachment

% 7


ajacobs
Matt


&l

Date:

To:

From:

SLV AMENDED

WATER

January 9, 2020

Finance and Administration Committee
Dan Mortensen, Chair

B. J. Atkins

Ed Colley

Robert DiPrimio

Maria Gutzeit

R. J. Kelly

Eric Campbell %

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

A special meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee is scheduled to meet on

Monday, January 13, 2020 at 6:00 PM at Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant located at 27234

Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Training Room.

ITEM
1.
2 *
3. *
4. *
5,
6. *
7.

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD « SANTA CLARITA, CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 « 661 2971600 « FAX 661 2971611

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

Public Comments

Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing (1) the Issuance
of One or More Series of Revenue Bonds by the Upper Santa
Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority; (2) the Execution of Certain
Documents; and (3) Certain Other Actions

Recommend Approval of a Customer Service Policy and Revised
Fees for Reconnection of Service

Recommend Approval of a Community Facility District (CFD)
Policy

Discuss Retail Cost-of-Service and Rate Design

Recommend Approval of a Resolution to Enter Into a Contract with
Fieldman Rolapp

Status of State Water Contract Fund

website address: www.yourscvwater.com

PAGE

127

233

239

393


edill
Amended

edill
Eric Campbell


394

January 9, 2020
Page 2 of 2

8. * Recommend Approval of a Resolution Adopting a Revised 335
Investment Policy

9. * Recommend Approval of a Ticket Distribution Policy 347
10. Discuss Components of Monthly Financial Packet

11. * Committee Planning Calendar 365
12. General Report on Finance and Administration Activities

13. Adjournment

Indicates attachments
¢ To be distributed

NOTICES:

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning (661) 297-1600, or
writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA
91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation
requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency
staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related
accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency
to provide the requested accommodation.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72)
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, during
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.



\ SCV ITEg'IISND.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 21, 2020
TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Steve Cole W

Assistant General Manager

SUBJECT:  January 16, 2020 Public Outreach and Legislation Committee Meeting

The Public Outreach and Legislation Committee met at 5:30 PM on Thursday, January 16,
2020 in the Training Room at 26521 Summit Circle. In attendance were Committee Chair Jerry
Gladbach; Directors B. J. Atkins, R. J. Kelly, Gary Martin, Lynne Plambeck and; Assistant
General Manager Steve Cole; Public Information Officer Kathie Martin; Consultants Hunt Braly
from Poole Shaffery. Consultants Dennis Albiani from California Advocates and Consultant
Geoff Bowman from Van Scoyoc Associates participated by video conference. Members of the
public were present. A copy of the agenda is attached.

Item 1: Public Comments — There was no public comment.

Iltem 2: Legislative Consultant Reports — Staff and the Committee reviewed the federal
legislative report and legislative strategic outline by Geoff Bowman, state legislative report by
Dennis Albiani and local legislative report by Hunt Braly.

Item 3: Public Information Officer Activities — Staff and the Committee reviewed the
following information: Quarterly Report from Social Media Consultant Tripepi Smith, Outreach
Matrix — December 2019, Legislative Tracking Spreadsheet 2020, Sponsorship Tracking
Spreadsheet FY 2019/20, Public Outreach Events Calendar 2020 and Public Outreach and
Legislation Committee Planning Calendar 2020.

Item 4: Adjournment — The meeting adjourned at 6:30 PM.

Attachment

Ao/

395


ajacobs
Item No. 9.3

ajacobs
Matt


[This page intentionally left blank.]

396



SCV

WATER

Date: January 9, 2020

To: Public Outreach and Legislation Committee
Jerry Gladbach, Chair
B.J. Atkins
Kathy Colley
R.J. Kelly
Gary Martin
Lynne Plambeck

From: Steve Cole, Assistant General Manager 7%

The Public Outreach and Legislation Committee is scheduled to meet on Thursday,
January 16, 2020 at 5:30 PM at Summit Circle Training Room located at 26521 Summit
Circle, Santa Clarita, CA. 91350.

MEETING AGENDA

ITEM PAGE
1. Public Comments
2. Legislative Consultant Report:
* 2.1 Van Scoyoc Associates 1
* 2.2 Van Scoyoc Associates — SCV Water Legislative Strategic 7
Outline
* 2.3 California Advocates 21
* 2.4 Poole & Shaffery 25
3. Public Information Officer Activities:
* 3.1 Quarterly Report from Social Media Consultant Tripepi 31
Smith
* 3.2 Monthly Outreach Matrix 35
* 3.3 Legislative Tracking 37
* 3.4 Sponsorship Tracking FY 2020/21 41
* 3.5 Public Outreach Event Calendar 2020 43
* 3.6 Committee Planning Calendar 2020 45
4. Adjournment

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD + SANTA CLARITA, CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 « 661 2971600 » FAX 661 297-1611

website address: www.yourscvwater.com

397



398

January 9, 2020
Page 2 of 2

*

Indicates attachments
¢ To be distributed

NOTICES:

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning (661) 297-1600, or
writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA
91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation
requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency
staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related
accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency
to provide the requested accommodation.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72)
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, during
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.

Posted on January 9, 2020




) SCV

ITEM NO.
10.1

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM
DATE: January 20, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brian J. Folsom, P.E. o
Chief Engineer W
SUBJECT: Engineering Services Section Report

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) CONSTRUCTION

Project Contractor Contract Scheduled Notes
Amount Completion
Magic Mountain FivePoint/Toro | $3,378,855.72 4/01/20 Construction is 90%
Pipeline Phase 4 Enterprises complete.
Magic Mountain FivePoint/Toro | $3,269,978.85 4/01/20 Construction is 90%
Pipeline Phase 5 Enterprises complete.
Magic Mountain FivePoint/Toro | $7,168,844.85 8/05/20 Construction is 1%
Pipeline Phase 6A Enterprises complete.
PFAS Vessel Evoqua Water $1,727,960 5/27/20 Vessel manufacturing
Purchase Technologies is 10% complete.
LLC

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) DESIGN

1.

ESFP Washwater Return and Sludge Collection System — Design plans and
specifications are being finalized. The Operating Permit amendment application has
been submitted to the State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking
Water (DDW) for approval. DDW completed initial review of plans and specifications.
Staff is finalizing bid documents in preparation to advertise project.

Castaic Conduit Bypass — Design is 90% complete. Staff is in the process of acquiring
a pipeline easement from the City of Santa Clarita. Staff is also securing a permit from
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife.

Magic Mountain Pipeline Phase 6B — Review comments of the 90% design drawings
and specifications were provided to Michael Baker International and the consultant is
preparing the 100% design submittal.

Magic Mountain Reservoir — Staff is preparing a request for proposals for design.
CEQA documents are being prepared.

Replacement Wells — Kick-off meeting with Richard C. Slade and Associates for well
design was held on May 16, 2019. Design of the pipeline along Commerce Center
Drive that will connect the wells to the Magic Mountain Pipeline is complete. Following
approval by DDW bidding will be performed by Five Point.

399


ajacobs
Item No 10.1

ajacobs
Brian


400

6.

10.

Groundwater Treatment Improvements — Advisian is preparing the necessary National
Contingency Plan documents and is scheduled to be completed in early 2020.

Recycled Water Central Park (Phase 2A) — The project’s Mitigated Negative
Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) was
adopted by the CLWA Board of Directors at its December 13, 2017 regular Board
meeting. Design is on hold pending resolution of recycled water permitting and
regulatory issues.

Recycled Water Vista Canyon (Phase 2B) — On July 17, 2017, the Department of
Water Resources (DWR) approved repurposing $2.7 million in Proposition 84 Grant
Funding from the Saugus Formation Dry Year Wells Project to the Vista Canyon
Recycled Water Project. The CLWA Board of Directors adopted the MND/MMRP on
November 20, 2017. Construction bids were received and opened on December 4,
2019. Staff presented the project to the Engineering and Operations Committee on
January 9, 2020 with recommendations for award at the February 4, 2020 SCV Water
Board meeting. Staff are working with geotechnical consultants for additional field
investigations to evaluate design requirements for slope stability of the currently
proposed tank site and suitability of a nearby alternative site. Tank design plans are
on-hold pending outcome of geotechnical investigations.

Recycled Water South End (Phase 2C) — The Preliminary Design Report (PDR) has
been completed. NCWD, as the CEQA Lead Agency, certified the recirculated MND on
August 10, 2017. The project MND/IS was adopted by the CLWA Board of Directors
on August 23, 2017. A 90% design review workshop was held on April 24, 2019. Plans
and technical specifications are complete. Grant application for a Proposition 1 Grant
was submitted the week of December 2, 2019.

Recycled Water West Ranch (Phase 2D) — The PDR has been completed. On July 17,
2017, DWR approved repurposing $1.8 million in Proposition 84 Grant Funding from
the Saugus Formation Dry Year Wells Project to the Phase 2D Project. The CLWA
Board of Directors adopted the MND/MMRP on July 28, 2017. Construction bids were
received and opened on December 9, 2019. Staff presented the project to the
Engineering and Operations Committee on January 9, 2020 with recommendations for
award at the February 4, 2020 SCV Water Board meeting.



'0c0¢

‘el Arenuep Jo yoam 8y} 40} pa|Npayos
sI yjem qol 1si-yound ay ] -Buipuad

s| abeyoed ubisep Buissoioiapun Jo
|lerosdde 4MAV1 ‘6102 ‘01 Jequedeq
uo dMav-i ol pspiwgns sem

ue|d Buuoyuop uswWaeS/uoeIqIA
‘1onpanbe QY] 10A0 Buissoud

‘sjeaosdde gpav
Buipuad gz0gz Je1enb puodss ul

auop aq 0] paloadxa si jJonpanbe

ssedAq Arejodwal yum ‘6102 ‘/ dMavy Jepun uononiisuon ele|n
JaquianoN palajdwod sem peoy Agjen ‘6102 ‘. JequanoN palajdwod 1994 elues Jo A1D
USpP|OY) Ul dUI| Ulew JO UoIoNJISUOY | sem auladid urew JO UOIONJIISUOD ‘ouljedid jo ajiw | | asenbs 00EYY uonels Jueys
‘0c0e
Arenuep ul pajoadxe ladojonsp
"a19]dwo9 94,6/ aJe sauljedid | Aq uona|dwod yum Aem Jspun si g
Jayem ajgelod pue pajohoal 1oell | 8Seyd JO uoionIIsuoy) "a1e|dwod wawdojanaq
-Ul g 8Skyd JO uooniisuo) -a)a|dwod | ale swalsAg Jslepn pajohoay pue ‘sauljadid pajoAoal suun asr
ale sauljadid | aseyd Jo uoionJIsuo) | 8|gelod | 8Seyd JO uolonsuo) pue a|gejod Jo sojlw G | Bundmg 00tk uoAuen eisin
"paueIS SBY UOI1ONJISU0D
s|lem Bull Mue] 8ayj pue syuel
BuIlAYS om] 8y} 4o} pjay sem Buileaw
uoionJisuoo-aud ay| "9|Npayos
Jadojansp uo paseq pauels sey bBuidid
10BJ}-Ul 2 8Seyd Jo ubisaq ‘pazijeul} ‘0202 Jewwns Aq pa1s|dwoo
Buiaqg ase Buidid/Buipe.b aus yue) 10} aQ 0] pa|NPayos SI SHUE)
sue|d el "uoIIONJISUOD IO} panoidde auoz youey aulAs | aseyd
aJe S|eliwgns syuel youey auljAyS | JO uoionisuo) 610z lequadeq
| 8seuyd "020e Atenuepr ul dnuels ul palejdwoo sem uonels dwnd
1o} panpayos si uonels dwnd uoisuag | uoisuag | 8Seyd JO UONoNJIISU0D
L 8seyd "1adojonsp AQ suole|elsul ‘6102 |e} ul pa}a|dwod aiam "SHUE)
Jajow BuioBuo yum aie|dwoo ale sauljadid 10B.41-Ul pUB BUOOYOE] ¢ pue ‘suoiels dwnd suun aapied
sauljedid 10B.1-Ul/BUOYMOR] | 8Skeyd | 8Seyd JO uoIonsuo) ¢ ‘sauledid Jo sepw 2| | Buyemq 0zzl youry aunAys
(Ino-pjing 1e pajewilsy) 9zIS ladojanag
snjels a|npayos ainjonJisequ| juswdojanag 109fo.d

NOILO3dSNI ANV NOILONHLSNOD ‘NDIS3A — SLO3rodd LNIWNdOT13A3A

401



"919|dwo9 %00}
a.le sue|d uonels dwngd -819/dwod

"JuswdojaAsp JO JUBWISOUSWIWOD

‘sopesbdn
uoinels Y| pue sapesbdn
BUEBT YIOWWEN ‘OAJBA

% /6 9Je sue|d Jlonlesay ‘a19|dwod 0} Joud a19)dwod aq Buionpal ainssaid | pue suun (9808%) 1084
%00 8Je sauljadid 10e.1-Ul Jo ubisag 1snw sapeibdn aue ylowwey ‘uonels dwnd | “yuel | Buliemq g6t | uoAuen Buudg
‘patedald Buiaq ase ‘6102 uassnwsey
SlUBWINOOP JUBwWase] ‘swayl sl yound | e} ul Buluado |jooyds panpayds | -uolels dwnd | pue “uel 1094 alenbg |[ooyos
10} 1daoxe ‘@19|dwod SI uoIdNIISU0D 198W 0} sal}|1o.) 10NJ1SU0D | ‘sauljadid Jo sojw g 000°0S2 ybiH oreisen
‘020¢
‘g Alenuep Jo ¥oam 8y} 10} pajnNpayos
sI dn pejs uonels dwnd sy -818|dwod
S| $$920.4d U0I198juUISIP By} pue
Bulisa) ainssald "919|dwo9 %66 848
uoljonJisuod auladid pue uonels dwng ‘suolels [e10J8WWON ‘09
‘palIeIS SBY YJOM S]ISUO dy] pue Jo1em Bulonpas ainssaid g pue |  pue [BLISNPU| | MOID |[BWWe ]
yum paj|i} usaq sey Muej ay| "81a|dwod ‘0202 ‘syue) g ‘uonels dund 1094 alenbg youey
%G6 S UOIJONIISUOD YUkl | 8seyd Arenuep auljuo awo9 0} WolsAg L ‘sauljadid Jo saw 000°0SS‘e weypospn
'sBuISS0I0 9z | AMH JUI04d8AI
Z Pue Hjue] Y| suoz HINg (801€S
‘uonels Buionpal ainssaud suun 10e1] ) abe|In
"ploy-uo st ubiseQ ‘adl Buidid jo sejiw g'g | Bulema iyl Yewpue
“(ejqerod z "oN
‘U o1Be pue pajohoal
-a19|dwo9 si ubisep suledid /02/902 B g|qelod ussialed)
[I9M "ublisap Japun aJe suollels ‘0202 Aely | syuel € pue ‘(‘uyy o1be)
18]S00Q pUB Syue] Jajem pajoAdal pue Aq ubisap 819|dwod 0} suonels apelbdn uone;s 1e1sooq
a|ge1od uasialdd "UoI}ONJISUOD Ul dle 18]S00g puk Syue | UssSIslad L “(psjohoal g s|qejod
sauljadid Ja1em pajoAoal pue s|gelod ‘0202 Areniga4 AQ palonJisuod | uasialad) suollels 181so0q
JoBJ}-UI pUB ‘L ‘D1 ‘gl V| S8SBUd | 99 0} g 'ON 3UBL Uleunoj\ dibep 2 ‘(ussisled) uoners luiod el
‘sauljedid Jarem s|gejod pue pajohoal ‘0202 Aenuep AQ pa1onJisuod Bulonpal ainssaid | s|uun L 8seyd
2¥S SA ‘2 "ON Yue] urejunopy oibep 8q 0} seuljadid g S | ‘euljedid mau jo sajiw 69 | Bulemg geLe | 8be||iA uoissiy
"sjuelpAy
aay} ognd ¢ pue ‘sauljadid
a|qelod Jo ,0/9/F swun | Jseuudn (96£29)
*Jedojanap Aq pjoy-uo si joafold 'agdl | ‘uonelsdwnd | ‘syuelg | Buyema go} | 1oelL s|iH ulply
(Ino-pjing 1e pajewilsy) 9zIS ladojanaqg
snjels a|npayos ainjoniiseqjuj juswdojanag 109loid

402



‘sjsanbal Moy} iy € 0} papuodsal pue suoe bip 86
pale|dwod yels uonoadsul YAADS ‘610z Jequadaq Bunng

S1S9| MO| a.14 pue sualy Big

"2 MUE] |lBYMBN 10} MdIABI Japun aJe sepelbdn 1o} sue|d

‘¢ YUE] [BYMSN JE Jamo} |80

B1IS |90 UOZIIBA

"IOM 8|NPayds 0] 9|IQON-L
uo Buniepn ‘pe1e|dwod usaq aAey sBull@sW UONONIISU0D-81d

R VEEENENE
pue g )ue] |leymap Je dems seuuajuy

S8JIS |82 9JIqO|N-L

alIS g YUEe] |[BymaN &yl
12 1no paburyd aq 0] Seuusjue ay) Jo} suejd papwans |9 |V

"S81IS YMADS AU 1B I0M JusLInd ON

SOJS |10 1%1V

"SyUE} aNn|gANS 8y} 0}
aul| Jamod a8y} 8]eo0|al 0} paau |Im suolleiad "Jaumoswoy
ay] 0} Juswasea ue Juelb o} s1ybu syl aAey 10U SB0P YAMADS

‘Juswases 1o Auadoud

VMADS UO 10U SI 3OS WOl 9IAISS
[BOLIIOS|S Urew syue) anjgAis s.aMDS

Syue] an|gAys

"90IAJ8S Ul SI adid
8y "sluswnoop juswases ay] asedaid 01 HOD Jo} Buepn
"819|dw09 SI UOIIDNJISUOD pue pajelsul usaq sey auladid ay |

-auljedid 91
10 G10°| Ajrewixoidde jo uoneoojey

sndwe) Biousjep
suoAue) auy} Jo abajj0n

snjeis

s|ie1aqg / 34oM jo adoog

Aupioe4 / 1oaloud

NOILO3dSNI ANV NOILONHLSNOD ‘NDIS3A — SLOArodd SNOANVT13OSIN

403



PERCHLORATE CONTAMINATION PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

The last monthly Technical Committee meeting was held on January 14, 2020. The Whittaker-
Bermite Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force was held on November 13, 2019. The Settlement
Agreement among SCVWA (former CLWA and retail purveyors), Whittaker-Bermite (Whittaker)
and the insurance carriers is in effect. Reimbursement requests for operational and
maintenance (O&M) costs through November 2019 have been submitted.

As a result of the detection of perchlorate at Well V-201, modifications are being made to the
Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) Remedial Action Plan (RAP) and the
perchlorate project DDW 97-005 Engineering Report. A perchlorate removal facility has been
constructed and resumption of Well V-201 service will occur following successful completion of
testing and State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Division of Drinking Water (DDW)
approval. Until DDW approval is obtained, the perchlorate removal system is operating, and the
treated water is being discharged to the Santa Clara River.

In late December 2017, perchlorate was detected at Well V-205 just above the maximum
contaminant level for drinking water of 6 ppb. A confirmation sample taken in March 2018
indicated a level of 8.1 ppb. The well was previously taken out of service in 2012. Staff is
determining the course of action to pursue to return the well to service and potential cost
recovery under the terms of the Settlement Agreement.

For the first time since 2005, perchlorate was detected in Alluvial Aquifer Well Q-2 at the
maximum contaminant level of 6 ug/L. No drinking water quality standards were violated, but the
well was removed immediately from service. Monthly water quality monitoring will continue
during the idle period. The most recent sample taken during November 2019, when the well was
offline, had a perchlorate level of 11 pg/L. Design has been completed on retrofitting treatment
vessels. Bids for the vessels and the site work will be handled separately. Bids to supply new
treatment vessels were received on December 9, 2019 and a contract was awarded to Evoqua
Water Technologies LLC on December 12, 2019. Six bids for the site work were received on
January 7, 2020 and a contract was awarded to Pacific Hydrotech Corp. on January 9, 2020.

WATER QUALITY LABORATORY

The California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) has begun the formal
rulemaking process for implementing new laboratory regulations. Once the new regulations are
adopted, probably sometime in 2020, laboratories will have three years to comply with all of the
new requirements. The new regulations primarily add a large number of documentation
requirements to laboratory operations, and additional expenses related to accreditation and
auditing requirements.

FACILITY CAPACITY FEES (FCFs) AND CONNECTION FEES

Month Regional Distribution Total
July 2019 $498,300 $109,260 $607,560
August 2019 $237,014 $42,404 $279,418
September 2019 $584,945 $150,175 $735,120
October 2019 $184,188 $39,586 $223,774
November 2019 $442,429 $68,086 $510,515
December 2019 $455,686 $73,639 $529,325
FY 2019/20 to Date $2,402,562 $483,150 $2,885,712
FY 2019/20 Budget $8,500,000 $2,821,500 $11,321,500

P&
A {\f\‘ 0

404


ajacobs
Matt


w ITE1h0ﬂ|I'2~.IO.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 21, 2020
TO: Board of Directors @;
FROM: Eric Campbell

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer
SUBJECT: Finance, Administration and Information Technology Section Report

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION
Key Accomplishments/Activities:

Staff are negotiating a statement of work with the vendor chosen to implement the new
Financial Management Information System (FMIS) and the Human Capital Management (HCM)
modules. Staff are working alongside the EquationTech Project Manager, with assistance from
the AAC Utility vendor selection Project Manager.

The Agency’s new auditors, Lance Soll and Lunghard (LSL), were onsite the weeks of
December 9 and December 16, 2019 to complete the year-end audit fieldwork. Staff are working
with LSL to prepare SCV Water’s audited financial statement for the year ending June 30, 2019.

Staff are also working with LSL to complete audits of the SCV Groundwater Sustainability
Agency Joint Powers Association (JPA), Devil’'s Den and Upper Santa Clara Valley JPA.

Staff completed the mandatory annual reporting of the smog check program for the Agency’s
fleet and submitted required information to the Bureau of Automotive Repair.

Significant Upcoming ltems:

Staff will be conducting a reference check, with the City of Roseville, on the vendor chosen for
with the FMIS/HCM project.

Staff is working with the Department of Motor Vehicles to register the mobile equipment units as
special equipment. The Agency’s mobile equipment includes items such as generators, trailers,
trenching equipment and pumps.

Staff developed the scope of work for the Agency-wide janitorial services and is finalizing the
Request for Proposal (RFP) with the Building and Grounds Supervisor. The RFP was released
on Wednesday, December 18, 2019. A mandatory site visit took place on January 8, 2020 and
fifteen interested vendors attended. Proposals are due February 12, 2020.

Procurement staff will be attending the 2020 California Association of Public Procurement
Officials (CAPPQ) conference February 17-21, 2020 in San Diego.

Staff continues to process property damage claims. Nine new claims were reported in the
December 2019. There are twenty-six total open claims to date.

405


ajacobs
Item 10.2

ajacobs
Eric Campbell


406

Ongoing basis — Staff continues to review and approve Certificates of Insurance, ensuring that
the insurance limits conform with the Agency’s insurance requirements.

Ongoing basis — Staff prepares and submits small claims documentation to JPIA for
reimbursement.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Key Accomplishments/Activities:

Staff continues its work related to Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) integration with Santa
Clarita Division (SCWD) location’s customer billing system.

Staff continues working on policy and work flow modifications required in SB 998.

Staff continues its work related the implementation of Lockbox and ECS (Electronic
Clearinghouse Service) for the Newhall Division.

Significant Upcoming ltems:

2020 Customer Care Billing Calendars are being revised to comply with requirements as set
forth in SB 998.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Key Accomplishments/Activities:

Staff is currently recruiting for the positions of Customer Service Representative |, Production
Operator, Civil Engineer, Senior Accountant and Temporary Accountant.

Staff completed the recruitment for the Emergency Preparedness and Safety Coordinator
vacancy.

As mandated by law, staff completed posting and displaying to all 9 Agency locations the new
2020 California and Federal Employment Notices Posters.

Staff was notified by CPS HR Consulting that a new project manager (PM) was assigned to the
Class/Comp/Benefits study. This will delay the project timeline; however, staff met with the new
PM to regroup about the study. Staff classification interviews will be conducted in February
2020. CPS HR Consulting will expedite the study in order to present preliminary findings to the
Board in May 2020.

Longevity Pay list eligibility for the 6 month period between July to December 2019 has been
completed. Eligible employee will be receiving a bonus check in January 2020.

Staff successfully completed all end-of-year and new plan year updates on employee and
Director health and benefits in the Paychex system for the first paycheck of the new year,
January 10, 2020.



Staff is continuing to handle employee relations issues and schedule meetings with appropriate
staff to address the issues. Staff is also responding to appropriate requests for employee
records and information in a timely manner.

Staff attended the ACWA/JPIA’s webinar “New Laws for 2020” on January 16, 2020.
Significant Upcoming ltems:

Staff will be participating in the Core Team to implement the Human Capital Management
(HCM) modules of the Finance System.

Staff will review the new 2020 California Employment Laws and Regulations to determine if it
will affect the Agency’s current policies and procedures.

Staff will address Agency compliance with the Affordable Care Act (ACA).
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
Key Accomplishments/Activities:

Technology Services has assembled an internal Security Workgroup for SCADA and Business
networks. The team includes employees from Treatment SCADA and Distribution SCADA.

IT team has tested and deployed a new audio recording system for Board meeting audio. All
Board meeting audio is now being recorded and posted to the Agency website.

GIS team worked with Conservation to develop garden demonstration site layout and exhibits.
GIS team worked with Engineering to complete facility stakeout using survey-grade GPS.
Technology Services kicked off a database project with Production to migrate legacy databases
into a modern data collection system. This will include development of an application to facilitate
production reads and reporting.

Significant Upcoming ltems

The GIS team will be working with Operations to test cloud-based GIS field map system and
mobile device functionality.

Ongoing — GIS team collects GPS data for wells, boosters and other facilities.

Ongoing — GIS team is georeferencing easement documents from predecessor organizations to
be deployed and accessible through the future SharePoint.

Ongoing — IT team is working on a reconfiguration of the Agency network topology which will
eliminate single points of failure.

EC

@ /

407


ajacobs
Matt


[This page intentionally left blank.]

408



SBJ ITEF.]%I;:ID.

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 16, 2020
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Keith Abercrombie

Chief Operating Officer
SUBJECT:  Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section Report

The Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section (TDOMS) provides reliable and high-
quality water through rigorous preventative maintenance programs and timely response to corrective
action maintenance. Routine inspections and maintenance of each facility is part of the overarching goal
of TDOMS. Below is a discussion on these activities for the month of December 2019.

TREATMENT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Monthly corrective and preventative maintenance work orders were completed at the following locations:

- Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant (RVWTP)
- Rio Vista Intake Pump Station (RVIPS)

- Earl Schmidt Filtration Plant (ESFP)

- Earl Schmidt Intake Pump Station (ESIPS)
- Saugus Perchlorate Treatment Facility (SPTF)
- Castaic and Pitchess Pipelines

- Recycled Water Pump Station

- Rio Vista Valve Vault No. 1

- Saugus Well 1

- Sand Canyon Reservoir

- Sand Canyon Pump Station (SCPS)

Preventative and Corrective Maintenance Work Order Summary

Work Orders December 2019 FYTD 2019/20
Corrective Maintenance 19 136
Preventative Maintenance 114 719

Key Action Items Completed:

— ESFP and RVWTP — Replaced regulatory pressure relief devices
— ESIPS - Vault and pipeline project complete and ESFP back to full capacity

Work in Progress — Treatment
- Distribution System — Valve exercising and repairs underway
- ESFP — Ammonia chemical pumps and air supply piping being replaced
- Distribution SCADA system — Creation of new distribution SCADA system consolidating the three
systems into one
- ESFP - Installing Caustic and Ferric tank leak control panels and valves

409


ajacobs
Item 10.3

ajacobs
KA


410

- RVWTP — Replace Ammonia tank

- RVWTP - Replace chlorine scrubber

- SCPS - Repairing hydraulic actuator on 24-inch ball valve on Pump No. 2

- N-1 —Installing new 5500sc chloramine analyzer

- Q2 Well — Installing new Sodium Hypochlorate pumps, Ammonia pumps and SCADA control for
Q2 well treatment

- RVWTP — 4-year electrical maintenance main switchgear

Completed Work
- RVWTP - Installed wired chlorine leak sensors
- ESFP — Sodium Hypochlorate tank No. 1 repaired

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

An integral part of the TDOMS is maintaining the aesthetic quality, functionality and safety of the various
office facilities and grounds. Staff works on projects based on the needs of the various locations.

Monthly corrective and preventative maintenance work orders were completed at the following locations:

- Earl Schmidt

- Golden Triangle
- Pine Street

- Rio Vista

- Rockefeller

- Summit Circle

Corrective Maintenance Work Order Summary

Work Orders December 2019 FYTD 2019/20
Corrective Maintenance 35 369

Work in Progress
- Preparing to take flagpole request to the HOA Board at the Summit Circle location — In process
- Requested three quotes to replace a 30-ton HVAC system on the roof at the Rockefeller location —
In process
- Working on Janitorial RFP for all locations for SCV Water — In process
- Working with contractor to update sign at the ESFP with new SCV Water information — In process
- Working with EMCOR on HVAC Metesys system to re-map computer program
- Backflow testing on building is done, working on grounds
- Weed abatement at all sites

Completed Work
- Moved the front entrance to the side of the Administration Building at the Pine Street location

DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

General operational and maintenance activities include:

Valve exercising

Fire hydrant maintenance

Air and vacuum valve maintenance
Blow off maintenance

Meter reading



e Meter change-outs
e Control valve maintenance

In addition to routine operational and maintenance activities, there are a variety of other projects.

Meter Change-out Summary

NWD
Meter Size December 2019 Quantity FYTD 2019/20
3/4" 25 174
1” 3 27
11/2" 5
2” 10
>2”
SCWD
Meter Size December 2019 Quantity FYTD 2019/20
3/4" 44 723
17 8 228
11/2" 1 7
2” 9
>2” 6 36
VWD
Meter Size December 2019 Quantity FYTD 2019/20
3/4" 471 1,848
1” 28
11/2" 10
2” 79
>2” 1 1
Distribution System Leak Summary
NWD - Approx. 9,679 Service Connections
Leak Type December 2019 FYTD 2019/20
Service Leaks 4 25
Main Leaks 4
SCWD - Approx. 31,218 Service Connections
Leak Type December 2019 FYTD 2019/20
Service Leaks 7 42
Main Leaks 2 11

VWD - Approx. 29,974 Service Connections

Leak Type December 2019 FYTD 2019/20
Service Leaks 2 44
Main Leaks 1 8

Work in Progress

- AMI Infrastructure installed, programming and customer service integration underway

- Placerita PRV Station — Rehabilitation project underway

Completed Work

- Ebelden Ave — Pipeline Replacement
- Pilot AMI Program — Valencia Industrial Center

- Large Meter Replacement — Magic Mtn and College of the Canyons

- Wildwood Road Pipeline Project

411



PRODUCTION OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

In addition to the general operation and maintenance of the production facilities, there are a variety of
other projects within the Production Department.

Work in Progress

- Castaic HS Tank — Permit amendment submitted, adding to sampling schedule, punch list remains

- Castaic HS Booster — Operational, punch list remains

- SC-12 — Mechanical and facility construction complete — Block wall design complete, RFP being
prepared

- Seismic Valves Installation

- Pump Drive Replacement Program

- Well E17 — Facility construction underway, initial start-up rescheduled for January 2020

- Carnegie Booster Station — Meter pump and motor replacement underway (Nos.18 & 19 and
SMC)

Completed Work
- Pinetree Tank 4 — New Kasco Mixer
- Pinetree Sewer Lift Station — New pump and motor
- SCADA backbone radio upgrade
- Placerita Tank 1 — Exterior Recoat
- Via Princessa — Replacement of head shaft — Pumps reinstalled
- Lost Canyon 2 — Pump to control valve installation for pump to waste
- Catala Tanks 1 and 2 dismantled
- HonbyTank1 — Installed Kasco mixer
- Recycled Water Pump Station — Pump Control Valve Installation
- Well 201 — Construction for soundproof motor enclosure structure complete
- Presley Booster Station — Site rehab, parts installed

412



Water production summary by Division and Source is provided in the table below.

SCV Water Production Summary (Acre-Feet)

Division | Groundwater | Imported *Total Groundwater | Imported *Total Recycled
Dec 2019 Water Production FYTD Water | Production Water
(AF) Dec 2019 | Dec 2019 2019/20 FYTD FYTD Production
(AF) (AF) (AF) 2019/20 | 2019/20 FYTD
(AF) (AF) 2019/20
(AF)
NWD 322 58 380 2,893 2,143 5,036 NA
SCWD 328 782 1,110 2,643 11,817 14,460 NA
VWD 539 604 1,143 4,483 11,631 16,114 301
*SCV
Water 1,189 1,444 2,633 10,019 25,591 35,610 301
Totals
Percent 45% 55% 28% 72%

* Displayed totals may vary due to rounding

SCV Water Regional Raw Water and Wholesale Summary (Acre-Feet)

Source December 2019 (AF) FYTD 2019/20 (AF)
Wholesale (LA36) 4.7

Raw Water (RVWTP) 87 11,748

Raw Water (ESTP) 896 13,720

Wells (Saugus 1 & 2) 271 1,567

413



WATER QUALITY

Water Quality Complaints

NWD
Type of Complaint December 2019 # of Complaints FYTD 2019/20
Hardness
Odor 6 7
Taste
Color
Air 1 1
Suspended Solids
Totals 7 8
SCWD
Type of Complaint December 2019 # of Complaints FYTD 2019/20
Hardness 1
Odor 3
Taste
Color 2
Air 5
Suspended Solids
Totals 11
VWD
Type of Complaint December 2019 # of Complaints FYTD 2019/20
Hardness
Odor 1 7
Taste
Color 4
Air 11
Suspended Solids 1 3
Totals 2 25

Heterotrophic Plate Count Samples

NwWD
Total # of HPCs Collected December 2019 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2019/20
1 6
SCWD
Total # of HPCs Collected December 2019 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2019/20
7 33
VWD
Total # of HPCs Collected December 2019 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2019/20
7 13
PFAS

In May 2019, initial sampling for PFAS substances occurred and results were received. One well (Valley
Center) exceeded Division of Drinking Water Interim Response Level of 70 ng/L and was shut off. Several
other wells exceeded the Interim Notification Levels for PFOS and PFOA. This information was presented
to the SCV Water Board on June 4, 2019. PFAS sampling for the second quarter was done in August
2019 with results received in September and October 2019. PFAS sampling for the third quarter was
done in December 2019 with results received in December 2019.

414



Saugus Perchlorate Treatment Fadlity

Resin Usage Summary
Based on Time (o Breakthrough

Russin Flun Muhes  Fill D ate "”"‘I_:'I'I’I'lf_f”“" Doy I"‘_;‘I'I:::I’:I‘ T r _::"" Fied Volumes Trested ”"P!"' "‘:"“"
0 |
1 S/3M0 125110 253 776 167,210 i . 3
2 Saro 120 J68 82,289 105,728 202 1 158,593
3 121010 238 735 a0.841 115,458 1 143.130]
4 551 286 883 108, 745 112 E 1.6 159 536
-] 2 120 &0 114 1; 1!5@'
& e 288 883 1 1,43 1758740
i 4212 JIT612 280 840 113 1y
8 i 117512 349 1070 1
[ R LLTE] 177 544 ]
10 113 31013 165 505
11 e ] 112 234
12 ! EIERE] 85 Xa3
13 1013 13 178 551
14 M3 13 20 247 867 118,212
S 1172113 2 4 &1 248 P55 118,212
16 22414 331014 El 128 393 105434
17 412314 B84 103 205 629 105 404
18 221114 157314 105 158 485 105 404
19 124014 21615 103 L) 816 105,494
0 ANTiS SI2815 T3 154 565 105,494
21 EFETE T i FH 598 105 494
22 RIANS 71 71 525 105404
3 AEHES 54 55 506 105,494
4 12019 114 1062 105,454 F
5 41 95 8a3 105,454 11
26 TIane 102 105 4 088 1
P 12116 a7 105,404 098 12
28 126017 41817 53 ] =) 110 [E]
29 25T Biany 03 1 24 080 112
30 1117 8 46 105.454 086 107
31 1ES18 a5 105,494 | 4 0 896 118
32 1818 a0 218,207 105,484 048 60
3 12318 a0 200,536 549 F 053 65 .
34 Er11/18 203 216,073 105484 043 61 1,140 3 _‘ 435 280
35 121519 111720 5 6324 Sl 1,823 226 760
Total 333 8,798 27,002 3,360,665 $3.556,699 NA NA 17,282 | 63,041 |6,590.931
Average 94 247 759 94,496 $107,856 | § 1148 |$ 14851 452 1448 179,663
+ Braakthrough delmed as | ead Vessel affluant reachng 6 pal
* Initied resin ivery was included n construction contract
Runs 1-2 had 315 cubic fast of resn
1 had 350 cubic fest of resin + 180 cubic feet of anthracite
15 434 cubec leat of resm + 180 cubic leet of anthracite
Runs 13-present had 350 cubic feet of resin + 180 cut nthracite
Lead Vessel Resin Performance
20,000
200,000
g 120000
5
5
3
& Vendor Warranty
100,000 ’ FE.000
woo L L LLLALL LS L
a L} 10 1s 20 1] El £l
Rasin Run m
progress

415



V-201 Perchlorate Treatment Facility
Resin Usage Summary
Based on Time to Breakthrough

Resin Run

Breakthrough Volume Treated VolumeTreated BedVolumes Replacement
Number Flll Date Date+ Days [Millian Gallans) [Acre-Feat) Treated Costs
1 11/3/207 4/19/2018 168 297 912 112,498 5188,355 51.67 | 5207
F] 5/7/2013 9/17/2018 | 134 210 644 79,476 $105,494 [ 3133 | s1e4 507 1,556 191,973
3 §/24/2M8 | 11/4/2019 | 407 474 1454 179,465 s105494 | s058 | 573 584 2,098 258941
A(inprogress) | 11/12/2019 | 1/1/2020 51 a6 142 17,576 5108,162 - - 520 1,597 197,041
Total 760 1,027 3,152 3E0,015 $507,505 1,711 5,251 647,955
Average 150 257 788 57,254 5126,876 $1.20 | 5147.66 570 1,750 215,885
+ Breakthrough defined as Laad Yessal effluent reaching G ug/L
Huns 1 & 2 had 353 cubic feet of resn (PRS-2) + 180 cubic feel of anthracile

Runs 3 - present had 353 cubic feet of resin (PRS2 Plus) + 180 cubic teet of anthracite

Bed Volumes and Acre-Feet Treated

Vendor Bed Volume Warranty e

Acra-Fast

Resin Run

416



SAFETY/EMERGENCY/RISK MANAGEMENT

A safe and healthful work environment is a critical component to the mission and values of SCV Water.
Throughout the reporting month, several routine safety related training, inspections, and various other
items were completed. The Safety Department continues to integrate health and safety programs for SCV
Water. Some of the items completed and currently in progress are as follows:

Work in Progress

- New combined Safety Data Sheet (SDS) Program
- Creating a combined SCV Water Health and Safety Manual by using the components and
information from each location

Completed Work

Inspections

Monthly Inspections

- Underground storage tank (UST) designated operator
- Aboveground storage tank (AST) inspection

- Fire extinguishers

- Emergency eye-wash/shower stations

- Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) units

- Automated External Defibrillator (AED) units

Incident Data

- There were no recordable injuries in December 2019
- There were no lost workdays in December 2019

Safety Training
- Two ergonomic assessment were conducted in December 2019

- One new hire safety orientation was conducted in December 2019
- Tailgate meetings took place at each location in December 2019

Safety Committee

- The Safety Committee met on December 11, 2019

AL 7

417


ajacobs
Matt


[This page intentionally left blank.]

418



ITEM NO.
10.4

SCV BOARD MEMORANDUM
WATER

DATE: January 16, 2020

TO:

Board of Directors

ey
FROM: Steve Cole /-~

[

Assistant General Manager

SUBJECT:  Water Resources and Outreach Section Report

Key Accomplishments

Water Resources

DWR approved the 2:1 water exchange agreement with United Water Conservation District
(UWCD), up to 2,000 AF.

Staff participated in a December 19, 2019 Sites Reservoir Committee meeting where the status of
potential regulatory frameworks and alternative project configurations that will impact project
affordability were discussed. The Committee adopted a new organizational structure. SCV Water
executed a no-cost extension of the Phase 2 Planning Program extending the program through
June 2020.

On December 26, 2019, staff submitted a LAFCO Application to initiate proceedings for
annexation of the area formerly served by Valencia Water Company outside of the SCV Water
Service Area Boundary.

At the January 6, 2020, SCV-GSA Board meeting, Directors B.J. Atkins and Gina Natoli were
elected Board President and Vice President, respectively. In addition, staff updated the Board on
Groundwater Sustainability Plan development and other matters.

Conservation

Launched the feasibility assessment for agency-wide use of battery storage.

Completed the initial design phase of the Bridgeport Demonstration Pocket Park. Designs and
supplemental documentation will be provided to the City of Santa Clarita for its approval process.

Facilitated ‘Sustainability Lite’ activity during the Water Resource’s quarterly teambuilding training.

419


ajacobs
Item 10.4


Outreach and Legislation

e Sent a postcard to all customers on January 15, 2020, providing an overview of the PFAS issue
and directing them to the website for more information.

¢ Responded to misinformation about SB 1668 and AB 606 — conservation management framework
by developing a fact sheet for customer care and customers.

¢ Distributed a press release in November 2020 regarding PFAS sampling results.
e Conducted the first All Staff meeting of 2020 on January 8, 2020.
WATER RESOURCES

Water Demand and Supply

SCV Water Production 2019
9,000

8,000

7,000

6,000

5,000

AF

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun | Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
m2013| 3,761 | 3,538 | 4,774 | 5,631 | 6,957 | 7,730 8,524 | 8517 | 7,876 | 6,545 | 4,881 | 4,260

m2018| 3,824 | 3989 | 2,775 @ 5021 | 5843 | 6,625 | 7,971 | 8,086 | 6,994 | 6,037 | 5037 | 3,464
® 2019 3,056 | 1,839 | 3,070 | 5,135 | 4,870 | 6,272 | 7,462 | 7,804 | 7,002 | 6,500 | 4,804 | 2,548

Note: Overall, 2019 resulted in lower demands in comparison to 2013 and 2018. In 2019,
evapotranspiration (ET) measurements for the Santa Clarita Valley totaled 62.95 inches, well
below the historical average of 68 inches/year. Lower ET totals are indicative of overall cooler
average temperatures and above-average precipitation.

420



2020 Operating Plan Scenarios

M Exchange/Purchase

Programs
* Banking Programs

= BVRRB
® Article 56 Carryover

* Recycled Water

Z
=}
|
a
(<}
(-5
o
1=
(<}
&

® Groundwater

* Table A

30% 50%
SWP ALLOCATION * Current SWP Allocation

Note: Exchange/Purchase Programs include Semitropic Newhall Land & Farm (NLF) banking and Nickel NLF
programs. Banking Programs include SCVWA’s Rosedale-Rio Bravo (RRB) banking and Semitropic
Stored Water Recovery Unit (SWRU) banking program. Groundwater includes production from the
SCVWA Alluvial and Saugus groundwater aquifers.

e The 2019 State Water Project final allocation was 75% of Table A amount (71,400 AF).

e 2020 demand is estimated to be 63,000 AF and will be met utilizing the operating plan above.

421



2020 End of Year Storage Scenarios

® SWP Carryover 2021
® AVEK 2:1 Exchange
B West Kern Water Agency

Exchange

¥ 2019 RRB 2:1 Exchange

'—
w
w
(W
f )
[~
(@]
<
o
2
P
W
o
o
I
'—

® 2011 RRB 2:1 Exchange

* Semitropic Banking
Program

* Rosedale Banking
Program

, S T ET .

10% 30% 50% 75% 100%
2020 SWP ALLOCATION * Current SWP Allocation

Significant Upcoming ltems

¢ The USCR RWMG Memorandum of Understanding will be reviewed and revised starting in spring
2020 to clarify member roles and funding responsibilities and to add or remove member agencies,
if necessary.

e The SCV-GSA seated its Stakeholder Advisory Committee in November 2019. In February 2020,
training will be provided to Stakeholder Advisory Committee members on groundwater basics and
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. A similar workshop will be available for the SCV-
GSA Board of Directors.

LEGISLATIVE/GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS — Upcoming Sponsorships

e SCV Chamber Awards and Installation Gala — January 24, 2020

o Urban Water Institute (continental breakfast) — February 19-21, 2020

e SCV EDC Economic Outlook — March 12, 2020

e Maven’s Notebook (renewed annual support)

422



OUTREACH - Social/Digital Media & Education

Staff continues to share water news, conservation tips, featured plants and job openings on our social
media and e-news channels.

Outlet Description Notable Activity Audience
Facebook 39% increase since January 2019 464 likes
Social media . . 491 follows
Instagram 19% increase since January 2019 1,047
Twitter (7% increase since January 2019) 927
Website yourSCVwater.org Total users in December 2019 14,897
Water Currents Customer e-newsletter | Open rate: 30% Dec 2019:
(average industry open rate: 21.64%) 19,385
Water Currents Special Edition — PFAS | Open rate: 40% 19,543
Update (almost 20% more than industry standard)
Garden Classes | E-news blast December 2019: N/A — no email was sent N/A
this month

Public Education - 2019

Calendar
Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul | Aug Sep | Oct | Nov Dec Year
2019

Education

Students 882 | 1,023 | 1,108 | 1,047 | 2,072 | 1,065 | 233 | 131 584 | 972 | 610 776 10,503
Teachers 67 85 113 70 335 29 0 0 45 71 76 58 702
Garden
Classes
w Evening 35 48 31 4 32 19 21 25 28 8 0 1 251
Saturday 60 52 25 18 18 25 35 14 20 12 19 14 298

* Data not yet available

Significant Ongoing or Upcoming Items

e Assisting COC with updating their Water Technology courses and textbooks by providing them
current staff and infrastructure images.

¢ Providing follow-up communication assistance on Newhall Customer Care relocation, post “go
live” through February 2020.

o Developing the “look back” and new agency leadership op-ed/press releases to distribute late-
January/early-February 2020.

¢ Developing a communications plan about the upcoming annual shutdown at Castaic Lake for
MWD/DWR maintenance and repair projects (February 3-9, 2020).

¢ Preliminary planning for a Washington D.C. trip in March 2020.

423



. Water Conservation

Water Resources Monthly Section Report - January 2020

Water Production vs. 20% by 2020 Reduction Target

15,000 — Key Data Points (AF)
10,000
S Dec. Variance: (1,145)
v
< 5,000 YTD Variance: (8,940)
- Well 201 Adj.: (123)

Jan.  Mar  May Jul  Sep  Now
Feb  Apr Jun  Aug Oct Dec Economic Activity Adj.: (96)

B 2019 Production <O SBy7-7 Baseline O 2020 Target

Conservation Program Participation (Current Month/Fiscal Year)

Check-Ups Kits Rebates Engagement Other

Check-Ups Retrofits Rebates Engagement

Check-Ups Rebates Engagement Other

Significant Upcoming Items

Residential - Staff has completed updates and testing for the WaterSMART Workshop. The workshop is
scheduled to go live in January 2020.

Commercial - Staff, in collaboration with the Alliance for Water Efficiency, Metropolitan Water District, the
Pacific Northwest National Laboratory to develop the "Cooling Tower Estimating Model” for use with water

conservation planning and program implementation. Testing is scheduled for january 2020.

Landscape - Staff is coordinating with potential future recycled water customers in anticipation of construction
of the Phase 2 B and D projects. Dedicated irrigation sites include HOAs, schools, parks, and rmedian and right-
of-way customers.

424


ajacobs
Matt


0202/82/1 € jo | abeyq wsj}| psuue|d = d
way pajeidwod =9

109014 (dg 9Seyd) UOISUaIXT Ul Jate\
d| o uiw Q| SOA pajoAoay youey 1SS\ 10} 10BJIUOD UONONIISU0D| 61
Buipsemy uonnjosay Jo jeaoiddy puswiwiodsy
RI[I0B] [eAOWSY S1eIo|ydidd
0|90 uiw g} seA 20 II9M pue juswiesl] SVdd SIIBM N 84} 81
Jo} uonezuoylny 196png uononisuo) a)s aroiddy
NOISS3S d3SO10
5 5 auoN - (¥8€16 VO ‘OreIse] ‘peoy amnoy abpry omommv m
uozaA - 8sea |90 V| Yue L Olelse) (8'9561S
uo0ag) siojenobaN Auadoid [eay yum aduaiajuon)
o SUOI}08UUODIdI|
o o A walsAS uonnguisig Uo uoneluasald ot
G| "ON Jun luswaoe|dey
o 0 BUON -a0yyoeg B 8seyaind o} [ercsddy puswwodsy ELs
V9 "ON auljadid ureiunoly o1be|\ 10} S80IAI8S
2|9 uiw Q| SOA uonoadsul Joj uoezUoyINY IO B pue Buipund| 4|
JOBJUOD UOHONJISUOY JO [eA0Iddy puswwoday
$80UBPS3OX] |97 UOHEBOUNON VOdd PUE SOd 0
0] SUON €l
uoneolNoN 211gnd aui Bulji4 pue Buiaieday anoiddy
Juswieal]
ouo 21e10JY2Jad [I9M 2O 10} SJUBYNSUOD SHUB[ Apauuad)
0 N 10} uonezuoyny Yop ubisaq [eul4 B pue S|assap ct
juswieal] jo Buiseyaind pue buippig anoiddy
JUENLEEITN
ouo SV4d SIIBM N 8y} 1o} SJUBYNSUOD Syua Apauuayy
0 N 10} uonezuoyiny yop ubisaq [eul4 B pue S|assap H
juswieal] jo Buiseyoind pue Buippig anoiddy
Juswaalby uole|elsu| auljadid
5o oUON JB1BAA Urelunol aibe ayl 4o} ‘077 ‘Auedwon oL
Bujwieq pue pueT |leymaN ay| O} Juswpuawy
juswaalby ue o} [eroiddy puswiwioday
ue|d
219 SUON Juswieal ) Jale\ EISIA OlY 8y} Joj walsAS Jaqgniog| 6
auLIo|YD B JO 8seydind ay} jo [erciddy puswiwoday
) SUON jUE|d UOKEJ]|IH 1pIWYOS e joJnol| 8
ol 9sea Je|npo\
& 0 N a|buel] uap|on) MaN Jo [eaoiddy puswwoday L
0 W G| SBA (61-81 Ad) erepdn weiboid Aejes enuuy| 9
d d o) o) Ul G| SOA uolejuasald welboid Aloyes Apauenp| g
d d o) o) QUON podey Apauenp sjuswaaiby papund Aued payl| +
d d d d d o) 0|90 0 0 019 SUON Hoday uononpoid pue suonesado AYIUON| €
d d d d d o) 0|90 0 0 0190 SUON Moday sniels uononiisuog dio| 2
d d d d d o} 090 0 0 3190 SUON Jepusie) Buiuueld ssmwwo) Alyluon| |
EISIS|S|5|2|2|8|5|8|c|g|E(8(g|g|E|E|8|2|8|8|8|8|5 €
o2z zld(2alolelolz2leldlzlelxlalala|g]lale|a| == | WbuauNk)
m%%80%%8%%%%%%8%%%80%%%%%%:o:ﬂ:owm._n_ way
sl3lal8|s|a(3|8|2|8(2|8|3|a[B|2|2|8(8|Z|a|2|8|8&|3 |3 | woawemed
8 |3 g g Q| 3
_m_F ﬂ_ _x 02/610C Ad
lepusje) buluueld

! D 7._ ____._L m |_|_ aa)lwwo) suoljesadQ pue Bulssuibug

425


ajacobs
Item 10.5


wis}| psuue|d = d

0202/82/} € Jo g abed
way paje|dwo) = 9

sireday
agL pue 1eoday ¢ Muel |leymaN 10} gL 0} 10eUOD|( 1€
Buipsemy uonnjosay Jo [eroiddy puswiwioday

uolfen[eAs JUSWUIBIU0D
agl a1elo|yolad 10} sa21n8S Buljepoly Jerempunoln| g

12/0202 Ad
0} PaAO

d|d
10} UOIIBZIIOYINY IOAA JO [eaosddy puswiwoday
110AJ8SaY urejuno|\ dibey ay} jo ubiseq |eulq
d|d aal 10} uonezLoyiny YIop\ B J0o [eroiddy puswiwiodsy et
SjuswaAoiduw|
d|d agl Juswieal ] Jajempunols) ay} jo ubisaq feuld| g

10} UOIEZIIOYINY MJOAA B JO [eAoiddy puswiwoday
109l0id SWalSAS abpn|S pue

agl uinjey Jajemysep d4S3 104 1oeu0D UoIdNIISUO) | 08
Buipsemy uonnjosay jo [eaoiddy puswiwioday
$80IAISS uoNoadsu|

aglL pue juswabeue UONONIISUOD JO/PUB SADINIBS| 62
Bunssuibul |leD-uQ J0 [eAciddy puswiwioday
Aunwwo))

[enuapisay sajabuy SO pue pieog |0u0)
aglL $92IN0SaYy JaleM SlBIS UM Juswaaiby 9o1MeS| 82
J1aJe\\ PUB UONIBPI0SUOD 81NdaXT 0} Jatep M\ ADS
Buiziioyiny uoinjosay Jo [eAosddy puswiwioday
g9 "ON auljadid urelunoly o16e| 10} S80IAI8S

d d aglL uonoadsul Joj uoiezuoyINy IO B pue Buipund| /g
JOBJUOD UOIONJISUOY JO [eA0Iddy puswwoday

uoIodNIISUOY S|IOM
d agl Juswaoe|day Jo} uoeZIIOYINY IO B pue Buipund| 9z

d
10BJJUOD UOIONJISUOY JO [eA0iddy puswwoday
ainjoniiseljul/euladid
d d agaL BNS-UQ SlIoM Juswade|day sy jo ubisaq euld| G2
10} UOIBZIIOYINY YIOAA B JO [eAcsddy puswiwodsy
;i 4 BUON _%__Gemcoo Ruoeq Z10S 10} gL 0% 10BNUOD Ve
IpJEMY UOIIN|0S8Y J0 [eA0Iddy puswiwodsy
ENESFENEEVERERENMEREIEN
d d agl juawaoe|day 10} uoiezuoyINy YoM B pue Buipund| g2
10BJJUOD UOIONJISUO) JO [eAoiddy puswiwoday
2 PUEB | "SON SMUB SSadUlid 1e SIoudiXg
d|d agal juB] 1B0%8Y 0} Qg O} 19BJUOD UOHONISUOD| 22
Buipsemy uonnjosay Jo [eaoiddy puswiwioday
d agal sjosloid [eNde) JoleN 12/0202 Ad MaIASH]| |2
109l01d (gg 9Seyd) UOISuaixg Ulel 191
d| o Ui 0 SOA pajokoay uoAuen eisiA 104 1OBIIUOD UOHONIISUOD| 02
Buipsemy uonnjosay jo [earoiddy puswiwioday
FRENHHEREHHHEREHEHEBEBE I EEE
EMM&HM%UMMQV%MUGLSQNMSSQLL?_-m:mu_\z;v
8188 lm|olo|d|a|8[2]|8(2|80|w|(2|8|8|w|(o|lo|Q|F|T|9]|9 | uonewssad way
s|28(gls|al2|8|2[8(2|8|2|58(|8[3(3[2|8|3|5(3[2([2|3]|3| modiemog
3 E 3133|2323 s|[3(3[2|a|5 3121233
02/6102 Ad

lepuajen bujuue|d
aa)lwwo) suoljesadQ pue Bulssuibug

426



wis}| psuue|d = d

0202/82/} € Jo ¢ abed
way paje|dwo) = 9

Jadojansg yum

aglL swaalby Buleys 1s09 pue yue| suesq HIN G'2| 8¢
M3N OM] JO UONONIISUOY JO [eAcIddy puswiwodsy

0} Panopy

Jadojanag yim juswasiby
aglL Bueys 1s0) pue uolelg dwind auoz sueaq| /g
M8 E JO UoIoNJISu0) Jo [eaciddy puswiwiodsy

0} pPanop

Aunwwo) |enuapisay sajabuy
aglL $07 9y} 0} auljadid 10} JOBIUOD UOHONISUOD| 98
Buipsemy uonnjosay jo [eaolddy puswwodsy

yue] (g2 eseud) uokued eisip

0} Pano

12/0202 Ad|12/0202 Ad|+2/0202 Ad|12/0202 Ad

=
m aglL 1ale M pajoAoay Joj gl O} 19U uononisuo)| ge
3 Buipsemy uonnjosay jo [earoiddy puswiwioday
SRS > [ > MmO |S S |O|OZ] 2 Olo[>[>] <
€EIS|S|E(5|8|2(8|5|8|¢|g|5|8|8|8|c|g|g(S|8|e|8|8|& ¢
> w M == m__ % 2loflelo]|s % q/u_ gle|xlalals|lglolele =2 (y1Bua/N/A)
8lc|glw|ols $|o Q m Q wu |8 |w Q19 M mlo|g Q mu mu Q| 9 | uonessaid wayy
= w 518 m s |38 w 2 w 2 w a|(8(2(2|8|2|3|a|[2[8(8|2)|:2 julodiemod

3|3 a 3|33 g | 3 3 3 (3

02/610C Ad

lepuajen bujuue|d
aa)lwwo) suoljesadQ pue Bulssuibug

427



[This page intentionally left blank.]

428



waj| pauueld = d

0202/¥ 4/} ¥ J0 | abed
wa}| pajedwo) = 9
(Juasuo2) Hoday [eroueUlq AlYIUO
909 SUON dd 6102 AN Jo Bulji4 pue Buinieoay puswiwodsy ke
3|NpPaydg uonualey
o SUON dd pJ00aY pasinay e jo [eaoiddy puswiwiodsy 0¢e
S0 sbunesy pieog
o N dd Jo} suondQ [ensiA oIpNy JO UOISSNISIJ dNUNUOD 64
19S3 yIm Juswaalby asuadl asudiaiug ue
9109 BUON dd 0JUl J8JuT 0} UOIN|OSaY B JO [BA0Iddy puswwoday 8k
0 SUON 03 |Apnis (404) @84 Aioede) Ajoe pajepdn ssnosig| |
juswdojaas uoAue)
0 BUON 03| Punds ey} 1o} (@40) uUISI seioe] Ayunwwo)d | 91
© Buiysiigels3 Jo [eaoiddy puswiwossy
(TUeSU00) Hoday [EIoUBUl] AUIUON
9|9 BUON dd 610z aunp jo Bulji4 pue Buinieday puswwodsy Sk
(Jussuo9) Joday [eloueuld Ajyluop
019 8UON dd 6102 Ae\ Jo Bulji4 pue Buinieday puswiwoday vt
o) ulw G| - S8A | O3 1SBJ8104 [BloUBUIH JO MaIAaY Alanenp| g
o) N d0| sbunes|y pseog 4oy suondQ [ensiA olpny ssnasid| g1
0|0 oUON | dH rotod
aJ21ya pue Buiauq e jo [eaciddy puswiwoday
Adljod
919 SUON dd Buiseyoind pasinay e jo [eroiddy puswwodsy ot
(luasuo2)
9|0 QUON d4d sjuawAed 1oesuo) Addng Jalep 02/6102 Ad| 6
Bujziioyiny uopinjosay e jo [eAoiddy puswwoday
B au 196png 02/6102 A4 du} g
Buipuawy uonnjosay e jo [eacsddy puswiwodsy
S1E00APY JOAEdaley 10} JOBIUOD) €
0 BUON dd 0JUl J8Ju7 0} UONIN|OSaY B JO [BA0Iddy puswwoday L
S1E00APY
Jafedaley Jo U0I09ISS [BUI4 YIIM JOBIUOD B
0 BUON dd ol Jajug 0} co_w_:_wmmm.f_o_ww_\,o_m_a@.vcmee_ouw: 9
pue sajeplpue) 9]eo0ApY JaAedarey mairialu|
(luasuo9) 1oday |erdueul4 AJYIUO
0 SUON dd 6102 |udy jo Bulji4 pue Buinieoay puswiwodsy s
(Juasuo2) Hoday [eroueulq AlYIUO
Y SUON dd 6102 Yose Jo Buiji4 pue Buiaieosy pusawiwoday v
yueg obie sjlop Yim Juswaaiby
o) N 03 JuswiasINquiIay JIpal) Jo JeypeT shousby ayy| ¢
Buipuswy uonnjosay e jo [eacsddy puswiwodsy
AQJUNOD BINJUS/, PUE AJUNOD) Sojebuy
s07 Aq xe] jo AneT Bunisanbay pue 0z/6102
Y SUON dd Ad 10} a1ey xe| Aouaby Jalepn As|lep eulelD ¢
ejues Buiies suoinjosay jo [eaciddy puswwodsy
(Juasuod)
o) BUON d4 JuswAed joenuo) Alddng Jarep 6102 AIne| |
Buiziioyiny uonnjosay jo [eaoiddy puswiwodsy
B B OO -3 A ST B B < = el B I Bl |s|a|la|2|2]a|le|zle|a[2|3|a|R g
o *® © W w w© w o o w 03]
cl8lol8lol8lols|2|8 |8 a2l g(cl2|s|c|8[8 2|8 |8 st
slalzfe|z|e|3[2|8|e[|8|%|8|a|3|3[a|s|3[a[F|zsa|3|%|B|3]|8|weemn
3 b = _M _ _M uonejussaid way
o o 8 o juiodiomod
e} S 3 e}
3 3 @ 3
3 9 3 @ 3
3 F e
3 @
02/610C Ad

Jepusje) buiuueld
93)}lWwWwo) uoljelISIUIWPY pue asueul

429



waj| pauueld = d

0202/¥ 4/} ¥ J0 g obed
wa}| pajedwo) = 9
S0 (juasuo9) Aolj04
d d N dd uonnquisiq 193011 e Jo [eaciddy puswwoday 44
5U0 (Juasuod) (0saJ elA pajdope Ajlenuuy) - AdIj0d
d d N dd JUBWISaAU| PasIAgY e Jo [erosddy puswiwoday ey
d SQUON dd| (ge4 Aans) pung 10e11U0D JBJB A\ 91BIS JO SnielS| 2§
S0 ddejoy uewp|ald Yiim Joeiuo) e
d d N dd OJu| J8ju3 0} uoiN|osay & Jo [eAciddy puswwoday 24
d d ulw O} - SA (03 ubisaq o1ey pue adIA18S-}J0-1S0J [1e1ay ssnasid| o
Aaljod (@40) 101sig
d d SUON o3 Ajoe Ayjunwwod e jo [eaosddy puswiwodsy 6¢
ERINENS
d d QUON dd JO UON}0BUU0D3Y 10} S884 pasinay pue Aoljod| 8g

92IAI8S JawWolsn) € Jo [erosddy puswiwodsy

SUOIOY JaylQ UreUan (g) pue ‘sjuswnodoq
ureuan Jo uonndax3 ayi (g) ‘Aloyiny siemod
d d SUON 03 1uior Asjiep eseld ejueg Joddn ey Aq spuog| /g
anuanay JO SalIag dJ0\ 40 BuQ Jo douenss| ay} (1)
Buiziioyiny uonnjosay e jo [eroiddy puswwodsy

:cwwlcoov Hoday [eloueul Alyluo

d 0 d SUON dd 6102 412003100 0 Bulji4 pue BuiAIBoaY puswWwWOoday %€
2o (juasuo2) Aoij04
0 d N dd uonNguUIsig 18011 B Jo [eAoiddy puswiwodsy e
o d unw g1 - seA |03 (30d) seed| | o
: Ayoede) Ajjioe4 pasinay jo [eaosddy puswiwodsy
(Juasuod) poday [eroueuly AYIUOW 6102
Y 0 BUON dd Jaquiaidasg jo Bulji4 pue BuiAigday puswwodsy €e
WL - 56 JalIMIBpUN
Y s A uy jo BuliH pue sue|d Buroueul4 aroiddy ce
o) ulw G| - SOA [ D3| suondp Buioueuyay 198 Jo UOISSNISIQ dnuUUoD| Lg
JUN0ddY 1sni] auQ
o} o} SuoN dd ojut sjunoooy Builepliosuo) (g) pue suonebiqo| 0g
g3d0 Buipung An4 (1) Jo leaoiddy puswiwodsy
Adljod
d BUON 193 (q0) 10uisia semioeS Anunwwiwiog yeiq memey | 6%
) uw gl - seA |03 (30d) s8d| o,
: Ayoede) Ajjioe4 pasinay jo [eaosddy puswiwodsy
(1uasu0d) poday [eroueulq AJYUO
29 BUON dd 6102 1snbny jo Buiji4 pue Buialgoay puswwoday L
EERINESRVENERENEN]
Fo 1 o) QUON dd | 108loid 1oy saibojouyda ) uonenb3 yum 1oesuod v| 92
0Ju| Jalug 0} UOIN|0SaY B Jo [eAclddy puswwodsy
R (SINL) WalsAs uonew.ou|
90109 UG - S9A | dd awabeuey [eioueul o} ayepdn 109(oid e
2) fo) ulw Q| - SeA [D3 SOUIS|\ 9ouBWIONSd Ue|d dibsrens mainay| g
0 ulw G| - SeA [ 03 suondo Buloueuyay 1geq ssnasia| €2
SINPAUDS UONUSIoy PI0osy pasirey €

[0} o) QUON d4 | (2) pue ausgapn Aouaby uo sbBupjes|y pseog Jorep| 2z
ADS 0 sBuipioday olpny jo Bunsod (}) aroiddy
Sl e == = =7l 3lsISs1s|9o9]lo|olzlz|z|ololo|o]oz[2clc]le >
sSl5/2|g |2 |2|&|8 |88 |5|5|8|8|8|2|e|e(zs[a[8 8|8 &|6|S|S|S g
o - w _ N — N - — - - o N -t - = - o —_ —_ N I}
> M © M S u/u_ °olg|o| @2 M ple|N || le]|g| M 2 5 M S22 3|al® <]
ol F|lolg|ol8l92l8|2/8|%|[%|8|e|lm|o|lo|l@2|(g|98[8|8|cl8|2|8|v2|9]¢
sle|g|g|s|s|S|&|m|&|[8|m|a |85 |s[8|8 |3 ([8|a|s|(28|S|8|2|S!|8 | wbuwmn
: e w < W <13 Q e | Q ola|3|3|a|®|3]|¢e M e 3|8(8|3|¢= y1bua/N/A
3 > > > _ > uonejuasald way
- L ~ o ~
o o 8 o julodsamod
o o a o]
3 3 o} 3
3 9 3 @ 3
3 F e
3 @
02/610C Ad

Jepusje) buiuueld
93)}lWwWwo) uoljelISIUIWPY pue asueul

430



waj| pauueld = d

0202/¥ 4/} ¥ J0 ¢ abed
way pargidwon = 9

ulw G| - s9 ubisaq

d | d 1St A 103 ajey pue 99IAI9G-J0-1S0D) S|BSSO0\ SSNISIQ 69

d ulw G| - SAA (D3 1SB02.104 [BIOUBUI JO MaIASY Apapenp| g9
(Jussuoo) Hoday [eroueuUl AlYIUON 0202

d d 8UON dd Areniga4 jo Buiji4 pue Bulnlgosy puswwoday 9
(JuSSU02) JUBWATE]S [EIOUBUI] 602 '0E aunf

d|d SUON dd 1918 M\ ADS 40 Bulji4 pue Buiaieoay puswwoday 99
(luesu0d) 12/0202 Ad 10} Hwi]

d d SUON dd uonendoiddy sy} Bundopy uonnjosay e aroiddy 9
(yussuod)

d | d SUON dd | 02/6102 Ad 40} spung parendoiddeun 10A-SY IV 40| ¥9
uoendoiddy ey} Bundopy uonnjosay e anoiddy
196png 22/1202 Ad PUB 12/0202 Ad

d d UIWr0g - S9A | dd oy} bundopy uonnjosay e jo [ercsddy puswiwodsy €9
12/0202 Ad 1o} juawisnipy Asejes

d d BUON dd oakojdw3 pasodo.d e jo [eaosddy puswwoosy a9
2cww|coov Hoday [eloueul4 A|YIuop

d d BUON dd 0202 Asenuep jo Bulji4 pue Bulaleoay puswwoday +9
(Juasu09) poday [eloueuld AlYIUO 6102

d d SUON dd Jagquwiada( Jo Bulji4 pue Buinieoay puswiwiodsy 09

d | d Ui g - SOA | dd | Sniels 186png 2g/1202 Ad PUB 12/0202 Ad MalASY | 6G
ApniS ue|d uONEBOYISSEID

d d 8UON dd pue uojjesuadwo) aahojdw3 JO Sniels mMalnay 89
S0 (Juasuo9) syoenuo)

d|d N dd SOOIISS [BUOISSBJ0Id JO ISIT [enuuy malrey L8
(Jussuo9) poday [eloueuld AlYIUO 6102

d d SUON dd J9qWIBAO0N 40 Bulji4 pue BuiAiBo8Y puswWWOoday g

d | d ulw QL - SaA (03 SOLIIAJ\ 9oUBWIOMA Ue|d O1Ba1enS malnay | GG
2u0 ue|d UONED}ISSe|)

d d N dd 99hojdw3 pasinay jo [eaoiddy puswiwoday vS

d | d QUON dd Aollod aAlesay ssnasia| €6
9IEMIOS

d | d QuoN dd Bununodoy pue soueul 4o} (a1eH Auedwo)| gg

J8Ju3) yim JoeAU0) B Jo [eAciddy puswwodsy
JUsWdoPAS(g UOAUBD
d | d auoN 03| Bunds sy} ioy (@40) 1ouISIQ sam|oey ANUNWWo)d| 1§
e ul Bupedionued jo [eaoiddy puswwoday
(luasuo?) Adljod

d|d BUON dd uonnqguiIsig 13011 € Jo [enoiddy puswwoday 0s
4|4 Sv4id 6
104 Aoljod Bueys-1s09 e jo [eaoiddy puswwodsy
R (1uasu02) uswsalels [eoueuld L0 ‘0€ aunp
d d UulwroL - $9A | dd 191B M\ ADS Jo Bulji4 pue Buinigoay puswiwoday 8y
(404) s9a4
d LN BE Anoede) Ajj1oe4 pasinay jo [eaoiddy puswwoday Ly
R (404) sea4
d UGl - $9A 103 Ayoeden Ajjioe4 pasiney Ssnasiq pue malnay o
d QUON dd | 19M9ed [B1ouBUl4 Ajlyluol Jo suauodwo) ssnosig| Sy
[ [ > = [ [ [) D > [ [ =
HHHEEHPEHEE R R R HEH A P aeRs: z
Slnlzla|ln|lS|lzlelzl2[R|a |||zl Rlalglzle|z][2|3|a]P g
cle|o|l®la|l®|o|8|a|8|le|le|f|e|le|o|lole|B|lolels|dl2|c|l8|c|lol8
SI8 S8 |g|&8|s|a|R|al8|B|a|a8|S|S|8|8(2[2[S(S|8(5]|a|R]|S5]|8|wsuommm
s|af3|2|3[8|5]|°|¢ s | o Bla|3|3|8|2|3]|e 3132|832 |2 | oo
> W > | > uolejussald way
[ r r
o o m o juiodiomod
o o o o
3 3 o} 3
3 9 3 @ 3
3 g =
3 @
02/610C Ad

Jepusje) buiuueld
93)}lWwWwo) uoljelISIUIWPY pue asueul

431



waj| pauueld = d

0202/¥ 4/} ¥ J0 ¢ obed
wa}| pajedwo) = 9
(Jussu02) poday |eloueul Ajlyuop
d SUON dd 020z 11dy jo Bulji4 pue BuiAlgosy puswwoday 9L
LI Gl - S5 ubisaqg a1ey
d 1St A 103 puB 801AI8G-J0-1SO) [IB18Y JO UOISSNISIg anuuo) Sz
i _so ubisa aley pue
d 1St A 103 901AI9G-J0-}S00) S[ESB|OYAA JO UOISSNISIJ dNUuoD vL
1uswAed 10eU0) Alddng J81e M\ 0202 AIne
d SUON dd Buizioyiny uonnjosay Jo [eaoiddy puswiwoday €L
Ajuno) BINJUS/ PUE AJUN0) Sajabuy
s07 Aq xe] jo AneT Bulisenbay pue |2/0202
d SUON dd Ad Joj erey xe]| Aouaby iarepn AajieA BlED oL
ejues Builes suoinjosay Jo [eroiddy puswwoday
(lussu02) poday [eloueuld Alyuop
d d 8UON dd 0202 Yyotepy jo Buiji4 pue Buinlgoay puswiwodsy H
d | d Ul G| - SOA | O3 ubIsaq oiey pue 8d]AI8S-J0-1S0) [leley Ssnosid| 0/
) @ = = = = . — - = - 3
v |zloln|ly|a3[2|3 |28 |||l |d2|2]a sle|lsf2|3|a|y g
Sl e 312|329 0|P2 0|8 v|lo|l@ | c|lew|lo|lald|B|olm|8|2|l2|cl@|alol?
olgld|8 8|8 |g|e2|vle|g| 2|2 |3|le|lo|s|o|le|(Ss|8 8|88 |c|2|3|s |2
S|af3|e|3|e|2|¢|8|2|s|8|=|8|5|2|2|al¢e 3la|e|(s|(a|2|e|T|2[e | wburnn
3 3 3 = > 5 3|3 3 3 3 3 uonejussald way
~ L ~ o =
juiodiomod
% e 3 1%
3 3 @ 3
3 9 3 @ 3
3 g =
3 @
02/610C Ad

Jepusje) buiuueld
93)}lWwWwo) uoljelISIUIWPY pue asueul

432



S CV PUBLIC OUTREACH AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE
winTEH AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 2019

January 17,2019 Committee

Legislative Consultant Reports

Discussion of Legislative Advocacy Request for Proposals
Consideration of Sponsorship for Maven’s Notebook4
Informational: Monthly Outreach Matrix

Informational: Legislative Tracking

Informational: Sponsorship Tracking FY 2018/19
Informational: Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
Informational: Committee Planning Calendar 2019

©ONoGAWN =

February 5, 2019 Board Meeting
February 19, 2019 Board Meeting - CANCELLED

February 21, 2019 Committee
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Discussion of Legislative Advocacy Request for Proposals
3. Recommend Approval of a Media Policy
4. Discussion of Agency’s Role in Stewardship of Santa Clara River
5. Other Staff Activity: Blue Ribbon Committee
6. Informational: Monthly Outreach Matrix
7. Informational: Legislative Tracking
8. Informational: Sponsorship Tracking FY 2018/19
9. Informational: Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
10. Informational: Committee Planning Calendar 2019

March 5, 2019 Board Meeting
March 19, 2019 Board Meeting - CANCELLED

March 21, 2019 Committee

Legislative Consultant Reports

Discussion of Public Outreach/Legislative FY 2019/20
Informational: Monthly Outreach Matrix

Informational: Legislative Tracking

Informational: Sponsorship Tracking FY 2018/19
Informational: Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
Informational: Committee Planning Calendar 2019

Nooahrwh =

April 2, 2019 Board Meeting
1. Recommend Approval of Agency Media Policy
2. Resolution to Adopt Santa Clara River Stewardship

April 18, 2019 Committee

Legislative Consultant Reports

Presentation: 2019 Customer Satisfaction and Awareness Survey
Informational: Monthly Outreach Matrix

Informational: Legislative Tracking

Informational: Sponsorship Tracking FY 2018/19

Informational: Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
Informational: Committee Planning Calendar 2019

Noohkwn =

433



434

S CV PUBLIC OUTREACH AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE
winTEH AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 2019

May 16, 2019 Committee
1. Interviews of Federal Legislative Advocate Firms

June 4, 2019 Board Meeting
1. Presentation 2019 Customer Satisfaction and Awareness Survey

June 20, 2019 Committee
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Discussion: Federal Legislative Advocacy Selection
3. Public Outreach Activities: Blue Ribbon Committee
4. Public Information Officer Activities:
e Monthly Outreach Matrix
Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2019/20
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
Committee Planning Calendar 2019

July 18, 2019 Committee
Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Discussion: Blue Ribbon Committee Membership
3. Public Outreach Activities: PFAS
4. Public Information Officer Activities:
e Monthly Outreach Matrix
e Legislative Tracking
e Sponsorship Tracking FY 2019/20
e Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
e Committee Planning Calendar 2019
August 20, 2019 Board Meeting
1. Federal Legislative Advocacy Selection

August 22, 2019 Committee

1. Legislative Consultant Reports

2. Discussion: Blue Ribbon Committee

3. Discussion: Sponsorship Policy

4. Public Information Officer Activities:

e  Monthly Outreach Matrix

Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2019/20
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
Committee Planning Calendar 2019

e o o o

September 18, 2019 Committee - SPECIAL

1. Legislative Consultant Reports

2. Discussion: Sponsorship Policy

3. Public Information Officer Activities:
e Monthly Outreach Matrix
e Legislative Tracking
e Sponsorship Tracking FY 2019/20
e Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019



S CV PUBLIC OUTREACH AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE
wiﬂTEH AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 2019

e Committee Planning Calendar 2019

October 17, 2019 Committee

1. Legislative Consultant Reports

2. Discussion: Social Media Plan

3. Public Information Officer Activities:

e Monthly Outreach Matrix

Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2019/20
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
Committee Planning Calendar 2019/20

November 19, 2019 Board Meeting
1. Website and Social Media Administrative Policy 2019

November 21, 2019 Committee
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Discussion: LAFCO Annexation Process & Municipal Service Review (MSR)
3. Discussion: 2020 Legislative Platform
4. Public Information Officer Activities:
e Monthly Outreach Matrix
Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2019/20
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2019
Committee Planning Calendar 2019/20

December 17, 2019 Board Meeting
1. Recommend Approval of the 2020 Legislation Platform

December 19, 2019 Committee - CANCELLED

435



S CV PUBLIC OUTREACH AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE
winTEH AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 2020

January 16, 2020 Committee

1. Legislative Consultant Reports

2. Public Information Officer Activities:

e Quarterly Report from Social Media Consultant Tripepi Smith

Monthly Outreach Matrix
Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2020/21
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2020
Committee Planning Calendar 2020

February 20, 2020 Committee

1. Legislative Consultant Reports

2. Public Information Officer Activities:

e Washington D.C. Advocacy Trip

Monthly Outreach Matrix
Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2020/21
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2020
Committee Planning Calendar 2020

March 19, 2020 Committee
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Discussion: SCV Water Agency Water Summit Updates
3. Public Information Officer Activities:
e Monthly Outreach Matrix
Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2020/21
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2020
Committee Planning Calendar 2020

April 16, 2020 Committee

1. Legislative Consultant Reports

2. Discussion: Legislative Staff Briefing

3. Public Information Officer Activities:

e Monthly Outreach Matrix

Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2020/21
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2020
Committee Planning Calendar 2020

May 21, 2020 Committee

1. Legislative Consultant Reports

2. Public Information Officer Activities:

e Monthly Outreach Matrix

Legislative Tracking
Sponsorship Tracking FY 2020/21
Public Outreach Event Calendar 2020
Committee Planning Calendar 2020

436



CITSNa

abueyox3/iejsuel] Jolep INOISSIS AISOTO| 64

Aouaby s|qisuodsay Se 8|0y pajwi] S,YMADS Ul
108[01d 8y} Buinoiddy pue y3D 01 Juensind sbuipuiq Aouaby

a|qisuodsay Buiye| ‘|| [8Q 010S8] JO UoiBXauuY 04| 8|

sBuipaadold areniu] 004y sejebuy so Bunsenbay YMADS
Aq uoneolddy jo uonnjosay e jo [eaosddy puswiwoday

SallI|I0eH UOIBIBUSL) JB0S Us( S,|IAe( 40 snelg| /1

108014 J8118Y 1YBN0oIQ OARIGOIH-BBPESOY 8y} UO UOIBIUSSaId| 9|

sallijioe uonoelix3 welboid abueyox3 pue
Bupjueg 10u1sIq 86e.I0lS 81BN OARIG-OIYH 8]EPSSOY JO SNielS

ue|d Juswabeuep
JuBLINN pue JeS JaAlY BiE|D BUBS Jaddn jo sniels

alepdn ue|d Juawabeuey Jalep) [euolbay palelbaju) jo snieis| g1

SaAIY
ue|d wawabeuel Ja1ep [euoibay pajeibaiul uo ayepdn

so||ddng Jarepn Jo sniels

437

weiboid
10|14 Buipeaids Jajempunoln) 0} Buiiejey sHoy3 Jo sniels

108(01d Jl0AI8SEY SOMS JO SNiBIS

weiboid Jarep) pajohoay Jo sniels

O |INO )

uoneluawaldw|
10y Juswabeue|y Jayempunols) a|qeureisns Jo sniels

sweibold Bupjueg Jarep pue Aiddng Jaiepn jo snieis

uoday [enuuy-iwag uaq s,jineqg

welboid doig map Ja1ep pajokoay uo aepdn

sa|bolellS uoieAIasUOD Uo arepdn

®)

s108[0.1d 10|1d MYied 18%00d ® usapier) A10jeAlasuo) uo ayepdn

-
=z
o

80UBWLIONSd % SOIIAIIOY UOIIBAISSUOD) UO arepdn

wwo) g} unp| o

pieog g unp

wwo) g} Aepy| o

pajjeoue) ag o

pieog g Aepy

wwo) g .dy| o

pseog / idy

wwo) || e o

preog g Jep\

wwo) gl ged| o

pieog ¥ ga4

pajjeoue)
wwoy g uep

preog / uep)

pleog /| 98@
wwo || 99q| ©
pajjeoue)

wwo) gl AoN
pleog G AON
pieog G| 190
wwo) 6 100| ©
pieog | 100
wwo) || deg| ©
pieog g deg
pseog 0z Bny
wwo) | bny| O

pieog 9 bny|

wwog ok Inp| ©

pieog ¢ Inr

way

02/610¢ Ad

lepuaje) pieog pue as}IWWO) PAYSIAE | @ S924N0SaY Jaje

Aouaby Jarep\ A3)jeA eie|) ejues



CITSNa

sanIAloY weibold
0 puE S8INJONIIS M 2INSea\ pue MY ‘YSD jo uosuedwon

Auedwo) Jarep) elousjeA ayl Aq paalag Apawio
BaJY By} JO} JuBWIpUBWY 8dUaNju| Jo 81ayds pue uoexauuy| 82
Jo} sBuipaasold aremu] 004y bunsanbay uoinjosay e dopy
-ou|

0 INO

‘BuIlNSUOD BSIMIBIBA YNIM 10BIIUOD B OJu| Jaju] o} Jabeuepy| /2
[esouan) 8y} BuizioyINy UOIN|0SaY € 4O [eAciddy puswLoday

$80IN0SaY JaleM

4O Juswpeda( eluIOy[BD By} YUM Juswaaiby Juels) e ajnoax3
pue juels) uonejuswa|dw| Juswabeue|y Jarep) [euoibay| 92
pajelbaju| | punoy e Joj uonedlddy ue Jwagng o} Jebeuep
JeJousn) ay Buizuoyiny uonnjosay e Jo uondopy puswwoosy

eln Buiuue|d uswabeue|y Jo}eMPUNOIL) 9|qeulelSNS 6102
B 10} BlUJO}I[BD JO 81BIS 8yl Yum Juswaalby ue anoax3 (g)
puE a1eyS 1S0D [8007] 8U} 40} d|qisuodsay Aouaby ay} Se Jalep
0 0 ADS Buikuap] ‘Aousby Aujiqeureisng ssiempunols As|leA| G2
BlLIB|D BIUBS 8U]} JO Jleyag uo el weiboid juswabeuepy
J9¥eMpuno.y) a|qeurelsng ¢ punoy e Joj Aiddy (1) o} sebeuepy
|esauan) ay) Buizuoyiny uonn|osay e jo [eaosddy puswwodsy

Buiuue|d Aujioe 1oy Juswaaliby buleys 1so) e ojul Jajug

0} Jebeuey\ [eisuarn) ay} Buizuoyiny pue Ayjioe4 aouekaauo)
B9 B 10} S80IN0SaY JalBA\ 4O Juswnedaq eluloyeD ayl| 2

yum joesjuo) Alddng Jarep s.Aouaby ayi puswy o3 a|didulid ul
wewealby ue Buinoiddy uonnjosay e Bundopy puswiwodsay

o) Apnis Aljiqisea abieyday paysisiep JO maInaY| €2

S|00 ]

1uawabeueyy Jalep) 108[01d 191 B1BIS 8y} J0) JUsWpUSWY
10BJJUOD B 81ndax3 0} Jabeue|y [elausy) sy Buizuoyiny| gz

pue sj00] Juswabeue|y Jajep 108(0id JSIBAN B1e1S 10}
sbuipui{ yo30 Hundopy uoinjosay jo [eaciddy puswiwiodsy

s}s0) Buluue|d J10A18s8Y S8)S Ul uonedidiued
s Jalep\ ADS J0} Juswaalby ue aindax3 o} Jabeuep| |2
[esauan) ay} Buizuuoyiny uonn|osay e jo [eaciddy puswiwoday

uondo aouekanuo)

BJlog MaN [enualod e 0} pajejay siso) ubisaq pue Buiuue|d
Areuiwjald 10} HMA Yim Juswaaiby Buipun4 e ojul Jajug
0} Jabeueyy [eiauan) ayl Buizuoyiny uofnjosay e anoiddy

o

4

(&)

wwoy o} unp
pJeog g unp|
wwo ¢ Aepy
pajjeoue) eg o]
pieog g Aepy
wwo) g Jdy
pseog / idy
wwoy || ey
pleog ¢ Jepy
wwo ¢} g9
pleog ¢ o4
pajjeoue)
wwo) g uep

pajjeoue)

wwoy g1 AON

way

preog / uer|
preog /| 98@Q
wwoy |1 98
pJieog G AON
preog S| 10
wwog 6 10
preog | 10
wwo) || deg
pieog g deg
pseog 0z bny|
wwoy ¥} bny
pieog 9 bny|
wwog o} Inf
pieog ¢ Inr

02/610¢ Ad

Jepugje) pieog pue 32} i) Paysidlep\ B S92IN0SAY 191\
Aouaby Jarep\ A3)jeA ele|) ejues

438



ITEM NO.
12.1

Lynne Plambeck
AB1234 Report

Southern California Water Dialogue - January 22, 1920
LA County Hall of Administration, Rm. 743
500 W. Temple St., Los Angeles

Subject - Enough is Enough! — Sativa Water District

The troubled Sativa Water District (Compton area) stands out as an urban case in point of the complaints
of contaminated drinking water echoed up and down the state being served to customers in
underrepresented communities.

The panel discussed how and why this problem went undetected for so long and how it was finally
addressed. ( LAFCO dissolved the district, then the County took it over as the appointed administrator).
Sativa was a small water district in an economically disadvantaged section of town. It was essentially
insolvent and district production equipment had not been properly maintained, resulting in residents
receiving brown water. At first it was thought that this was caused by a reaction between disinfection
chemicals and iron manganese in the water, but it turned out that the gravel packing in the well had
collapsed, allowing soil into the distribution lines.

The water quality issues and procedures used to take over the water district and install an administrator
were described by the representatives below from the State Water Resources Control Board - Drinking
Water Division. They also described the numerous small systems throughout the state that are having
similar issues, and described what steps the state is trying to take to address this, including promoting
consolidations with nearby larger systems and discouraging the formation of small systems. It turns out
that most systems with problems have fewer than 200 connections.

The most interesting part of the presentation was the discussion by Russ Bryden, the County’s
Administrator, of how he resolved the issues and won the respect of the community. He is an amazing
engineer, but more than that, an amazing problem solver and a master diplomat. It took a lot to win the
community’s trust in this crime-ridden area. His success seems due to innovative ideas, adequate funding
from the county and a support team, and just plain caring about the people he was working for and
wanting to make things right.

Speakers:

Russ Bryden,Principal Engineer, Los Angeles County Department of Public Works

Jeff O’Keefe, State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Southern California Drinking Water
Field Operations Branch

Karen Nishimoto, Supervisor, SWRCB, Southern California Drinking Water Field Operations Branch
Anthony Trujillo, Staff Engineer, SWRCB, Southern California Drinking Water Field Operations
Branch

439


ajacobs
Item 12.1


[This page intentionally left blank.]

440



	Agenda
	Item 6.1
	Item 6.2
	Item 6.3
	Item 6.4
	Item 6.5
	Item 6.6
	Item 7.1
	Item 7.2
	Item 7.3
	Item 9.1
	Item 9.2
	Item 9.3
	Item 10.1
	Item 10.2
	Item 10.3
	Item 10.4
	Item 10.5
	Item 12.1

